
Item 1Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Item 3Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



 
 
Meeting Date:    November 18, 2014 
Prepared By/Phone Number: David Salazar 

Office of the Travis County Judge 
      512-854-9555 
 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head:   Samuel T. Biscoe 
 Travis County Judge 
 
Commissioners Court Sponsor:     
 
AGENDA LANGUAGE: 
 
PRESENTATION OF AWARD OF MERIT BY THE TRAVIS COUNTY HISTORICAL COMMISSION 
RECOGNIZING MICHAEL BARNES FOR HIS WORK OVER THE PAST 25 YEARS TO PRESERVE 
TRAVIS COUNTY HISTORY. 
 
 
BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST AND ATTACHMENTS: 
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 
 
ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES: 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING: 
 
 
REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS: 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Item 4Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm

mailto:agenda@co.travis.tx.us


Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

 
Meeting Date: November 18, 2014 
 
Prepared By/Phone Number: Christy Moffett, MSSW  512-854-3460  
 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Sherri E. Fleming,  
County Executive for Health and Human Services and Veterans Service 
 
Commissioners Court Sponsor: Judge Samuel T. Biscoe 
 
AGENDA LANGUAGE: 
Approve proclamation regarding Hunger and Homelessness Awareness Week to be 
held November 15, 2014 through November 23, 2014 in Travis County. 
 
BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST AND ATTACHMENTS: 
The Ending Community Homelessness Coalition (ECHO) is hosting Hunger and 
Homelessness Awareness Week. This is an annual event that includes a week of 
events designed to educate the Travis County community on the root causes of hunger 
and homelessness in Central Texas. This week of events will be held Sunday, 
November 15, 2014 through November 23, 2014.  
 
To learn more about ECHO’s Hunger and Homelessness  
Awareness Week, visit: http://www.austinecho.org/hhweek/. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: 
Staff recommends approval of the proclamation. 

ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES: 
Hunger and Homelessness Awareness Week is the largest annual event that connects 
policy makers, local business leaders, service providers, faith based organizations, and 
community members to engage in implementing active solutions and prevention 
methods for hunger and homelessness in Central Texas.  
 
The 2012 Feeding America report identified that 18.1% of Travis County residents 
experienced food insecurity, placing them at risk for hunger. Furthermore, ECHO’s 2014 
homeless count showed that there were 1,987 homeless people in Travis County, with a 
little less than half of those people counted in shelters.  
 
ECHO volunteers coordinate events that educate participants, raise awareness about 
relevant, local aspects of hunger and homelessness, and offer opportunities to 
volunteer, donate, or otherwise get involved with the service agencies and nonprofit 

Item 5Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm

mailto:agenda@co.travis.tx.us
http://www.austinecho.org/hhweek/
http://www.feedingamerica.org/hunger-in-america/our-research/map-the-meal-gap/2012/tx_allcountiesmmg_2012.pdf


 
 
 

AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to the County Judge's office, agenda@co.travis.tx.us  by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. for the next week's 
meeting. 
 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

organizations that are already working against these issues. Hunger and Homelessness 
Awareness Week calls attention to those less fortunate while furthering ECHO’s vision 
to create a community fiercely focused on ending homelessness. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING: 
None 
 
REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS:  
None 

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm

mailto:agenda@co.travis.tx.us


 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

HUNGER AND HOMELESSNESS AWARENESS WEEK PROCLAMATION 
 

 
WHEREAS, The Ending Community Homelessness Coalition (ECHO) of Austin is the U.S. 

Department of Housing and Development’s designated Continuum of Care for 
Austin and Travis County; and 

 
WHEREAS, The National Coalition for the Homeless and the National Student Campaign 

Against Hunger and Homelessness co-sponsor Hunger and Homelessness 
Awareness Week nationally; and 

 
WHEREAS, ECHO organizes and executes the activities of Austin’s contribution to Hunger and 

Homelessness Awareness Week, to be held in 2014 from November 15th to 
November 23rd; and 

 
WHEREAS, Travis County and ECHO are both dedicated to ending homelessness in Austin 

through a Continuum of Care focused on decent, affordable, and permanent 
housing; 

 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT PROCLAIMED BY THE TRAVIS COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
COURT TO OBSERVE NOVEMBER 15 – 23, 2014 AS 
 

“HUNGER AND HOMELESSNESS AWARENESS WEEK” 
 

AND ENCOURAGE ALL WHO ARE COMMITTED TO ENDING HUNGER AND 
HOMELESSNESS IN TRAVIS COUNTY TO SUPPORT THE TRAVIS COUNTY 
COMMISSIONERS COURT AND ECHO’S EFFORTS TO END HUNGER AND 

HOMELESSNESS IN TRAVIS COUNTY. 
 
SIGNED AND ENTERED THIS 18th DAY OF NOVEMBER, 2014 
 
 
 

_________________________________ 
SAMUEL T. BISCOE 

COUNTY JUDGE 
 
 
 
_____________________________    _____________________________ 
RON DAVIS        BRUCE TODD 
COMMISSIONER, PRECINCT 1    COMMISSIONER, PRECINCT 2 
 
 
_____________________________    _____________________________ 
GERALD DAUGHERTY     MARGARET J. GÓMEZ 
COMMISSIONER, PRECINCT 3    COMMISSIONER, PRECINCT 4 

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



 
 
Meeting Date:    November 18, 2014 
Prepared By/Phone Number: David Salazar 

Office of the Travis County Judge 
      512-854-9555 
 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head:   Samuel T. Biscoe 
 Travis County Judge 
 
Commissioners Court Sponsor:     
 
AGENDA LANGUAGE: 
 
APPROVE RESOLUTION RECOGNIZING THE MONTH OF NOVEMBER 2014 AS “NATIONAL 
ALZHEIMER’S DISEASE AWARENESS MONTH” IN TRAVIS COUNTY. 
 
 
BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST AND ATTACHMENTS: 
Please see attached. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 
 
ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES: 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING: 
 
 
REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS: 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Item 6Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm

mailto:agenda@co.travis.tx.us


Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



 
 
Meeting Date:    November 18, 2014 
Prepared By/Phone Number: David Salazar 

Office of the Travis County Judge 
      512-854-9555 
 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head:   Samuel T. Biscoe 
 Travis County Judge 
 
Commissioners Court Sponsor:     
 
AGENDA LANGUAGE: 
 
APPROVE RESOLUTION RECOGNIZING THE MONTH OF NOVEMBER 2014 AS “NATIONAL 
CAREGIVER AWARENESS MONTH” IN TRAVIS COUNTY. 
 
 
BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST AND ATTACHMENTS: 
Please see attached. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 
 
ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES: 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING: 
 
 
REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS: 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Item 7Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm

mailto:agenda@co.travis.tx.us


Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



 
 
Meeting Date:    November 18, 2014 
Prepared By/Phone Number: David Salazar 

Office of the Travis County Judge 
      512-854-9555 
 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head:   Samuel T. Biscoe 
 Travis County Judge 
 
Commissioners Court Sponsor:     
 
AGENDA LANGUAGE: 
 
A. APPROVE RECOGNITION OF CRIMINAL JUSTICE PLANNING’S WORKFORCE 
DEVELOPMENT PROGRAM PARTNERS FOR PROVIDING EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITIES TO 
TRAVIS COUNTY RESIDENTS; AND 
 
B. APPRECIATION LUNCH TO FOLLOW IN THE ADJACENT MULTIFUNCTION ROOM. 
 
 
BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST AND ATTACHMENTS: 
Please see attached. 
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 
 
ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES: 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING: 
 
 
REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS: 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Item 8Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm

mailto:agenda@co.travis.tx.us


 

You Are Cordially Invited to the  

Travis County Commissioners Court 

Workforce Development Partner Appreciation.  

 

The Workforce Development Program Would Like to Recognize Our Partners and Offer Our  

Appreciation for Your  Generous Contributions to the Community in Increasing Employment  

Opportunities to Our Program Participants. 

 

When: Tuesday, November 18, 2014 11:30 A.M. 

Where: Travis County Commissioners Courtroom 

700 Lavaca, Austin, Texas 78701 

 

Lunch Following Presentation by the Commissioners Court.  

This Invitation is Your Ticket to the Event. 

Sponsored by   

Travis County Commissioners Court 

 
Please RSVP by Wednesday, November 12, 2014 to: 

Sandra Trevino 

Email: sandra.trevino@traviscountytx.gov 

Phone: (512) 854-7996 

 

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



 
             
             
             
          
 
 

AGENDA REQUEST 
 
Meeting Date:  November 18, 2014 
Prepared By/Phone Number: Sarah Scott/854-6885 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Danny Hobby, County 
Executive, Emergency Services 
Commissioners Court Sponsor:  Judge Biscoe 
  
AGENDA LANGUAGE:  
Approve the use of County funds to reimburse travel costs to 
candidates interviewing for the Chief Medical Examiner position. 
 
BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST AND ATTACHMENTS: 
Candidates from outside the Austin area have been asked to 
interview for the Chief Medical Examiner position.  Travel costs may 
include airfare, personal auto expenses, auto rental, hotel, cost of 
meals, as well as incidentals. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: 
Approve reimbursement of travel costs to interview candidates for the 
Chief Medical Examiner position. 
 
ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES: 
The Planning & Budget Office has confirmed that sufficient funds are 
available to pay travel costs. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING: 
See Attached.   
 
REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS: 
Danny Hobby 854-4416 
Debbie Maynor 854-9170 
Nicki Riley   854-9125 

 
 
 
 
 

Item 9Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



1 
 

 
             
             
             
          
 
 

BACKUP MEMORANDUM 
 

DATE:  November 10, 2014 
 
TO:   Members of the Commissioners Court 
 
VIA: Danny Hobby, County Executive, Emergency 

Services 
 
FROM: Sarah Scott, Chief Administrative Officer, Travis 

County Medical Examiner’s Office  
 
SUBJECT: Approval to Reimburse Chief Medical Examiner 

Candidates for Travel Costs 
 
Proposed Motion: 
 
Approve the use of County funds to reimburse travel cost for 
candidates not in the Austin area interviewing for the Chief Medical 
Examiner position. 
 
Summary: 
 
The candidates will be traveling to interview for the Chief Medical 
Examiner position.  Travel costs may include airfare, use of personal 
auto (including mileage), auto rental, hotel, cost of meals, as well as 
incidentals. 
 
Budgetary and Fiscal Impact: 
 
Travis County Budget Rule #14 allows Commissioners Court to 
approve the use of County funds to pay for travel arrangements and 
food/non-alcoholic beverages to entertain applicants when recruiting 
nationally for top level positions.  The approval must be granted prior 

 
 
 
 
 

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



2 
 

to the travel for the applicant to be reimbursed.  Job applicants are 
reimbursed at the same rates used for current County personnel.   
 
Travel costs are estimated to be around $3,300 total.   Funds will be 
paid from the Medical Examiner’s Office budget account for travel, 
meals and lodging.   
 
Recommendation 
 
Approve reimbursement of travel costs to interview candidates for the 
Chief Medical Examiner position.  
            
   
 

             
  

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Item 10Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Item 11Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Item 12Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Item 13Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Item 14Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



             
 

 
Meeting Date:  November 18, 2014 
Prepared By:  Paul Scoggins, Engineering Specialist Phone #: (512) 854-7619 
Division Director/Manager:   Donald W. Ward, P.E., Assistant Public Work Director 
- Road and Bridge Division  

 
Department Head:  Steven M. Manilla, P.E., County Executive-TNR 
Sponsoring Court Member:  Commissioner Daugherty, Precinct Three 
       
 
AGENDA LANGUAGE:  Consider and take appropriate action on the acceptance of 
the dedication of the public street and drainage facilities within Cedar Ridge Estates 
– Precinct Three.   
 
BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST:   
Cedar Ridge Estates was recorded on November 8, 2001  at document 
#200100335.  This subdivision has been inspected for conformance with approved 
plans and specifications as listed.  This subdivision will be accepted under the 
regulations of the Standards for Construction of Streets and Drainage in 
Subdivisions approved by Commissioners Court August 28, 1997, in which the 
subdivision is accepted before the one-year performance period has ended. 
 
The completed sidewalks within this subdivision have been inspected by a 
Registered Accessibility Specialist and found to be in substantial compliance with the 
Texas Architectural Barriers Act.  The stop signs, if any, are in the process of being 
approved under Chapter 251 of the Texas Transportation Code. 
  
Cedar Ridge Estates is accessed from Ledgestone Terrace, a street maintained by 
Travis County.    This action will add a total of 2,400 linear feet (0.45 miles) to the 
Travis County road system. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS:   
TNR staff recommends approval of the proposed motion. 
 
ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES:   
Cedar Ridge Estates has had conditional construction acceptance since June 3, 
2008.  Staff will consider the time between the conditional construction acceptance 
date and now as the warranty period.  Therefore, staff recommends all fiscal be 
released once this motion is approved. 
 
 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Item 15Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING:   
N/A. 
 
ATTACHMENTS/EXHIBITS: 
TNR Approval Letter 
Conditional Approval Letter 
List of Streets  
Requirements for Approval 
RAS Letter 
Location Maps 
 
REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS:   
 

Cynthia McDonald Financial Manager TNR (512) 854-4239 
Steven M. Manilla County Executive TNR (512) 854-9429 
Anna Bowlin  Division Director Development Services 

and Long Range 
Planning 

(512) 854-7561 

                        
                        
                        
 
CC:    
Johnny Anglin Inspector Development Services (512) 266-3314 
Stacey Scheffel Program Manager TNR Permits (512) 854-7565 
                        
                        
 
SM:AB:ps 
1101 - Development Services  Long Range Planning - Cedar Ridge Estates 

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Item 16Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



 
 
Meeting Date:  November 18, 2014 
Prepared By/Phone Number:   Christy Moffett / 854-3460 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head:  
Sherri E. Fleming, County Executive of Travis County Health and Human 
Services & Veterans Service  
 
Commissioners Court Sponsor:   Judge Samuel T. Biscoe 
 
AGENDA LANGUAGE: 
Consider and take appropriate action on items related the Program Year 
2013 Consolidated Annual Performance Evaluation Report  for the 
Community Development Block Grant provided by HUD: 
 

A. Receive a summary of the annual performance report; and 
 

B. Approve the draft to post for public comment. 
 
BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST AND ATTACHMENTS: 
Under the provisions of Title 1 of the Housing and Community 
Development Act of 1974 (42 USC 5301), the federal government, through 
the U.S Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD), sponsors 
the Community Development Block Grant (CDBG), a program that provides 
annual grants to cities and counties to develop viable urban communities 
by providing decent housing, a suitable living environment, and by 
expanding economic opportunities for low and moderate income persons. 
Since 2006, Travis County has received CDBG funds from HUD on an 
annual basis.  As a CDBG urban entitlement, Travis County must compile 
and publish a report detailing the use of CDBG funds and associated 
progress and accomplishments for every program year.  HUD calls this 
annual report the Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report 
(CAPER).   
 
The CAPER describes the County’s CDBG housing and community 
development activities as well as the County’s overall housing and 
community development efforts.  This year’s CAPER corresponds to 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Item 17Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to agenda@co.travis.tx.us  by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. for the next week's meeting. 
 

activities conducted during the 2013 program year spanning October 1, 
2013 to September 30, 2014. 
 
Please see the attached draft of the CAPER and a PowerPoint 
presentation for a summary of the 2013 program year.  This summary will 
also be posted on the website for those who want a snapshot of the 
Program’s performance.   
 
On October 28, 2014 the Travis County Commissioners Court approved a 
15-day public comment period spanning from November 24, 2014, through 
December 8, 2014, as well as a public hearing on December 2, 2014.  
Notice of the comment period and public hearing was provided in 
newspapers of general circulation, through postal and electronic mailings, 
on the County’s website, Facebook, Twitter and the seven Travis County 
Community Centers.   
 
Final approval of the CAPER by the Travis County Commissioners Court is 
anticipated to occur on December 16, 2014.  The CAPER is due to HUD no 
later than December 30, 2014. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS:  
Staff recommends approval of the attached draft of the PY 2013 CAPER 
for public comment.   
 
ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES: 
When HUD awards CDBG funds to cities and counties, there is a mandate 
for CDBG entitlements to address the County’s housing, economic and 
community development needs of the low to- moderate income population. 
Given that often times the CDBG resources provided are limited, 
entitlements are expected to work in collaboration with other local funds to 
tackle the multiple community needs and ensure CDBG funds fall within the 
jurisdiction’s broader efforts. This is the reason why the CAPER documents 
both CDBG projects as well as the County’s efforts as a whole in the 
relevant areas.  
 
During PY13, spending occurred in seven different projects benefitting 
7,084 people. Of the funds available to the activities, $1,800,314 was 
spent, per HUD’s data management system called IDIS and approximately 
$965,244 was leveraged.  
 

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to agenda@co.travis.tx.us  by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. for the next week's meeting. 
 

 
The reports in Appendix B, Attachment A of the CAPER will include data 
from HUD’s database. Due to the length of these reports, they will only be 
included in the final CAPER.  
 
In addition, the County’s fiscal year recently closed without sufficient time 
for staff to make all of the appropriate references in the report; therefore, all 
missing General Fund references will be updated in the final report.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING: 
No budget impacts are anticipated by this item. 
 
REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS: 
None. 

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



TRAVIS COUNTY COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT 

(CDBG) PROGRAM 

PY 2013 CDBG Annual Report – Overview of Performance 
Travis County Commissioners Court 
November 18, 2014 

 
 

 
 

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Project Status Update 

 
 

 

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



OVERVIEW 
• During PY13, one new project was launched and 

completed, and six projects were renewed or 
continued from previous years. 
 

• Of the funds available, $1,800,314 was spent. 
 

• 7,084 people benefitted from CDBG funded projects.  
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 

  

3 Travis County CDBG Program, 2013 

PY 2013 PROJECTS 
Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



4 

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



5 

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



PROJECT STATUS 
• In 2010, Austin Habitat for Humanity used over 

a million dollars in CDBG funds to purchase  31 
lots on the Gilbert Lane parcel. 

• Significant construction activity occurred 
during PY13. Fifteen houses were completed, 
and closings occurred on six houses of these 
houses and are currently occupied. 

• The remaining houses will be completed by 
2015.   
 

To apply for a Habitat House,  
contact Austin Habitat for Humanity, Inc.  

at (512) 472-8788.   
 

 

  

6 Travis County CDBG Program, 2013 

PY 2013 ACCOMPLISHMENTS:  
Land Acquisition 

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



PY 2006 CLOSE OUT 
The investment of $250,000 resulted in: 
• Creation of 8 new affordable single family 

homes; 
• Creation of affordability for a minimum of 10 

years; 
• Units built to visitability standards and COA 

energy efficiency standards and included fire 
suppression systems; 

• Provision of homes to 6 low-income and 2 
moderate income families; 

• Provision of homes  to 2 families previously 
living in subsidized housing;  

• Leveraged $1,090,057; and 
• Ratio of $1 CDBG: $4.4 Private Funding 

 

 

  

7 Travis County CDBG Program, 2013 

PY 2013 ACCOMPLISHMENTS:  
Land Acquisition 

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



PROJECT STATUS 
• A Request-for-Qualifications (RFQ) process took place in 

PY11 and an Architectural and Engineering firm was 
selected to administer the design phase of the program.   

• In July of 2011, a Notice to Proceed was issued to the 
chosen firm. 

• During PY12, the Design Phase and the environmental 
assessment were completed.  

• During PY13, the environmental clearance was received. 
• The project was delayed due to an acquisition issue 

which has been resolved and the project is scheduled for 
completion in PY14.  
 

 

  
8 Travis County CDBG Program, 2013 

PY 2013 ACCOMPLISHMENTS:  
Lake Oak Estates 

A total of $425,000 was budgeted in PY13 with an additional $345,333 available 
from prior years. $28,029 was expended in PY13 and $126,265 spent to date. 

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



PROJECT STATUS 
• The project was launched and repairs to seven (7) 

homes were completed in PY12.  
• By the close of PY13, home repairs had been 

completed on 35 homes. 
• Of the 35 home rehabilitated during the PY13:   

– 20 units received ADA accessibility modifications 
– 35 units received repairs to address health and safety 

concerns 
– 32 units received repairs to address major system 

failures 
– 30 units received repairs to address energy efficiency 

9 Travis County CDBG Program, 2013 

PY 2013 ACCOMPLISHMENTS:  
Home Rehabilitation 

A total of $134,428 was budgeted in PY13 with an additional $1,258,160 
available from prior years and project savings. $990,746 was expended in PY13 
and $1,136,890 spent total to date. 

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



PROJECT STATUS 
• Outreach to a total of 153  agencies, school districts, churches, and neighborhood 

associations to inform community members about the social work services 
available. 

• 191 people benefitted from services including case management, referrals, non-
clinical counseling, and crisis intervention.  

• One client received assistance through the Youth and Family Assessment Center 
program.   

• 39 clients were assisted with State or County funded rent or utility assistance 
programs. 

• The project resulted in $22,201 dollars of leveraged funds. 

 

 

  
10 Travis County CDBG Program, 2013 

PY 2013 ACCOMPLISHMENTS:  
Social Service Expansion 

In PY13, a total of $75,000 was budgeted and $75,000 was expended. 

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



PROJECT STATUS 
 

• Outreach was made to 30 community contacts; 
• An additional seven (7) contacts were reached  
      through advertising; 
• Twenty-nine (29) clients received landlord/tenant  
      counseling;  and  
• One (1) client received fair housing counseling.  
 

 

 

  

11 Travis County CDBG Program, 2013 

PY 2013 ACCOMPLISHMENTS:  
Fair Housing Counseling 

In PY13, a total of $50,000 was budgeted in PY13 and $21,556 was expended. 

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



PROJECT STATUS 
• On October 31, 2013, a flood event caused damage to homes, streets, water 

quality structures, and parks within Travis County. 
 

• On November 4, 2013, the County Judge provided a flood disaster declaration. 
On Friday, December 12, 2013, Governor Rick Perry issued a State Disaster 
Proclamation for Travis and surrounding counties. On December 20, 2013, a 
Presidential Major Disaster Declaration was approved. 
 

• On February 4, 2014 TCCC approved an amendment to the CDBG PY13 Action 
Plan to reallocated funds and add a project that would provide assistance for 
repairs caused by flood damage to the Barkley Meadows Park. 
 

• The work was performed by Smith Contractors and was completed in July 2014.  
 
 

 

 

 

  

12 Travis County CDBG Program, 2013 

PY 2013 ACCOMPLISHMENTS:  
Barkley Meadows Park Repair 

In PY13, a total of $547,102 was budgeted and $533,881 was expended. 

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



PROJECT STATUS: GENERAL ADMINISTRATION 
• Staff provided significant amounts of technical assistance and training to contractors, 

internal departments, and subrecipients. 
 

• The public comment draft of the Analysis of Impediments (AI) was approved by the Travis 
County Commissioners Court (TCCC) and was posted for public review.  
 

• A substantial amendment was passed to reallocate funds and add the Barkley Meadows 
Park project to the PY13 Action Plan in order to respond to damage caused by flooding.  
 

• The PY12 CAPER, PY14-PY18 Consolidated Plan, and PY14 Action Plan were completed on 
time. 
 

• The Travis County CDBG program met its timeliness test in August 2014.  
 

• Staff assisted the Research and Planning Department of HHS/VS in drafting Travis County 
Snapshot from the American Community Survey and an annual Community Impact Report. 

 

 

 

  

13 Travis County CDBG Program, 2013 

PY 2013 ACCOMPLISHMENTS:  
Planning & Administration 

In PY13, a total of $171,106 was budgeted and $147,226 was expended. 

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



OF THE 11 IMPEDIMENTS TO FAIR HOUSING CHOICE, 5 WERE ADDRESSED 

• Isolation of Low Income Rural Communities 

– Social Work Project and $1 million Geographically Targeted Request for Services 

• Poor Condition of Housing Stock in Unincorporated Areas 

– Home Rehabilitation and Weatherization Programs 

• Persistence of Housing Discrimination 

– Fair Housing Counseling Project 

• Need for Improved Connections between Residents and Employment Opportunity 

– General fund investments in vans from outlying areas to employment centers 

• Increasingly Prohibitive Housing Costs 

– TCHFC Tenant Based Rental Assistance and tax exempt bond programs 

 

  
14 Travis County CDBG Program, 2013 

PY 2013 ACCOMPLISHMENTS:  
Fair Housing 

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



15 Travis County CDBG Program, 2013 

CAPER SUBMISSION TIMELINE:  

PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD: 
• Comments will be accepted beginning at 8:00 am on November 24, 2014 

and ending at 5:00 pm on December 8, 2014. A public hearing will be held 
at 9:00 am on December 2, 2014 at Commissioners Court.   

 
TO ACCESS THE DRAFT ANNUAL REPORT (beginning November 24, 2014): 
• Visit www.traviscountytx.gov/cdbg 
• Visit any of the seven Travis County Community Centers 
• Or call 512-854-3460 to request a copy 

 
TO SUBMIT WRITTEN COMMENTS: 
• Mail comments to CDBG Program, Travis County HHSVS,  

P.O. Box 1748, Austin, TX 78767  
• Email comments to cdbg@traviscountytx.gov 

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



   

TRAVIS COUNTY 

CDBG  
 

PY13 CONSOLIDATED 

ANNUAL PERFORMANCE 

EVALUATION REPORT 

 

 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT DRAFT 

10.1.2013 TO 9.30.2014 

PY 2013 

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



 

 

 
 
 

 
 

 

Prepared by: 
Travis County Health and Human Services & Veterans Service 

CDBG Office 
 

 
 
 
 
County Executive 
Sherri E. Fleming 
 
CDBG Office 
Christy Copeland Moffett 
Martha Brown 
Elena Rivera 
 
Travis County Auditor’s Office 
Janice Cohoon 
 
Travis County Transportation and Natural Resources 
Lee Turner 
 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 

Special thanks to the following people for 
providing information to assist staff in the 
completion of this report. 
 

Austin Habitat for Humanity 
Jacqueline Naud 
 
Austin Tenants’ Council 
Kathy Stark 
 
Health and Humans Services & Veterans Service 
Staff 
Lisa Glass 
Laura Sovine 
 
Meals on Wheels and More, Inc. 
Cindy Spackman 
 
Travis County Housing Services 
Rick Lucas 
 
Travis County Housing Finance Corporation 
Andrea Shields 
Karen Thigpen 
 

Questions or Comments?  
 

For questions or for more information, please contact the CDBG Office at cdbg@traviscountytx.gov

TRAVIS COUNTY, TX  

CDBG ANNUAL 

REPORT  

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



 

 

 
 

TRAVIS COUNTY, TX 
COMMISSIONERS COURT 

 
Samuel T. Biscoe 

Travis County Judge 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Bruce Todd 
County Commissioner 

Precinct Two 
 

Ron Davis 
County Commissioner 

Precinct One 
 

Gerald Daugherty 
County Commissioner 

Precinct Three 

Margaret Gómez 
County Commissioner 

Precinct Four 

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



PY 2013 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report                     Table of Contents 

 

 
 
Travis County, TX            Page    |   3 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
Acronyms ......................................................................................................................................................................... 4 

 
Introduction ..................................................................................................................................................................... 5 

Executive Summary ......................................................................................................................................................... 7 

 
SECTION I. GENERAL QUESTIONS ............................................................................................................................................ 12 
Status of Projects ............................................................................................................................................................. 12 

Geographic Distribution of Projects ................................................................................................................................ 25 

Geographic Distribution of Projects and Racial Concentrations ...................................................................................... 26 

Performance Evaluation of Projects ................................................................................................................................ 32 

Expenditures and Leveraged Resources for PY 2013 ....................................................................................................... 38 

Expenditures Per Project ................................................................................................................................................. 39 

Timely Spending of Funds ................................................................................................................................................ 40 

Managing the Process ...................................................................................................................................................... 42 

Monitoring ....................................................................................................................................................................... 46 

Institutional Structure and Coordination ......................................................................................................................... 49 

Public Engagement .......................................................................................................................................................... 51 

Evaluation of the CDBG Program ..................................................................................................................................... 55 

 
SECTION II. HOUSING AND SERVICES FOR THE HOMELESS ............................................................................................................ 56 
Housing Investments ....................................................................................................................................................... 56 
Overview of Housing Services Supported by Travis County ............................................................................................ 57 

Barriers to Affordable Housing ........................................................................................................................................ 60 
Impediments to Fair Housing Choice ............................................................................................................................... 63 

Homelessness .................................................................................................................................................................. 66 

HOME/American Dream Down Payment Initiative ......................................................................................................... 68 

Emergency Shelter Grant ................................................................................................................................................. 68 

Addressing “Worst Case” Housing Needs ........................................................................................................................ 68 

 
SECTION III. NON-HOUSING COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AND OTHER ACTIONS ............................................................................ 69 
Non-Housing Community Development Investments ..................................................................................................... 69 
Overview of Travis County CDBG Investments in Community Development .................................................................. 70 
Anti-Poverty Strategy....................................................................................................................................................... 73 
Non-Homeless Special Needs .......................................................................................................................................... 74 
Lead-Based Paint ............................................................................................................................................................. 76 
Specific HOPWA Objectives ............................................................................................................................................. 76 

 
APPENDICES..................................................................................................................................................................... 77 

Appendix A: Project Photos  ............................................................................................................................................. 78 

Appendix B: Public Participation  ..................................................................................................................................... 89 

Appendix C: IDIS Reports .................................................................................................................................................. 92 

 

 
 
   

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



PY 2013 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report                    Acronyms 

 

 
 
Travis County, TX            Page    |   4 

ACRONYMS 
 
Throughout this report, the reader will note the following acronyms: 
 

ADA Americans with Disabilities Act 

AI Analysis of Impediments to Fair Housing Choice 

AP Action Plan 

CAPER Consolidated Annual Performance Evaluation Report  

CDBG   Community Development Block Grant 

CFR Code of Federal Regulation 

Con-Plan Consolidated Plan (governs CDBG Programs) 

CPD Community Planning and Development (part of HUD) 

CPP Citizen Participation Plan 

EA Environmental Assessment 

ESG  Emergency Shelter Grant 

FHA Federal Housing Administration (part of HUD) 

FSS Family Support Services (a Travis County Social Service Program) 

FTEs Full Time Equivalents 

HACT Housing Authority of Travis County 

HHS/VS Travis County Department of Health and Human Service & Veteran Services 

HOME  HOME Investment Partnership Program (HUD’s Program) 

HOPWA Housing Opportunities for Persons with AIDS (HUD’s Program) 

the Accounting Software used by Travis County 

HUD United States Department of Housing and Urban Development 

IDIS Integrated Disbursement Information System (HUD’s Financial Management System)) 

LMA Low Mod Area of Benefit 

LMC Low Mod Clientele 

LMH Low Mod Housing 

LMI Low- and Moderate-Income (80% or below median household income) 

LMJ Low Mod Jobs 

MFI Median Family Income 

OMB Office of Management and Budget 

PY Program Year 

PY13 Program Year 2013 

RFP Request for Proposals 

RFQ Request for Qualifications 

RFS Request for Services 

TC Travis County 

TCHFC Travis County Housing Finance Corporation 

TxDOT Texas Department of Transportation  

TNR Travis County Department of Transportation and Natural Resources 

URA Uniform Relocation Act 

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



PY 2013 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report                Introduction 

     

 
 
Travis County, TX            Page    |   5 

 

 
 
 

INTRODUCTION 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

The Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) initiative is a federal grant program administered by 

the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD). The program provides annual grants 

to cities and counties to carry out a variety of community development activities aimed at revitalizing 

neighborhoods, improving affordable housing options, and providing improved community facilities 

and services. 

Based on its population in 2006, Travis County qualified as an urban county, a federal designation 

which afforded the County the opportunity to apply for CDBG funds. That year, Travis County applied 

for and received CDBG funds for the first time and has continued to receive funding each year through 

the present. The County’s annual allocation is based on a HUD-designed formula that takes into 

account the county’s population size, poverty rate, housing overcrowding, and age of housing. 

Usage of CDBG funds must meet a variety of parameters set nationally by HUD and locally by the 

County. Federal regulation requires that a minimum of 70% of the CDBG funds focus on projects for 

low- to moderate-income residents. Additionally, Travis County’s allocation specifically targets 

residents living in the unincorporated areas of the county and, to be eligible, the activities must meet 

one of the following HUD national objectives: 

 Benefit low- and moderate-income persons; 

 Aid in the prevention or elimination of slums and blight; or 

 Address other community development needs that present a serious and immediate threat to the 

health and welfare of the community. 

The administration of the CDBG program follows a cycle that includes the drafting of a Consolidated 

Plan (ConPlan), an Action Plan (AP), and a Consolidated Annual Evaluation and Performance Report 

(CAPER). During Program Year 2013 (PY13), the program was operating under the PY11-PY13 

Consolidated Plan (ConPlan) which identifies the County’s community and housing needs and outlines 

the strategies to address those needs over a three-year period from October 1, 2011 through 

September 30, 2014. The PY13 Action Plan defines the specific activities to be undertaken during the 

program year to address the priorities established in the ConPlan. A CAPER is prepared annually to 

assess the prior year’s accomplishments.   

The following figure is a simplified visual representation of the CDBG cycle. As shown, citizen 

participation has a central role in setting the priorities to be addressed and defining projects to tackle 

identified needs. 

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



PY 2013 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report                Introduction 

     

 
 
Travis County, TX            Page    |   6 

 

 

Figure 1: CDBG Cycle 

 

 
 

 

The Travis County Health and Humans Services & Veterans Service Department (HHS/VS) is the lead 

agency designated by the County for the grant administration of the CDBG program and the single 

point of contact with HUD. 

  

Public 
Engagement 

Consolidated 

 Plan 

Annual Action 
Plan 

Substantial 
Amendments 

Annual 
Report 

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



PY 2013 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report                Executive Summary 

     

 
 
Travis County, TX            Page    |   7 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY  
 

As a CDBG urban entitlement, Travis County must compile and publish a report detailing the use of 

CDBG funds and associated progress and accomplishments for every program year. HUD calls this 

annual report the Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report (CAPER). Specifically, the 

CAPER describes the County’s CDBG housing and community development activities as well the 

County’s overall housing and community development efforts.  

The CAPER is written to provide HUD with required CDBG information and provide the public an 

update of the progress made in this initiative. As a result of serving two audiences, the report follows 

the federal reporting requirements, while also presenting information in a format meant to be easily 

understood by County departments, service providers, and residents. The report includes specific 

outcome performance measures as delineated by HUD’s 2005 Community Planning and Development 

Outcome Performance Measurement System. 

Summary of Resources and Distribution of Funds 

The PY13 Action Plan detailed the proposed use of program funds from October 1, 2013 through 

September 30, 2014. Funds allocated for PY13 were used along with remaining funds from prior years.  

The following table details the use of funds for PY13 by project, and includes information on 

beneficiaries and project status.   

 

Figure 2: Progress of CDBG Projects as of September 30, 2014 

Activities 

Expected 
Benefit/ 
Served in 

PY13 

Budgeted 
PY13 
Funds 

Prior Year 
funds available 

for PY13** 

Amount Spent 
in Prior Years 

Amount 
Spent in 

PY13 
Status 

Production of 
New Owner 
Housing Units Via 
land acquisition 
and infrastructure 
development  

31/6 
 Housing 

Units 
$0 $4 $1,062,544.90  $0 

Continuing: Property 
acquired October 2010 & July 
2011. Eight (8) houses are 
currently complete and 
occupied. Remaining houses 
are scheduled to be 
completed in 2014 and 2015. 
PY 2006 project is closed out 
in PY13 with 8 units complete. 

Homebuyer 
Assistance 

N/A $0 $0 $39,599 $3,876 

Complete. One down 
payment assistance loan and 
one shared appreciation gap 
financing loan were closed in 
PY12. The County did not 
renew the contract for the 
program when it expired on 
September 30, 2013. Final 

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



PY 2013 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report                Executive Summary 

     

 
 
Travis County, TX            Page    |   8 

invoices were paid, balance of 
funds were reprogrammed n 
PY13, and project was closed 
out in PY13.   

Homeowner 
Rehabilitation 
Minor home 
repair up to 
$24,999 

16*/35 
 Housing 

Units 
$134,428*  $1,258,160 $146,144 $990,746 

Continuing: Project was 
launched in 2012, and repairs 
were completed on seven (7) 
houses during that program 
year. During PY13 repairs 
were completed on 35 
houses.  

Street 
Improvements: 
Lake Oak Estates 

126/0 $425,000 $345,333 $126,265 $28,029 

Continuing: Phased project. 
During PY12, design and the 
environmental study were 
completed. During PY13, the 
environmental clearance was 
received. Project was delayed 
due to an acquisition issue, 
which has been resolved and 
project is scheduled for 
completion in PY14. 

Public Services: 
Family Support 
Services (FFS) 
Social Work 
Services Expansion 
–Travis County 
HHS/VS Program 

400/191 $75,000 $0 $0 $75,000 
Completed 9/30/14 
 

Public Services: 
Fair Housing 
Counseling 

67/30 $50,000 $0 $0 $21,556 Completed 9/30/14 

Administration & 
Planning: CDBG 

N/A $171,106* $0 $0 $147,226 Completed 9/30/14 

Barkley 
Meadows^ 

6,763/6,763 $0 $547,102 $0 $533,881 Completed July 2014 

Total $855,534 $2,150,599 $1,374,553 $1,800,314  

*  This amount was adjusted as part of the Substantial Amendment to the PY13 Action Plan.  

**Includes Substantial Amendment funds. 
^  This project was added as part of the Substantial Amendment to the PY13 Action Plan. 
 

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



PY 2013 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report                Executive Summary 

     

 
 
Travis County, TX            Page    |   9 

Summary of Major Administrative and Planning Activities 

Substantial Amendment to the PY11-13 Consolidated Plan and PY09-PY13 Action Plans 

According to Travis County’s Citizen Participation Plan as required by HUD rules, a substantial 

amendment is necessary if any of the changes represent:   

 A change in the location or beneficiaries of a project proposed under the Consolidated Plan or 

Action Plan;  

 A change in the scope of the project by more than 25%; or  

 A change in the funding of a new project that was not originally subject. 

Over the course of several years, project cost savings totaling $862,673.99 were accrued and those 

funds needed to be reallocated for another purpose. The large amount of project savings was primarily 

due to the homebuyer assistance project that did not perform as projected during PY12. Furthermore, 

HUD reduced the PY13 Action Plan funding by 5% based on timeliness issues. Due to these changes, 

Travis County amended its PY11-13 Consolidated Plan and its PY09-13 Action Plans to reallocate funds 

resulting from project savings and reflect the 5% reduction in PY13 funds. Performance goals were also 

amended to align with funding changes.  

In addition to the reallocation of funds, the Substantial Amendment added the Barkley Meadows Park 

project to the PY13 Action Plan. On October 31, 2013, a flood event caused damage to homes, streets, 

water quality structures, and parks within Travis County. On November 4, 2013, the County Judge 

provided a flood disaster declaration. On Friday, December 12, 2013, Governor Rick Perry issued a 

State Disaster Proclamation for Travis and surrounding counties. On December 20, 2013, a Presidential 

Major Disaster Declaration was approved. This project provided assistance to restore Barkley Meadows 

Park to its condition prior to the October 31, 2013 flood. 

PY14-PY18 Consolidated Plan and PY14 Action Plan 

During PY13, CDBG staff prepared the next Consolidated Plan and Action Plan. Consolidated Plans are 

completed every three, five, or six years (based on the County’s interest) and include data on 

community needs and strategic goals. PY13 is the third and final year of a Consolidated Plan spanning 

program years 2011-2013. The next Consolidated Plan will span 5 years, taking effect on October 1, 

2014 and ending September 30, 2018.   

The PY14-PY18 Consolidated Plan was the first cycle for Travis County to use an automated tool 

required by HUD, called the eCon Planning Suite. Staff created the plan using the tool and a variety of 

information sources and data, including United States Census Bureau data, special cross-tabulations of 

Census data prepared for HUD, public input from online surveys, public hearings and community 

meetings, and reports prepared by Travis County divisions and departments, and by other local public 

and non-profit agencies.   

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



PY 2013 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report                Executive Summary 

     

 
 
Travis County, TX            Page    |   10 

The annual Action Plan specifies the activities to be undertaken with CDBG funds in the upcoming 

program year. Project ideas are solicited from the public, service providers, and Travis County 

departments. Travis County’s CDBG allocation for Program Year 2014 is $997,649. A minimum of 65% 

of the allocation must be spent on Housing and Community Development projects. Funds for 

Administration and Planning projects are capped at 20% and Public Services at fifteen percent. The 

PY14 Action Plan was drafted in conjunction with the Consolidated Plan.  

On June 10, 2014, the Travis County Commissioners Court approved all proposed projects for PY14 

funding. On June 24, 2014, the Travis County Commissioner’s Court approved the draft PY14 Action 

Plan for public review. After a public comment period, the plan was approved by TCCC on August 5, 

2014 and submitted to HUD on August 14, 2014.  

Summary of Timeliness and Past Performance 

As part of the mandate from Congress, HUD is required to determine whether Community 

Development Block Grant (CDBG) grantees carry out their program in a timely manner. A grantee is 

considered to be timely if 60 days prior to the end of the grantee’s program year, the balance in its 

line-of-credit does not exceed 1.5 times the annual grant. If the grantee exceeds the amount allowed 

at that 60-day mark, they are considered to be non-compliant. For Travis County, the timeliness test 

occurs every August. If the grantee fails to meet the timeliness requirements for two consecutive 

years, HUD can reduce the grant amount available for the next program year by the exact amount of 

the credit balance in excess of 1.5 times the annual grant.  

At the end of PY12, the CDBG program was not timely for the second consecutive year. HUD held an 

informal consultation with County Staff on September 9, 2013 to discuss the timeliness status. On 

November 8, 2013, the County received notice from HUD that the PY13 CDBG grant would be reduced 

by $54,391 due to slow spending of funds.   

Throughout PY13, CDBG staff worked in conjunction with subrecipients and other Travis County 

departments to ensure that projects met all deadlines and funds were spent in a timely fashion. In 

August 2014, the Travis County met its timeliness test of 1.5.  

Summary of Public Engagement 

Travis County implements a citizen participation process based upon 24 CFR Part 91.105 and the 

Citizen Participation Plan (CPP) approved by Travis County Commissioners Court on April 11, 2006 and 

amended on July 20, 2010. The approved CPP identifies the strategies and structure to fully engage the 

community. A brief summary of public engagement activities follows. For a full description of all 

activities undertaken during PY13, please refer to the “Public Engagement” section of this report. 

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



PY 2013 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report                Executive Summary 

     

 
 
Travis County, TX            Page    |   11 

Substantial Amendment to the PY11-13 Consolidated Plan and PY09-PY13 Action Plans 

A public comment period for the substantial amendment was advertised during December 2013 and 

held from January 3, 2014 to February 3, 2014. Additionally, a public hearing was held at Travis County 

Commissioners Court on January 14, 2014. The public had the opportunity to submit comments in 

writing via email or postal mail, or verbally at the public hearing. The draft Substantial Amendment was 

posted on the Travis County CDBG website (www.co.travis.tx.us/CDBG), and copies of the full 

document were available for review at the seven Travis County Community Centers.   

PY14-PY18 Consolidated Plan and PY14 Action Plan 

The public had a variety of opportunities to participate in the drafting of the Consolidated Plan. During 

the month of February 2014, the County held six public hearings specifically to solicit input for the use 

of CDBG funds. In addition, during the month of July, Travis County held two public hearings and a 30-

day public comment period to solicit final comment on the proposed uses of CDBG funds.  

Additionally, the public and service providers could complete a needs assessment survey. To assist in 

determining the spending priorities for Program Years 2014 – 2018, residents and service providers 

were asked to rank six categories on a scale of 1 to 6, with 1 being the most important issue area to 

address and 6 being the least important. Residents and providers were also asked to rank specific 

activities within each category, with 1 being the most important need to address. To assist in 

determining the spending priorities for PY14, residents and service providers were asked to rank three 

of the six categories  as “most urgent” “urgent” and “important” needs for the PY14 period.   

Project Proposals were solicited from residents, nonprofits, and Travis County departments to identify 

potential projects for PY14 and help determine community needs for the PY14-18 Consolidated Plan. 

Finally, a forum for service providers was held to help identify needs and gaps in service in the 

unincorporated areas, and opportunities for coordination over the Consolidated Planning period.  

After presentation to the Commissioners Court, the draft of the Consolidated Plan was posted for 

public comment for 30 days and included one public hearing.   

PY13 CAPER  

During the week of November 3, 2014, Travis County published a Public Notice announcing the 

availability of the PY13 CAPER, the public comment period, and the public hearing at Travis County 

Commissioners Court.  Travis County HHS/VS drafted the CAPER and presented it to the Travis County 

Commissioners Court on November 18, 2014. After presentation to Travis County Commissioners 

Court, the CAPER will be posted for public review and written comments prior to final approval by the 

Travis County Commissioners Court. The comment period will be held from November 24, 2014 to 

December 8, 2014. Additionally, a public hearing will be held at Travis County Commissioners Court on 

December 2, 2014.   

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



PY 2013 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report                        Section I. General Questions 

     

 
 
Travis County, TX            Page    |   12 

 

 
 
 

GENERAL QUESTIONS 
 
 
 

 
 

 

STATUS OF PROJECTS 
 

PROJECT 1:  OWNER HOUSING – PRODUCTION OF NEW UNITS 
Activity:  Land Acquisition  

IDIS Activity Numbers:  7 for PY06, 10 for PY07, 26 for PY08, and 33 for PY10 

Project Description 

Parcels on one large tract of land in 

unincorporated Travis County were acquired 

to build affordable single-family housing of 

which 17 units will be dedicated to low-

income families (25-50% Median Family 

Income (MFI)) and 14 units to moderate-

income families (up to 80% MFI). Financing 

for the lots is available to homeowners as a 

10-year forgivable loan. Single-family 

housing is defined as a one- to four-family 

residence. Public hearings were held to 

inform the public of the location(s) prior to 

the purchase of the land.   

 

Austin Habitat for Humanity, a local 

nonprofit, secures funding for the 

construction of homes on the acquired 

property. A total of 31 units of affordable 

housing are to be created. The number of 

individuals impacted varies depending upon 

the families selected for the housing units. 

 

 

 

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



PY 2013 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report                        Section I. General Questions 

     

 
 
Travis County, TX            Page    |   13 

Project Status and Progress-to-Date 

 Parcels of land were acquired in October 2010 and July 2011.  

 Two houses were completed during PY11 and are currently occupied.  

 Significant construction activity occurred during PY13. Fifteen houses were completed, and closings 

occurred on six houses of these houses and are currently occupied. 

 With the closing of six houses in PY13, the PY2006 project was closed. The statistics for PY2006 

include an investment of $250,000, which  

 created 8 new, affordable, single family homes,  

 created affordability for a minimum of 10 years in a desirable development area, 

 built all units were to visitability standards, City of Austin energy efficiency standards and 

included fire suppression systems, 

 provided homes to 6 low income families and 2 moderate income families,  

 provided homes to 2 household previously living in subsidized housing, and 

 leveraged $1,090,057 for a ratio of $1 CDBG:$4.4 Private Funding.  

 

 

Performance Measure 

Affordability for the purpose of creating decent housing. 

  

Activity 
ConPlan 
Priority 

Funds 
Sources 

CDBG 
Funding 

Leveraged 
Funding 

CDBG funds 
Expended 

during  
PY13 

Total CDBG 
funds 

Expended 

Amended 
Goal/ 
Actual 

Owner 
Housing 

High 
CDBG 

Private 
Prior Years: 

$1,062,548.90 
$807,715 $0 $1,062,544.90 

31/8  
Housing Units 

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



PY 2013 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report                        Section I. General Questions 

     

 
 
Travis County, TX            Page    |   14 

PROJECT 2:  HOMEOWNER REHABILITATION 
Activity:  Home Repair 

IDIS Activity Numbers:  39 and 43 for PY06-12, 47 

and 48 for PY13 

Project Description 

This project funds minor home repair services for 

low- and moderate-income homeowners in the 

unincorporated areas of Travis County and the 

Village of Webberville, to move homes towards 

Housing Quality Standards. The program seeks to 

improve the energy efficiency, physical living 

conditions, and safety in owner-occupied homes.  

Repairs shown include 

replacement of  bathtup with 

walk-in (ADA accessible) shower, 

and replacement of sink, cabinet, 

flooring, and light fixtures. 

Before rehabilitation 

After rehabilitation 

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



PY 2013 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report                        Section I. General Questions 

     

 
 
Travis County, TX            Page    |   15 

A 0% interest, 5-year, forgivable loan of up to $24,999 with no required annual or monthly payments, 

is available. The loan is forgiven at a pro-rata rate of 20% for each year of home ownership. Examples 

of potential improvements include, but are not limited to: connections of houses to long-term viable 

sources of water (not part of a stand-alone infrastructure project), complementing weatherization 

services of other funding sources, septic tank repairs, and electrical and plumbing repairs. In the event 

that program income is created, it will be reinvested into the existing Home Rehabilitation project.  

These funds are targeted toward homeowners at or below 80% MFI in the CDBG service area. This 

project is administered by Meals on Wheels and More, Inc. Some of the allocation partially funds a 

CDBG Planner position to complete environmental paperwork, final inspections and sign off, and any 

other needed project delivery related costs. 

Project Status and Progress-to-Date 

 The project was launched and repairs to seven (7) homes were completed in PY12.  

 During Program Year 2013 (PY13): 

 Site Specific Determinations are ongoing and by the close of PY13, home repairs had been 

completed on 35 homes 

 Of the 35 home rehabilitated during the PY13 reporting period:   

 20 units received modifications for ADA accessibility 

 35 units received repairs to address health and safety concerns 

 32 units received repairs to address major system failures 

 30 units received repairs to address energy efficiency 

*As noted in the December 2013 Substantial Amendment, fund reductions of $43,512 were offset by $315,572 in 

reallocated funds from prior year project savings. 

Performance Measure  

Improving the quality of owner-occupied housing. 

  

Activity 
ConPlan 
Priority 

Funds 
Sourc

es 

CDBG 
Funding 

Leveraged 
Funding 

CDBG funds 
Expended 

during  
PY13 

Total CDBG 
funds 

Expended 

Amended 
Goal/ 
Actual 

Home 
Rehabilitation 

High 
CDBG 

 

Prior Years: 
$1,088,732 

PY09-PY12 Project 
Savings: $315,572 

PY13:  
134,428* 

$35,328  $990,746 $1,136,890 
16/35 

Housing Units 

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



PY 2013 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report                        Section I. General Questions 

     

 
 
Travis County, TX            Page    |   16 

PROJECT 3:  LAKE OAK ESTATES 
Activity:  Street Improvements  

IDIS Activity Numbers:  35 for PY11, 38 for PY12, 50 for PY13 

Project Description 

The Lake Oak Estates Neighborhood completed a 

primary survey in March 2011 and was identified 

as a low- to moderate- income area. The roads in 

the unincorporated areas of Lake Oak Estates do 

not meet Travis County standards; therefore, the 

substandard roads cannot be accepted into the 

Travis County road maintenance program.   

 

The street improvement scope of work may 

include, but is not limited to: 1) design services, 2) 

land surveying services, 3) geo-technical services, 

4) drainage design services, 5) utility location and 

relocation coordination services, 6) environmental 

review and related regulatory permits, 7) 

acquisition of right-of-way and easements, and 8) 

construction. 

 

The project is taking place in three phases and includes improvements to sections of Cavalier Canyon 

Drive, Bowling Lane, Covenant Canyon Trail, Holly Lane, and related cross streets. The first phase, 

funded with PY11 grant funds, included: 1) design services, 2) land surveying services, 3) geo-technical 

services, 4) drainage design services, 5) utility location and relocation coordination services, 6) 

environmental review and related regulatory permits, and 7) project management time. The 

improvements impact 126 people, of which, 85.7% are considered low-to-moderate income based on 

the primary survey.     

Project Status and Progress to Date 

 A Request-for-Qualifications (RFQ) process took place in PY11 and an Architectural and Engineering 

firm was selected to administer the design phase of the program.   

 In July of 2011 a Notice to Proceed was issued to the chosen firm. 

 During PY12 the Design Phase of the project and Environmental Assessment for the project were 

completed.  

Facing Northwest on Holly Lane 

Facing Southeast on Bowling Lane 

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



PY 2013 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report                        Section I. General Questions 

     

 
 
Travis County, TX            Page    |   17 

 During PY13 the environmental clearance was received. 

 The project was delayed due to an acquisition issue which has been resolved and the project is 

scheduled for completion in PY14.  

 

Performance Measure 

Accessibility for the purpose of creating a suitable living environment. 

 

 

  

Activity 
ConPlan 
Priority 

Funds 
Sources 

CDBG 
Funding 

Leveraged 
 Funding 

CDBG funds 
Expended during 

PY13 

Total CDBG 
Funds 

Expended 

Goal/ 
Actual 

Street 
Improvements 

High CDBG 

Prior Years: 
$471,598 

 
PY13: 

$425,000 
 

NA $28,029 $154,294 
126/0 
People 

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



PY 2013 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report                        Section I. General Questions 

     

 
 
Travis County, TX            Page    |   18 

PROJECT 4:  PUBLIC SERVICES: SOCIAL WORK SERVICES EXPANSION 
Activity:  HHS/VS Family Support Services (FFS) Division Social Work Services Expansion 

IDIS Activity Number:  46 for PY13 

Project Description 

This program is an internal Travis County Health and Humans Services & Veterans Service expansion of 

existing services. In PY11, the program was redesigned to increase program capacity to provide case 

management, information and referral, non-clinical counseling, crisis intervention, and outreach in all 

four precincts of the unincorporated areas. The project is targeted to individuals who are at 80% MFI 

or below. The project funds the equivalent of one FTE social worker who works at a Travis County 

HHS&VS facility; however, to reduce transportation barriers, the social worker provides the majority of 

service provision through home visits. Part of the funds will be used for outreach events, and operating 

expenses, such as items necessary to provide home-based services, mileage, and training.   

Project Status and Progress-to-Date 

 Outreach to a total of 153 agencies, school districts, churches, and neighborhood associations 

during PY13 to inform community members about the social work services available. 

 The Social Work project served 191 people and spent all of its funding for PY13. The number of 

clients served was down by more than half of the established client goal. This year, the social work 

staff had more intensive cases rather that the mix of information/referral and less intensive case 

management traditionally seen since the project's inception in 2007. An analysis of the case 

management hours was conducted, comparing the number of case management hours provided in 

PY12 versus PY13, resulting in an almost 30% increase this year over PY12 despite having vacancies 

throughout the year. This movement to more intensive case management is considered a success 

as it demonstrates a stronger level of client engagement necessary to address the geographic 

isolation occurring outside the urban core. 

 One (1) client received assistance through the Youth and Family Assessment Center program.   

 39 clients were assisted with Travis County or State funded rent or utility assistance programs. 

 Map 1 below shows the number and distribution of clients served by the program in PY13. 

*Leveraged funding comes from Travis County General Fund rent and utility assistance, Flexible Youth Funding and State 
pass through funds for utility and rental assistance. 
 

Performance Measure 

Availability for the purpose of creating a suitable living environment.

Activity 
ConPlan 
Priority 

Fund 
Sources 

CDBG 
Funding 

Leveraged  
Funding* 

CDBG Funds 
Expended during PY13 

Total CDBG 
Funds Expended 

Goal/ 
Actual 

Public 
Services 

High 
 

CDBG 
 

PY13: 
$75,000 

 
$22,201 

 
$75,000 $75,000 

400/191 
People 

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



PY 2013 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report                                       Section I. General Questions 

     

 
 
Travis County, TX                          Page    |   19 

Map 1:  

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



PY 2013 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report             Section 1. General Questions 

     

 
 
Travis County, TX              
            Page    |   20 

PROJECT 5: PUBLIC SERVICES: Fair Housing 
Activity:  Fair Housing Counseling 

IDIS Activity Number:  51 for PY13 

Project Description 

The funds are allocated for Tenant’s Rights and Fair Housing Counseling for residents of the 

unincorporated areas and the Village of Webberville. This program expands existing services in the 

unincorporated areas of the County and the Village of Webberville, and proposes to serve 

approximately 67 people. Tenant’s Rights services include: telephone counseling and in-person 

mediation, as needed. Fair housing services include: fair housing counseling, fair housing complaint 

processing, and testing in support of an individual complainant. Additionally, part of the funds are to 

be used for allowable program delivery costs such as marketing and outreach. At least 51% of the 

recipients will be at or below 80% of the Median Family Income (MFI). Because housing discrimination 

occurs at all income levels, the project is allowed to serve up to 33 households above 80% MFI. Austin 

Tenant’s Council, designated as a subrecipient, provides these services.   

Project Status and Progress-to-Date 

 Outreach was made to 30 community contacts, with an additional seven (7) contacts made through 

advertising. 

 Twenty-nine clients received landlord/tenant counseling, and one (1) client received fair housing 

counseling.  

 

Activity 
ConPlan 
Priority 

Fund 
Sources 

CDBG 
Funding 

Leveraged  
Funding 

CDBG Funds 
Expended 

during PY13 

Total CDBG 
Funds Expended 

Goal/ 
Actual 

Public 
Services 

High 
 

CDBG 
 

 
PY13: 

$50,000 

 
$0 

 
$21,556 $21,556 

35/1 Fair Housing 
Counseling Clients; 

32/29 Landlord Tenant 
Counseling Clients; 
30/30 Community 

Contacts; 
7/7 Outreach Contacts 

 
Performance Measure 

Availability for the purpose of creating a suitable living environment. 
 

 
  

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



PY 2013 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report             Section 1. General Questions 

     

 
 
Travis County, TX              
            Page    |   21 

PROJECT 6:  PLANNING AND ADMINISTRATION 
Activity:  Administration 

IDIS Activity Number:  45 for PY13 

Project Description 

The funds allocated for administration pays for the operating expenses associated with the grant 

including office supplies, training, contracted services, fair housing activities, membership, Action Plan, 

annual report, reporting, and other business related expenses. Additionally, the funds pay for a portion 

(100% and 60%) of the salaries for the two CDBG Planners (one full-time and one part- time), and a 

portion (25%) of the salary of a TNR Senior Engineer. These positions are responsible for project 

development, environmental reviews, action plan and annual report development, monitoring, and 

reporting and other tasks relating to administration and planning.  
 

Project Status and Progress-to-Date 

 Staff provided significant amounts of technical assistance and training to contractors, internal 

departments, and subrecipients. 

 The public comment draft of the Analysis of Impediments was approved by the Travis County 

Commissioners Court (TCCC) and was posted for public review.  

 A substantial amendment was passed to reallocate funds and add the Barkley Meadows Park 

project to the PY13 Action Plan in order to respond to damage caused by flooding.  

 The PY12 CAPER, PY14-PY18 Consolidated Plan, and PY14 Action Plan were completed on time. 

 The program met its timeliness test in August 2014.  

 Staff assisted the Research and Planning Department of HHS/VS in drafting two reports: Travis 

County Snapshot from the American Community Survey and an annual Community Impact Report. 

 Staff attended community meetings for housing and homelessness and participated in the planning 

for the expansion of social services and executed contracts with specific performance measure to 

target the unincorporated areas.   
 

Activity 
ConPlan 
Priority 

Fund 
Sources 

CDBG 
Funding 

Leveraged  
Funding 

CDBG funds 
Expended during 

PY13 

Total CDBG 
Funds Expended 

Goal/ 
Actual 

Planning High 
CDBG 
Travis 

County 

$171,106* 
  

TBD $147,226 $147,226 N/A 

*Reduced by $10,879 per the Substantial Amendment  

Performance Measure 

N/A 

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



PY 2013 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report             Section 1. General Questions 

     

 
 
Travis County, TX              
            Page    |   22 

PROJECT 7: BARKLEY MEADOWS PARK REPAIR 
Activity: Public Facility 

IDIS Activity Number:  49 for PY13 

Project Description 

On October 31, 2013, a flood 

event caused damage to homes, 

streets, water quality structures, 

and parks within Travis County. 

On November 4, 2013, the County 

Judge provided a flood disaster 

declaration. On Friday, December 

12, 2013, Governor Rick Perry 

issued a State Disaster 

Proclamation for Travis and 

surrounding counties. On 

December 20, 2013, a Presidential 

Major Disaster Declaration was 

approved. 

This project included 

assistance to restore 

Barkley Meadows Park to 

its state prior to the 

October 31, 2013 flood. 

The Project included 

tree/debris removal, play 

area resurfacing, 

playscape replacement, 

fence repair/replacement, 

curb stop replacement, 

bank stabilization and 

erosion mitigation, and 

re-planting trees, re-

sodding and/or other re-

vegetation, as needed. 

Playground at Barkley Meadows after the storm/flooding 

Playground after repairs 

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



PY 2013 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report             Section 1. General Questions 

     

 
 
Travis County, TX              
            Page    |   23 

While this project could fall under the Urgent Need national objective, the area qualified as low-to-

moderate income. The project benefited 6,763 people, of which 55.4% are low-to-moderate income. 

(See the Area of Benefit map below for more details and the location of project.) The work was 

completed by Smith Contracting and overseen by the Travis County Transportation and Natural 

Resources Department, Parks Division. 

Project Status and Progress-to-Date 

 On February 4, 2014 TCCC approved an amendment to the CDBG PY13 Action Plan to reallocated 

funds and add a project that would provide assistance for repairs caused by flood damage to the 

Barkley Meadows Park. 

 The work was performed by Smith Contractors and was completed in July 2014.  

 The grand opening of the park is scheduled for November 2014.   

 

Activity 
ConPlan 
Priority 

Fund 
Sources 

CDBG 
Funding 

Leveraged  
Funding 

CDBG funds 
Expended during 

PY13 

Total CDBG 
Funds 

Expended 

Goal/ 
Actual 

Public 
Facility 

Medium, 
Urgent due 

to Flood 

 
CDBG 

 
$547,102 

 
$0 

 
$533,881 $533,881 6,763/6,763 

 

Performance Measure 

Access to a public facility that is no longer substandard. 

 

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



PY 2013 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report             Section 1. General Questions 

     

 
 
Travis County, TX              
            Page    |   24 

 

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



PY 2013 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report             Section 1. General Questions 

     

 
 
Travis County, TX              
            Page    |   25 

GEOGRAPHIC DISTRIBUTION OF PROJECTS 
 
Travis County’s CDBG program serves the unincorporated areas of the county and the Village of 

Webberville. The program does not have any designated target areas. Refer to the table below for 

specific descriptions of geographic distribution for each one of the CDBG projects. For project locations 

and racial and ethnic concentrations, please refer to the maps below.  

Figure 6: Geographic Distribution of Grant Activity for PY13 

Project Location/ Census Tract 

Production of New Owner Housing Units:      
via Land acquisition  

Precinct 1, Census Tract:  22.05 Block Group: 4 

Street Improvements:  Lake Oak Estates Precinct 4, Census Tract:  17.42, Block Group: 2 

Public Services:  Family Support Services 
(FSS) Social Work Services Expansion 

Various eligible households in the unincorporated areas of Travis 
County. Specifically residents in the following zip codes were 
served in PY13: 78617, 78621, 78641, 78645, 78652, 78653, 
76854, 78660, 78669, 78719, 78724, 78725, 78728, 78733, 
78734, 78736, 78737, 78747, 78748, 78754 

Public Services:  Fair Housing Counseling 

Various eligible households residing in the unincorporated areas 
of the County and the Village of Webberville. Specifically 
residents in the following zip codes were served in PY13:  78613, 
78641, 78645, 78653, 78660, 78724, 78725, 78727, 78728, 
78729, 78732, 78734, 78748, 78753 

Housing Rehabilitation  

Various eligible households residing in the unincorporated areas 
of the County and the Village of Webberville.  Specifically in the 
following zip codes were served in PY13:  78612, 78615, 78617, 
78621, 78641, 78653, 78669, 78724, 78725, 78728, 78747, 
78754. 

Barkley Meadows 
Precinct 4, Census Tract 24.16, Block Groups 2, 3, and 4.  
 

 
  

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



PY 2013 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report             Section 1. General Questions 

     

 
 
Travis County, TX              
            Page    |   26 

GEOGRAPHIC DISTRIBUTION OF PROJECTS & RACIAL CONCENTRATION 
 
This section outlines the projects in relation to the racial and ethnic concentrations in the areas where 

they are located. The table below demonstrates the race and ethnicity of persons served by projects 

implemented during PY13. The maps that follow identify where each of the street improvements, land 

acquisition, and public service projects are located.   

Figure 7: PY13 Project Beneficiaries by Race and Ethnicity 

Project 

Ethnicity Race 
Total 

People 
Benefited 

 
Hispanic 

Non-
Hispanic 

American 
Indian or 
Alaskan 
Native 

Asian/ 
Pacific 

Islander 

Black or 
African 

American 
White 

Other/ 
Multi 
Race 

Gilbert Lane Land 
Acquisition* 

10 15 0 0 15 10 0 25 

Public Services, 
Other – FFS Services* 

64 127 3 5 51 121 11 191 

Public Services, 
Other – 
Landlord/Tenant and 
Fair Housing 
Counseling* 

12 18 1 1 9 19 0 30 

Lake Oak Estates 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 N/A 

Homeowner 
Rehabilitation* 

27 48 0 0 23 47 5 75 

Barkley Meadows^ 4,781 1,982 94 132 640 4,009 1,888 6,763 

Administration and 
Planning 

N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Total 4,894 2,190 98 138 738 4,206 1,904 7,084 

*Data gathered from the PY13 performance reports submitted by service providers. 
^The total number of beneficiaries for this project is based on the HUD Low and Moderate Income Summary Data (LMISD) current as of 
9/1/2013. The LMISD file does not provide a breakdown of population by race/ethnicity. The estimates included here were derived by 
applying the percentage of each race/ethnicity for the area (as reported in the U.S. Census Bureau’s 2010 SF-1 dataset) to the total 
number of beneficiaries.  

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



PY 2013 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report                                     Section I. General Questions 

                      

 
 
Travis County, TX                           Page    |   27 

 
  

Map 2:  

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



PY 2013 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report                                     Section I. General Questions 

                      

 
 
Travis County, TX                           Page    |   28 

 

  

Map 3:  

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



PY 2013 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report                                     Section I. General Questions 

                      

 
 
Travis County, TX                           Page    |   29 

 

  
Map 4:  

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



PY 2013 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report                                     Section I. General Questions 

                      

 
 
Travis County, TX                           Page    |   30 

 

  

Map 5:  

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



PY 2013 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report                                     Section I. General Questions 

                      

 
 
Travis County, TX                           Page    |   31 

 

  

Map 6:  

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



PY 2011 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report                      Section I. General Questions 

                      

 
 
Travis County, TX             Page    |   32 

PERFORMANCE EVALUATION OF PROJECTS 

Compliance with CDBG National Objectives 

The use of CDBG funds requires selecting eligible projects that meet one of the three national 

objectives prescribed by HUD.  These are: 

1) Benefitting low/moderate income (LMI) persons;  

2) Addressing slum or blighted areas; or  

3) Addressing an urgent need.  

All of the projects implemented during Program Year 2013 met the national HUD objective of 

benefiting low/moderate income persons, thereby complying with the additional HUD requirement of 

spending 70% of CDBG funds on LMI persons. The CDBG Financial Summary for Program Year 2013 

Report located in Appendix C shows that 100% of the PY13 expenditures benefitted low/moderate 

income persons. 

For an activity to qualify as meeting the LMI national objective, grantees must certify they are following 

one of four qualifying categories: area of benefit activities, limited clientele activities, housing 

activities, or job creation/retention activities. A low-to-moderate (low-mod) area of benefit (LMA) 

activity is one that benefits all residents in a particular area, where at least 45.14% (based on an 

exception criteria in effect for the PY13 Action Plan) of the residents are LMI persons. A limited 

clientele (LMC) activity is one where 51% of the beneficiaries have to be LMI persons. Low-mod 

housing (LMH) applies to activities that aim to provide or improve permanent residential structures, 

which upon completion will be occupied by LMI households. A low-mod job (LMJ) creation activity is 

one designed to create or retain permanent jobs, at least 51% of which will be made available to or 

held by LMI persons. 

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



PY 2013 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report                                       Section I. General Questions 

     

 
 
Travis County, TX                           Page    |   33 

 

 
Map 7: 

Map 7: 

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



PY 2013 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report                    Section I. General Questions 

     

 
 
Travis County, TX             Page    |   34 

The following table summarizes the category under which each project qualifies to meet the LMI 

national objective as well as the specific number of clients served in each target income area. In the 

cases of projects where no individuals have received services yet, a check mark identifies the 

anticipated income targets for the clients that will benefit from that project.   

 

Figure 8: PY13 Beneficiaries By Income 

Project 
National 
Objective 

Low to Moderate Income Target Above 
Moderate 

Income 
(Above 80% 

MFI) 

 
Total People 

Benefited 
Very Low 

 (<30% MFI) 

Low  
(30.1 to 

50% MFI) 

Moderate  
(50.1 to 

80% MFI) 

Gilbert Lane Land 
Acquisition 

Low/Moderate 
Income Housing 
(LMH) 

0 16 9 0 25 

Home Rehabilitation 
Low/Moderate 
Income Housing 
(LMH) 

25 20 30 0 75 

Street Improvements 
Lake Oak Estates 

Low/Moderate 
Income Area 
Benefit* (LMA) 

    N/A 

Public Services, Other 
– FFS Services 
 

Low/Moderate 
Income Limited 
Clientele (LMC) 

151 30 10 0 191 

Public Services, Other 
– Landlord/Tenant 
and Fair Housing 
Counseling 

Low/Moderate 
Income Limited 
Clientele (LMC) 

19 8 3 0 30 

Barkley Meadows 
Low/Moderate 
Income Area 
Benefit (LMA)* 

N/A N/A 3,854^ 2,909 6,763 

Administration and 
Planning 

N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Total persons served  195 74 3,906 2,909 7,084 

MFI = Median Family Income as defined by HUD Area Benefit 
^The number of beneficiaries for this project is based on HUD’s LMISD current on 9/1/13. The dataset provides an estimate 
for the number of low to moderate income individuals but does not provide a breakdown by individual income categories. 
Therefore the 3,854 people reported in the 50.1-80% MFI income bracket above, may include individuals at lower income 
levels.    
* Low-Mod Area of Benefit projects qualify through an Exception Rule Provision or Upper Quartile Criterion permitted by 
HUD. For PY13 projects, the Travis County’s exception rule is 45.14%.  To learn more about the Exception rule visit the 
following site: http://www.hud.gov/offices/cpd/lawsregs/notices/2005/05-06.pdf.  

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm

http://www.hud.gov/offices/cpd/lawsregs/notices/2005/05-06.pdf


PY 2013 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report                    Section I. General Questions 

     

 
 
Travis County, TX             Page    |   35 

Compliance with ConPlan Goals 

CDBG projects must also fit within one of the priority project categories approved by Travis County 

Commissioners Court for the PY11-13 planning period. The following list summarizes those priorities 

identified and the corresponding projects implemented during PY13.  

 

Figure 9: Priorities in the 2011-2013 Consolidated Plan and  

Projects Implemented in PY13 

High Priorities Projects 

Housing Home Repair 

Infrastructure Street Improvements: Lake Oak Estates 

Community Services Public Services: Social Work Expansion; Fair Housing  

Medium Priorities Projects 

Public Facilities Barkley Meadows 

Assessment of Goals and Objectives 

This section articulates the CDBG accomplishments for PY13 as they relate to the goals and objectives, 

spending, overall performance, and effective grant management. A total of xx people benefited from 

the projects completed under the third year of the 2011-2013 Consolidated Plan.   

It is important to note that in many cases the impact of the projects will not be captured for a number 

of years, given some of the projects will take 12-60 months to implement and complete. For example, 

the production of new owner housing units will not be completed until 2016. Even though CDBG funds 

are only expected to support the acquisition of the land, the performance indicator will not be 

achieved until the houses are fully constructed and qualifying households have purchased the homes.   

Figure 10: Summary of Specific Objectives (HUD Table 1C) 

SL-1 Availability/Accessibility of Living Environment  (Outcome/Objective) 

Project Title Specific Objectives 
Sources of 

Funds 
Performance Indicators Year Target # Actual # 

Percent 
Completed 

Street 
Improvements: 

Lake Oak Estates 

Improve quality of 
public improvement 

for lower income 
persons 

CDBG 

Number of people 
who will benefit from 

improved road 

2011 0 0 0% 

2012 126 0 0% 

2013 126 0 0 

Multiyear Goal 126 0 0 

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



PY 2013 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report                    Section I. General Questions 

     

 
 
Travis County, TX             Page    |   36 

SL-1 Availability/Accessibility of Living Environment  (Outcome/Objective) 

Project Title Specific Objectives 
Sources of 

Funds 
Performance Indicators Year Target # Actual # 

Percent 
Completed 

Fair Housing 
Counseling 

Improve the 
availability of 
services for 

low/mod income 
persons 

CDBG 

Number of people 
with expanded access 

to service 

2011 N/A N/A N/A 

2012 35 7 20% 

2013 67 30 45% 

Multiyear Goal 103 37 36% 

Family Support 
Services Social 
Work Services 

Expansion 

Improve the 
availability of 
services for 

low/mod income 
persons 

 
CDBG 

Number of people 
with expanded access 

to service 

2011 500 391 78%* 

2012 400 375 94%* 

2013 400 191 48% 

Multiyear Goal 1300 957 74% 

 
Homeowner 

Rehabilitation: 
Plainview Estates 

 

Improve the quality 
of owner housing 

CDBG-R 

Number of households 
who will benefit 

2011 39 20 51%* 

2012 N/A N/A N/A 

2013 N/A N/A N/A 

Multiyear Goal 39 20 100% 

Homeowner 
Rehabilitation 

Improve the quality 
of owner housing 

CDBG 

Number of housing 
units rehabilitated 

2011 20 0 0% 

2012 8 7 88% 

2013 7 35 500% 

Multiyear Goal 35 42 120% 

Barkley 
Meadows 

Improve access to a 
substandard public 

facility 
CDBG 

Number of people 
who will benefit with 
expanded access to a 

non-substandard 
public facility 

2011 N/A N/A NA 

2012 N/A N/A N/A 

2013 6763 6763 100% 

Multiyear Goal 6763 6763 100% 

DH-2 Affordability of Decent Housing  (Outcome/Objective) 

Project Title Specific Objectives 
Sources of 

Funds 
Performance 

Indicators 
Year Target # Actual # 

Percent 
Completed 

Owner Housing -
Production of 

New Units: Land 
Acquisition 

Owner Housing CDBG 

Number of housing 
units constructed 

2011 6 2 33% 

2012 6 0 0% 

2013 6 6 100% 

Multiyear Goal 18 8 44% 

Homebuyer 
Assistance 

Owner Housing CDBG 

Number of households 
who will benefit 

2011 20 0 0% 

2012 15 1 6% 

2013 4 N/A N/A 

Multiyear Goal 39 1 2% 

*The project is complete.   

 

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



PY 2013 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report                    Section I. General Questions 

     

 
 
Travis County, TX             Page    |   37 

The coding system used in the Outcome/Objective rows in the table above follows the numbering 

system established in the Community Planning and Development Outcome Performance Measurement 

System. The numbering system is outlined in the figure below. 

 

Figure 11: Numbering System for Outcome and Objective Coding 

Objective 
Outcome 

Availability/Accessibility Affordability Sustainability 

Decent Housing DH-1 DH-2 DH-3 

Suitable Living Environment SL-1 SL-2 SL-3 

Economic Opportunity EO-1 EO-2 EO-3 

 

 

  

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



PY 2013 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report                    Section I. General Questions 

     

 
 
Travis County, TX             Page    |   38 

EXPENDITURES AND LEVERAGED RESOURCES FOR PY13 

Overall Expenditures 

During PY13, spending occurred in seven different projects. Of the funds available to the activities, 

$1,785,699 was spent, per HUD’s data management system called IDIS.  

 

Figure 12: CDBG PY13 Summary Financial Report from IDIS 

CDBG Program Year 2013 Summary Financial Report 

Carryover from PY12 $2,151,997.08 

PY13 CDBG Entitlement Grant $855,534 

Total CDBG Funds Available for PY13 $3,007,531.08 

PY13 Funds Committed $3,007,531.08 

PY13 Funds Expended $1,800,314* 

Carryover to PY14 $1,207,217.08* 

HUD Timeliness Ratio 1.41* 

*These are all estimates until the final draws are complete on November 30, 2014.   

  

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



PY 2013 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report                    Section I. General Questions 

     

 
 
Travis County, TX             Page    |   39 

EXPENDITURES PER PROJECT 
 

The following figure summarizes the budgeted funding, the expended funds and the percent expended 

for each of the projects. 

 

Figure 13:  Summary of PY13 Expenditures by Project 

Activities 
PY13 Budgeted Funding 

Available 
Expended 

during PY13 
Percent 

Expended 
PY13 Cap 

Percentages 

Production of New Owner Housing Units:  
Via land acquisition and infrastructure 
development  

Prior Year’s Funding: $4 
PY13: $0 

$0 99.9% N/A 

Homebuyer Assistance $0 $3,876 N/A N/A 

Homeowner Rehabilitation: 
Minor home repair up to $24,999 
 

Prior Year’s Funding: 
$1,258,160 
PY13: $134,428 

$990,746 71% N/A 

Street Improvements:  
Lake Oak Estates  

Prior Year’s Funding: 
$345,333 
PY13: $425,000 

$28,029 4% N/A 

Public Services, Other:  
Family Support Services (FFS) Social Work 
Services Expansion –Travis County HHS/VS 
Program 

$ 75,000 $ 75,000 100% 9% 

Public Services, Other:  
Fair Housing Counseling 

$ 50,000 $21,556 43% 3% 

Administration & Planning:  
CDBG 

$171,106 $147,226 86% 17% 

Barkley Meadows Flood Damage Repair $547,102 $533,881 98% N/A 

 

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



PY 2013 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report                    Section I. General Questions 

     

 
 
Travis County, TX             Page    |   40 

TIMELY SPENDING OF FUNDS 
Timely Spending of Funds  

As part of the mandate from Congress, HUD is required to determine whether Community 

Development Block Grant (CDBG) grantees carry out their program in a timely manner. A grantee is 

considered to be timely if 60 days prior to the end of the grantee’s program year, the balance in its 

line-of-credit does not exceed 1.5 times the annual grant. If the grantee exceeds the amount allowed 

at that 60-day mark, they are considered to be non-compliant. For Travis County, the timeliness test 

occurs every August. If the grantee fails to meet the timeliness requirements for two consecutive 

years, HUD can reduce the grant amount available for the next program year by the exact amount of 

the credit balance in excess of 1.5 times the annual grant.  

At the end of PY12, the CDBG program was not timely for the second consecutive year. HUD held an 

informal consultation with County Staff on September 9, 2013 to discuss the timeliness status. On 

November 8, 2013, the County received notice from HUD that the PY13 CDBG grant would be reduced 

by $54,391 due to slow spending of funds.   

Throughout PY13, CDBG staff worked in conjunction with subrecipients and other Travis County 

departments to ensure that projects met all deadlines and funds were spent in a timely fashion. In 

August 2014, the Travis County met its timeliness test of 1.5.   As of September 30, 2014, the timeliness 

ratio was 1.41.   

Leveraging Resources 

Although no matching requirements are mandated for CDBG, during the reporting period, Travis 

County was successful in using HUD’s CDBG funds to leverage additional funds from public sources.  

The following table summarizes the amount of dollars leveraged: 

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



PY 2013 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report                    Section I. General Questions 

     

 
 
Travis County, TX             Page    |   41 

*This number may be updated after grant close out on November 30, 2014. 

 

  

Figure 14: PY13 Leveraged Resources 

Project/Activity  
Leveraged 

Partners 
Committed 
Leveraged 
Resources 

Spent during   
PY13 

Family Support 
Services Social Work 
Services Expansion 

 General Fund rent and utility assistance programs TBD $14,477 

State rent and utility assistance programs TBD $4,329 

Youth and Family Assessment Center (flexible funding) TBD $3,395 

Administration and 
Planning of CDBG 

Travis County General Fund $177,135 $100,000* 

Gilbert Lane Land 
Acquisition 

Private Funds TBD $807,715 

Owner Occupied 
Home Rehabilitation 

Other Federal Resources TBD $18,415 

State or Local Resources TBD $16,913 

Total Leveraged Funding $965,244 

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



PY 2013 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report                    Section I. General Questions 

     

 
 
Travis County, TX             Page    |   42 

MANAGING THE PROCESS 

Comprehensive Planning 

The Travis County Health and Human Services & Veterans Service (HHS/VS) Department has a Research 

and Planning (R&P) Division tasked with much of the comprehensive planning for the department, 

both internally and externally with community partners. The R&P Division focuses on different issue 

areas including basic needs, workforce development, child and youth services (with particular 

emphasis on early childhood education), public health (particularly HIV/AIDS), behavioral health, and 

efforts to organize the community around support for the elderly and immigrants. Additionally, the 

R&P Division provides information services to inform decision making in the HHS/VS Department and 

across the community. These services include: an annual report of community trends and statistics 

based on the American Community Survey, periodic surveys of community-based organizations, and 

focused research and analysis upon request. 

CDBG makes requests of the R&P Division for technical assistance, as needed, to assist with data 

collection, resource development, and planning in the areas related to housing, homelessness, and 

community development. This collaborative effort increases capacity and reduces duplication of 

planning efforts for the Department.   

During PY13, CDBG staff collaborated with R&P staff on data verification and review of the Travis 

County Snapshot from the American Community Survey, an annual summary of Travis County’s social, 

housing, and economic characteristics, based on the results from the U.S. Census Bureau’s American 

Community Survey. Additionally, CDBG staff drafted portions relating to housing and homelessness for 

the Community Impact Report, an annual report that provides performance data, client data, and 

other information about the social service investments of the Travis County HHS/VS Department. 

Over the Program Year 2013, CDBG staff has also participated in the following comprehensive planning 

efforts: 

Homelessness 

During PY13, CDBG staff represented HHS/VS in the Ending Community Homelessness Coalition 

(ECHO).  This membership provided the opportunity to be involved in the issue area, to advocate for 

the homeless population found in the unincorporated areas, to identify service strategies, and to 

ensure identified pockets of homeless persons in the unincorporated areas are included in the annual 

homeless count. CDBG staff participated in the Independent Review Team for the Continuum of Care 

applications.  The CDBG Planning Manager was elected to ECHO’s Membership Council. A social worker 

from the Family Support Services Division (FSS) was chair of the Homelessness Prevention Committee, 

a task group of the Housing Committee.  The FSS Division and CDBG worked collaboratively to find a 

solution for participation in Coordinated Assessment.   

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



PY 2013 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report                    Section I. General Questions 

     

 
 
Travis County, TX             Page    |   43 

Affordable Housing 

During PY13, staff participated in community meetings and forums about housing affordability and the 

population shifts occurring due to affordability within the center city.  The CDBG staff worked on its 

first rental, multi-family housing project with the Travis County Strategic Housing Finance Corporation.  

While it became an approved project for PY 2014, the project ultimately will not move forward due to 

acquisition issues.  Finally, CDBG staff participated in drafting a scope of work for the Department’s 

first geographically targeted Requests for Services.    

Analysis of Impediments 

Travis County contracted with the firm Mullin & Lonergan to undertake an Analysis of Impediments (AI) 

for the County. As part of the research for the AI, the consultants held two community forums, and 

conducted onsite interviews and focus groups with a wide variety of stakeholders, both internal and 

external to the County. The draft AI was presented to TCCC on November 5, 2013 and was followed by 

a public comment period. One comment was received in writing. The implementation of the related 

Fair Housing plan began in PY2013 after the comment period ended. 

Foreclosures  

During PY13, CDBG purchased county-wide foreclosure data. This data was presented in the 2012 

Community Impact Report. CDBG anticipates continuing to work collaboratively through participatory 

research in this area to ensure a consistent message on the issue. 

Board, Commission and Association Involvement 

Staff from different divisions of the HHS/VS department, including CDBG and R&P, are currently 

involved in numerous boards, commissions, associations, and councils, not only to further the 

understanding of the relationship between the community and the needs of its most vulnerable 

residents, but also to be a resource to the community, offering data and analysis, grant-writing skills, 

contacts with influential businesses, community and government leaders, and knowledge of 

government-funded program opportunities. 

Compliance with Certifications 

Travis County carried out all planned actions described in the HUD–approved Consolidated Plan, 

including: 

 Pursuing all resources indicated in the Consolidated Plan. Resources include leveraged dollars for 

grant administration, homes built on acquired land, and public services. 

 Travis County provided requested certifications of consistency for HUD programs in a fair and 

impartial manner. 

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



PY 2013 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report                    Section I. General Questions 

     

 
 
Travis County, TX             Page    |   44 

 Travis County did not hinder the Consolidated Plan implementation through any action or willful 

inaction. 

Anti-Displacement and Relocation 

Consistent with the goals and objectives of 24 CFR Part 570.606, Travis County commits to making all 

reasonable efforts to ensure activities undertaken with federal funds will not cause unnecessary 

displacement or relocation of persons (families, individuals, businesses, nonprofit organizations and 

farms).  

Travis County’s policy on displacement, at present, is to not fund projects that displace persons. Travis 

County did not demolish real property with PY13 funds. The rehabilitation work that occurred was of a 

voluntary nature and conducted in such a manner that no one was displaced.  

Specific Activities 

HUD requires reporting on certain types of activities funded by CDBG. Below is the list of responses to 

the required questions.   

 Low/Mod Job Activities: Travis County did not undertake any low/mod job activities during the 

reporting year.  

 Low/Mod Limited Clientele Activities: The Social Work Services Expansion and Fair Housing 

Counseling project is currently being implemented successfully. Please refer to the table title 

“Benefit to Low and Moderate Income Persons by Project” to see the breakdown of clients by 

income level. 

 Housing Rehabilitation: Travis County funded housing rehabilitation project during PY13 using 

CDBG funds. Thirty-five (35) units were rehabilitated with CDBG funds this year.  Please refer to the 

section “Project 2: Homeowner Rehabilitation” of this report for more detailed information.   

 Neighborhood Revitalization Strategies: Travis County does not currently have any HUD-approved 

neighborhood revitalization strategy areas. 

Fiscal Related Items 

HUD requires reporting on certain types of fiscal-related items funded by CDBG. Below is the list of 

responses to the required questions.   

 Program Income: Travis County did not receive any program income during the 2013 program year. 

 Prior Period Adjustments: Travis County did not have any prior period adjustments for the 2013 

program year. 

 Loans and Other Receivables:   

 Travis County retains a promissory note and deed of trust with Austin Habitat for Humanity, Inc. 

on 23 lots related to the Gilbert Lane Land Acquisition project.  This loan is in place to ensure 

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



PY 2013 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report                    Section I. General Questions 

     

 
 
Travis County, TX             Page    |   45 

that the required units are built per the subrecipient agreement. No payments are required and 

no interest is accrued.   

 Travis County retains a promissory note and deed of trust for one Shared Appreciation Gap 

financing loan in the amount of $30,000, and one Down Payment Assistance loan in the amount 

of $3,930.58. Both loans were made through the Homebuyer Assistance program to the same 

homebuyer. No payments are required and no interest is accrued on either loan. The Shared 

Appreciation loan has a 30-year term, to be repaid upon refinancing, sale, or transfer of title of 

the home. The Down Payment Assistance loan is forgivable over a five-year term, or must be 

repaid on a pro rata schedule if refinancing, sale, or transfer of title of the home occurs before 

the five years have elapsed. 

 Travis County retains a contract with 42 homeowners for variable amounts for home 

rehabilitation.  The loan is forgivable over a five-year term or must be repaid on a pro rata 

schedule if refinancing, sale, or transfer of title of the home occurs before the five years have 

elapsed.     

 Lump Sum Agreements: Travis County did not use any lump sum agreements during the 2013 

program year.  

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



PY 2013 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report                    Section I. General Questions 

     

 
 
Travis County, TX             Page    |   46 

MONITORING 
 

As the lead agency for the development and implementation of the Consolidated Plan, the Travis 

County HHS&VS Department implements standard policies and procedures for monitoring CDBG 

programs. These monitoring activities ensure compliance with program regulations and compliance 

with financial requirements. Federal guidelines include: OMB A-110, OMB A-122, 24 CFR Part 570.603 

(CDBG Labor Standards), 570.901-906 (CDBG) and the Davis Bacon Act and Contract Work Hours and 

Safety Standards Act (CDBG). 

HHS/VS provides contract administration for community development activities in conjunction with the 

Transportation and Natural Resources Department, including but not limited to contract negotiations, 

compliance monitoring, and payment and contract closeout.  

Monitoring Activity Process & Frequency 

Subrecipients 

Subrecipient agreements will be used to conduct housing, community development, and public service 

activities. The subrecipient agreement will be the foundation for programmatic monitoring. 

Subrecipients will be monitored for programmatic compliance on-site or remotely in the following 

manner:  

1. All invoices and reports will be routed via HHS/VS CDBG staff prior to final approval by financial 

services and the Auditor’s Office.  

2. Most subrecipients will be desk audited monthly during invoice review 

3. Programmatic monitoring will occur for the previous year, preferably in the first quarter, unless an 

issue is found during the year then a technical assistance visit and/or increased oversight will be 

instituted.  

Financial monitoring will be completed as necessary and as directed by the subrecipient fiscal 

performance and the external monitoring needs of the Travis County Auditor’s office. Programmatic 

and fiscal monitoring may not occur concurrently. 

Contractors 

Contractors may be used to provide some housing, community development and public services. 

Contractors submit periodic reimbursement requests that document and verify expenditures. The 

contract agreement will be used as the primary basis for monitoring. The following steps are an 

integral part of the monitoring process for each contract:  

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



PY 2013 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report                    Section I. General Questions 

     

 
 
Travis County, TX             Page    |   47 

1. On-site or remote reviews at an established periodic interval (prior to project commencement) will 

occur to ensure compliance with terms of the contract, HUD guidelines, state/local building and 

construction standards, and review of engineering plans and specifications.  

2. If a contractor is found to be out of compliance, a notice is sent stating their contractual obligation 

and required action. Failure to comply may result in loss of current and/or future contracts as well 

as a hold on any payments.  

3. All invoices and reports will be routed via HHS/VS CDBG staff prior to final approval by financial 

services and the Auditor’s Office.  

Internal Travis County Departments 

For CDBG funded projects implemented by Travis County Departments, the CDBG office has instituted 

controls at key points of the project implementation process to ensure program compliance. The CDBG 

office: 

 Meets with each project manager and relevant project-related staff at regular intervals throughout 

the implementation period to review project status, implementation, effectiveness of programs, 

and compliance issues. 

 Reviews any request for purchase prior to HHS/VS department approval. 

 Reviews all Request for Qualifications, Request for Proposals, Request for Services, Invitations for 

BID, and contracts prior to the release by the Purchasing Department.  

 Requests technical assistance from HUD, as needed, on behalf of each project. 

 Reviews the results of project environmental reviews, and submits the appropriate paperwork to 

HUD. 

 Verifies and documents target area, and service area eligibility, monitoring documentation on a 

quarterly basis.  

 Reviews CDBG project expenditures on a monthly basis before draw-downs are made.   

Monitoring Activity Completed 

CDBG staff completed a variety of monitoring tasks for each project.   

Street Improvements: Lake Oak Estates 

 Kept in communication with the project manager. 

 Worked with project manager to provide TA as acquisition issues were addressed.    

 Reviewed environmental documents as needed.   

 Reviewed draws prior to requesting reimbursement from IDIS. 

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



PY 2013 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report                    Section I. General Questions 

     

 
 
Travis County, TX             Page    |   48 

Land Acquisition Project with Austin Habitat for Humanity, Inc. (AHFH) 

 Reviewed eligibility packet for each of the homes started. 

 Sent information to County Attorney’s Office as houses needed to close to release lien and replace 

the lien with the restrictive covenant. 

 Single Audit was reviewed.   

 Requested an updated insurance certificate. 

Public Services, Other: Family Support Services Social Work Services Expansion 

 Provided technical assistance and worked out service delivery issues as needed throughout the 

year. 

 Reviewed quarterly performance reports. 

 Client file review of PY13 will occur by January 2015. 

Home Rehabilitation Project 

 Completed a couple rounds of income, assets and other programmatic requirements training. 

 CDBG staff meets with each client to sign rehabilitation contract at the preconstruction meeting to 

ensure program compliance and comprehension of forgivable loan.   

 Responded to technical assistance questions as needed.  

 Reviewed monthly performance reports. 

 Reviewed bi-monthly invoices with back up documentation. 

 Client file review of PY13 will occur by January 2015. 

Fair Housing Project 

 Responded to technical assistance questions as necessary. 

 Reviewed monthly invoices with back up documentation. 

 Client file review of PY13 will occur by January 2015. 

Results of Monitoring Efforts  

 CDBG staff provided feedback on files that needed to have work done.   

 No findings were made. 

 CDBG staff provided training as needed to address capacity issues.  

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



PY 2013 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report                    Section I. General Questions 

     

 
 
Travis County, TX             Page    |   49 

INSTITUTIONAL STRUCTURE AND COORDINATION 
 

Effective implementation of the PY13 Action Plan involved a variety of key stakeholders. Coordination 

and collaboration within the Travis County departments and between agencies was instrumental in 

meeting community needs effectively. The departments within Travis County involved in the 

implementation of projects are described below. 

Health and Humans Services & Veterans Service Department 

The HHS/VS Department is the lead county agency responsible for the administration of the County’s 

CDBG funding.  This Department has the primary responsibility of assessing community needs, 

developing the Consolidated Plan and annual Action Plans, managing project activities in conjunction 

with other county departments and community partners, administering the finances, and monitoring 

and reporting.  The CDBG office is located in the Office of the County Executive within HHS/VS.  The 

Department reports to the Travis County Commissioners Court for oversight authority. 

The CDBG office works with the Research and Planning Division (R&P) within HHS/VS in the areas of 

community planning and data collection.  The CDBG office will continue to keep R&P informed about 

HUD funding streams and continue to work collaboratively identifying and sharing relevant data to 

ensure a consistent message on emerging issues such as changing housing needs and foreclosure.   

Additionally, the Family Support Services (FSS) Division of HHS/VS is the project manager for a CDBG 

public service project.  FSS also manages the seven Travis County Community Centers which provide a 

key access point for the public to access CDBG information. The CDBG office works closely with the 

Division to ensure the public’s access to CDBG documents and encourage outreach and public 

engagement through the Centers. 

Travis County Commissioners Court 

The Commissioners Court is made up of four elected commissioners, one to represent each county 

precinct, and the County Judge who serves as the presiding officer. As a group, the Commissioners and 

County Judge are the chief policy-making and governing body of the county government. The 

Commissioner’s Court makes all final decisions about CDBG fund allocations. 

Transportation and Natural Resources Department 

The Transportation and Natural Resources Department (TNR) and the CDBG office work closely to 

coordinate environmental review functions, project planning, project implementation and GIS 

mapping. Additionally, over the last year, TNR’s planning division and CDBG staff have begun to work 

more collaboratively to ensure consistent messaging regarding housing, transportation and community 

development. TNR and CDBG employees have been trained in HUD environmental regulations. This 

cross training of both departments allows for quality review and peer consultation. Finally, the CDBG 

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



PY 2013 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report                    Section I. General Questions 

     

 
 
Travis County, TX             Page    |   50 

office and the CDBG funded Senior Engineer coordinate the preparation of project scopes, eligibility, 

cost estimates, and project design. The Senior Engineer also plays an active role in the implementation 

of CDBG & CDBG-R projects that are managed by TNR such as the street improvement projects for Lake 

Oak Estates.  In PY13, TNR’s Parks Division participated managed the Barkely Meadows park project.   

County Attorney’s Office 

The County Attorney is an elected official and the County Attorney’s Office creates and reviews legal 

agreements as well as provides legal advice and consultation for the Department. They have created 

templates to assist with CDBG procurement actions, related consultant services, construction 

documents, and templates for subrecipient agreements.   

Purchasing Office 

The Purchasing Office manages the CDBG procurement processes for commodities, professional 

services and construction. Expertise in the area of federal standards has been created within the 

Office. The Office ensures compliance with required labor standards and submits related reports to the 

CDBG office. The Purchasing Office reports to the Purchasing Board, which was established by the 

Travis County Commissioner’s Court.    

 

 

  

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



PY 2013 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report                    Section I. General Questions 

     

 
 
Travis County, TX             Page    |   51 

PUBLIC ENGAGEMENT 
 
Travis County implements a citizen participation process based upon 24 CFR Part 91.105 and the 

Citizen Participation Plan (CPP) approved by Travis County Commissioners Court on April 11, 2006 and 

it was amended on July 20, 2010. The approved CPP identifies the strategies and structure to fully 

engage the community. All public engagement activities undertaken in PY13 are detailed below.  

Substantial Amendment to the PY11-13 Consolidated Plan and PY09-PY13 

Action Plans 

During the week of December 23, 2013, Travis County published a Public Notice announcing the 

availability of the draft Substantial Amendment, the public comment period, and the public hearing at 

Travis County Commissioners Court. The notice appeared in several area newspapers of general 

circulation that target the unincorporated areas of Travis County. Copies of the notices may be found 

in Appendix B. Public notices were also posted at the seven Travis County Community Centers, on the 

Travis County Website, the HHS/VS Department webpage, the CDBG website (English and Spanish), 

and Facebook and Twitter pages. Email and postal mail notices were provided to people who attended 

public hearings previously or who requested to be on the notification list. 

Travis County HHS/VS drafted the Substantial Amendment and presented it to the Travis County 

Commissioners Court on December 17, 2013. Once reviewed by the Travis County Commissioners 

Court, the Substantial Amendment was posted for public review and written comments prior to final 

approval by the Travis County Commissioners Court.   

The comment period was held from January 3, 2014 to February 3, 2014. Additionally, a public hearing 

was held at Travis County Commissioners Court on January 14, 2014. The public had the opportunity to 

submit comments in writing via email or postal mail, or verbally at the public hearing. The draft 

Substantial Amendment was posted on the Travis County CDBG website (www.co.travis.tx.us/CDBG), 

and copies of the full document were available for review at the seven Travis County Community 

Centers.  The amendment was approved by TCCC on February 4, 2014.  

 No comments were received during the public comment period.  

PY14-18 Consolidated Plan and PY14 Action Plan 

For the PY14-18 Consolidated Plan and PY14 Action Plan, information on community needs was 

gathered through a variety of mechanisms. During the months of February and March 2014, the public 

and service providers had the opportunity to provide input by 1) attending one of six public hearings, 

2) completing a survey, 3) completing a project proposal form, and 4) attending a forum for service 

providers.  

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm

http://www.co.travis.tx.us/CDBG


PY 2013 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report                    Section I. General Questions 

     

 
 
Travis County, TX             Page    |   52 

Public Hearings and Participation Forms 

Community meetings were held at several locations throughout the County in two different formats: 

public hearings and facilitated discussions. Information was collected to help determine priorities for 

the PY14-18 Consolidated Plan and PY14 Action Plan, as well as projects for PY14. 

Two meetings were held at Travis County Commissioners’ Court during the normally scheduled voting 

session. These public hearings were held in the traditional public hearing format with oral testimony. 

Public hearings were also held in each of the four precincts. Participants were asked for input regarding 

their housing, community development and public service needs. These meetings were structured as 

an information session regarding the uses of CDBG, with facilitated discussion and decision-making for 

meaningful, comprehensive input from participants regarding their housing, community development 

and public service needs.   

Public hearings, where information was gathered for the Consolidated Plan and Action Plan, were held 

according to the schedule below. 

 

Location of Hearings Dates / Times 

Community-
Wide Hearing 

Travis County Commissioners Court,  
700 Lavaca 

Tuesday, February 18, 2014, 9:00 am 
Tuesday March 11, 2014, 9:00 am 

Precinct 1 
 

Travis County Community Center at 
Manor 

Wednesday, February 19, 2014, 6:30 pm 

Precinct 2 
 

Westside Meeting Hall, Austin Thursday, February 20, 2014, 6:30 pm 

Precinct 3 
Travis County Community Center at 
Oak Hill 

Wednesday, March 5, 2014, 6:30 pm 

Precinct 4 
Travis County Community Center at 
Del Valle 

Thursday, March 6, 2014, 6:30 pm 

 

A total of 22 people attended public hearings to provide input on the Consolidated Plan and Action 

Plan. 

Service Providers Forum 

On March 21, 2014, Travis County Health & Human Services, CDBG Program staff held a public forum 

for service providers and agencies whose current or planned service area includes, or potentially 

includes, communities in need within the CDBG service area. The forum was held at the Del Valle 

Community Center, which is located in the unincorporated area. Since the need for services outside 

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



PY 2013 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report                    Section I. General Questions 

     

 
 
Travis County, TX             Page    |   53 

the urban core is increasing as our population continues to be displaced outside the urban core, 

especially due to rising housing prices and lack of affordable housing, this location was specifically 

selected to get service providers out into the CDBG service area. 

The overall goal of the forum was to help identify potential opportunities for collaboration or 

coordination to supplement or expand existing services within the CDBG service area over the next five 

years. More specifically, the forum sought to determine which services are available and which are 

lacking in the CDBG service area, in order to help service providers determine what services they can 

provide in these outlying areas; and to discuss how the County’s CDBG Program staff can help support 

this shift to extending services into the unincorporated areas. 

As a result of this forum, CDBG staff plan to undertake several actions that will assist providers in 

extending services into the unincorporated areas.  These actions include: producing a document that 

can be used by service providers that includes information on specific neighborhoods including maps, 

demographics, and currently available services; van tours of neighborhoods to familiarize providers 

with the area and its conditions; and the ongoing provision of information about the unincorporated 

areas and advocacy for its residents. 

Between direct invitations via email and indirect invitations via email and/or newsletters sent out by 

Community Action Network (CAN) and/or OneVoice Central Texas (coalitions that bring together 

government, non-profit, private and faith-based organizations who provide services in Central Texas), 

over 100 agencies were invited to the forum. Nineteen providers attended the forum, representing 17 

agencies. 

Surveys 

Resident surveys were available online or by postal mail from February 18, 2014 to March 31, 2014 and 

were offered in English and Spanish. Written surveys were available at public hearings and upon 

request for those without access to a computer or the internet. A total of six residents completed 

surveys to provide input on the Consolidated Plan. 

A provider survey was also available to gather input. The survey was available from February 18, 2014 

to March 31, 2014 and was offered in English only. Several list-serves, including the County’s 

contracted social service providers, were used to send out the link to the online survey through email. 

A total of 59 surveys were completed by agencies. 

Project Proposals 

Project proposals which identify a community need and provided specific project ideas are accepted 

throughout the year. However, only project proposals received by March 31, 2014 will be considered 

for funding in the next program year. Project proposals can be submitted by Travis County 

Departments, neighborhoods, individuals, and service providers. Proposals can identify potential 

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



PY 2013 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report                    Section I. General Questions 

     

 
 
Travis County, TX             Page    |   54 

projects for PY14 and helped determine community needs for the PY14-18 Consolidated Plan. A total 

of seven project proposals were received during the time specified. 

Public Comment to Solicit Feedback on Consolidated Plan  

After presentation to Travis County Commissioners Court, the draft PY14-18 Consolidated Plan was 

posted for written comment for thirty days, prior to the final approval by the Travis County 

Commissioners Court. Comments on the Consolidated Plan and PY14 Action Plan were received 

simultaneously and were accepted in writing via email or regular mail to the Travis County Health and 

Human Services and Veterans’ Service CDBG staff. The Draft Plan was posted on the Travis County 

website and copies were located at the seven Travis County Community Centers for public review. 

During the 30-day comment period, two public hearings were held to inform and enable the 

community to comment on the proposed PY14-18 priorities and uses of PY14 CDBG funds. These two 

public hearings were held at the Travis County Commissioners’ Court during the normally scheduled 

voting session, and were held in the traditional public hearing format with oral testimony.  

 

 

One comment was received at the public hearing on July 1, 2014. 

CAPER Public Comment Period 

During the week of November 3, 2014, Travis County published a Public Notice announcing the 

availability of the PY13 CAPER, the public comment period and the public hearing at Travis County 

Commissioners Court. Travis County HHS/VS drafted the CAPER and presented it to the Travis County 

Commissioners Court on November 18, 2014. After presentation to Travis County Commissioners 

Court, the CAPER will be posted for public review and written comments prior to approval by the Travis 

County Commissioners Court. The comment period will be held from November 24, 2014 to December 

8, 2014. Additionally, a public hearing will be held at Travis County Commissioners Court on December 

2, 2014.   

Summary of Citizen Comments on the CAPER 

 Comments will be added to the final draft of the CAPER.  

 

Location of Hearings Dates / Times 

Travis County Commissioners Court,  
700 Lavaca 

Tuesday, July 1, 2014, 9:00 am 
Tuesday July 8, 2014, 9:00 am 

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



PY 2013 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report                    Section I. General Questions 

     

 
 
Travis County, TX             Page    |   55 

EVALUATION OF THE CDBG PROGRAM 
Strengths  

The CDBG Program is concluding its eighth year now and with time and experience, its capacity to 

implement programs and work within the institutional structure has grown.  Staff understands where 

to push the system to increase the speed with which projects are implemented.  Furthermore, the 

same staff in various Departments has been implementing CDBG so most everyone else in a supportive 

role to CDBG understands the program as well. Additionally, CDBG staff has stabilized with the three 

staff being with the program 8, 4 and 2 years, respectively.   

Staff continued to work with Departments, evaluate systems, identify weaknesses and work on 

improvements to address areas of concern.   The Program spent the most money in a program year it 

ever has due to effective intervention into a slow system. 

The program excels in providing quality planning and detailed program guidance.  Every year, staff 

spend a large amount of time giving technical assistance to programs.   

 

Challenges   

The Program has struggled with timely implementation of projects, but was able to achieve compliance 
this year.  This struggle has created a scenario where the Program is behind and operating out of a 
crisis model to get things accomplished.  Additionally, staff finds that high levels of technical assistance 
are needed for most projects due to staff turnover or implementation of new types of projects.  
As programs have more experience, staff expects this to lessen to some degree. 
 

Goals for Improvement  

Staff has identified the following goals for improvement: 

1. Better document procedures for succession planning and continuity. 

2. Continue to disburse the work between all three positions to prevent slow implementation. 

3. Continue to push the system track expenditures and the length of time it takes to draw down 

funds.  

4. Continue to support timely spending of funds. 

5. Shift away from crisis mode. 

 

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



PY 2013 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report                                        Section II. Housing and Services for the Homeless 

     

 
 
Travis County, TX             Page    |   56 

 

 
 
 

HOUSING AND SERVICES FOR THE HOMELESS 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 HOUSING INVESTMENTS 
 

The tables below summarize the number of homeowner and renter households at various income 

levels in unincorporated Travis County with housing problems, and the assistance goals of the CDBG 

program over the planning period. In PY13, a total of 35 households received assistance through the 

Home Rehabilitation Project and six households received assistance through the Gilbert Lane Land 

Acquisition Project. 

Figure 15: Priority Housing Needs Summary Table, Owner Households 

 
Percent of 

Households 
Number of 

Households
*
 

Priority 
Need 

Carryover 
from previous 

years 

Year 1  Year 2 Year 3 

Goal Actual Goal Actual Goal Actual 

Very Low Income 
Household 

84% 1,782 High 10 3 0 3 4 3 12 

Low Income 
Household 

72% 1,618 High 27 3 1 3 2 3 15 

Moderate 
Income 

Household 
56% 2,451 

Mediu
m 

52 1 1 6 2 1 14 

 

Figure 16: Priority Housing Needs Summary Table, Renter Households 

 
 

 
Percent of 

Households 

 
Number of 

Households
*
 

Priority 
Need 

Goals 

Carryover from 
previous years 

Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 

Very Low Income 
Household 

85% 5,736 Medium 0 0 0 0 

Low Income 
Household 

86% 4,374 Medium 0 0 0 0 

Moderate Income 
Household 

40% 2,706 Low 0 0 0 0 

*The number of households with a housing need was calculated based on the total number of households with a housing problem (see 
figure 3.23 in section 3 of the 2011-2013 ConPlan.)  Because this number was only available for all of Travis County, in order to estimate 
the need for the unincorporated areas alone, the total number of renter households with a housing problem at each income level was 
multiplied by the approximate percentage of population in Travis County that lives in the unincorporated area (17%).    

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



PY 2013 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report                                        Section II. Housing and Services for the Homeless 

     

 
 
Travis County, TX             Page    |   57 

OVERVIEW OF HOUSING SERVICES SUPPORTED BY TRAVIS COUNTY 
 

In addition to CDBG, Travis County addresses the housing needs of its residents through diverse 

strategies that include the support of homeless and emergency shelters; transitional, public, assisted, 

and rental housing; first-time homebuyer programs; and owner-occupied assistance programs. These 

services are either directly delivered by county departments, affiliate entities or by contracted not-for-

profit agencies. The following chart is a visual representation of the different departments/affiliate 

entities of the County working on a variety of housing services. 

 

 

 

Travis County HHS/VS Housing Services 

The Travis County Housing Services Division performs weatherization and home repairs on houses 

occupied by county residents to improve energy efficiency, the physical living conditions, and safety in 

these homes. Funding for services comes from the Texas Department of Housing and Community 

Affairs, and the Travis County General Fund.  

 

 
 

 
 

Figure 17: Travis County Departments Providing Housing Services 

Health and Human Services & 
Veterans Service Department  

Travis County  
Housing Finance 

Corporation  

Housing Authority of 
Travis County  

Community 
Services – 

Housing Division 

CDBG 
Program  

Family 
Support 
Services  

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



PY 2013 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report                                        Section II. Housing and Services for the Homeless 

     

 
 
Travis County, TX             Page    |   58 

In the reporting period, a total of 424 county residents received energy saving and home repair 

assistance. The assistance was distributed in the following manner:1  

 188 low-income homeowners and renters were helped to meet energy savings through the state-

funded Low Income Home Energy Assistance Program (LIHEAP) and a state-funded grant from the 

Department of Energy. 

 47 low-income homeowners were assisted with home repair through General Fund dollars. 

Travis County HHS/VS Family Support Services Division 

The Family Support Services (FSS) Division provides rent and mortgage assistance for 30-day housing 

stabilization as well as utility assistance. Funding for services comes from the Travis County General 

Fund, the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA), the Comprehensive Energy Assistance 

Program, and a variety of local electric and gas utility providers.  

Other Travis County HHS/VS Divisions 

Other HHS/VS Divisions provide emergency rent or utility assistance on a smaller scale than FSS. These 

dollars are usually a part of a comprehensive case management program with strategic use of funds for 

families in need. 

Travis County Housing Finance Corporation  

Through the Travis County Housing Finance Corporation (TCHFC), Travis County is engaged in a number 

of efforts to foster and maintain affordable housing. The Corporation provides single-family home 

ownership (including down-payment assistance) opportunities to homebuyers who meet certain 

income requirements. The Corporation also issues tax-exempt bonds to finance the construction or 

acquisition of multifamily apartments that must provide rental units to certain low and moderate-

income families.  

TCHFC continues to collaborate with FSS to implement a Tenant Based Rental Assistance (TBRA) 

program funded through the Texas Department of Housing and Community Affairs to provide rental 

assistance and case management for up to 36 months for certain low income households.  

Twenty-three households received Tenant Based Rental Assistance during the past year. $171,561.58 

has been spent for rent and utilities assistance.   

In September 2014, TCHFC issued $22,000,000 in tax exempt bonds to finance the construction of a 

252 unit LIHTC property, William Cannon Apartments. The property will offer one-, two- and three-

bedroom units to individuals and families earning 50 and 60 percent of the Area Median Income (AMI).  

In 2013, TCHFC assisted in the acquisition and rehabilitation of a large affordable apartment complex 

                                           
1
 Please note that some individuals may be counted in multiple categories due to receipt of assistance from any combination of these 

programs. 

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



PY 2013 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report                                        Section II. Housing and Services for the Homeless 

     

 
 
Travis County, TX             Page    |   59 

(Champions Crossing Apartments) through a bond issue. This property is currently undergoing 

renovations and has already re-leased the necessary units to households earning 50% and 80% of AMI 

based on a recent compliance audit.  

The TCHFC Board approved the issuance of a $122,400 loan to a developer applying for 9% low income 

housing tax credits (LIHTC) for a family property in northern Travis County, a rapidly growing 

submarket of the ETJ. The loan program satisfies TDHCA’s requirements for local government 

participation in LIHTC developments, and allowed Travis County to participate more directly in 

addressing the need for workforce housing in the greater County area. The loan has a term of 15 years 

and a fixed 3% interest rate per the State’s guidelines. 

The Housing Authority of Travis County 

The Housing Authority of Travis County (HATC) manages three public housing sites, a Section 8 Housing 

Choice Voucher Program, three Shelter Plus Care Projects, and a Lease-Purchase program. 

There are currently no Public Housing Units in the Travis County CDBG service area. The three public 

housing sites have a total of 105 housing units and are located within the City of Austin. Additionally, 

HATC manages 33 units of Senior Housing in Manor, and 16 duplex units in Del Valle. The Housing 

Authority's affiliated entity, Strategic Housing Finance Corporation, is the general partner in  three tax 

credit multifamily properties, including 208 units of Senior Housing  in Pflugerville, 70 units of  senior 

housing in Austin, and a 192-unit family property in Austin. 

The Shelter Plus Care projects provide rental assistance for homeless people with chronic disabilities in 

the Austin-Travis County area. The program utilizes integrated rental housing and flexible and intensive 

support services to promote community tenure and independence. 

In the unincorporated areas, HATC administers the Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher Program, 

assisting very low income, disabled, and elderly families or individuals. 

The CDBG program will continue to support HATC’s efforts to provide homeownership and affordable 

housing opportunities to low-income residents. CDBG staff has worked with HATC staff to locate sites 

in the unincorporated areas that are appropriate for rehabilitation or development. Though no sites 

have been identified yet, staff will continue to work collaboratively to find opportunities to work 

together.  

 

  

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



PY 2013 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report                                        Section II. Housing and Services for the Homeless 

     

 
 
Travis County, TX             Page    |   60 

BARRIERS TO AFFORDABLE HOUSING 
 
In the PY11-13 Consolidated Plan, eight barriers to affordable housing were outlined. These barriers 

were identified through the needs assessment, housing market analysis, provider forum and surveys, 

consultations and public hearings. 

Lack of Funding for Affordable Housing  

Funding for affordable housing requires many different products to achieve the desired affordability 

levels needed in a community. Funding mechanisms including the HOME Investment Program, tax  

credits, Community Development Block Grant (CDBG), Federal Housing Administration loans, and  

down-payment assistance – just to name a few – are key to increasing the affordable housing stock.  

Currently, Travis County does not receive a HOME formula allocation, which is a major funding source 

for many entitlement communities to develop affordable housing.  

As part of the ongoing negotiations over spending cuts at the federal level, it is possible that the 

amount of money allocated to the CDBG and HOME programs will be decreased again in the next 

federal budget, resulting in the City of Austin and Travis County having less money available for 

affordable housing and other support activities. With a rapidly growing population in Travis County, an 

ever-growing demand for affordable rental units, and an upward trend in home prices, it is likely that 

affordable housing developers and public entities will face significant challenges in meeting the 

region’s need for affordable housing in the coming years.  The County advocates for increased federal 

funding for affordable housing development.   

Land Costs  

Land values in rural Travis County have steadily increased over the past decade. In western Travis 

County land values remain strong enough to discourage the development of much-needed affordable 

housing.  

Using CDBG funds the County acquired a parcel of land for the development of affordable housing.  

Eight houses are complete and occupied with the remaining houses scheduled for completion by 2015. 

Tight Credit Market  

In the wake of the recession and collapse of the housing market, banks significantly tightened credit 

requirements. While these tighter requirements were put in place to correct sub-prime lending 

practices that contributed to the foreclosure crisis, they also made it more difficult for some qualified 

buyers—particularly lower income homebuyers—to purchase a home or refinance an existing loan. 

This credit market also impacts a developer’s ability to borrow funds to create rental housing. As the 

economy has improved, the restrictions on the credit market have loosened to a degree.   

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



PY 2013 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report                                        Section II. Housing and Services for the Homeless 

     

 
 
Travis County, TX             Page    |   61 

During the reporting period, no actions were taken. 

Building Codes, Zoning Provisions, Growth Restrictions and Fees  

Currently, Travis County does not have any building codes, zoning provisions or growth restrictions in 

the unincorporated areas. This is largely a function of state statutes that place significant limits on the 

authority of counties to regulate or restrict development. While less restrictions, codes and provisions 

initially increase affordable development, it also increases the likelihood for substandard housing and 

other unsuitable living conditions throughout the unincorporated areas.  

During the reporting period, no changes were made however the County now collects and maintains 

the inspection reports for new subdivisions for those living in the unincorporated areas.  The home 

rehabilitation program requires the use of third-party inspectors and has housing standards that align 

with the County’s legal authority.   

Environmental Regulations  

Several state and federal regulations exist to protect the environment including the Endangered 

Species Act, the National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES), and the Wetland 

regulations. Texas rules include regulations for the installation of septic systems and for development 

over the Edwards Aquifer. These regulations may increase costs for development, affecting 

affordability, especially in the Western parts of Travis County where endangered species habitat and 

the Edward Aquifer are located.  

During the reporting period, no actions were taken. 

Other factors affecting affordability 

Though housing affordability is traditionally evaluated by the percentage of income required for 

housing costs, policy makers and planners are increasingly considering the impact that housing location 

has on the overall affordability for a household. This is a particularly useful framework for considering 

affordability in the unincorporated areas of Travis County, where housing prices may be lower but 

other factors may be considerably more expensive.  

 Transportation - Transportation costs are a major component of household expenditures. Residents 

of the unincorporated areas generally must travel farther for work, school and shopping, and have 

less access to public transit options. As a result, it is likely that residents of the unincorporated 

areas have higher transportation costs than residents of more densely developed urban 

neighborhoods.  

 Infrastructure - Many parts of the unincorporated areas lack existing water and wastewater 

infrastructure and/or maintained. The costs of installing necessary infrastructure would make a 

property unaffordable to an individual or an affordable housing nonprofit developer.  

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



PY 2013 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report                                        Section II. Housing and Services for the Homeless 

     

 
 
Travis County, TX             Page    |   62 

 Utility Costs - The cost of utilities in the unincorporated areas varies, depending on the provider of 

the service in a given area. Based on input received through the social work program and resident 

engagement, monthly utility bills often represent a burden to very low-income households.  

During the program year, the public service project referred clients to utility assistance programs, 

and infrastructure was improved through the use of grant funds. Additionally, the Department 

made strategic investments with the Capital Area Rural Transportation System (CARTS) to improve 

access to job centers for areas in the Eastern part of the County.   

 

 
  

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



PY 2013 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report                                        Section II. Housing and Services for the Homeless 

     

 
 
Travis County, TX             Page    |   63 

IMPEDIMENTS TO FAIR HOUSING CHOICE 
 

HUD has a commitment to eliminate racial and ethnic segregation, physical and other barriers to 

persons with disabilities, and other discriminatory practices in the provision of housing. HUD extends 

the responsibility of affirmatively furthering fair housing to local jurisdictions through a variety of 

regulations and program requirements.  

As an entitlement county receiving CDBG funds from HUD, Travis County must fulfill its fair housing 

responsibilities by developing an Analysis of Impediments (AI) to Fair Housing Choice and by taking 

actions to overcome the identified impediments. When the program was first implemented in 2006, 

the County operated under the City of Austin’s AI. In addition to the City of Austin’s study, the 2011-

2013 Consolidated Plan allowed the County to develop a better picture of the conditions and needs of 

the unincorporated area and its residents.  

In PY11, Travis County contracted with the firm Mullin & Lonergan with General Fund dollars totaling 

over $60,000 to undertake an AI for the County.  As part of the research for the AI, the consultants 

held two community forums, as well as on site interviews and focus groups with a wide variety of 

stakeholders, both internal and external to the County. The draft was presented to the Commissioners 

Court on November 5, 2013, followed by a public comment period with no substantive comments. 

The AI identified the following impediments to Fair Housing Choice: 

1. Isolation of Low-Income Rural Communities 

2. Poor Condition of Housing Stock in Unincorporated Areas 

3. Increasingly Prohibitive Housing Costs 

4. Persistence of Housing Discrimination 

5. Presence of Discriminatory Restrictive Deeds/Covenants 

6. Concentration of Voucher Holders in Impacted Areas 

7. Absence of Authority for Local Oversight Over Design and Construction 

8. Lack of Local Human Rights or Fair Housing Ordinance 

9. Need for Improved Connections between Residents and Employment Opportunities 

10. Improvements Needed in Some Policy Documents 

11. Questionable Patterns in Private Lending 

To address these impediments, the AI included a Fair Housing Plan that CDBG staff will work to 

implement in coordination with other departments.  

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



PY 2013 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report                                        Section II. Housing and Services for the Homeless 

     

 
 
Travis County, TX             Page    |   64 

During PY13, the CDBG program addressed the following impediments: 

 Isolation of Low-Income Rural Communities:  The Social Work Expansion project, funded through 

CDBG, addressed the isolation of low-income rural communities by bringing the services to 191 

clients.  Furthermore, the County has provided $1,000,000 of General Funds to the Department to 

expand social services.  During the program year, the Commissioners Court approved the 

Department’s plan to geographically target these funds to impacted areas with very low to low 

opportunity outside the City of Austin.    The RFS will be released in PY14.   

 Poor Condition of Housing Stock in Unincorporated Areas: The CDBG program addressed the poor 

condition of housing stock in the unincorporated areas by the continued investment in the Home 

Repair Program. Repairs were made to 35 housing units during the program year.  Additional 

homes were repaired or improved through the Department’s Housing Services Division with other 

Federal, State and local funds. 

 Persistence of Housing Discrimination:  The CDBG program funds fair housing services through the 

Austin Tenant’s Council to combat the persistence of housing discrimination.  One person was 

served during the program year.   

 Need for Improved Connections between Residents and Employment Opportunities: The 

Department funds van service through CARTS to expand access to transportation from the Del Valle 

area to employment and education centers.   

 Increasingly Prohibitive Housing Costs:  TCHFC continues to collaborate with FSS to implement a 

Tenant Based Rental Assistance (TBRA) program funded through the Texas Department of Housing 

and Community Affairs to provide rental assistance and case management for up to 36 months for 

certain low income households.  

o Twenty-three households received Tenant Based Rental Assistance during the past year. 

$171,561.58 has been spent for rent and utilities assistance.   

o In September 2014, TCHFC issued $22,000,000 in tax exempt bonds to finance the construction 

of a 252 unit LIHTC property, William Cannon Apartments. The property will offer one-, two- 

and three-bedroom units to individuals and families earning 50 and 60 percent of the Area 

Median Income (AMI).  In 2013, TCHFC assisted in the acquisition and rehabilitation of a large 

affordable apartment complex (Champions Crossing Apartments) through a bond issue. This 

property is currently undergoing renovations and has already re-leased the necessary units to 

households earning 50% and 80% of AMI based on a recent compliance audit.  

o The TCHFC Board approved the issuance of a $122,400 loan to a developer applying for 9% low 

income housing tax credits (LIHTC) for a family property in northern Travis County, a rapidly 

growing submarket of the ETJ. The loan program satisfies TDHCA’s requirements for local 

government participation in LIHTC developments, and allowed Travis County to participate 

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



PY 2013 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report                                        Section II. Housing and Services for the Homeless 

     

 
 
Travis County, TX             Page    |   65 

more directly in addressing the need for workforce housing in the greater County area. The loan 

has a term of 15 years and a fixed 3% interest rate per the State’s guidelines. 

Travis County Social Service Contracts in the amount of $XX* went towards legal aid and tenants’ 

council services to provide fair housing resources for a total of 9,774 clients in the 2013 program year.2  

Literacy / Workforce Development / Job Training3 

Through Social Service contracts, Travis County funds nonprofits that provide literacy and workforce 

education services throughout the county.  As this issue closely aligns with CDBG’s current service area 

priorities, this is the first year that the CDBG office has decided to include more detailed information 

on these services within the CAPER.4 Travis County Social Service Contracts in the amount of $XX* 

went towards literacy, job training and workforce development programs to provide employment 

resources for a total of 3,094 clients in the 2013 program year. Of these clients, approximately 1,200 

were enrolled in job training programs.5 

Equality of Access to Services 

In the 2011-2013 Consolidated Plan, CDBG established that access to a variety of services were key in 

restricting fair housing choice.  Due to the proximity to services, often times people living in the 

unincorporated areas access services less frequently than those living in the urban core.  This may 

occur for a variety of reasons, however, to provide the best access possible, the Department funds the  

CDBG Social Work Expansion Program.  During the program year, CDBG funding was provided to allow 

for the equivalent of one FTE, thereby expanding both the geographical range and increasing the 

number of residents in the unincorporated areas that were able to be served by the program.  

Food Deserts/Food Poverty 

Through Social Service contracts, Travis County funds nonprofits that provide meal services throughout 

the county to increase access. A total of 4,988,515 meal equivalents were provided in the 2013 

program year.6  

                                           
2
Travis County strives to reflect social service contract investments as accurately and generally as possible to highlight the breadth of 

work being done within each subgroup of services.  Therefore, many different organizations with varying programs are included in each 
of the statistics given. For more detailed information on each of the specific social service providers included in these general statistics, 
please refer to the Community Impact Report published by the Travis County Research and Planning Department (available at 
http://www.co.travis.tx.us/health_human_services/research_planning/documents_cir.asp 
*This number was unavailable at time of report drafting, it will be added to the final draft.   
3
 Ibid. 

4
 Due to changes in funding priorities for social service contracts throughout fiscal year 2011-2012 some numbers may not accurately 

reflect the exact number of clients served based on inconsistent reporting requirements. 
5
 Ibid. 

*At the time of report drafting, these numbers were not available and will be added to the final draft.   
6
 Due to the nature of this cluster of service providers, some of the agencies within this category overlap in providing meal equivalents.  

Therefore client numbers may appear higher than they actually are. 
*At the time of report drafting, these numbers were not available and will be added to the final draft.   

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm

http://www.co.travis.tx.us/health_human_services/research_planning/documents_cir.asp


PY 2013 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report                                        Section II. Housing and Services for the Homeless 

     

 
 
Travis County, TX             Page    |   66 

HOMELESSNESS  
 

Planning Efforts to End Homelessness 

Travis County is a member of the Ending Chronic Homelessness (ECHO) Coalition whose mission is to 

identify specific strategies and oversee ongoing planning and implementation of a plan to end chronic 

homelessness in Austin and Travis County. The coalition is comprised of four committees or work 

groups: Housing, Continuum of Care (CoC), Outreach and Education, and Data. These committees in 

turn have subcommittees. Regular monthly meetings for each committee/subcommittee are held, and 

plenary meetings for all ECHO members are held quarterly.   

Travis County CDBG staff joined ECHO’s Planning and Evaluation Committee during PY07. In PY11, 

Travis County granted ECHO $50,000 to provide administrative and operating support to the newly 

formed nonprofit to administer homelessness prevention services within the County, and continues 

that investment to date. Since then County staff have participated in a number of subcommittees 

including the annual Point-in Time-Count, and the Independent Review Team that reviews and ranks 

CoC applications and provides feedback to contracting agencies as well as the Housing Committee and 

Membership Council. Refer to the section on HUD Continuum of CARE (CoC) Funding for further details 

on CoC. 

Homeless Services7   

During the 2013 program year, Travis County did not target the use of CDBG funds toward homeless 

efforts.  However, Travis County invested $XX* in general fund dollars via contracts with social service 

providers targeting the homeless persons in conjunction with the Austin/Travis County ESG grant 

administration and the Austin/Travis County Plan to End Chronic Homelessness.  Services provided 

include: 

 1,526 unduplicated clients received case management 

 52 unduplicated clients received supportive housing  

 1,861 adults and children were placed in transitional housing  

 109,202 bed/nights were offered for emergency shelter. 

                                           
7
 Travis County strives to reflect social service contract investments as accurately and generally as possible to highlight the breadth of 

work being done within each subgroup of services.  Therefore, many different organizations with varying programs are included in each 
of the statistics given. For more detailed information on each of the specific social service providers included in these general statistics, 
please refer to the Community Impact Report published by the Travis County Research and Planning Department (available at 
http://www.co.travis.tx.us/health_human_services/research_planning/documents_cir.asp 
*At the time of report drafting, these numbers were not available and will be added to the final draft.   

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm

http://www.co.travis.tx.us/health_human_services/research_planning/documents_cir.asp


PY 2013 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report                                        Section II. Housing and Services for the Homeless 

     

 
 
Travis County, TX             Page    |   67 

Homelessness Prevention 

A variety of homelessness prevention efforts are made through the Travis County General Fund and 

other grant sources.  HHS/VS invests funds through its Family Support Services Division (FSS) to address 

housing stability issues including rent, mortgage and utility assistance.  During the reporting period, FSS 

provided over $ XX*8of General Fund and grant assistance dollars to provide: 

 4,954 individuals with emergency rent/mortgage payments to stabilize housing for 30 days. 

 20,768 individuals with utilities to resolve an energy crisis and maintain housing. 

HHS/VS invests $ XX* through social service contracts focusing on housing stability.  Services provided 

include: 

 4,274 unduplicated clients received homelessness prevention services; 

 89,686 hot meals provided.   

HUD Continuum of CARE (CoC) Funding 

Continuum of Care is a funding mechanism by which HUD awards through a national competition 

grants for the Supportive Housing Program (SHP), Shelter Plus Care (S+C) and the Section 8 Moderate 

Rehabilitation Single-Room Occupancy (SRO) Program to states, localities and nonprofit organizations.  

The SHP program provides funding for the development of transitional housing for homeless 

individuals with disabilities. The S+C program provides rental assistance for homeless people with 

chronic disabilities (usually severe mental illness, HIV/AIDS, and chronic drug and/or alcohol 

dependency). All grantees are required to match their federal funding for rental assistance with equal 

funding for supportive services. The SRO program provides project-based rent subsidies for occupants 

of single-room occupancy facilities that have undergone moderate rehabilitation. 

The Austin/Travis County CoC received approximately $5.6 million in HUD Continuum of Care (CoC) 

funding. Part of the funding will focus on projects that qualify as part of the SHP program while the 

other part will target projects under the S+C programs. Additionally, the CoC received a Samaritan 

bonus to increase funds for permanent supportive housing.   

 

  

                                           
* At the time of report drafting, these numbers were not available and will be added to the final draft.   

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



PY 2013 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report                                        Section II. Housing and Services for the Homeless 

     

 
 
Travis County, TX             Page    |   68 

HOME/ AMERICAN DREAM DOWN PAYMENT INITIATIVE (ADDI 
 

Travis County does not receive HOME or ADDI funds at this time.   

 

EMERGENCY SHELTER GRANT  
 

Travis County does not receive Emergency Shelter Grant funds at this time.   

 

ADDRESSING “WORST CASE” HOUSING NEEDS  
 

Addressing the housing needs of persons with disabilities and households who live at or below 50% of 

the Median Family Income (MFI) is critical to ensuring a viable community.  HUD defines households 

with worst case needs as unassisted renters with incomes below 50% of the local area median 

incomes, who pay more than half of their income for housing or live in severely substandard housing.   

CDBG Efforts 

CDBG has funded home rehabilitation and land acquisition to support affordable housing development 

to reduce the cost burden for households at or below 80% MFI.  During PY13, 35 households received 

assistance through the CDBG Home Rehabilitation program and six households received assistance 

through the Gilbert Lane Land Acquisition project.  

Travis County Efforts   

The County addresses worst case housing needs in a variety of ways including targeted investments to 

low income persons. The Travis County Housing Services performs weatherization and home repairs on 

houses occupied by county residents to improve energy efficiency, the physical living conditions, and 

safety in these homes.  During PY13 a total of 235 county residents received energy saving 

weatherization and emergency repair assistance.   

 

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



PY 2013 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report   Section III. Non-Housing Community       
Development and Other Actions 

                      

 
 
Travis County, TX             Page    |   69 

 

 

NON-HOUSING COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
AND OTHER ACTIONS 
 

 
 

 

NON-HOUSING COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT INVESTMENTS 
 

Non-Housing Community Development projects include infrastructure, public facilities and public 

service projects. Out of these three categories Travis County identified infrastructure and community 

services as high priorities for the 2011-2013 Consolidated Planning period. The table below 

summarizes the non-housing community development gaps in funding, as well as the assistance goals 

of the CDBG program over the planning period.     

 

Figure 18: Priority Housing Needs Summary Table, Owner Households 

 Needs Gap 
Priority 

Need 

Year 1  Year 2 Year 3 

Goal Actual Goal Actual Goal Actual 

Infrastructure $26,000,000 $26,000,000 High $145,000 $54,193 $280,000 $72,072 $380,000 $28,029 

Community  
Services* 

$3,000,000 $3,000,000 High $118,500 $89,469 $118,500 $102,546 $118,500 $96,556 

Public 
Buildings & 

Facilities 
$15,000,000 $15,000,000 Medium $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

$533,880.
50 

Business & 
Jobs 

$2,000,000 $2,000,000 Medium $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

 
 
 

 

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



PY 2013 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report   Section III. Non-Housing Community       
Development and Other Actions 

                      

 
 
Travis County, TX             Page    |   70 

OVERVIEW OF TRAVIS COUNTY CDBG INVESTMENTS IN COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT 
 
The following table outlines the total amount of CDBG funding committed throughout the program’s 

history to infrastructure, community service, public buildings and facilities, and business and jobs.  For 

actual expenditures of current projects please refer to the specific project descriptions above, for 

historical expenditures please consult prior year’s CAPERs.    

 

Figure 19: Overview of Travis County CDBG Investment in Community Development   

Community Development Needs/Projects Priority Need Level CDBG Investments 

Infrastructure 

Water Improvements PY06  
Northridge Acres 

High $ 200,000 

Street Improvements PY06 
Apache Shores 

High $ 305,000 

Street Improvements P 07 
Apache Shores 

High $ 500,000 

Street Improvements PY06  
Lava Lane 

High $ 83,659 

Street Improvements P 09 
Lava Lane 

High $ 60,000 

Street Improvements PY10 
Lava Lane 

High $ 400,000 

Street Improvements PY11 
Lake Oak Estates 

High $ 145,000 

Street Improvements PY12 
Lake Oak Estates 

High $326,598 

Street Improvements PY13 
Lake Oak Estates 

High $425,000 

Total Infrastructure $2,445,257 

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



PY 2013 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report   Section III. Non-Housing Community       
Development and Other Actions 

                      

 
 
Travis County, TX             Page    |   71 

Community Development Needs/Projects Priority Need Level CDBG Investments 

Community Service 

Other Public Service Needs PY07  High $0 

Other Public Service Needs PY08  High $ 64,877 

Other Public Service Needs PY09  High $ 35,000 

Other Public Service Needs PY10  High $69,295 

Other Public Service Needs PY11 High $ 118,500 

Other Public Service Needs PY12 
Social Work 

High 
$106,000 

 

Other Public Service Needs PY12 
Fair Housing 

High $28,451 

Other Public Service Needs PY13 
Social Work 

High $75,000 

Other Public Service Needs PY13 
Fair Housing 

High $50,000 

Total Community Service $547,123 

Public Buildings & Facilities 

Barkley Meadows Flood Damage Repair Medium $547,102 

Business & Jobs 

Business & Jobs Medium $ 0 

 
In addition to CDBG investments, the County’s infrastructure department, Transportation and Natural 

Resources, conducts community development activities in the form of public parks, bridge and 

drainage projects, storm water management, road maintenance, on-site sewage facilities, 

transportation planning, and various other projects, approximately totaling over $50 million. 

 

 

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



PY 2013 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report   Section III. Non-Housing Community       
Development and Other Actions 

                      

 
 
Travis County, TX             Page    |   72 

Water and Wastewater Needs 

Since the inception of the CDBG Program, there has been strong interest in water and wastewater 

projects from residents in the unincorporated areas.  To date, the Travis County CDBG office has 

received public requests for water infrastructure projects that taken together would cost $16,000,000 

to implement and requests for wastewater infrastructure projects that would cost a total of 

$8,000,000 to implement.  A higher percentage of these requests have come from neighborhoods on 

the eastern side of the county.  Due to funding constraints, no water infrastructure projects are 

currently funded through the CDBG program.  

Transportation9 

Travis County’s HHS/VS provides services to populations through direct services as well as social service 

contracts and inter-local agreements with other governmental organizations.  Travis County HHS/VS 

invests in different programs to address community development needs. Transportation is one of 

many social service contracts that Travis County invests in to improve access and ensure inclusion.  In 

program year 2013, $XX* went towards service providers working to create improved access through 

79,237 trips provided. 

 

  

                                           
9
 Travis County HHS/VS has invested in multiple agencies providing transportation services through social service contract dollars for 

many years.  However, due to shifts in funding priorities and reporting requirements, this category only captures performance data for 
one service provider for PY 2011. 
* At the time of report drafting, these numbers were not available and will be added to the final draft.   

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



PY 2013 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report   Section III. Non-Housing Community       
Development and Other Actions 

                      

 
 
Travis County, TX             Page    |   73 

ANTI-POVERTY STRATEGY 
 

Travis County's lead agency for administering CDBG funds is the Health and Human Services & 

Veterans Service Department. The goal of the department is to address community needs through 

internal and external investments and services. The department strives to accomplish the following: 

Maximize quality of life for all people in Travis County; Protect vulnerable populations; Invest in social 

and economic well-being; Promote healthy living: physical, behavioral, and environmental; and Build a 

shared understanding of our community. Travis County operates a number of anti-poverty programs 

that assist individuals and families on multiple fronts in transitioning from crisis to self-sufficiency.  

The County carries out its anti-poverty programs both through the direct delivery of services managed 

by HHS/VS and by purchasing services from private and not-for-profit agencies in the community. In 

addition to the provision of direct services, Travis County continually assesses the poverty and basic 

needs of county residents, works with stakeholders in facilitating anti-poverty efforts, and supports 

public policy initiatives that prevent and ameliorate conditions of poverty.  

Annually, over $XX* million is invested in alleviating the conditions which contribute to poverty by 

stabilizing housing, providing comprehensive case management, and increasing opportunity through 

workforce development and youth and child programs – just to name a few.  

An estimated 5% of social service contract investments made by the Department in 2013 were 

provided to persons living in the unincorporated areas (and an additional 25% to residents of areas 

that include a mix of incorporated and unincorporated geographies,) while 18% of the population lives 

in these areas. The CDBG program funded social work program assists residents of the CDBG service 

area. In PY13, 191 people were served. This program's aim is to improve access to social services to 

residents of the unincorporated areas.  

 

  

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



PY 2013 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report   Section III. Non-Housing Community       
Development and Other Actions 

                      

 
 
Travis County, TX             Page    |   74 

NON-HOMELESS SPECIAL NEEDS 
 

HUD identifies non-homeless special needs populations as elderly, frail elderly, those with severe 

mental illness, the developmentally disabled, the physically disabled, persons with alcohol and other 

drug addictions, victims of domestic violence, and persons living with HIV/AIDS.   

Travis County’s HHS/VS provides services to special needs populations through direct services as well 

as social service contracts and inter-local agreements with other governmental organizations.  Travis 

County HHS/VS invests in different programs to address public health, substance abuse, indigent 

health, and mental health needs. Additionally, CDBG funded programs will be marketed to populations 

with specialized needs and services to ensure inclusion and improve access. 

Services for Elderly & Frail Elderly10 

Travis County funded $XX* of services to the elderly and frail elderly through social service contracts 

during the reporting period. Services provided include case management, in-home care services, meals 

and bill payer services. In-home services include assistance with personal hygiene tasks as well as 

housekeeping, while bill payer services included assistance with finances and money managements. In 

total: 

 4,199 unduplicated clients were served,  

 616 unduplicated clients received case management services,  

 593,652 prepared meals were provided, and  

 366 individuals received in-home services. 

Services for Persons with Physical Disabilities or Developmental Delays11 

Through social service contract investments during the reporting period, Travis County funded $XX* of 

services for persons with physical disabilities and developmental delays.  Services centered around 

employment and job-readiness, case management, early childhood intervention, basic needs 

assistance, and social/recreational opportunities.  A total of 3,558 unduplicated children and adults 

were served during the reporting period.  Amongst the total number of clients, 971 case management 

hours were recorded. 

                                           
10

 Travis County strives to reflect social service contract investments as accurately and generally as possible to highlight the breadth of 
work being done within each subgroup of services.  Therefore, many different organizations with varying programs are included in each 
of the statistics given. For more detailed information on each of the specific social service providers included in these general statistics, 
please refer to the Community Impact Report published by the Travis County Research and Planning Department (available at 
http://www.co.travis.tx.us/health_human_services/research_planning/documents_cir.asp. 
11

 Ibid. 
*At the time of report drafting, these numbers were not available and will be added to the final draft.   

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm

http://www.co.travis.tx.us/health_human_services/research_planning/documents_cir.asp


PY 2013 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report   Section III. Non-Housing Community       
Development and Other Actions 

                      

 
 
Travis County, TX             Page    |   75 

Services for Victims of Domestic Violence12 

Travis County funded $XX * of services for persons experiencing abuse, neglect, domestic violence, and 

sexual assault through social service contract investments during the reporting period.  Services 

centered around advocacy, crisis management, emergency shelter, transitional housing and 

counseling.  Approximately 44,813 days of shelter and 2,061 unduplicated adults and children received 

services during the reporting period. 

Services for Persons Living with HIV/AIDS13 

In PY13 Travis County funded$ XX* of services for persons living with HIV/AIDS (PWLA) through social 

service contract investments.  Services centered around advocacy, crisis management, emergency 

shelter, transitional housing, and counseling.  A total of 722 persons received services including case 

management, medical care retention, client advocacy, medication adherence assistance, food pantry 

assistance, nutritional counseling, home health, prevention and support groups.  Additionally, Travis 

County provided other services through public health inter-local agreements. 

 

  

                                           
12

 Travis County strives to reflect social service contract investments as accurately and generally as possible to highlight the breadth of 
work being done within each subgroup of services.  Therefore, many different organizations with varying programs are included in each 
of the statistics given. For more detailed information on each of the specific social service providers included in these general statistics, 
please refer to the Community Impact Report published by the Travis County Research and Planning Department (available at 
http://www.co.travis.tx.us/health_human_services/research_planning/documents_cir.asp. 
13

 Ibid. 
*At the time of report drafting, these numbers were not available and will be added to the final draft.   

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm

http://www.co.travis.tx.us/health_human_services/research_planning/documents_cir.asp


PY 2013 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report   Section III. Non-Housing Community       
Development and Other Actions 

                      

 
 
Travis County, TX             Page    |   76 

LEAD-BASED PAINT 
 

Activities supported with Travis County CDBG funds must be in full compliance with the Lead Safe 

Housing Rule (24 CFR Part 35) of the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD). The 

CDBG program has created guidelines to ensure that the necessary steps for notification, identification 

and treatment of Lead Based Paint are followed, for owner occupied rehabilitation projects and other 

projects as appropriate. 

HHS/VS Housing Services Division, which receives funds through State grant funds and the Travis 

County General Fund, provides limited lead-based paint remediation on houses built before 1978 

where small holes in the wall or similar acts that could cause additional possible lead exposure are 

made.  The lead safe practices are used to ensure client and worker safety.  Areas disturbed are sealed 

and all loose contaminates are removed.  The Housing Services Division does not have a complete lead 

abatement process nor does it have a formal lead based paint remediation program; however, they do 

perform Lead Safe work as prescribed by the EPA in conjunction with their WAP and Home Repair 

Programs.  Housing Services is an EPA Certified Lead Safe Firm who employs EPA Certified Lead Safe 

Renovators and complies with lead safe practices when working on homes built prior to 1978.  

 

SPECIFIC HOPWA OBJECTIVES 
 
Travis County does not receive HOPWA funds at this time.  

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



PY 2013 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report                                               Appendices 

     

 
 
Travis County, TX                
            Page    |   77 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
APPENDICES

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



PY 2013 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report                                   Appendix A. Project Photos 

     

 
 
Travis County, TX                
            Page    |   78 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

APPENDIX A  
 

Project Photos 
  

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



PY 2013 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report                                   Appendix A. Project Photos 

     

 
 
Travis County, TX                
            Page    |   79 

 

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



PY 2013 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report                                   Appendix A. Project Photos 

     

 
 
Travis County, TX                
            Page    |   80 

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



PY 2013 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report                                   Appendix A. Project Photos 

     

 
 
Travis County, TX                
            Page    |   81 

 

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



PY 2013 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report                                   Appendix A. Project Photos 

     

 
 
Travis County, TX                
            Page    |   82 

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



PY 2013 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report                                   Appendix A. Project Photos 

     

 
 
Travis County, TX                
            Page    |   83 

 

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



PY 2013 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report                                   Appendix A. Project Photos 

     

 
 
Travis County, TX                
            Page    |   84 

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



PY 2013 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report                                   Appendix A. Project Photos 

     

 
 
Travis County, TX                
            Page    |   85 

 

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



PY 2013 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report                                   Appendix A. Project Photos 

     

 
 
Travis County, TX                
            Page    |   86 

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



PY 2013 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report                                   Appendix A. Project Photos 

     

 
 
Travis County, TX                
            Page    |   87 

 

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



PY 2013 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report                                   Appendix A. Project Photos 

     

 
 
Travis County, TX                
            Page    |   88 

 

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



PY 2013 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report                                   Appendix B / Attachment A 

     

 
 
Travis County, TX                
            Page    |   89 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

APPENDIX B 
 

Attachment A. Advertisements 
  

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



PY 2013 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report                                   Appendix B / Attachment A 

     

 
 
Travis County, TX                
            Page    |   90 

 

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



PY 2013 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report                                   Appendix B / Attachment A 

     

 
 
Travis County, TX                
            Page    |   91 

 

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



PY 2013 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report                                   Appendix B / Attachment B 

     

 
 
Travis County, TX                
            Page    |   92 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

APPENDIX B 
 

Attachment B. Summary of Public Comments 
 

 

To be added to final draft.  
 

 

 

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



PY 2013 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report                            Appendix C. IDIS Reports 

 

 
 
Travis County, TX             
             Page    |   92 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

APPENDIX C 
 

Attachment A. CDBG Financial Summary Report (CO4PR26) 
 
 

To be added to final draft.   

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



PY 2013 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report                            Appendix C. IDIS Reports 

 

 
 
Travis County, TX             
             Page    |   94 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

APPENDIX C 
 

Attachment B. Program Year 2031  
Summary of Accomplishments (CO4PR23) 

 
 
 

To be added to final draft.  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



PY 2013 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report                            Appendix C. IDIS Reports 

 

 
 
Travis County, TX             
             Page    |   94 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

APPENDIX C 
 

Attachment C. Summary of Consolidated Plan Projects (PR06) 
 
 

To be added to final draft

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



PY 2013 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report                            Appendix C. IDIS Reports 

 

 
 
Travis County, TX             
             Page    |   95 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

APPENDIX C 
 

Attachment D. CDBG Activity Summary Report  
for Program Year 2013 (CO4PR03) 

 
 

To be added to final draft. 
 

 

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Item 18Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Item 19Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Item 20Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Item 21Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Item 22Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Item 23Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to agenda@co.travis.tx.us by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. for the next week's meeting. 
 

 
 
Meeting Date:  November 18, 2014 
Prepared By/Phone Number:  Jesus Angel Gómez/854-1187; Marvin 
Brice, CPPB/854-9765 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head:  Cyd V. Grimes, C.P.M., CPPO 
Commissioners Court Sponsor:  Judge Samuel T. Biscoe 

Agenda Language:  Authorize Purchasing Agent to commence 
negotiations with the highest-ranked firm, CGL RicciGreene Design Group 
LLC, in reference to Request for Qualifications (RFQ) No. Q1406-010-AG, 
Juvenile Probation Department Needs Analysis and Master Plan Update.  

 Purchasing Recommendation and Comments:  Purchasing concurs 
with departments and recommends approval of requested action.  This 
procurement action meets the compliance requirements as outlined by 
the statutes. 

 On August 13, 2014, RFQ No. Q1406-010-AG was issued to seek 
qualification statements from firms to conduct a Juvenile Probation 
Department Needs Analysis and Master Plan Update, a two-phased 
planning effort. The first phase, the Needs Analysis, includes a review 
and analysis of current operations and a long-term forecast of growth in 
the juvenile court system, detention system, treatment programs, and 
administration.  

 The results of this analysis will quantify data for the second phase, the 
Master Plan Update.  During this phase, the forecast need for additional 
space will be translated into a physical plan for the use and reuse of the 
department’s land and facilities, identifying how the department can 
continue to carry out its mission for the next 25 years.  A comprehensive 
approach to redevelopment and renovation at the site will be needed in 
order to maintain current operations while construction of new and or 
replacement elements are developed.  

 Subject RFQ was issued electronically to over 14,400 businesses 
nationwide, with approximately 79 businesses viewing the RFQ before it 
closed on September 10, 2014.  Two (2) responses were received in 
response to the solicitation.   The Evaluation Committee, supervised by 
the Purchasing Office, and comprised of representatives from the 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Item 24Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to agenda@co.travis.tx.us by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. for the next week's meeting. 
 

Juvenile Probation Department and Planning and Budget Office, 
reviewed and scored the qualification statements based on the 
established evaluation criteria.  Both firms were considered highly 
qualified and experienced from the review and scoring of the qualfication 
statements. 

 The Evaluation Committee conducted oral interviews with the two (2) 
firms on October 10, 2014.  The firms were; CGL RicciGreene Design 
Group LLC; and Treanor Architects with Huskey Associates, Inc.  After 
the interviews, the Evaluation Committee met to discuss the oral 
presentations and determine the final scores based upon the 
established oral presentation criteria.  After deliberation and final 
scoring, the Evaluation Committee established a final ranking, selecting  
CGL RicciGreene Design Group LLC as the highest–ranked firm.  
Scoring matrices are attached for the Court’s review. 

 The Purchasing Agent requests authorization to begin formal 
negotiations with CGL RicciGreene Design Group LLC, including price, 
to finalize a contract for the Court’s approval.  Should negotiations be 
unsuccessful, the Purchasing Agent will request authorization to 
terminate negotiations with CGL RicciGreene Design Group LLC, and 
then commence negotiations with the next highest ranked firm. 

 
 Funding Information: 

  Shopping Cart/Funds Reservation in SAP: 300001228 
  Comments: To Be Determined 

 
 
 
REQUIRED ACTION 

 
________ Approved  _______Disapproved 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
  Samuel T. Biscoe  Date 
     County Judge 
 

 

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



FIRMS:  

 
Weighted 

Factor
 

Raw Score (1 

to 5)
Total Score  

Weighted 

Factor
 

Raw Score 

(1 to 5)
Total Score

1. CRITERION ONE: Experience of Staff                                                          

Respondent must have sufficiently experienced current full-time staff, both registered professionals in the 

applicable field and technical and administrative support staff, to competently and efficiently perform the 

work. Categories should add up to 40%.

  

Managerial Staff: years and relevance of experience 10% 4 0.40 10% 4 0.40

Juvenile Detention and Court-specific staff: years and relevance of experience 20% 3 0.60 20% 4 0.80

Other technical staff: years and relevance of experience 10% 3 0.30 10% 3 0.30

2. CRITERION TWO: Written Technical Plan

The Technical Plan will be evaluated in four (3) categories, each weighted with the percentage indicated. All 

four categories add up to 40%.   
  

Project Knowledge 15% 5 0.75 15% 5 0.75

Completeness 15% 3 0.45 15% 4 0.60

Clarity 10% 4 0.40 10% 4 0.40

3. CRITERION THREE: Prime Firm's Comparable Project Experience

The prime firm (or Joint Venture Firm) identified in the Project management chart must have work 

experience pertinent to the Project under consideration and local conditions. 
10% 3 0.30 10% 5 0.50

4. CRITERION FOUR: Sub-Consultant's Comparable Project Experience

Demonstrated experience of the firm in providing similar consulting services on comparable projects. 10% 4 0.40 10% 3 0.30

TOTAL SCORE 100% 29 3.60 100% 32 4.05

 EVALUATOR #1

FIRMS:  

 
Weighted 

Factor
 

Raw Score (1 

to 5)
Total Score  

Weighted 

Factor
 

Raw Score 

(1 to 5)
Total Score

1. CRITERION ONE: Experience of Staff                                                          

Respondent must have sufficiently experienced current full-time staff, both registered professionals in the 

applicable field and technical and administrative support staff, to competently and efficiently perform the 

work. Categories should add up to 40%.
  

Managerial Staff: years and relevance of experience 10% 5 0.50 10% 5 0.50

Juvenile Detention and Court-specific staff: years and relevance of experience 20% 4 0.80 20% 5 1.00

Other technical staff: years and relevance of experience 10% 4 0.40 10% 5 0.50

2. CRITERION TWO: Written Technical Plan

The Technical Plan will be evaluated in four (3) categories, each weighted with the percentage indicated. All 

four categories add up to 40%.     

Project Knowledge 15% 3 0.45 15% 5 0.75

Completeness 15% 4 0.60 15% 5 0.75

Clarity 10% 5 0.50 10% 3 0.30

3. CRITERION THREE: Prime Firm's Comparable Project Experience

The prime firm (or Joint Venture Firm) identified in the Project management chart must have work 

experience pertinent to the Project under consideration and local conditions. 
10% 4 0.40 10% 5 0.50

4. CRITERION FOUR: Sub-Consultant's Comparable Project Experience

Demonstrated experience of the firm in providing similar consulting services on comparable projects. 10% 4 0.40 10% 5 0.50

TOTAL SCORE 100% 33 4.05 100% 38 4.80

 EVALUATOR #2

FIRMS:  

 
Weighted 

Factor
 

Raw Score (1 

to 5)
Total Score  

Weighted 

Factor
 

Raw Score 

(1 to 5)
Total Score

1. CRITERION ONE: Experience of Staff                                                          

Respondent must have sufficiently experienced current full-time staff, both registered professionals in the 

applicable field and technical and administrative support staff, to competently and efficiently perform the 

work. Categories should add up to 40%.

  

Managerial Staff: years and relevance of experience 10% 3 0.30 10% 4 0.40

Juvenile Detention and Court-specific staff: years and relevance of experience 20% 3 0.60 20% 4 0.80

Other technical staff: years and relevance of experience 10% 3 0.30 10% 4 0.40

2. CRITERION TWO: Written Technical Plan

The Technical Plan will be evaluated in four (3) categories, each weighted with the percentage indicated. All 

four categories add up to 40%.   
  

Project Knowledge 15% 4 0.60 15% 4 0.60

Completeness 15% 3 0.45 15% 4 0.60

Clarity 10% 3 0.30 10% 4 0.40

3. CRITERION THREE: Prime Firm's Comparable Project Experience

The prime firm (or Joint Venture Firm) identified in the Project management chart must have work 

experience pertinent to the Project under consideration and local conditions. 
10% 3 0.30 10% 4 0.40

4. CRITERION FOUR: Sub-Consultant's Comparable Project Experience  

Demonstrated experience of the firm in providing similar consulting services on comparable projects. 10% 4 0.40 10% 4 0.40

TOTAL SCORE 100% 26 3.25 100% 32 4.00

 EVALUATOR #3

Criteria

Evaluation Matrix for Statement of Qualifications

RFQ1406-010-AG, Juvenile Probation Department Needs Analysis and Master Plan Update

TREANOR CGL

TREANOR CGL

Criteria

TREANOR CGL

Criteria

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



FIRMS:  

 
Weighted 

Factor
 

Raw Score (1 

to 5)
Total Score  

Weighted 

Factor
 

Raw Score 

(1 to 5)
Total Score

1. CRITERION ONE: Experience of Staff                                                          

Respondent must have sufficiently experienced current full-time staff, both registered professionals in the 

applicable field and technical and administrative support staff, to competently and efficiently perform the 

work. Categories should add up to 40%.
  

Managerial Staff: years and relevance of experience 10% 3 0.30 10% 4 0.40

Juvenile Detention and Court-specific staff: years and relevance of experience 20% 4 0.80 20% 3 0.60

Other technical staff: years and relevance of experience 10% 3 0.30 10% 4 0.40

2. CRITERION TWO: Written Technical Plan

The Technical Plan will be evaluated in four (3) categories, each weighted with the percentage indicated. All 

four categories add up to 40%.   
  

Project Knowledge 15% 4 0.60 15% 3 0.45

Completeness 15% 3 0.45 15% 4 0.60

Clarity 10% 3 0.30 10% 4 0.40

3. CRITERION THREE: Prime Firm's Comparable Project Experience

The prime firm (or Joint Venture Firm) identified in the Project management chart must have work 

experience pertinent to the Project under consideration and local conditions. 
10% 3 0.30 10% 4 0.40

4. CRITERION FOUR: Sub-Consultant's Comparable Project Experience  

Demonstrated experience of the firm in providing similar consulting services on comparable projects. 10% 4 0.40 10% 4 0.40

TOTAL SCORE 100% 27 3.45 100% 30 3.65

 EVALUATOR #4

FIRMS:  

 
Weighted 

Factor
 

Raw Score (1 

to 5)
Total Score  

Weighted 

Factor
 

Raw Score 

(1 to 5)
Total Score

1. CRITERION ONE: Experience of Staff                                                          

Respondent must have sufficiently experienced current full-time staff, both registered professionals in the 

applicable field and technical and administrative support staff, to competently and efficiently perform the 

work. Categories should add up to 40%.

  

Managerial Staff: years and relevance of experience 10% 4 0.40 10% 4 0.40

Juvenile Detention and Court-specific staff: years and relevance of experience 20% 3 0.60 20% 4 0.80

Other technical staff: years and relevance of experience 10% 3 0.30 10% 4 0.40

2. CRITERION TWO: Written Technical Plan

The Technical Plan will be evaluated in four (3) categories, each weighted with the percentage indicated. All 

four categories add up to 40%.   
  

Project Knowledge 15% 3 0.45 15% 4 0.60

Completeness 15% 3 0.45 15% 4 0.60

Clarity 10% 3 0.30 10% 3 0.30

3. CRITERION THREE: Prime Firm's Comparable Project Experience

The prime firm (or Joint Venture Firm) identified in the Project management chart must have work 

experience pertinent to the Project under consideration and local conditions. 
10% 3 0.30 10% 4 0.40

4. CRITERION FOUR: Sub-Consultant's Comparable Project Experience

Demonstrated experience of the firm in providing similar consulting services on comparable projects. 10% 4 0.40 10% 4 0.40

TOTAL SCORE 100% 26 3.20 100% 31 3.90

 EVALUATOR #5

FIRMS:  

 
Weighted 

Factor
 

Raw Score (1 

to 5)
Total Score  

Weighted 

Factor
 

Raw Score 

(1 to 5)
Total Score

1. CRITERION ONE: Experience of Staff                                                          

Respondent must have sufficiently experienced current full-time staff, both registered professionals in the 

applicable field and technical and administrative support staff, to competently and efficiently perform the 

work. Categories should add up to 40%.
  

Managerial Staff: years and relevance of experience 10% 3 0.30 10% 4 0.40

Juvenile Detention and Court-specific staff: years and relevance of experience 20% 4 0.80 20% 3 0.60

Other technical staff: years and relevance of experience 10% 3 0.30 10% 4 0.40

2. CRITERION TWO: Written Technical Plan

The Technical Plan will be evaluated in four (3) categories, each weighted with the percentage indicated. All 

four categories add up to 40%.     

Project Knowledge 15% 3 0.45 15% 4 0.60

Completeness 15% 3 0.45 15% 4 0.60

Clarity 10% 3 0.30 10% 3 0.30

3. CRITERION THREE: Prime Firm's Comparable Project Experience

The prime firm (or Joint Venture Firm) identified in the Project management chart must have work 

experience pertinent to the Project under consideration and local conditions. 
10% 3 0.30 10% 4 0.40

4. CRITERION FOUR: Sub-Consultant's Comparable Project Experience

Demonstrated experience of the firm in providing similar consulting services on comparable projects. 10% 4 0.40 10% 3 0.30

TOTAL SCORE 100% 26 3.30 100% 29 3.60

 EVALUATOR #6

EVALUATION COMMITTEE - SOQ AVERAGE SCORES 27.83 3.48 32.00 4.00

TREANOR CGL

Criteria

TREANOR CGL

Criteria

TREANOR CGL

Criteria

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Firm Name:

Weighted 

Factor
Raw Score Total Score

Weighted 

Factor
Raw Score Total Score

Project Knowledge of staff 40% 3 1.20 40% 4 1.60
Completeness of answers 40% 4 1.60 40% 4 1.60
Clarity of responses 20% 5 1.00 20% 5 1.00 
TOTAL SCORE 100%  3.80 100%  4.20
EVALUATOR #1 bp

Firm Name:
Weighted 

Factor
Raw Score Total Score

Weighted 

Factor
Raw Score Total Score

Project Knowledge of staff 40% 3 1.20 40% 5 2.00
Completeness of answers 40% 5 2.00 40% 5 2.00
Clarity of responses 20% 4 0.80 20% 5 1.00
TOTAL SCORE 100%  4.00 100%  5.00
EVALUATOR #2 mg

Firm Name:
Weighted 

Factor
Raw Score Total Score

Weighted 

Factor
Raw Score Total Score

Project Knowledge of staff 40% 4 1.60 40% 3 1.20
Completeness of answers 40% 4 1.60 40% 3 1.20
Clarity of responses 20% 3 0.60 20% 3 0.60
TOTAL SCORE 100%  3.80 100%  3.00
EVALUATOR #3 bc

Firm Name:
Weighted 

Factor
Raw Score Total Score

Weighted 

Factor
Raw Score Total Score

Project Knowledge of staff 40% 4 1.60 40% 3 1.20
Completeness of answers 40% 4 1.60 40% 3 1.20
Clarity of responses 20% 3 0.60 20% 3 0.60
TOTAL SCORE 100%  3.80 100%  3.00
EVALUATOR #4 db

Firm Name:

Weighted 

Factor
Raw Score Total Score

Weighted 

Factor
Raw Score Total Score

Project Knowledge of staff 40% 4 1.60 40% 4 1.60
Completeness of answers 40% 3 1.20 40% 4 1.60
Clarity of responses 20% 3 0.60 20% 4 0.80
TOTAL SCORE 100%  3.40 100%  4.00
EVALUATOR #5 crm

Firm Name:

Weighted 

Factor

Raw 

Score
Total Score

Weighted 

Factor

Raw 

Score

Total 

Score

Project Knowledge of staff 40% 3.6 1.44 40% 3.8 1.52
Completeness of answers 40% 4 1.60 40% 3.8 1.52
Clarity of responses 20% 3.6 0.72 20% 4 0.80

TOTAL SCORE AVERAGE 100%  3.76 100%  3.84

Evaluation Instructions: Each factor above is worth up to 5 points.  

Evaluate each proposal against the criteria and assign points (1-5) 

for each factor, based on the following scale:

5 - Excellent

4 - Significant Above Acceptable

3 - Slightly Above Acceptable 

2 - Acceptable

1 - Minimally Acceptable

e.g. 30% x 4 = 1.2

EVALUATION COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION    CGL 3.84
 

Criteria

TREANOR CGL

Criteria

Evaluation Matrix for RFQ No. Q1406-010-AG, Juvenile Probation Department Needs Analysis 

and Master Plan Update 

ORAL PRESENTATION AND INTERVIEW - FINAL SCORES

TREANOR CGL

TREANOR CGL

Criteria

Criteria

TREANOR CGL

Criteria

TREANOR

TREANOR CGL

Criteria

CGL

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Funds Reservation 300001228
General Data

Document type FC

Company code 1000

FM area 1000

Controlling area 1000

Document type 030

Document date 07/11/2014

Posting date 07/11/2014

Currency USD/ 1.00000 

Statistics

Entered by WILLIAM1

Last changed by

Created on 07/11/2014

Last changed

More Data

Text Juvenile Probation building master plan project

Reference

Overall Amount             320,000.00  USD

Document item 001

Commitment item 511890

Fund 0001

Cost center 1458000001

Vendor

Funds center 1458000001

G/L account 511890

Due on

Customer

Text TCJPD master plan

Amount           320,000.00  USD

Earmarked fund 300001228 printed on 10/30/2014/15:35:48 Side 1 of 1

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to agenda@co.travis.tx.us by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. for the next week's meeting. 
 

 
 
Meeting Date: November 18, 2014 
Prepared By/Phone Number: Jesus Angel Gómez/512-854-1187; Marvin 
Brice, CPPB, Assistant Purchasing Agent/512-854-9765 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Cyd Grimes, C.P.M., CPPO 
Commissioners Court Sponsor: Judge Samuel T. Biscoe 

Agenda Language:  Approve Modification No. 2 to Contract No. 
4400001642, Atkins North America Inc., for Weiss Lane Bridge #229 
Improvements Project. 

 Purchasing Recommendation and Comments:  Purchasing concurs 
with department and recommends approval of requested action. This 
procurement action meets the compliance requirements as outlined by 
the statutes. 

 Weiss Lane Bridge is currently a functionally obsolete one-lane bridge 
over the South Fork of Wilbarger Creek.  Previous design services 
performed under this PSA accommodated the replacement of the 
existing bridge with a new 2 lane bridge (no shoulders) on the existing 
alignment and within the existing ROW.  This design was progressed to 
60% completion.  It has been determined that the proposed bridge 
should be wide enough to accommodate shoulders as well as two lanes 
of traffic.  This will necessitate the re-design of the project, shifting the 
proposed centerline alignment to the west and will require the 
acquisition of Right of Way on the west side of the project. 

 The re-design of this project will consist of the design for the 
replacement of the bridge with a new two-lane pre-cast concrete bridge 
with shoulders.  The structural design of the bridge will be done entirely 
using TxDOT standards.  The bridge will be designed to clear the 100 
year flood with maximum 12 inch overtopping.    

 Atkins North America Inc., was initially selected from the pre-qualified list 
of professional engineering and architectural firms, under RFQ No. 
Q110243-LP, and was awarded the contract on December 17, 2013. 

 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Item 25Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to agenda@co.travis.tx.us by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. for the next week's meeting. 
 

 Change Order number two (2) is necessary for the revision of the design 
of the proposed bridge at Wilbarger Creek that will widen the bridge to 
accommodate wider shoulders on Weiss Lane for pedestrian and bicycle 
traffic. 

This change order is in the amount of $71,466.50, and increases the 
contract amount from $99,846.80 to $171,313.30. The total aggregate 
amount increased of the cumulative change order(s) is over the 
threshold amount for increases and therefore requires court approval. 

 Change Order number one (1) was necessary to re-allocate the sub-
consultant labor fees, adjusting the labor hours related to the 
environmental services fees from Reimbursable Expenses to 
Compensation for Basic Services.  This change order did not increase or 
decrease the contract amount of $99,846.80. The total amount of this 
change order was not over the threshold amount and therefore did not 
require court approval. 

 Contract Expenditures: Within the last 12 months $60,465.72 has 
been spent against this contract. 

 Contract-Related Information: 

Award Amount: $171,313.30    
Contract Type: Professional Services Agreement   
Contract Period: Through Completion  

 Contract Modification Information: 

Modification Amount: $71,466.50     
Modification Type: Construction    
Modification Period: Through Completion  

 
 Funding Information: 

  Funds Reservation in SAP: 300000880 
  Fund(s)/Funding Center(s): 4036, 4086/1490190000 
  Comments: 

 

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



THROUGH: Steve Manilla, P.E., County Executive

>

C)
fl,

SUBJECT: Modification #2 to Professional Services Agreement (PSA) for the Weiss Lane
Bridge Replacement project, Design Services, K #4400001642-Atkins
Engineering

This modification is for revising the design of the proposed bridge at Wilbarger Creek in
Precinct One.

The proposed design modification is for including wider shoulders on the bridge to match the
proposed shoulders on Weiss Lane. The wider shoulders planned for the proposed bridge are
intended to accommodate pedestrian and bicycle traffic, but will require acquisition of additional
right-of-way.

The design consultant, Atkins, Inc., has requested an additional $71,466.50 for the design
modification.

Financial information for this request is as follows:

Funds Reservation Number 300000880
Fund 4036 4086 Grand Total
Fund Center 1490190000 1490190000
G/L Account 522040 522040
IO/WBS BGCN. 149.000005 BGCN. 149.000005
Amount $35,743.89 $35,722.61 $71,466.50

TNR recommends approval of Contract Modification #2.

If you have any questions or require additional information, please contact me at extension
49434, or Mo Mortazavi at 47589.

Attachments: Atkins’ Proposal for Contract Modification #2.

cc: Cyd Grimes, Purchasing Agent
Jesus (Angel) Gomez, Purchasing
Steve Sun, Isabelle Lopez, Tawana Gardner, Mo Mortazavi

TRANSPORTATION AND NATURAL RESOURCES DEPARTMENT
STEVEN M. MANILLA, P.E., COUNTY EXECUTIVE
700 Lavaca Street, 5th Floor
P.O. Box 1748
Austin, Texas 78767
(512) 854-9383
FAX (512) 854-4626

October 8, 2014

MEMORANDUM

TO: Marvin Brice, Assistant Purchasing Agent

FROM: Morgan Cotten, P.E., County Executive,

CD

(J

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



ATKINS

Project No.: Weiss Lane Bridge #229 Improvements

Mr. Mo Mortazavi, P.E.
Travis County
Transportation & Natural Resources
700 Lavaca St., 5th Floor
Austin, TX 78701

October 3, 2014

Weiss Lane Bridge #229 Improvements
Contract No. 4400001642

Atkins North America, Inc.

Rob Bailey, P.E.
6504 Bridge Point Pkwy, Suite 200
Austin. TX 78730
rob.baiIeyatkinsgIobaLcom

Tel: (512) 327-6840

Direct no; (512) 342-3225

infoatkinsglobaI.com

atkinsglobaLcom/northamerica

Dear Mr. Mortazavi,
We are pleased to submit this proposal for a supplemental agreement for professional
engineering services for the above referenced contract to include the preparation of plans,
specifications, and estimates (PS&E), and bidding phase services for a bridge replacement and
associated approach roadway improvements. The bridge replacement PS&E will be prepared in
accordance with the attached Scope of Work document for a total supplemental fee of $71,466.50.

Please feel free to contact me ifyou have any questions.

Sincerely,

Rob Bailey, PE
Highway Design Manager
ATKiNS
75 years of design, engineering and project management excellence

D5IGN AND NGINERING
EXcELLENCE 5INCE 193B

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Weiss Lane over Wilbarger Creek 

Scope of Work 
Page 2 
ofof88  88  
88 
 

09/05/14  

REVISED SCOPE OF SERVICES 
 

I. Project Summary 
 
Weiss Lane Bridge is currently a functionally obsolete one-lane bridge over the South Fork 

of Wilbarger Creek. Previous design services performed under this Professional Services 

Agreement accommodated the replacement of the existing bridge with a new 2 lane bridge 

(no shoulders) on the existing alignment and within the existing ROW. This design was 

progressed to 60% completion. It has been determined that the proposed bridge should be 

wide enough to accommodate shoulders as well as two lanes of traffic. This will necessitate 

the re-design of the project, shifting the proposed centerline alignment to the west and will 

require the acquisition of ROW on the west side of the project.  

 

The re-design of this project will consist of the design for the replacement of the 

bridge with a new two-lane with shoulders pre-cast concrete bridge. The structural design of 

the bridge will be done entirely using TxDOT standards. The bridge will be designed to 

clear the 100-year flood with max 12” overtopping. The approach roadway will be designed 

to appropriate geometrics, but will not be designed to improve the existing hydraulic 

characteristics of the roadway. For this scope of services, Atkins assumes that the new creek 

crossing will be slightly upstream of the existing location and that proposed ROW will be 

obtained from the west side of the project, maintaining the existing east ROW line. It is also 

intended that this portion of Weiss Lane will be closed for construction. 
 
Professional services will be provided by Atkins to produce preliminary plan 

documents and final plans, specifications, and estimates (PS&E) for the new structure and 

connecting roadways. These services generally will include hydrologic and hydraulic 

analysis and design; preparing construction documents and cost estimates; traffic control 

detour signing plans; assistance with identification of existing utilities in conflict; 

revising the environmental assessment; and assistance with bidding phase services. 

 
Services to be provided by Travis County will include topographic surveying, preparation 

of easement and ROW documents, geotechnical engineering (drilling and testing of 

geotechnical borings, pavement design, bridge foundation shaft length, slope stability, sieve 

analysis of creek bottom material in two locations for scour analysis), and environmental 

permitting if necessary. 
 

II. Scope of Services 

 
Services will be provided by Atkins as five specific work products and/or support 

services, each with a separate fee and each requiring a separate “Notice to Proceed” from 

Travis County (the County). The scope of work for each Work Product is described in 

more detail below. Each Work Product will be submitted to the County for review and 

comment. The review process will consist of submitting two sets of the plans (11x17), 

estimates of probable construction costs, and specifications when required. Each 

submittal will include a cover letter stating who from the design team performed a 

Quality Assurance/Quality Control Check. Upon addressing the County’s comments, 

Atkins will submit two final check sets if required for the County to review and provide 

written comments and/or approval. 
 

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Weiss Lane over Wilbarger Creek 

Scope of Work 
Page 3 
ofof88  88  
88 
 

09/05/14  

 
A. Work Product 1 – 30% Design: The 30% design phase will include a traffic 

control concept, coordination with the County’s topographic survey and 

geotechnical investigation, a preliminary revised environmental assessment, and 

30% design documents and estimate.  The scope of services to be included in Work 

Product 1 is as follows: 
 

1. Attend one kickoff meeting with the County and design team. 
 

2. Perform one site visit to perform field reconnaissance for design 

issues, existing utilities, and to verify survey data. 
 

3. Coordinate with County Topographic Survey – Assist in developing 

scope and limits of additional topographic and boundary survey needed due 

to the increased project length and width. 
 

4. Coordinate with County Geotechnical Investigation – Assist in scope 

and location of geotechnical borings needed for proposed structure if 

required due to the location of the new bridge shifting to the west of the 

existing bridge. 
 

5. Revise the environmental assessment prepared previously. 
 

6. Identify and contact existing utilities located in the project area to 

provide an updated project layout and cross sections. This will be necessary 

due to the increased project length, shifting of the propsed center line to the 

west and a greater area of impact than was originally communicated to the 

utility companies. 
 

7. Include the temporary traffic control plan concept for closing the road 

during construction that was developed during the initial design. 
 

8. Perform hydrologic and hydraulic analyses of the existing and 

proposed drainage crossing with new topographic survey data to be 

provided by the County. Refine proposed drainage structure opening 

design based on model. 
 

9. Attend one (1) meeting with the County to present and review the 

results of the hydraulic analysis. 
 

10. Based on  the conclusion  from  the meeting described  in  item  8, 

develop 30% plans to include the following: 
 

a) Cover sheet indicating project name and number; site location; 

project limits; names and signature blocks; symbology legend; and 

proposed index of drawings to be included in the plan set. 
 

b) Typical sections showing proposed and existing conditions. 
 

 

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Weiss Lane over Wilbarger Creek 

Scope of Work 
Page 4 
ofof88  88  
88 
 

09/05/14  

 

c) Plan and profile sheets showing existing conditions and 

proposed type and location of structure; 
 

d) Cross-sections for roadways showing existing ground conditions 

and proposed conditions based upon preliminary alignments and 

typical sections; 
 

e) Identification of limits of construction and properties that could be 

affected by the proposed construction; 

 

f) Identification of existing utilities that could be affected by the 

proposed increased construction limits; 
 

11. Develop Engineer’s estimate of construction cost for 30% design. 

Unit prices to be based on current TxDOT average low bid unit prices or 

unit prices provided by the County from recent bids on similar projects. 
 

12. Perform QA/QC review per Travis County requirements. 
 

13. Provide monthly progress reports and updated project schedules. 
 

B. Work Product 2 – 60% Design: The 60% design phase will include ongoing 

utility coordination and preparation of 60% design documents. The scope of 

services to be included in Work Product 2 is as follows: 
 

1. Provide utility coordination of existing utilities affected by the 

project. Coordination will include coordination of project schedule, 

providing utility companies with proposed bridge project design 

information, and performing cursory reviews of utility relocation design 

information provided by affected utility companies to prevent 

conflicting improvements. Performance of actual design, bidding, and 

construction phase services of utility relocations will be considered 

Additional Services. 
 

2. Finalize hydraulic design of selected drainage structure. 
 

3. Develop 60% plans to include the following: 
 

a) Updates to drawings included in the 30% plan submittal. 

 

b) Bridge layout sheet and details. 
 

c) Temporary traffic control plan and details. 
 

d) Miscellaneous roadway and drainage details. 
 

e) Temporary erosion and sedimentation control plan. 
 

 

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Weiss Lane over Wilbarger Creek 

Scope of Work 
Page 5 
ofof88  88  
88 
 

09/05/14  

 

f) Drainage Area Map and drainage calculations. 
 

4. Develop Engineer’s estimate of construction cost for 60% design. 

Unit prices to be based on current TxDOT average low bid unit prices or 

unit prices provided by the County from recent bids on similar projects. 
 

5. Perform QA/QC review per Travis County requirements. 

6. Complete the revised environmental assessment and provide a summary 

letter of the findings. 
 

7. Provide monthly progress reports and updated project schedules. 
 

C. Work Product 3 – 90% Design: The 90% design phase will include ongoing 

utility coordination and preparation of 90% design documents. The scope of 

services to be included in Work Product 3 is as follows: 
 
 

1. Provide utility coordination of existing utilities affected by the 

project. Coordination will include coordination of project schedule, 

providing utility companies with proposed bridge project design 

information, and performing cursory reviews of utility relocation design 

information provided by affected utility companies to prevent 

conflicting improvements. Performance of actual design, bidding, and 

construction phase services of utility relocations will be considered 

Additional Services. 
 

2. Finalize hydraulic design of selected drainage structure. 
 

3. Develop 90% plans to include the following: 
 

a) Updates to drawings included in the 60% plan submittal. 

 

b) Bridge layout sheet and details. 
 

c) Temporary traffic control plan and details. 
 

d) Miscellaneous roadway and drainage details. 
 

e) Temporary erosion and sedimentation control plan. 
 

f) Drainage Area Map and drainage calculations. 
 

4. Develop Engineer’s estimate of construction cost for 90% design. 

Unit prices to be based on current TxDOT average low bid unit prices or 

unit prices provided by the County from recent bids on similar projects. 
 

5. Perform QA/QC review per Travis County requirements. 
 

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Weiss Lane over Wilbarger Creek 

Scope of Work 
Page 6 
ofof88  88  
88 
 

09/05/14  

6. Provide monthly progress reports and updated project schedules. 

 

D. Work Product 4 – 100% Design: The 100% design phase will include utility 

coordination and 100% contract documents. The scope of services to be included in 

Work Product 4 is as follows: 
 

1. Finalize coordination of existing utilities affected by the project. 
 

2. Develop 100% plans incorporating previous review comments, 

utility coordination information, proposed easements, and final 

permitting information. 
 

3. Provide Special Specifications and Special Provisions. Prepare bid 

items and quantities for the Bid Form. 
 

4. Develop Engineer’s estimate of construction cost for 100% design. 

Unit prices to be based on current TxDOT average low bid unit prices or 

unit prices provided by the County from recent bids on similar projects. 
 

5. Perform QA/QC review per Travis County requirements. 
 

6. Provide progress report and updated project schedule. 
 

E. Work Product 5 – Bidding Phase: Provide bidding support services including 

assistance with responding to bidder questions, preparing addenda, tabulating and 

evaluating bids, and providing recommendation for award. 
 

 
III. Deliverables: 

 
A. For each Work Product, two hardcopies of plans (11x17 size sheets), one 

electronic PDF copy of plans, Engineer’s Opinion of Construction Costs, and 

updated project schedule. 
 

B. For Work Product 4, one electronic copy of special specifications, special 

provisions, and bid form. 
 

 
IV. Time of Completion 

 

The estimated time of completion for Work Products 1 through 4 is 8 months from the 

date of notice to proceed. The estimated time of completion includes two weeks of 

review time by the County for each of the Work Products 1 through 4. Atkins will 

provide the County with a detailed schedule by task at the project kick-off meeting. The 

project schedule will be updated on a monthly basis and provided to the County (MS 

Project format). The estimated time of completion for each Work Product, excluding 

County review time, is shown below: 
 

 
 

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Weiss Lane over Wilbarger Creek 

Scope of Work 
Page 7 
ofof88  88  
88 
 

09/05/14  

Work Product Schedule 

Work Product 1 
Work Product 2 

Work Product 3 

Work Product 4 

60 calendar days 
60 calendar days 

30 calendar days 

30 calendar days 
 

 
V. Services to be Provided by Travis County 

 
In conjunction with the services to be provided by Atkins, the County shall provide the 

following: 
 
 

A. A Project Manager to serve as the primary point of contact for Atkins. 
 

B. Topographic surveying, right-of-way boundary survey, and easement 

document preparation. 
 

C. Geotechnical site investigation including borings and lab work as required for 

bridge foundation and pavement design. 
 

D. Environmental Document preparation and permitting if necessary. 
 

E. Documents available to the County and applicable as background information 

in performance of the Contract, when requested by Atkins. 
 

F. Timely reviews of documents, reports, drawings, etc. 
 

G. Conducting, coordination and notification distribution of  public  meetings  

and  public hearings if necessary. 

 
VI. Additional Services 

 
The following services are not included in the above Scope of Services but can be 

provided by Atkins if necessary upon approval and written “Notice to Proceed” from the 

County. 
 
 

A. Conduct agency coordination, environmental document preparation or 

permitting.   

 

B. Preparation of ROW acquisition products. 
 

C. Preparation of temporary easement exhibits. 
 

D. Preparation and attendance of public or neighborhood meetings. 
 

E. Project meetings requested by the Owner other than those included in Section 

II, Scope of Services. 
 

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Weiss Lane over Wilbarger Creek 

Scope of Work 
Page 8 
ofof88  88  
88 
 

09/05/14  

F. Preparation and processing of FEMA Letter of Map Change applications. 
 

G. Preparation of a Drainage Report. 
 

H. Preparation and processing of City of Austin Site Development Permit 

application or submittal. 
 

I. Design, Bidding, or Construction Phase Services for relocation of existing 

utilities. 
 

J. Structural designs other than TxDOT standards. 

 
VII. Compensation 

Atkins will provide the Basic Services Work Products described above for the following 

fixed fee amounts to be invoiced monthly: 

 
Work Product Basic Services Fixed Fee 

1 – 30% Design Phase $32,858.70 
 

 
      Less Remaining $0.00 

1 – Supplemental Amount $32,858.70 

  

2 – 60% Design Phase $43,404.82 
       Less Remaining $10,697.24 

2 – Supplemental Amount $32,707.58 
   

3 – 90% Design Phase $21,444.91 
       Less Remaining $18,389.17 

3 – Supplemental Amount $3,055.74 
   

4 – 100% Design Phase $8,459.95 
       Less Remaining $8,736.01 

4 – Supplemental Amount -$276.06 
   

5 – Bidding Phase $3,343.76 
               Less Remaining $786.00 

5 – Supplemental Amount $2,557.76 
   

Total Supplemental Fixed Fee for 
 

$70,903.72 
 

$93,340.46 
 

          Basic Services  

  
 

Atkins will be reimbursed for non-labor expenses incurred in the performance of the 

Basic Services for $1,335.32 less the remaining of $772.54 for a total supplemental 

amount not to exceed $562.78. 

 

The Total Supplemental Agreement Fixed Fee is $71,466.50.  

 

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Funds Reservation 300000880
General Data

Document type FC

Company code 1000

FM area 1000

Controlling area 1000

Document type 030

Document date 09/27/2013

Posting date 09/27/2013

Currency USD/ 1.00000 

Statistics

Entered by LOPEZI

Last changed by ROMEROJ1

Created on 09/27/2013

Last changed 09/08/2014

More Data

Text Weiss Ln. Bridge

Reference

Overall Amount              91,106.89  USD

Document item 001

Commitment item 522040

Fund 4036

Cost center 1490190000

Vendor

Funds center 1490190000

G/L account 522040

Due on

Customer

Text Weiss Ln. Bridg

Amount            35,743.89  USD

Document item 002

Commitment item 522040

Fund 4086

Cost center 1490190000

Vendor

Funds center 1490190000

G/L account 522040

Due on

Customer

Text WEISS LN BRIDGE-DESIGN

Amount            55,363.00  USD

Earmarked fund 300000880 printed on 10/22/2014/15:03:52 Side 1 of 1

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



4IOJWECATION OF CONTRACT NUMBER: 4400001642 Weiss Lane BrIdge #229lmDrovementsProject
.

PAGE 1 OF 6 PAGES
ISSUED BY: PURCHASING OFFICE PURCHASING AGENT ASST: Jesui Angel Gómez • DATE PREPARED:

700 Lavaca, Suite 800 TEL NO: (512) 854-9700 October 30 2014AUSTIN, TX 78701 FAXNO: (512) 854-9185

ISSUED TO: MODIFICATION NO.: EXECUTED DATE OF ORIGINAL
Atkins North America Inc. CONTRACT:
Attn: Rob Bailey, P.E. 2 17 20136504 BrIdge Point Parkway, Suite 200
Austin, Texas 78730 .

ORIGINAL CONTRACTTERM DATES Januirv 13 2014 -Throufh CoinDletlon CURRENT CONTKACFThRM DATES Januirv 13 2014 -TbyputhCirilhLi.i
. : ;

FOR TRAVIS COUNTY INFERNAL USE ONLY: . ‘

Ongmal Contract Amount $99 846 80 Current Modified Amount $111 3 13 30- - --
DESCRIPTION OF CHANGES: The above referenced contract is modified to reflect the chang as set foith below:

A. Reference Appendix A, “Scope of Services,” which is hereby deleted inks entirety and replaced with the attached “Appendix
A - Revised Scope of Services,” attached as pages 2-6 of this modification. As a result, Exhibit 1, “Compensation for
Professional Services and Schedule ofPayments,” is modified as follows:

1. Reference Exhibit 1, Section 1, “Compensation for Basic Services,” Paragraph 1.1: The fixed fee for Basic Services is
changed from $98,991 .48 to $169,895.20, an increase of $70,903.72. As a result Exhibit 1, Section 1 .1 .1, phases (i) (v)
are modified as follows:

a. Work Product 1 — (30%) Design Phase is changed from $36,816.93 to $69,675.63, an increase of $32,858.70.
b. Work Product 2 — (60%) Design Phase is changed from $34,263.25 to $66,970.83, an increase of $32,707.58.
C. Work Product 3 — (90%) Design Phase is changed from $18,389.17 to $21,444.91, an increase of$3,055.74;
d Work Product 4 — (100%) Design Phase is changed from $8,736.01 to $8,459.95, a decrease of $276.06.
e. Work Product 5 — Bidding Phase is changed from $786.00 to $3,343.76, an increase of$2,557.76.

2. Reference Exhibit 1, Section 4, “Reimbursable Expenses,” Not-to-Exceed Reimbursable Total amount is changed from
$855.32 to $1,418.10, an increase of$562.78.

3. Reference Exhibit 1, Section 5, “Total Agreement Sum,” Compensation for Basic Services fixed fee, is changed from
$98,991.48 to $169,895.20, an increase of $70,903.72, and NTE Reimbursable Expenses is changed from $855.32 to
$1,418.10, an increase of $562.78. The “Total Agreement Sum” is changed from $99,846.80 to $171,313.30, an increase
of $71,466.50.

Except as provided herdn, all terms, conditions, and provisions ofibe document referenced above as heretofore modified, remain unchanged and in full force and
effect. .L!I;. .!J_J’. ..

-

Note to Vendor: ‘
- . .. : : ‘ :, - . ..- - -

lxxxi Complete and execute (slgn)your portion ofthe signature blocksecifon below for all copies and return all signed copies toTravia County
( I DO NOT execute and return to Travis County Retain for your records. -

LEGAL BUSINESS NA)I)’ 7’44 /2/tTV! Ø€’rfç ,
D DBA

BY: - .

RPORAT1ON

SIGNATURE I-’- j D OTHER

BY: /(—7 £;%
PRINTNAME F •

DATE:

TifLE: /%1S Mçr ///7
ifs DUk AUWbRIZED AGtNT

TRAVIS COUN’J TEXAS (7 DATE:

BY:’øf •i v•64Q____ I
CYD . G C.P.M., TRAVIS cOUNTY PURCHASING AGENT 11 / )

TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS , - .
- DATE: “

BY:_____________________________________________________________
SAMUEL T. BISCOE, TRAVIS COUNTY JUDGE

COPYCreated 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Contract No. 4400001642
Modification No.2

Page 2 of 6
APPENDIX A

REVISED SCOPE OFSERVICES

I. Project Summary

Weiss Lane Bridge is currently a functionally obsolete one-lane bridge over the South Fork of Wilbarger Creek. Previous
design services performed by Atkins North America, Inc. (“Consultant” or “Atkins”) under this Professional Services
Agreement accommodated the replacement of the existing bridge with a new 2 lane bridge (no shoulders) on the existingalignment and within the existing ROW. This design was progressed to 60% completion. It has been determined thai theproposed bridge should be wide enough to accommodate shoulders as well as two lanes of traffic. This will necessitate theredesign of the Project, shifting the proposed centerline alignment to the west and will require the acquisition of ROW onthe west side of the Project. In addition, Travis County has again deteniñned that Consultant is the firm most highly
qualified to perform the additional design services in accordance with the revised Project scope set foith in this Appendix A.

The re-design of this Project will consist of the design for the replacement of the bridge with a new two-lane, pre-cast
concrete bridge with shoulders. The structural design ofthe bridge will be carried out entirely using TXDOT standards. Thebridge will be designed to clear the 100-year flood with max 12” overtopping. The approach roadway will be designed toappropriate geometrics, but will not be designed to improve the existing hydraulic characteristics of the roadway. For thisScope of Services, Atkins assumes that the new creek crossing will be slightly upstream of the existing location and that
proposed ROW will be obtained from the west side ofthe Project, maintaining the existing east ROW line. It is also intended
that this portion ofWeiss Lane will be closed for construction.

Professional services wifi be provided by Atkins to produce preliminary pian documents and final plans, specifications,
and estimates (PS&E) for the new structure and connecting roadways. These services generally will include hydrologic and
hydraulic analysis and design preparing constmction documents and cost estimates; traffic control detour signing plans;
assistance with identification of existing utilities in conflict; revising the environmental assessment and assistance with
bidding phase services.

Services to be provided by Travis County will include topographic surveying, preparation ofeasement and ROW documents,
geotechnical engineering (drilling and testing of geotechnical borings, pavement design, bridge foundation shaft length, slope
stability, sieve analysis of creek bottom material in two locations for scour analysis), and environmental permitting if
necessary.

H. Scope ofServices

Services will be provided by Atkins as five specific work products and associated support services, each with a separate
fee and each requiring a separate “Notice to Proceed” from Travis County. The scope of work for each Work Product is
described in more detail below. Each Work Product will be submitted to the County for review and comment. The rview
process will• consist of submitting two sets of the plans (1 1x17), estimates of probable construction costs, and
specifications when required. Each submittal will include a cover letter stating who from the design team performed a
Quality Assurance/Quality Control Check. Upon addressing the County’s comments, Atkins will submit two final check
sets ifrequired for the County to review and provide written comments and/or approval.

A. Work Product 1 — 30% Design: The 30% design phase will include a traffic control concept, coordination
with the County’s topographic survey and geotechnical investigation, a preliminary revised environmental
assessment, and 30% design documents and estimate. The scope of services to be included in Work Product 1 is
as follows:

1. Attend one kickoffmeeting with the County and design team.

2. Perform one site visit to perform field reconnaissance for design issues and existing utilities, and
to verify survey data.

I , 3. Coordinate with County Topographic Survey - Assist in developing scope and limits of additional
topographic and boundary survey needed due to the mcreased Project length and width

COPYCreated 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Contract No. 4400001642
Modification No.2

Page 3 of 6
4. Coordinate with County Geotechnical Investigation - Assist in scope and location of geotechnical
borings needed for proposed structure if required due to the location ofthe new bridge shifting to the west
ofthe existing bridge.

5. Revise the environmental assessment prepared previously.

6. Identify and contact existing utilities located in the Project area to provide an updated Project layout and
cross sections. This will be necessary due to the increased Project length, shifting of the propsed center line
to the west, and a greater area ofimpact than was orinally communicated to the utility companies.

7. Include the temporary traffic control plan concept for closing the road during construction that was
developed during the initial design.

8. Perform hydrologic and hydraulic analyses of the existing and proposed drainage crossing with
new topographicf survey data to be provided by the County. Refine proposed drainage structure
opening design based on model.

9. Attend one (1) meeting with the County to present and review the results of the hydraulic analysis.

10. Based on the conclusion from the meeting described in item 8, develop 30% plans to include the
following:

, , . -.

a) Cover sheet indicating Project name and number; site locaüon P roject limits; names and;.f . signature blocks; symbology legend and proposed index ofdrawings to be included in the plan set.

:: •

b) Typical sections showing proposed and existing conditions.

c) Plan and profile sheets showing existing conditions and proposed type and location of
structure;

d) Cross-sections for roadways showing existing ground conditions and proposed conditions
based upon preliminary alignments and typical sections;

:

e) Identification oflimits ofconstniction and properties that could be affected by the proposed
. : . construction

. f) Identification of existing utilities that could be affected by the proposed increased construction
limits;

1 1. Develop engineer’s estimate of construction cost for 30% design. Unit prices to be based on
current TXDOT average low bid unit prices or unit prices provided by the County from recent bids on
similar projects.

12. Perform QA/QC review per Travis County requirements.

13. Provide monthlyprogress reports and updated Project schedules.

B. Work Product 2 — 60% Design: The 60% design phase will include ongoing utility coordination and
preparation of 60% design documents. The scope of services to be included in Work Product 2 is as follows:

1. Provide utility coordination of existing utilities affected by the P roject. Coordination will include
coordination of P roject schedule, providing utility companies with proposed bridge P rojeet design
information, and performing cursory reviews of utility relocation design infonnation provided by
affected utility companies to prevent conflicting improvements. Performance of actual design, bidding,
and construction phase services of utility relocations, if requested by the County, will be considered
Additional Services.

COPYCreated 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



.

ContractNo. 4400001642
Modification No.2

.

Page4of6

2. Finalize hydraulic design ofselected drainage structure.

3. Develop 60% plans to include the following:

a) Updates to drawings included in the 30% plan submittal.

b) Bridge layout sheet and details.

c) Temporary traffic controlpian and details.

d) Miscellaneous roadway and drainage details.

e) Temporiry erosion and sedimentation control plan.

f) Drainage Area Map and drainage calculafions.

4. Develop engineer’s estimate of cxnstmction cost for 60% design. Unit prices to be based on
current TXDOT average low bid unit prices or unit prices provided by the County from recent bids on
similar projects.

5. Perform QA/QC review per Travis County requirements.
6.

Complete the revised environmental assessment and provide a summary letter ofthe findings.

7. Provide monthlyprogress reports and updated Project schedules.

C. Work Product 3 — 90% Design: The 90% design phase will include ongoing utility coordination and
preparation of 90% design documents. The scope of services to be included in Work Product 3 is as follows:

1. Provide utility coordination of existing utilities affected by the Project. Coordination will include
coordination of P rqject schedule, providing utility companies with proposed bridge P roject design
information, and performing cursory reviews of utility relocation design information provided by
affected utility companies to prevent conflicting improvements. Performance of actual design, bidding,
and construction phase services ofutihty relocations will be considered Additional Services.

2. Finalize hydraulic design ofselected drainage structure. •

:

3.
Develop 90% plans to include the following:

a) Updates to drawings included in the 60% plan submittal.

b) Bridge layout sheet and details.

c) Temporary traffic control plan and details.

d) Miscellaneous roadway and drainage details.

e) Temporary erosion and sedimentation control plan.

f) Drainage Area Map and drainage calculafions.

4. Develop engineer’s estimate of construction cost for 90% design. Unit prices to be based on
culTent TXDOT average low bid unit prices or unit prices provided by the County from recent bids on
similar projects.

.

:: ; /P:

:

COPYCreated 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Contract No. 4400001642
Modification No. 2

Page 5 of 6
5. Perform QA/QC review per Travis County requirements.

6. Provide monthlyprogress reports and updated Project schedules.

D. Work Product 4 — 100% Design: The 100% design phase will include utility coordination and 100% contract
documents. The scope of services to be included in Work Product 4 is as follows:

I . Finalize coordination ofexisting utilities affected by the Project.

. 2. Develop 100% plans incorporating previous review comments, utility coordination information,
proposed easements, and final permittingmformation

3 Provide Special Specifications and Special Provisions Prepare bid items and quantities for the Bid
Form

!

t
4 Develop engineer’s estimate of construction cost for 100% design. Umt pnces to be based on
cuiTent TXDOT average low bid unit pnces or unit pnces provided by the County from recent bids on

. .‘

similar projects.

. . : • •

5. Perform QA/QC review perTravis County requirements.

6. Provide progress report and updated Project schedule.

E. Work Product 5 — Bidding Phase: Provide bidding support services including assistance with responding to
bidder questions, preparing addenda, tabulating and evaluating bids, and providing recommendation for award.

ilL Deliverables:

A. For each Work Product, two hardcopies of plans (1 1x17 size sheets), one electronic PDF copy of plans,
e ngineer’s Opinion of Construction Costs, and updated Project schedule.

B. For Work Product 4, oze electronic copy of special specifications, special provisions, and bid form. : ‘

lv. Time ofCompleffon

The estimated time of completion for Work Products 1 through 4 is eight (8) months from the date of issuance of the first
Notice to Proceed. This estimated time of completion includes two weeks of review time by the County for each of the
Work Products 1 through 4. Atkins will pmvide the County with a detailed schedule by task at the Project kick-off
meeting. The Project schedule will be updated on a monthly basis and provided to the County (MS Project format). The
estimated time ofcompletion for each Work Product, excluding County review time, is shown below:

WorkProduct Schedule
Work Product 1 60 calendar days
Work Product 2 60 calendar days
Work Product 3 30 calendar days
Work Product 4 30 calendar days

COPYCreated 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Contract No. 4400001642
Modification No.2

Page 6 of 6
V. Services to be Provided by Travis County

In conjunction with the services to be provided by Atkins, the County shall provide the following:

A. A Project Manager to serve as the primary point ofeontact for Atkins.

B. Topographic surveying, right-of..way boundary survey, and easement documentpreparation.

C. Geotechnical site investigation, including borings and lab work as required for bridge foundation and
pavement design.

D Environmental document preparation and permittmg ifnecessary

E. Documents available to the County and applicable as background information in performance ofthis ::..
Professional Services Agreement, when requested by Atkins. . .

F. Timely reviews ofdocuments, reports, drawings, etc.

G. Conducting, coordinating and distributing notice of public meetings and public hearings ifnecessary.

VI. AddiffonaISer’4ces

The following services are not included in the above Scope of Services but may be provided by Atkins if requested by
County upon approval and written “Notice to Proceed” from the County.

A. Conduct agency coordination, environmental document preparation permitting tasks not included in the above
Scope of Services sections.

B. Preparation ofROW acquisition products.

C. Preparation oftemporary easement exhibits.

D. Preparation and attendance of public or neighborhood meetings.

E. Project meetingsrequested by the Owner other than those included in Section II, Scope of Services.

F. Preparation and processing ofFEMA Letter ofMap Change applications.

G. Preparation ofa Drainage Repoit

H. Preparation and processing of City of Austin Site Development Permit application or submittal.

I. Design, Bidding, or Construction Phase Services for relocation of existing utilities.

3. Structural designs other than TXDOT standards.

END OF MODIFICATION

— — 5

‘-•“‘-‘
.::

4: .

COPYCreated 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



ID #11855 
 
AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to agenda@co.travis.tx.us by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. for the next week's meeting. 
 

 
 
Meeting Date: November 18, 2014 
Prepared By/Phone Number: Jesus Angel Gómez/512-854-1187; Marvin 
Brice, CPPB, Assistant Purchasing Agent/512-854-9765 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Cyd Grimes, C.P.M., CPPO 
Commissioners Court Sponsor: Judge Samuel T. Biscoe 
 

Agenda Language: APPROVE MODIFICATION NO. 4, AN ASSIGNMENT 
OF CONTRACT NO. 4400007999 (H.T.E.CONTRACT NO. PS100196DW), 
TO BURKES SUPERVISED LIVING CENTER. 

 Purchasing Recommendation and Comments:  Purchasing concurs 
with department and recommends approval of requested action. This 
procurement action meets the compliance requirements as outlined by 
the statutes. 
 

 Burkes Supervised Living Center entered into a written Contract to 
provide temporary emergency residential housing services on May 25, 
2010. 
 
Modification No. 4 is an assignment of the Contract 4400007999 
H.T.E.PS100196DW from Burkes Supervised Living Center, Tax ID No. 
45-666989, to Burkes Supervised Living Center, Tax ID No. 74-
2425479.   Burkes Supervised Living Center, Tax ID 74-2425479, 
accepts such assignment, and assumes and is bound by and shall 
perform all terms, conditions, covenants, obligations, and duties.  
 
Modification No. 3 included Section 3.12 “Notification of Violation” to the 
contract. 
 
Modification No. 2 included Attachment F, “Adult Probation Scope of 
Services,” and added the unit of rate for services provided to referrals.  
 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Item 26Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



ID #11855 
 
AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to agenda@co.travis.tx.us by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. for the next week's meeting. 
 

Modification No. 1 included Section 3.1.1, allowing the County to refer 
clients for services as it deems appropriate, regardless of whether the 
clients are participants in programs named in this Contract.  
 

 Contract Expenditures: Within the last 12 months $19,015.00 has 
been spent against this contract/requirement. 

 

 Contract-Related Information: 

Award Amount: As Needed  Agreement 
Contract Type: Professional Services Agreement  
Contract Period: May 25, 2010 – Until Terminated  

 Contract Modification Information: 

Modification Amount:  N/A  
Modification Type:    Bilateral 
Modification Period:  Effective date: November 18, 2014 

 
 Funding Information:  N/A 

  SAP Shopping Cart #: 
  Funding Account(s):  
  Comments: Funding not impacted by modification. 

 
 

 
 
 

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



MODIFICATION OF CONTRACT NUMBER: 4400007999 H.T.E.PS100196DW- PAGE 1 OF 2 PAGES

Temporary Emeriency Residential Housing Services
ISSUED BY: PURCHASING OFFICE PURCHASING AGENT ASST: David Waich DATE PREPARED:

P.O. Box 1748 TEL. NO: (512) 854-9700 October 17, 2014AUSTIN, TX 78767 FAX NO: (512) 854-9185

ISSUED TO: MODIFICATION NO.: EXECUTED DATE OF ORIGINAL
Burkes Supervised Living Center 4 CONTRACT:

2612 Wheless Lane May 25, 2010
Austin, Texas 78723

Attn: Toni Taylor

ORIGINAL CONTRACT TERM DATES: 05/25/10 - 09/30/10 CURRENT CONTRACT TERM DATES: (auto-renew)

FOR TRAVIS COUNTY INTERNAL USE ONLY:
Original Contract Amount: As-Needed Contract Current Modified Amount $ As-Needed Contract.

DESCRIPTION OF CHANGES:

1 . The current contract will be assigned as it is written on page 2 of this modification and all correspondence
and payments references will be modified to read:

Burkes Supervised Living Center
2612 Wheless Lane
Austin, Texas 78723

Except as provided herein, all terms, conditions, and provisions of the document referenced above as heretofore modified, remain unchanged
and in full force and effect.

Note to Vendoi(k

lxi Complete and execute (sign) your portion of the signature block section below for afl copies and return all signed copies to Travis County
I I DO NOT execute and return to Travis County Retain for your records

LEGAL BUSINS NAME:4 . ‘
XDBA

,- ( c 19’ 1 ,#
CORPORATIONBY

OTHER

BY:
<‘N?4/

/Ayfl&
DATE:

TFFLE: j>J;v %5i
ITS DULY AUThORIZED AGENT .

TRAVIS COUNTY, TE DATE:

BY: ( 0 io/3i1 I
CYD 1. GRIMES, C.P.14 CPPO RAVIS COUNTY PURCHASING AGENT /

TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS DATE:

BY:_______________________________________________
SAMUEL T. BISCOE, TRAVIS COUNTY JUDGE

COPY
Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



440000799 H.T.E. PS100196DW
Modification No. 4

Page 2 of 2
ASSIGNMENT OF CONTRACT

The parties to this Assignment of Contract (this “Assignment”) are Burkes Supervised Living Center, Tax ID # 45-666989, a corporation duly
authorized and operating under the laws of the State of Texas (“Assignor”), and Burkes Supervised Living Center, Tax ID # 74-2425479, a
corporation duly authorized and operating under the laws ofthe State ofTexas (“Assignee”).

RECITALS:
A. Travis County and Burkes Supervised Living Center entered into a written Contract for the provision of temporary emergency

residential housing for citizens of Travis County (Contract No. 440000799 H.T.E. PS100196DW) on May 25, 2010, which is
hereby incorporated by reference herein for all purposes as iffully copied and set forth herein at length, (the “Contract”); and

B. Assignor desires by this Assignment to assign all of its right, title and interest in and to the Contract to Assignee subject to the
terms of the Contract and this Assignment.

TERMS: In consideration of the mutual agreements set forth in this Assignment, and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and
sufficiency ofwhich are hereby acknowledged, the parties agree as follows:

1 . Assignor assigns, transfers and conveys to Assignee all of its right, title and interest in and to the Contract effective as October
17, 2014 (the “Effective Date of Assignment”).

2. Assignee accepts such assignment, and assumes and is bound by and shall perform all terms, conditions, covenants, obligations,
and duties ofAssignor under the Contract as ofthe Effective Date of Assignment.

3. Assignor and Assignee acknowledge that nothing in this Assignment waives or modifies any ofthe provisions of the Contract.

4. The provisions of this Assignment are binding on and inure to the benefit of the heirs, representatives, successors and assigns of
the parties.

5. This Assignment shall be construed and enforced in accordance with the laws ofthe State ofTexas. Venue for any action arising
hereunder or connected herewith shall lie exclusively in Travis County, Texas.

6. All references in this Assignment to the Contract encompass the original Contract No. 440000799 H.T.E # PS100196DW.

Burkes Supervised Living Center
Tax ID # 74-2425479

____

Bfl>4%C

- V = .

_

Printed Name: ,‘J/ 7.’/n

________________________

Title&Date:

- / I -

Attest: --

__________________________________

Date: 2q___

By its signature below, Travis County signifies its consent to and approval of this Assignment.

TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS

By:

______________

Samuel T. Biscoe
Travis County Judge

Burkes Supervised Living Center
Tax ID # 45-666989

B€z&: çA
Printed Name: 1 DA) i 1
Title & Date: /6;l’€:9/l “,‘

Attest:

____

—

Date: /7 br tv

/%34I

Date:

COPY
Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



0 Q

JIJIJ. II. III) I 1 i1U1 I

Request for Taxpayer
Identification Number and ceni&atlon

-- I -I.

r-L
&ca÷A4 -

-PeiAs .#tuttpa 4juj, n

___

Oath txia flflWtoc

Q rou.punithn fle oa.,.aat. Q pnfliç, Q ñiqsaa

0 ijmiwi lôiiy eaiilany En.r lh.1 remniftan .Oocqpai4an,a flaUIMl, p.pauw.ap i -

oar i.e sewtIooh
aêlIMT*V.WtId no.) Fbquidas gene stat act&aalo$locs

__44J _____

W ltaaritIftGatCflWtflb,rf) . -.. .. ..- -.

____

u*w yourTh Ri tile qpiv1MMetaTile Th pwvtcd mutt natoli liii tnt. given co*e “I4sns” Ins aacI.sssaa.eae LI

to avoid DKIW WflhtlfrItj- ftii hRbkkmls tills Is your xxii ossuilty rambsr IWO F’Wi,’w. fcr

resident alien. sohi pruxl&or, or dtwwgfld ally, tee tie Pail kietrucUone a, pagea For other - -

flee, It ie your etnfloyer ktwd*etlon rxnrthsr II4. If you do not have a number, see flow to get a

_____ _________

TiN do page 8i

_________________________

Woe. If the sonount I. in more than One flZllS, sac the olsiton p* 4 for oiidelthae on ito.. [yer*n4L._i.niai*er _2

InflffcøUon -.
.. ..

Vi1 P41SLci4hI9I.
Undo’ panalkee otpe4wy I certify that

1. The .urnber shown on INO finn). my contot lnp5%rIdsMtItoMIon ntmib.r (or I em wehing for a number to blatndto n4, awi

2. lam not aublact to benkup wlthhddk’g beoa,aa I wit exempt tram bacloip wlttdmdng, or (b) I have not bean notified by the Internal Revenue

$erdoe flR that I urn subject to bad p-wlthholcIna a a reault of a falhwe to report all hitereat ordlvidende. or(o) the IRS has notfiad nw that tarn
no long.rsutØct in badeip wItIEoZd g, and

$ lame US ‘fan or other US patton (detbied belo%

Caifluition kiebitotca You must orase out item 2 above Wyou have been notiuled byltie IRS tnet you *r. onntfl4ectto backup wIthholdno

been you have felled to repoat all hiaset and diddende on yosrkec rebut. Fur ‘iii estate tmnseottonv1Ran 2(1000 not epply. For morteege

Inherit paid. eocfl*)on crthnkmmsi* of seined property. flon of dth ec’*tdlcna Loin Mdvktuw resnaitaatngsItwntOHA}, sod

gsrieroty, payme& euler than kdereet and ctvldende. you.as not rap*sd to aigi’ me certuloabon, but you rust provide tur oorr®t EN. See the

yaw EN, you mist ass the requaatfl toim Ilk Is
to iii). Form W-G.
DUIuNoa oW iU.S. paaoa. For fideal tax paposas. you as
conaida-ads US. pereen It you aix

• An IndMdual wholes US. dthai a US. resident San,

o A peinathip, osipastlon, nwnpsrW, or asocidon crested or

_______
______

o.inbad fri the United Stabs & inler the hive of tile tfled Sites,

* AP aa (6*—the’ a ftnlgn n41% or
• A cbmtlo toast (as dWd Iii RagaAaflons section Y)1,flQlfl

tieo nibs for toatl9a Pliltitçthpai]ittonthaut atade or

l*Islneea mine urinal Slabs we ttenwsilyraiufredto pay a wtlhhoktng

tax on alyLorelpn parties’ share of Income from much buSses.

Further, Ri certain ceeno wheat a Foam W4 ties notbeni received, a

pestrietfl Is reqiked to presimie that a partner Is a foreIgn petoon,

aid pay the wldihok*tg (a Therefore, rycu tea US. patton that Is a

perton a pertosahip conducting airade or bualneea hi the Linked

Statee, praMs Porn’ We to the pwtnemhit, to eatabiWi your 1)5.

end ifv$d idthholdktg on yotr altars of patismitip Income.

ennW4
(Rev. Onnibev 2011)

I
8

I

I
3

Give Fonn to the
raquaater. Do not
.sacIwth.ma

General Instructions’ -

Saodofl rafnfl erwin Us Internal Rsvanua Quilt tides otherwise

0.

Purpose of Form
A petton with raquked to til. en ktan’ieuoq rabin with lilt (MS must

obtahi your ant tm(payar klflflostlort nwnbw (flN) to report, tar

ecaiipb, moons paid to you rail astfl bw,e.ollorm, malgig. Interest

you paid, aoqtMflen or èendetnatt offtproperty. uwcekn

of daN, a oontdbdart.’jtu rpadfl at,

Use Fogn W-9 only If you we a US. pnm Qnoludkig e reeldent

aterO, to provids yctwoonvotllN to the patton iiedkig iç fl
requester) and when w,plotlei 1q

1. CertIfy tttet thel1N you air gMng Is coosot (or you are welling for.

riumbertobe Ia.uetQ,
2. CertIfy that you we riot atject to backup withholding, or

S. aan emiflon from baciwp wtthhoktig 11 you we aIlS, exempt

payee. If appllceb4e you are eke onrtllylng that as a LIZ. paean, your

allocable shies of any pwtnoeahlp Income from • US. vita or businsea

Is not subject to the wititioldhng tax on foreign pemnors’ shared

effectively conracted kicoma . - .. -

00 0C696fl2 IVi 11:10 C10/C/10

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE: All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to agenda@co.travis.tx.us by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. for the next week's meeting. 

 
 
Meeting Date:  November 18, 2014 
Prepared By/Phone Number:  Kent Hubbard/854-6458 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Cyd Grimes 
Commissioners Court Sponsor: Judge Biscoe 
 
Agenda Language:  PURSUANT TO TEXAS LOCAL GOVERNMENT 
CODE, SECTION 263.152(A)(1), DECLARE CERTAIN VEHICLES 
SURPLUS PROPERTY AND SELL AT PUBLIC AUCTION. 
 
 Purchasing Recommendation and Comments:  Purchasing concurs 

and recommends approval of requested action. This procurement action 
meets the compliance requirements as outlined by the statutes. 

 
TNR Fleet management and Purchasing are submitting a total of 99 
surplus vehicles and other pieces of equipment to the Court for 
authorization to sell at a public auction.   
 
Vehicle auction list attached.   
  
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Item 27Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Vehicle Auction List

Inventory 

number (TAG)

Asset 

Number 

(SAP)

Asset description Serial Number VIN
Equipment 

Number
Cap.date

Original Asset 

Purchase Price

75984 1000037 TRUCK (TRASH PACKER) INT. 4900 6X4 WHITE 1HTSHPPR1PH487285 79 2/9/1993 63628.00
91952 1000014 LOADER FRONT END  2YD 44456 44456 114 9/1/1991 36000.00
83262 1000075 TRUCK  GMC   4 1/2 TON DUMP 1GDKC34NXRJ524797 590 8/14/1986 28579.00
82843 1000181 GMC  SAFARI 1995 1GTDM19WXSB550333 916 8/28/1995 14536.00
85807 1000244 DUMP TRUCK  INTERNATIONAL 1995 1HTSHAAR4TH279658 945 5/9/1996 46714.00
83403 1000147 PICK-UP  1/2 TON  GMC 1GTEC14K6RZ559852 971 8/3/1994 11808.00
81914 1000213 LOADER  PNEUMATIC-TIRED  SKID-STEER NEW HOLLAND 878614 993 11/22/1995 26363.00
90677 1000224 ROLLER  VIBRATORY  CHAMPION 660 X100527X 994 12/5/1995 66573.00
83258 1000183 DOZER  CRAWLER W/ RIPPER DRESSER TD9H 4720001P045655 1100 9/26/1994 55913.00
81031 1000251 ROLLER  SELF-PROPELLED  FERGUSON 1424 1357 9/17/1996 40010.80
81012 1000282 MOTORGRADER CLASS II  JOHN DEERE DW570BX559607 1372 2/11/1997 110307.00
93668 1000358 DUMP TRUCK  INTERNATIONAL 12 YARDS 1HTSHAAR3WH564078 1581 3/2/1998 54424.00
96435 1000455 TRUCK  12 CUBIC YARD DUMP  INTERNATIONAL 2000 1HTSHAAR4YH237773 1755 9/23/1999 61104.00
96438 1000472 JEEP  CHEEROKEE 1999 1J4FF28S6XL672898 1777 11/10/1999 19750.00
96456 1000471 AMBULANCE; 2000 TAYLOR MADE TYPE I; INTERNATIONAL ID: 004 1HTSLAAMXYH254127 1781 3/3/2000 138100.00
100690 1000509 DUMP TRUCK  INTERNATIONAL 2001 (12YD) 1HTSHAAR01H367877 1882 9/28/2000 59025.00
100764 1000553 FOUR DOOR SEDAN  FULL SIZE  REAR WHEEL DRIVE 2FAFP71W51X178898 1962 5/30/2001 20220.00
103206 1000545 2001 FORD SEDAN  FULL SIZE  REAR WHEEL DRIVE 2FAFP71W21X177420 1987 5/21/2001 20220.00
103275 1000602 2001 FORD F-150 BI-FUELED 2FTPX18Z81CA92942 2063 8/22/2001 25609.00
103309 1000706 OFF-ROAD VEHICLE  2001 POLARIS RANGER 6X6 4XARF50A61D623880 2084 9/27/2001 11200.34
103941 1000769 2002 FORD F-350 CREW CAB 1FDSW34F22EB50538 2113 12/17/2001 72629.93
103942 1000768 2002 FORD F-350 CREW CAB 1FDSW34F02EB50537 2114 12/19/2001 72629.93
103945 1000773 SEDAN  FULL SIZE  FOUR DOOR  FRONT WHEEL DRIVE 2G1WF55K329300231 2117 4/3/2002 17090.50
103943 1000775 2002 Chevy Impala 2G1WF55K429300139 2118 4/2/2002 16688.50
103959 1000785 SEDAN  FULL SIZE  CHEVROLET IMPALA 2002 2G1WF55K229303864 2133 4/25/2002 16688.50
106371 1000825 PICKUP  2002 FORD F350 CREW CAB 7.3L V8 1FTWX32F92ED12672 2205 5/21/2002 26957.37
103329 1000900 GRADALL  EXCAVATING AND GRADING MACHINE SN0311335 2271 6/28/2002 195051.00
101501 1000615 AUTOMOBILE 2001 CHEV CAMARO 2G1FP22K512129439 2283 5/10/2001 18400.19
119513 1000984 2003 FORD CROWN VICTORIA POLICE PACKAGE 2FAFP71W83X190336 2346 3/3/2003 19994.00
119549 1001000 2003 FORD CROWN VICTORIA POLICE PACKAGE 2FAFP71W13X190341 2351 3/5/2003 19994.00
119520 1000992 2003 FORD CROWN VICTORIA POLICE PACKAGE 2FAFP71WX3X190354 2364 3/5/2003 19994.00
119553 1001005 2003 FORD EXPLORER; 4-DOOR 1FMZU72K53ZA96254 2393 4/2/2003 23287.30
119573 1001043 MOWER  TORO GROUNDSMASTER 4500-D  #30856 230000511 2408 7/30/2003 41148.37
119582 1001071 POLICE SEDAN  2004 FORD CROWN VICTORIA 2FAFP71W14X120369 2421 11/11/2003 10901.64
119589 1001075 PICKUP  2004 FORD F350 CREW CAB 1FTSW30P64EB72600 2427 12/23/2002 25585.00
119649 1001162 POLICE INTERCEPTOR  2004 FORD CROWN VICTORIA 2FAFP71W64X167591 2439 6/11/2004 19870.00
123485 1001149 POLICE INTERCEPTOR  2004 FORD CROWN VICTORIA 2FAFP71W14X167594 2461 6/11/2004 19870.00
123491 1001147 POLICE INTERCEPTOR  2004 FORD CROWN VICTORIA 2FAFP71W24X167586 2463 6/11/2004 19870.00
119600 1001092 VAN: 2004 CHEVY ASTRO  7 & 8 PASSENGER 1GNDM19X04B121155 2473 3/22/2004 17001.00
119615 1001101 2004 CHEVROLET IMPALA 2G1WF55K349376180 2489 4/19/2004 16125.00
119630 1001125 2004 FORD  15 PASSENGER  VAN 1FBSS31L54HB17260 2504 5/31/2004 18146.00
119640 1001136 2004 CHEVROLET IMPALA 2G1WF55K549450618 2516 7/7/2004 12980.62
123487 1001182 2005 FORD EXPLORER (4-DOOR) 1FMZU72K55UA24275 2531 9/14/2004 11284.50
125700 1001380 2005 FORD POLICE INTERCEPTOR 2FAFP71W35X156677 2561 8/17/2005 20162.00
125716 1001387 2005 FORD POLICE INTERCEPTOR 2FAFP71W65X156673 2572 8/17/2005 20162.00

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Vehicle Auction List

Inventory 

number (TAG)

Asset 

Number 

(SAP)

Asset description Serial Number VIN
Equipment 

Number
Cap.date

Original Asset 

Purchase Price

125734 1001442 2005 FORD POLICE INTERCEPTOR 2FAFP71W75X156682 2578 8/17/2005 20162.00
125765 1001507 2005 FORD POLICE INTERCEPTOR 2FAFP71WX6X125489 2587 8/17/2005 20162.00
123512 1001259 2005 IMPALA SEDAN; POLICE PKG 3.8L V6 2G1WF55K359349370 2594 5/9/2005 17797.25
123516 1001263 2005 IMPALA SEDAN; POLICE PKG 3.8L V6 2G1WF55K959350572 2598 5/9/2005 17797.25
123517 1001272 2005 TAHOE POLICE PKG; UPGRADE 5.3L V8 GAS 1GNEC13Z45R241633 2599 5/9/2005 28066.25
123524 1001266 2005 TAHOE POLICE PKG; UPGRADE 5.3L V8 GAS 1GNEC13Z55R241642 2606 5/9/2005 28066.25
123537 1001283 2005 FORD POLICE INTERCEPTOR 2FAFP71W95X156697 2621 5/16/2005 11287.05
123540 1001284 2005 FORD POLICE INTERCEPTOR 2FAFP71W35X156694 2623 5/26/2005 11287.05
123541 1001285 2005 FORD POLICE INTERCEPTOR 2FAFP71W05X156698 2624 6/7/2005 11287.05
123573 1001362 PERSONNEL CARRIER  TORO WORKMAN 3300 #07362 250000254 2637 6/1/2005 15420.36
123577 1001291 MOWER  TORO Z 500  #74239 250000664 2641 6/1/2005 7986.00
125694 1001373 PERSONNEL CARRIER  2005 STANDARD TIGER TRUCK LSCAA10F04A030357 2660 8/2/2005 11288.00
125742 1001454 EMS AMBULANCE  2006 INTERNATIONAL ID: 807 1HTMRAAM16H234479 2686 12/21/2005 167200.33
125810 1001587 2006 FORD POLICE INTERCEPTOR  BID SERIES BBA 2FAFP71W76X148101 2706 6/16/2006 21786.00
129166 1001623 2006 FORD POLICE INTERCEPTOR  BID SERIES BBA 2FAFP71W76X148115 2715 7/19/2006 21786.00
129167 1001621 2006 FORD POLICE INTERCEPTOR  BID SERIES BBA 2FAFP71W36X148113 2716 7/19/2006 21786.00
125780 1001538 2006 CHEVROLET SILVERADO PICK UP TRUCK  FULL SIZE 2GCEC13Z161337030 2733 5/15/2006 13820.38
129177 1001615 2006 FORD POLICE INTERCEPTOR  BID SERIES BBA 2FAFP71WX6X166494 2799 7/13/2006 10187.79
129179 1001617 2006 FORD POLICE INTERCEPTOR  BID SERIES BBA 2FAFP71W46X166488 2801 7/13/2006 10187.79
129251 1001699 2007 FORD POLICE INTERCEPTOR 2FAFP71W67X126799 2842 1/26/2007 23149.13
129196 1001708 2007 FORD POLICE INTERCEPTOR 2FAFP71W57X124557 2851 1/4/2007 22935.38
129202 1001715 2007 FORD POLICE INTERCEPTOR 2FAFP71W67X124552 2858 1/26/2007 22935.38
129204 1001716 2007 FORD POLICE INTERCEPTOR 2FAFP71W77X124558 2859 1/26/2007 22935.38
129199 1001719 2007 FORD POLICE INTERCEPTOR 2FAFP71W97X124562 2862 1/26/2007 22935.38
129207 1001720 2007 FORD POLICE INTERCEPTOR 2FAFP71W77X124561 2863 1/26/2007 22935.38
129230 1001721 2007 FORD POLICE INTERCEPTOR 2FAFP71W47X124548 2864 1/26/2007 22935.38
129232 1001726 2007 FORD POLICE INTERCEPTOR 2FAFP71W27X124578 2870 1/26/2007 22935.38
129246 1001728 2007 FORD POLICE INTERCEPTOR 2FAFP71W87X124567 2872 1/26/2007 22935.38
129241 1001729 2007 FORD POLICE INTERCEPTOR 2FAFP71W57X124574 2873 1/26/2007 22935.38
129256 1001737 2007 FORD POLICE INTERCEPTOR 2FAFP71W07X124594 2882 1/26/2007 22935.38
129254 1001739 2007 FORD POLICE INTERCEPTOR 2FAFP71W67X124549 2884 1/26/2007 22935.38
129253 1001740 2007 FORD POLICE INTERCEPTOR 2FAFP71W37X124587 2885 1/26/2007 22935.38
129261 1001743 2007 FORD POLICE INTERCEPTOR 2FAFP71W47X124579 2888 1/26/2007 22935.38
129496 1001801 2007 DODGE MAGNUM HATCHBACK  FULL SIZE  FIVE DOOR 2D8GV47287H759677 2903 5/9/2007 21816.00
129497 1001802 2007 DODGE MAGNUM HATCHBACK  FULL SIZE  FIVE DOOR 2D8GV47267H759676 2905 5/9/2007 21816.00
129611 1002020 2008 FORD F350 CREW CAB PICK UP  LONG BED  4X4 SRW 1FTWW31R78EC88427 2931 1/31/2008 31225.25
129544 1001902 2007 FORD F150 PICKUP  FULL SIZE  SERIES 864C 1FTPW12V57KC94702 2934 6/1/2007 18376.20
129266 1001791 2007 INTERNATIONAL AMBULANCE & RESCUE VEHICLE ID: D4 1HTMRAAL17H464161 2946 5/3/2007 168000.76
82247 1039369 1992 BARTH MOTORHOME 1GBKP37N3M3311647 2957 4/12/2007 0.00
129573 1001980 2007 FORD POLICE INTERCEPTOR   POLICE PACKAGE 2FAFP71W87X126819 3001 8/21/2007 10979.46
129574 1001981 2007 FORD POLICE INTERCEPTOR   POLICE PACKAGE 2FAFP71W77X123216 3003 8/21/2007 10979.46
129125 1002192 2008 FORD POLICE INTERCEPTOR  FULL SIZE 2FAFP71V28X158450 3082 9/8/2008 23788.32
129106 1002170 2008 FORD POLICE INTERCEPTOR  FULL SIZE 2FAFP71V38X158473 3083 9/19/2008 23788.32
141363 1002282 2008 FORD POLICE INTERCEPTOR  FULL SIZE 2FAFP71V08X158463 3109 9/19/2008 23788.32
129121 1002152 2008 FORD POLICE INTERCEPTOR  FULL SIZE 2FAFP71VX8X158454 3115 9/8/2008 23788.32

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Vehicle Auction List

Inventory 

number (TAG)

Asset 

Number 

(SAP)

Asset description Serial Number VIN
Equipment 

Number
Cap.date

Original Asset 

Purchase Price

129129 1002189 2008 FORD POLICE INTERCEPTOR  FULL SIZE 2FAFP71V78X158458 3121 9/8/2008 23788.32
141351 1002272 2008 FORD POLICE INTERCEPTOR  FULL SIZE 2FAFP71V68X158449 3137 9/19/2008 23788.32
141378 1002318 2008 FORD POLICE INTERCEPTOR 2FAFP71VX8X169065 3141 9/23/2008 14468.06
141372 1002316 2008 FORD POLICE INTERCEPTOR  FULL SIZE 2FAFP71V78X158475 3142 9/19/2008 23788.32
141349 1002278 2008 FORD POLICE INTERCEPTOR  FULL SIZE 2FAFP71V98X158428 3157 9/8/2008 23788.32
141380 1002339 2009 FORD EXPLORER 4 DR 1FMEU73E39UA14051 3212 12/1/2008 21833.50
141390 1002409 2009 FORD POLICE INTERCEPTOR 2FAHP71V99X118618 3214 3/9/2009 24319.32
141403 1002408 2009 FORD INTERCEPTOR 2FAHP71V39X118632 3234 3/10/2009 24340.32
141488 1002558 2009 WACKER WALK BEHIND ROLLER 5872027 3316 11/2/2009 9329.00

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to agenda@co.travis.tx.us by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. for the next week's meeting. 
 

 
 
Meeting Date: November 18, 2014 
Prepared By/Phone Number: Ashley Waffer 41181; Marvin Brice CPPB 
49765 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Cyd Grimes 
Commissioners Court Sponsor: Judge Biscoe 

Agenda Language:  Ratify Modification No. 2 to Contract No. 4400000892 
Southwest Key Programs, Inc., for Family Keys Program for Prevention 
and Intervention Program Services 
 

 Purchasing Recommendation and Comments:  Purchasing concurs 
with department and recommends approval of requested action. This 
procurement action meets the compliance requirements as outlined by 
the statutes. 

This Modification 2 is for the ratification and approval of the contract 
effective September 1, 2014.  This program is funded with grant funds 
received from the Texas Juvenile Justice Department, wherein, late 
September the County received notification that this grant was awarded 
an additional year of funding.   

Per the contract scope of services, the participants in this program must 
receive uninterrupted ongoing services for a period of three (3) months, 
so to prevent any interruption the department authorized the contractor 
to continue providing the services after the contract expiration date of 
August 31, 2014.  Prior to the contract expiration it was decided by the 
department to wait until receipt of grant award notification to have the 
contract renewed for an additional twelve (12) month period.    

Modification 1 provided for one additional renewal period of twelve (12) 
months, September 1, 2013 thru August 31, 2014, while at the same 
time ratified the contract from September 1, 2013 thru December 20, 
2013.  

This contract provides services specialized and tailored to effectively 
intervene with juveniles who are currently not on formal probation but 
have been identified as children in need of supervision and wrap around 
services. 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Item 28Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to agenda@co.travis.tx.us by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. for the next week's meeting. 
 

 Contract Expenditures: Within the last 10 months $85,183.32 has 
been spent against this contract/requirement. 

 

 Contract-Related Information: 

Award Amount:  $51,110.00     
Contract Type:  Professional Services Agreement   
Contract Period:  May 1, 2012 thru August 31, 2012  

 Contract Modification Information: 

Modification Amount:  $102,220.08   
Modification Type:  Bi-lateral     
Modification Period:  September 1, 2014 thru August 31, 2015   

 Solicitation-Related Information:  N/A 

Solicitations Sent:  Responses Received:  
HUB Information:  % HUB Subcontractor:  

 Special Contract Considerations:   

  Award has been protested; interested parties have been notified. 
  Award is not to the lowest bidder; interested parties have been 

notified. 
  Comments:   

 
 Funding Information: 

  SAP Shopping Cart #: 
  Funding Account(s):  IO#/Grant Number:  101755/800392 

           GL Number:  511130 
  Comments: 

 
 

 
 
 

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm

WafferA
Draft



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to agenda@co.travis.tx.us by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. for the next week's meeting. 
 

 
 
Meeting Date: November 18, 2014 
Prepared By/Phone Number: David Walch 46663; Marvin Brice 49765 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Cyd Grimes 
Commissioners Court Sponsor: Judge Biscoe 

Agenda Language:  Ratify Modification No. 10 to Contract No. 
4400000683, (HTE No. PS080113RE) with Encompass Medical 
Management, Inc. for Evaluation Services. 
 

 Purchasing Recommendation and Comments:  This procurement 
action meets meet the compliance requirements as outlined by the 
statutes. 

Travis County Health and Human Services and Veteran Services 
(TCHHSVS) is requesting approval of the FY2015 Renewal Modification 
No. 10 of the Encompass Medical Management contract for the 
provision of gathering and evaluating program data for the Parenting In 
Recovery (PIR) project. The data assessment is in accordance with the 
PIR Grant from the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services.   

This Modification No. 10 renews the contract an additional term from 
September 30, 2014 through September 29, 2015.  This renewal was 
previously approved on the September 30, 2014 Court Agenda, Item No. 
17 to prevent contract expiration, as it was not ready for presentation 
due to HHS & VS working with the County Attorney's office on finalizing the 
Statement of Work and awarding of the PIR Grant for this fiscal year. The 
agreement is now finalized and is being presented to the Court for 
signature.   

Modification No. 9 renewed the contract an additional term from 
September 30, 2013 through September 29, 2014.  Acceptance of the 
PIR Grant dictates the term of the contract, and thus the reason for the 
September 30th start date. The not to exceed amount is $81,800.  

Modification No. 8 renewed the contract an additional term from 
September 30, 2012 through September 30, 2013.The not to exceed 
amount for this contract is $85,000.  This renewal was previously 
approved on the September 25, 2012 Court Agenda, Item No. 35 to 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Item 29Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to agenda@co.travis.tx.us by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. for the next week's meeting. 
 

prevent contract expiration, as they were not ready for presentation due 
to HHS & VS working with the County Attorney's office on finalizing the 
Statement of Work and funding. The agreements are now finalized and are 
being presented to the Court for signature. 

Modification No. 7 renewed the agreement from September 30, 2011 
through September 29, 2012 and the not to exceed contract amount was 
$22,500; in addition to adding Attachments A – F to the contract. 

Modification No. 6 modified Exhibit 1 and increased the contract funds 
by an amount of $7,000 from $23,500 to a new contract total of $30,500. 

Modification No. 5 renewed the agreement from September 30, 2010 
through September 29, 2011 and the not to exceed contract amount was 
$23,500; in addition to adding Attachments A, C, D, E and F to the 
contract. 

Modification No. 4 renewed the agreement from September 30, 2009 
through September 29, 2010 and the not to exceed amount was 
$33,500; in addition to adding Attachment A to the contract. 

Modification No. 3 increased the contract funds from $43,500 to 
$66,500, an increase of $23,000; in addition to adding Attachment A-09 
to the contract.  

Modification No. 2 renewed the agreement from September 30, 2008 
through September 29, 2009 and the not to exceed amount was 
$43,500; in addition to adding Attachment A-09 to the contract. 

Modification No. 1 increased the contract funds from $59,000 to 
$73,000, an increase of $14,000; in addition to adding Attachment A-1 
as Exhibit 1 to the contract. 

 

 Contract Expenditures: Within the last 12 months $81,800.00 has 
been spent against this contract/requirement. 

 

 Contract-Related Information: 

Award Amount: $59,000   
Contract Type: Professional Services  
Contract Period: March 1, 2008 through September 30, 2008    

 Contract Modification Information: 

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to agenda@co.travis.tx.us by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. for the next week's meeting. 
 

Modification Amount:   $45,000.00 
Modification Type:    Bilaterial 
Modification Period:  September 30, 2014 – September 29, 2015 

 
 Funding Information: 

  SAP Shopping Cart #: 
  Funding Account(s): To be determined by TCHHS&VS. 
  Comments: The entire renewal period will be paid by the Parenting in 

Recovery grant. 
 
 

 
 
 

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



MODIFICATION OF CONTRACT NUMBER: 4400000683— (H.T.E PSO80113RE) 4400000683 Mod 10 Page 1 of 28
Evaluation Svcs

ISSUED BY: PURCHASING AGENT ASST: David Walch DATE PREPARED:
Travis County Purchasing Office TEL. NO: (512) 854-6663
P.O. Box 1748 FAX NO: (512) 854-9185 October 20, 2014
Austin, Texas 78767

ISSUED TO: MODIFICATION NO.: EXECUTED DATE OF ORIGINAL
Encompass Medical Management, Inc. CONTRACT:
8009 Dark Valley Cove 10
Austin, Texas 78737 ) March 1, 2008

ORIGINAL CONTRACT TERM DATES: March 1.2008 — September 29. 2008 CURRENT CONTRACT TERM DATES: October 1,2014— Sentember 30.2015

FOR TRAVIS COUNTY INTERNAL USE ONLY:
Original Contract Amount: $59,000.00 Current Modified Amount $45,000.00

DESCRIPTION OF ChANGES: The Contract is amended according to the terms of the attachment to this Modification (‘Attachment’), all of which is
made a part of the Contract and constitutes promised performances by the Contractor in accordance with all terms and conditions of the Contract, as
amended.

The above-referenced contract is hereby modified to reflect the following changes, as well as those more completely set forth in
the attachment:

1. Contract funds for this renewal period shall not exceed $45,000.00.
2. Section 3.3, “Attachments,” is amended by adding:

a. 2.1.1 Attachment A-201 5 “2015 Renewai Term Description of Services to be
b. Performed and Basis for Calculating Reimbursable Costs
c. 2.1.2 Attachment C-20 15 “2015 Renewal Term Public Policy Requirements”
d. 2.1.3 Attachment D-2015 “2015 Ethics Affidavit”
e. 2.1.4 Attachment E-2015 “2015 Insurance Requirements”
f. 2.1.5 Attachment F-20 15 “2015 Grant Requirements and Forms”
c-.

Except as provided herein, all terms, conditions, and provisions of the document referenced above as heretofore modified, remain unchanged and in full force and
effect.
Note to Vendor/City:

lxi Complete and execute (sign) your portion of the signature block section below for all copies and return all signed copies to Travis County.

I I DO NOT execute and return to Travis County. Retain for your records.

D DBA
LEGAL BUSINESS NAME: Encompass Medical Management, Inc.

p-CORPORATION

- D OTHER
htY

SIGNATU—.J ‘
DATE:

BY: 4AJ./..4 -7RPJ°$
PRINT NAME ///?/i

TITLE: 1’f Fi”IA-c--h9-€_ Fpj c.1z..
ITS DULY AUTHORIZED AGENT

DATE:
TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS

BY:_______________________________________________
CYD V. GRIMES, C.P.M., CPPO, TRAVIS COUNTY PURCHASING AGENT

DATE:
TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS

BY:_____________________________________________________________________
SAMUEL T. BISCOE, TRAVIS COUNTY JUDGE

fJq%sc

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



4400000683 Mod 10 Page 2 of 28

IRA VlS UJUNT ‘‘

21111i OCI 29 PH ?: flL
2015 RENEWAL AND AMENDMENT OF CONTRACT BETWEEN

TRAVISCOUNTYAND
Or ENCOMPASS MEDICAL MANAGEMENT. INC. FOR

EVALUATION SERVICES
(Parenting In Recovery Grant Funds)

This 2015 Renewal and Amendment of Contract (“2015 Renewal”) is entered into by the following Parties:
Travis County, a political subdivision of the State of Texas (“County”) and Encompass Medical
Management, Inc. (“Consultant”).

RECITALS

County and Consultant entered into an agreement to provide services for the care of indigents, for public
health education and information and/or for other authorized services (“Contract”), the Initial Term of
which began March 1, 2008, and terminated on September 29, 2008 (“Initial Term”).

Under the terms of the Contract, Consultant agreed to provide personal and professional services for the
care of indigents and other qualified recipients arid for public health education and information, in
accordance with the terms of the Contract, thus providing services which further a public purpose.

The Contract provides for renewal and/or amendment of the agreement by the written agreement of the
Parties.

The Parties have previously agreed to extend the Contract for additional one-year terms continuing through
the current term which began September 30, 2013, and continues through September 29, 2014 (“2014
Renewal Term”).

The Travis County Commissioners Court has previously approved the contract funds necessary for this
Contract and the continuation of this Contract for the 2015 Renewal Term.

The Parties desire to amend the Contract to make certain changes to the Contract and to renew the Contract
for an additional one year term.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual benefits received by these changes, and other good
and adequate consideration as specified herein, the Parties agree to amend the Contract as follows:

1.0 CONTRACT TERM

1.1 2015 Renewal Term. The Parties agree to renew the Contract for an additional one-year
term beginning September 30, 2014, and continuing through September 29, 2015 (“2015 Renewal Term”),
unless earlier terminated by the Parties pursuant to the terms of the Contract.

2.0 STATEMENT OF SERVICES TO BE PROVIDED

2.1 Attachments. The Parties agree to amend Section 3.3, “Attachments,” as to the 2015
Renewal Term by adding the following:

2.1.1 Attachment A-201 5 “2015 Renewal Term Description of Services to be
Performed and Basis for Calculating Reimbursable
Costs

2.1.2 Attachment C-20l5 “2015 Renewal Term Public Policy Requirements”

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



4400000683 Mod 10 Page 3 of 28

2.1.3 Attachment D-20 15 “2015 Ethics Affidavit”
2.1.4 Attachment E-201 5 “2015 Insurance Requirements”
2.1.5 Attachment F-20 15 “2015 Grant Requirements and Forms”

(i) Protection of Human Subjects Assurance
Identification!IRB Certification/Declaration of
Exemption (Common Rule)

(ii) Assurances - Non-Construction Programs
(iii) Disclosure of Lobbying Activities
(iv) Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension and

Other Responsibility Matters
(v) Certification Regarding Drug-Free Workplace

Requirements
(vi) Certification Regarding Environmental Tobacco

Smoke
(vii) Certification Regarding Maintenance of Effort

2.2 Exhibit 1. The above attachments are included in this 2015 Renewal as Exhibit 1, and
hereby made a part of this Contract, constituting promised performance by the Parties in accordance with
the terms of this Contract, as amended. All attachments not changed in this 2015 Renewal remain in full
force and effect.

2.3 Attachment B, “Parenting in Recovery Grant Application (“Grant”)”. The Parties
agree that Attachment B of the original Contract (Section 3.3.2) refers to the Grant application filed
annually by County for Grant activities related to this Contract. That Grant application is filed each year by
County, with the applicable terms included in this Contract by execution of this 2015 Renewal. County
will make available to Consultant a copy of the 2015 Grant application upon request.

3.0 FINANCIAL OBLIGATIONS

3.1 Maximum Funds. The Parties agree to amend Section 4.1, “Maximum Funds,” (and all
other provisions relating to the Contract Term Maximum Funds to change the Maximum Funds to the
amount set forth in this Section 3.1) by adding the following:

4.1 - 2015 - 2015 Renewal Term Maximum Funds. In consideration of full
and satisfactory performance of the services and activities provided by Consultant under
the terms of this Contract during the 2015 Renewal Term, County shall provide Contract
Funds in an amount not to exceed Forty-Five Thousand Dollars ($45,000.00) unless and
until that amount is changed by the Commissioners Court through written amendment to
this Contract. Consultant agrees that this amount is sufficient to complete the tasks agreed
to under the terms of this Contract and that Consultant will complete those tasks within
the amount specified in this Contract.

4.0 INCORPORATION

4.1 County and Consultant hereby incorporate this 2015 Renewal into the Contract, and the
Contract, into this 2015 Renewal, and hereby ratifr all terms and conditions of the Contract as amended.
The Contact, with the changes made in this 2015 Renewal constitutes the entire agreement between the
Parties and supersedes any prior undertaking or written or oral agreements or representations between the
Parties.

5.0 EFFECTWE DATE

5.1 This 2015 Renewal shall be effective September 30, 2014, when fully executed by the
Parties.

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



4400000683 Mod 10 Page 4 of 28

Encompass Medical Management, Inc. Attachment A -2015

GRANT ACTIVITY*
Contract Hourly

Hours Rate
Costs

Database Activities
Consult with Travis County IT to determine database capabilities, desired data base target, and
determine transfer path. 20 100 2,000

Consult with Travis County IT to determine web delivery capabilities, desired methods of using
the existing code set and determine transfer path. This is taking an existing code set and
determining how Travis IT will implement.
Develop and agree to detailed project and transfer plan.
Encompass will create packaging exports; Travis County IT will be responsible for
implementation and ongoing maintenance.
Data reader creation on Travis County system
The report reader will contain a fixed record set as of the date of transfer which will be after the
last upload. The reader will also report the current status of the data reflecting changes and
additions entered through the web application.
Understand Travis County data schemas, database preferences and tools
Understand Travis County web capabilities and structure for site transfer
Identify data connections and data feeds to be implemented by Travis County IT from CPS
state databases in the PIR access database for all reports
Prepare the data warehouse for transfer of the data to a secure data repository on Travis
County system with consideration of HIPAA and security compliance.
Transfer data and web application to Travis County
Consult with Travis County IT on configuration and transfer issues.
Encompass shall continue through December 2014 maintenance of the current applications
Conduct on-going security checks of data and data sources
Administration of data privacy and validity for HIPAA and confidentiality
Upload program data to federal data repositories for final report

______

ITotal

Program Evaluation Activities
Complete final cost/benefit analysis for federal and local focus 20 100 2,000
Develop final report to federal grantor with federal indicators 30 100 3,000
Develop final report to federal grantor with local indicators 30 100 3,000
Supervise research assistant and provide oversight of report development and database

10 100 1 000transfer
Total I $9,000

Research Assistant - part-time
Assist in developing final report to federal grantor 150 15 2,250
Assist in developing cost/benefit analysis report 150 15 2250

ITatal I I I 4,500 I

(.KP.r’1u 1VIAL I 45,000 I
*The amounts for each activity are estimates. The vendor can submit a budget revision request form to TCHHSVS requesting a reallocation of the budgeted
amount for one csr more activities. This request should be submitted prior to, or simultaneously with, the submission of the first billing containing the
reallocation.

30 100 3,000

10 100 1,000

30 100 3,000

15 100 1,500

35 100 3,500

35 100 3,500
30 100 3,000

6 100 600

6 100 600

16 100 1,600
25 100 2,500
25 100 2500
6 100 600
6 100 600

20 100 2,000
$31 .500

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



4400000683 Mod 10 Page 5 of 28

Attachment C —2015

2015 Renewal Term Public Policy Requirements

Acknowlediement of Federal Fundina

As required by U.S. Department of Health and Human Services (HHS) appropriations
acts, all HHS recipients must acknowledge Federal funding when issuing statements,
press releases, requests for proposals, bid invitations, and other documents describing
projects or programs funded in whole or in part with Federal funds. Recipients are
required to state (1) the percentage and dollar amounts of the total program or project
costs financed with Federal funds and (2) the percentage and dollar amount of the total
costs financed by nongovernmental sources.

Activities Abroad

HHS recipients must ensure that project activities carried on outside the United States are
coordinated as necessary with appropriate government authorities and that appropriate
licenses, permits, or approvals are obtained.

Ae Discrimination Act of 1975

The Age Discrimination Act of 1975, 42 U.S.C. 6101 et seq., prohibits discrimination on
the basis of age in any program or activity receiving Federal financial assistance. The
HHS implementing regulations are codified at 45 CFR part 91.

Civil Rights Act of 1964 (Title VI)

Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, 42 U.S.C. 2000d et seq., provides that no person
in the United States will, on the grounds of race, color, or national origin, be excluded
from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be subjected to discrimination under
any program or activity receiving Federal financial assistance. The }{HS implementing
regulations are codified at 45 CFR part 80.

Confidentiality of Patient/Client Records

Section 543 of the PHS Act, 42 U. S.C. 290dd-2, requires that records of substance abuse
patients be kept confidential except under specified circumstances and purposes. The
covered records are those that include the identity, diagnosis, prognosis, or treatment of
any patient maintained in connection with any program or activity relating to substance
abuse education, prevention, training, treatment, rehabilitation, or research that is
conducted, regulated, or directly or indirectly assisted by any department or agency of the
United States. This requirement is implemented in 42 CFR part 2.

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



4400000683 Mod 10 Page 6 of 28

Controlled Substances

Grantees are prohibited from knowingly using appropriated funds to support activities
that promote the legalization of any drug or other substance included in Schedule I of the
schedule of controlled substances established by section 202 of the Controlled Substances
Act, 21 U.S.C. 812. This limitation does not apply if the recipient notifies the GMO that
there is significant medical evidence of a therapeutic advantage to the use of such drug or
other substance or that federally sponsored clinical trials are being conducted to
determine therapeutic advantage.

If controlled substances are proposed to be administered as part of a research protocol or
if research is to be conducted on the drugs themselves, applicants/recipients must ensure
that the DEA requirements, including registration, inspection, and certification, as
applicable, are met. Regional DEA offices can supply forms and information concerning
the type of registration required for a particular substance for research use. The main
registration office in Washington, DC, may be reached at 800-882-9539. Information also
is available from the National Institute on Drug Abuse at 301-443-6300.

Education Amendments of 1972 (Title IX)

Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, 20 U.S.C. 1681, 1682, 1683, 1685, and
1686, provides that no person in the United States will, on the basis of sex, be excluded
from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be subjected to discrimination under
any educational program or activity receiving Federal financial assistance. The HHS
implementing regulations are codified at 45 CFR part 86.

Hatch Act

The Hatch Act restricts political activity of executive branch employees of the federal
government and District of Columbia government employees (5 U.S.C. 7321—7328) and
State or local officers or employees (5 U.S.C. 1501—1 528). “State or local officer or
employee” means an individual employed by a State or local agency whose principal
employment is in connection with an activity that is financed in whole or in part by loans
or grants made by the United States or a Federal agency. (Certain State educational or
research institutions are excluded from this definition.)

Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA)

The “Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health Information” (the Privacy
Rule) implement the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA) of
1996, 42 U.S.C. 1 320d et seq., which governs the protection of individually identifiable
health information. The Privacy Rule is administered and enforced by HHS’s OCR and is

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



4400000683 Mod 10 Page 7 of 28

codified at 45 CFR parts 160 and 164. Not all HHS recipients are subject to the Privacy
Rule. The Privacy Rule applies only to “covered entities,” as defined by the rule, which
include health plans and most health-care providers.
The OCR Web site (http:I/www.hhs.gov/ocr/hipaa) provides information on the Privacy
Rule, including the complete text of the regulation and a set of decision tools for
determining whether a particular entity is subject to the rule. An educational booklet,
Protecting Health Information in Research: Understanding the HIFAA Privacy Rule, is
available through OCR’s Web site and at http://privacyruleandresearch.nih.gov/. That
Web site also includes other educational materials approved by OCR and the HHS Office
of the General Counsel.

Limited English Proficiency

Recipients of Federal fmancial assistance must take reasonable steps to ensure that people
with limited English proficiency have meaningful access to health and social services and
that there is effective communication between the service provider and individuals with
limited English proficiency. To clarify existing legal requirements, HHS published
“Guidance to Federal Financial Assistance Recipients Regarding Title VI Prohibition
Against National Origin Discrimination Affecting Limited English Proficient Persons.”
This guidance, which is available at http://www.hhs.govlocr/lep/revisedlep.html, provides
a description of the factors that recipients should consider in determining and fulfilling
their responsibilities to individuals with limited English proficiency under Title VI of the
Civil Rights Act of 1964.

Pro-Children Act

The Pro-Children Act of 1994, 20 U.S.C. 7183, imposes restrictions on smoking in
facilities where federally funded children’s services are provided. HHS grants are subject
to these requirements only if they meet the Act’s specified coverage. The Act specifies
that smoking is prohibited in any indoor facility (owned, leased, or contracted for) used
for the routine or regular provision of kindergarten, elementary, or secondary education
or library services to children under the age of 18. In addition, smoking is prohibited in
any indoor facility or portion of a facility (owned, leased, or contracted for) used for the
routine or regular provision of federally funded health care, day care, or early childhood
development, including Head Start services to children under the age of 18. The statutory
prohibition also applies if such facilities are constructed, operated, or maintained with
Federal funds. The statute does not apply to children’s services provided in private
residences, facilities funded solely by Medicare or Medicaid funds, portions of facilities
used for inpatient drug or alcohol treatment, or facilities where WIC coupons are
redeemed. Failure to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition
of a civil monetary penalty of up to $1,000 per violation andlor the imposition of an
administrative compliance order on the responsible entity. Any questions concerning the
applicability of these provisions to an HHS grant should be directed to the GMO.

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



4400000683 Mod 10 Page 8 of 28

Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (Section 504)

Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, 29 U.S.C. 794, as amended, provides that
no otherwise qualified handicapped individual in the United States will, solely by reason
of the handicap, be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be
subjected to discrimination under any program or activity receiving Federal fmancial
assistance. These requirements pertain to the provision ofbenefits or services as well as
to employment. The HHS implementing regulationsare codified at 45 CFR parts 84 and
85.

Resource Conservation and Recovery Act

Under RCRA (42 U.S.C. 6901 et seq.), any State agency or agency of a political
subdivision of a State using appropriated Federal funds must comply with 42 U.S.C.
6962. This includes State and local institutions of higher education or hospitals that
receive direct HHS awards. Section 6962 requires that preference be given in
procurement programs to the purchase of specific products containing recycled materials
identified in guidelines developed by EPA (40 CFR parts 247—254).

Restriction on Abortions

HHS funds may not be spent for an abortion.

Restriction on Distribution of Sterile Needles

Funds appropriated for HHS may not be used to carry out any program of distributing
sterile needles or syringes for the hypodermic injection of any illegal drug.

Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act

The Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970
(the Uniform Relocation Act), 42 U.S.C. 4601 et seq., applies to all programs or projects
undertaken by Federal agencies or with Federal fmancial assistance that cause the
displacement of any person.

The HHS requirements for complying with the Uniform Relocation Act are set forth in
49 CFR part 24. Those regulations include uniform policies and procedures regarding
treatment of displaced people. They encourage entities to negotiate promptly and
amicably with property owners so property owners’ interests are protected and litigation
can be avoided.

U.S. Flag Air Carriers

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



4400000683 Mod 10 Page 9 of 28

Recipients must comply with the requirement that U.S. flag air carriers be used by
domestic recipients to the maximum extent possible when commercial air transportation
is the means of travel between the United States and a foreign country or between foreign
countries. This requirement must not be influenced by factors of cost, convenience, or
personal travel preference. The cost of travel under a ticket issued by a U.S. flag air
carrier that leases space on a foreign air carrier under a code-sharing agreement is
allowable if the purchase is in accordance with GSA regulations on U.S. flag air carriers
and code shares (see http://www.gsa.gov/gsa/cm_attachments/GSA_DOCUMENT/
1 10304_FTR_R2QA53_OZ5RDZ-i34K-pR.pdf). (A code-sharing agreement is an
arrangement between a U.S. flag carrier and a foreign air carrier in which the U.S. flag
carrier provides passenger service on the foreign air carrier’s regularly scheduled
commercial flights.)

USA Patriot Act

The Uniting and Strengthening America by Providing Appropriate Tools Required to
Intercept and Obstruct Terrorism Act (USA PATRIOT Act) amends 18 U.S.C. 175—175c.
Among other things, it prescribes criminal penalties for possession of any biological
agent, toxin, or delivery system of a type or in a quantity that is not reasonably justified
by a prophylactic, protective, bona fide research, or other peaceful purpose. The act also
establishes restrictions on access to specified materials. “Restricted persons,” as defined
by the act, may not possess, ship, transport, or receive any biological agent or toxin that is
listed as a select agent (see “Public Health Security and Bioterrorism Preparedness and
Response Act”).

Public Health Security and Bioterrorism Preparedness and Response Act

The Public Health Security and Bioterrorism Preparedness and Response Act of 2002,
42 U.S.C. 201 Note, is designed to provide protection against misuse of select agents and
toxins, whether inadvertent or the result of terrorist acts against the U.S. homeland, or
other criminal acts (see 42 U.S.C. 262a). The act was implemented, in part, through
regulations published by CDC at 42 CFR part 73, Select Agents and Toxins. Copies of
these regulations are available from the Import Permit Program and the Select Agent
Program, respectively, CDC, 1600 Clifton Road, MS E-79, Atlanta, GA 30333;
telephone: 404-498-2255. These regulations also are available at F
http //www cdc gov/od!ohs!biosfty/shipregs htm

Retention and access requirements for records
Sub-recipient shall comply with retention and access requirements for records as codified
in 45 CFR 92 .42.

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



4400000683 Mod 10 Page 10 of 28
ETHICS AFFIDAVIT

STATE OF TEXAS
COUNTY OF TRAVIS

ETHICS AFFIDAVIT

Date: t
Name of Affiant: 4iA 7’M’f
Title of Affiant: Qi/ P,’im:.i4c &Cr_

Business Name of Proponent: AIc&HPAY Jic4(- M/L”..i4c6,i1&V7
County of Proponent: ‘1(/5

Affiant on oath swears that the following statements are true:

1. Affiant is authorized by Proponent to make this affidavit for Proponent.

2. Affiant is fully aware of the facts stated in this affidavit.

3. Affiant can read the English language.

4. Proponent has received the list of key contracting persons associated with this solicitation which is attached to this affidavit
as Exhibit “1”.

5. Affiant has personally read Exhibit “l”to this Affidavit.

6. Affiant has no knowledge of any key contracting person on Exhibit ‘1” with whom Proponent is doing business or has done
business during the 365 day period immediately before the date of this affidavit whose name is not disclosed in the
solicitation.

.- ) —.

Signatur
&x9 L4 //

Address

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN TO before me by fl ()417øv’ pSDV1 on Qt. 2OI1.

SANDRA STARSIAKOVA tary Public, State of TJA? S

NOTARY PUBLIC
*

STATE OF TEXAS Typed or printed name of notary 3kIr&o

MY COMM. EXP. 10/8/17
My commission expires: IC )fj 2C)-

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



4400000683 Mod 10 Page 11 of 28
LIST OF KEY CONTRACTING PERSONS

August 28. 2014

CURRENT
Name of Individual Name of Business

Position Held Holding Office/Position Individual is Associated

County Judge Samuel T. Biscoe
County Judge (Spouse) Donalyn Thompson-Biscoe
Executive Assistant Cheryl Brown
Executive Assistant Melissa Velasquez
Executive Assistant Josie Z. Zavala
Executive Assistant David Salazar
Commissioner, Precinct 1 Ron Davis
Commissioner, Precinct 1 (Spouse) Annie Davis Seton Hospital
Executive Assistant Deone Wilhite
Executive Assistant Felicitas Chavez
Executive Assistant Sue Spears
Commissioner, Precinct 2 Bruce Todd
Commissioner, Precinct 2 (Spouse) Elizabeth Christian Consultant
Executive Assistant Sara Krause*
Executive Assistant Joe Hon
Executive Assistant Peter Einhorn
Commissioner, Precinct 3 Gerald Daugherty*
Commissioner, Precinct 3 (Spouse) Charyin Daugherty Consultant
Executive Assistant Bob Moore*
Executive Assistant Martin Zamzow*
Executive Assistant Madison A. Gessner*
Commissioner, Precinct 4 Margaret Gomez
Executive Assistant Edith Moreida
Executive Assistant Norma Guerra
County Treasurer Dolores Ortega-Carter
County Auditor Nicki Riley
County Executive, Administrative Vacant
Interim County Executive, Planning & Budget Leroy Nellis*
County Executive, Emergency Services Danny Hobby
County Executive, Health/Human Services Sherri E. Fleming
County Executive, TNR Steven M. Manilla, P.E.
County Executive, Justice & Public Safety Roger Jefferies
Director, Facilities Management Roger El Khoury, M.S., P.E.
Chief Information Officer Tanya Acevedo
Director, Records Mgment & Communications Steven Broberg
Travis County Attorney David Escamilla
First Assistant County Attorney Steve Capelle
Executive Assistant, County Attorney James Collins
Director, Land Use Division Tom Nuckols
Attorney, Land Use Division Julie Joe
Attorney, Land Use Division Christopher Gilmore
Director, Transactions Division John Hille
Attorney, Transactions Division Daniel Bradford
Attorney, Transactions Division Elizabeth Winn
Attorney, Transactions Division Mary Etta Gerhardt
Attorney, Transactions Division Barbara Wilson
Attorney, Transactions Division Jennifer Kraber*
Attorney, Transactions Division Tenley Aidredge
Director, Health Services Division Beth Devery
Attorney, Health Services Division Prema Gregerson
Purchasing Agent Cyd Grimes, C.P.M., CPPO
Assistant Purchasing Agent Elaine Casas, J.D.*
Assistant Purchasing Agent Marvin Brice, CPPB

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



4400000683 Mod 10 Page 12 of 28
Assistant Purchasing Agent Bonnie Floyd, CPPO, CPPB
Purchasing Agent Assistant IV CW Bruner, CTP, CPPB
Purchasing Agent Assistant IV Lee Peny
Purchasing Agent Assistant IV Jason Walker
Purchasing Agent Assistant IV Richard Villareal
Purchasing Agent Assistant IV Patrick Strittmatter, CPPB
Purchasing Agent Assistant IV Lori Clyde, CPPO, CPPB, CTPE
Purchasing Agent Assistant IV Scott Wilson, CPPB
Purchasing Agent Assistant IV Jorge Talavera, CPPO, CPPB
Purchasing Agent Assistant IV Loren Breland, CPPB
Purchasing Agent Assistant IV John E. Pena, CTPM, CPPB
Purchasing Agent Assistant IV Angel Gomez
Purchasing Agent Assistant IV Jesse Herrera, CPPB, CTPM, CTCM, CTP
Purchasing Agent Assistant III Vacant
Purchasing Agent Assistant III David Waich
Purchasing Agent Assistant III Michael Long, CPPB
Purchasing Agent Assistant III Sydney Ceder
Purchasing Agent Assistant III Ruena Victorino
Purchasing Agent Assistant III Rachel Fishback
Purchasing Agent Assistant II L. Wade Laursen
Purchasing Agent Assistant II Sam Francis
HUB Coordinator Sylvia Lopez
HUB Specialist Betty Chapa
HUB Specialist Jerome Guerrero
Purchasing Business Analyst Scott Worthington
Purchasing Business Analyst Rosalinda Garcia
Financial Manager HHS Kathleen Hans
Accountant Lead HHS Lisa Glass
Contract Compliance Specialist Ladonna Brazell
Contract Compliance Specialist John Bradshaw
Contract Compliance Specialist Latrice Johnson
Planning Manager Laence Lyman

FORMER EMPLOYEES

Name of Individual
Position Held Holding Office/Position Date of Expiration
Purchasing Agent Assistant III Shannon Pleasant 08/22/15
Purchasing Business Analyst Jennifer Francis 11/29/14
Executive Assistant Barbara Smith 01/15/15
Attorney, Transactions Division Jim Connolly 02/28/15
County Executive, Planning & Budget Leslie Browder 03/31/15

*
- Identifies employees who have been in that position less than a year.

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



4400000683 Mod 10 Page 13 of 28
Attachment E-2015

INSURANCE REOUIREMENTS

Contractor shall have, and shall require all subcontractors nroviding services under this Contract to have,
Standard Insurance meeting the General Requirements as set forth below and sufficient to cover the needs of
Contractor andJor Subcontractor pursuant to applicable generally accepted business standards. Depending on
services provided by Contractor and/or Subcontractor(s), Supplemental Insurance Requirements or alternate
insurance options shall be imposed as follows:

I. General Requirements Applicable to All Contractors’ Insurance.

The following requirements apnlv to the Contractor and to Subcontractor(s) performing services or activities
pursuant to the terms of this Contract. Contractor acknowledges and agrees to the following concerning
insurance requirements applicable to Contractor and subcontractor(s):

A. I minimum types and limits of insurance indicated below shall be maintained throughout the
duration of the Contract.

B. Insurance shall be written by companies licensed in the State of Texas with an A.M. Best rating
of B+ VIII or higher.

C. Prior to commencing work under this Contract, the required insurance shall be in force as
evidenced by a Certificate of Insurance issued by the writing agent or carrier. A copy of the Certificate of
Insurance shall be forwarded to County immediately upon execution of this Contract.

D. Certificates of Insurance shall include the endorsements outlined below and shall be submitted
to the Travis County Purchasing Agent within ten (10) working days of execution of the contract by both
parties or the effective date of the Contract, whichever comes first. The Certificate(s) shall show the Travis
County contract number and all endorsements by number.

E. Insurance required under this Contract which names Travis County as Additional Insured shall
be considered primary for all claims.

F. Insurance limits shown below may be written as Combined Single Limits or structured using
primary and excess or umbrella coverage that follows the form of the primary policy.

G. County shall be entitled, upon its request and without expense, to receive certified copies of
policies and endorsements.

H. County reserves the right to review insurance requirements during py term of the Contract and
to require that Contractor make reasonable adjustments when the scope of services has been expanded.

I. Contractor shall not allow any insurance to be cancelled or lapse during term of this
Contract. Contractor shall not permit the minimum limits of coverage to erode or otherwise be reduced.
Contractor shall be responsible for all premiums, deductibles and self-insured retention. All deductibles and
self-insured retention shall be shown on the Certificates of Insurance.

J. Insurance coverage specified in this Contract is not intended and will not be interpreted to limit
the responsibility or liability of the Contractor or subcontractor(s).

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



4400000683 Mod 10 Page 14 of 28

II. Specific Requirements

The following requirements (II.A - II.E, inclusive) apply to the Contractor and Subcontractor(s) performing
services or activities pursuant to the tenns of this Contract. Contractor acknowledges and agrees to the
following concerning insurance requirements applicable to Contractor and subcontractor(s):

A. Workers’ Compensation and Employers’ Liability Insurance

1. Coverage shall be consistent with statutory benefits outlined in the Texas Workers’
Compensation Act.

2. Employers’ Liability limits are:

$500,000 bodily injury each accident
$500,000 bodily injury by disease
$500,000 policy limit

3. Policies under this Section shall apply to State of Texas and include the following
endorsements in favor of Travis County and City of Austin:

a. Waiver of Subrogation (Form 420304)
b. Thirty (30) day Notice of Cancellation (Form 420601)

B. Commercial General Liability Insurance

1. Minimum limit:
$500,000* per occurrence for coverage A and B with a
$1,000,000 policy aggregate

2. The Policy shall contain or be endorsed as follows:
a. Blanket contractual liability for this Contract
b. Independent Contractor Coverage

3. The Policy shall also include the following endorsements in favor of Travis County

4. a. Waiver of Subrogation (Form CG 2404)
b. Thirty (30) day Notice of Cancellation (Form CG 0205)
c. Travis County named as additional insured (Form CG 2010)

* Supplement Insurance Requirement If child care, or housing arrangements for clients is provided,
the required limits shall be:

$1,000,000 per occurrence with a
$ 2,000,000 policy aggregate

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



4400000683 Mod 10 Page 15 of 28
C. Business Automobile Liability Insurancet

1. If any form of transportation for clients is provided, coverage for all owned, non-owned, and
hired vehicles shall be maintained with a combined single limit of $300,000* per occurrence
2. Policy shall also include the following endorsements in favor of Travis County

a. Waiver of Subrogation (Form TE 2046A)
b. Thirty (30) day Notice of Cancellation (Form TE 0202A)
c. Travis County named as additional insured (Form TE 9901 B)

t Alternative Insurance Requirement
If NO transportation services of any type is provided, and use of a motor vehicle is strictly limited to travel to

and from work or work sites, evidence of Personal Auto Policy coverage with limits of
$ I 00,000/$300,000/$50,000

may be provided in lieu of Business Automobile Liability Insurance

D. Professional Liability/E & 0 Insurance

1. Coverage shall be provided with a minimum limit of $1,000,000 per claim /$3,000,000
aggregate to cover injury to a child while the child is in the care of Contractor or Subcontractor and
to cover negligent acts, sexual harassment, errors, or omissions arising out of Professional Services
under this Contract.

2. If coverage is written on a claims made policy, the retroactive date shall be prior to the date
this Contract is signed andlor effective, whichever comes first. Coverage shall include a three (3)
year extended reporting period from the date this Contract expires or is terminated. Certificate of
Insurance shall clarify coverage is claims made and shall contain both the retroactive date of
coverage and the extended reporting dates.

3. Subcontractor(s) who are not covered under Contractor’s professional liability insurance
shall provide Contractor with current certificates of insurance annually on the renewal date of their
insurance policy.

E. Blanket Crime Policy Insurance

1. If an advance against Contract Funds is requested or received in an amount greater than
$5,000, a Blanket Crime Policy shall be required with limits of the Contract Funds allocated in the
Contract or the amount of scheduled advances.

2. If coverage is written on a claims made policy, the retroactive date shall be prior to the date
services begin under this Contract or the effective date of this Contract, whichever comes first.
Coverage shall include a three- (3) year extended reporting period from the date this Contract
expires or is terminated. Certificate of Insurance shall clarify coverage is claims made and shall
contain both the retroactive date of coverage and the extended reporting period date.

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



44OOOQO683 Mpdpprovea or use inroug 1 012

Protection of Human Subjects

Assurance IdentificationllRB CertificationlDeclaration of Exemption

(Common Rule)

Policy Research activities involving human subjects may not be conducted Institutions must have an assurance of compliance that applies to the
or supported by the Departments and Agencies adopting the Common Rule research to be conducted and should submit certification of IRB review and
(56FR28003, June 18, 1991) unless the activities are exempt from or approval with each application or proposal unless otherwise advised by the
approved in accordance with the Common Rule. See section 101(b) of the Department or Agency.
Common Rule for exemptions. Institutions submitting applications or
proposals for support must submit certification of appropriate Institutional
Review Board (IRB) review and approval to the Department or Agency in
accordance with the Common Rule.

1. Request Type 2. Type of Mechanism 3. Name of Federal Department or Agency and, if known,
[] ORIGINAL 4. GRANT [] CONTRACT [] FELLOWSHIP Application or Proposal Identification No.

CON11NUATION [] COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT

4. Title of Application or Activity 5. Name of Principal Investigator, Program Director, Fellow, or
Other

/L

6. Assurance Status of this Project (Respond to one of thfollowing)

[ ] This Assurance, on file with Department of Health and Human Services, covers this activity:
Assurance Identification No.__________________________ the expiration date_____________ IRB Registration No.

jis Assurance, on file with (agency/dept) tifliL .f<s}_, )f /XcL1 d?L )&tc..., , covers this activity.
Assurance No.(Qr .- d2tZi3 , the expiration dtte J.øô/i.s RB Registration/Identification No )c’7 ios (if applicable)

[] No assurance has been filed for this institution. This institution declares that it will provide an Assurance and Certification of IRB review and
approval upon request.

[ I Exemption Status: Human subjects are involved, but this activity qualifies for exemption under Section 101(b), paragraph___________

7. Certification of IRB Review (Respond to one of the following IF you have an Assurance on file)

This activity has been reviewed and approved by the IRB in accordance with tple, Common Rule and any other governing regulations.
by: []Full IRB Review on (date of IRB meeting)

__________________

or 4cpedited Review on (date)
[]lf less than one year approval, provide expiration da e

_____________________

[]This activity contains multiple projects, some of which have not been reviewed. The IRB has granted approval on condition that all projects
covered by the Common Rule will be reviewed and approved before they are initiated and that appropriate further certification will be submitted.

8. Comments

9. The official signing below certifies that the information provided above is 10. Name and Address of Institution
correct and that, as required, future reviews will be performed until study
closure and certification will be provided. te:o_I
11. Phone No. (with area code) (&o9 4/ (o-

0

12.FaxNo.(withareaoode)51
,,-,, CLLL&*TVcJ 1T

13. Email: ex’Lc
14. Name of Official 15. Title

&-iA 11½? F/NA-c.iA C—

Public reporting burden for this collection of information is estimated to average less than an hour per response. An agency may not conduct or sponsor, and a person is
not required to respond to, a collection of information unless it displays a currently valid 0MB control number. Send comments regarding this burden estimate or
any other aspect of this collection of information, including suggestions for reducing this burden to:OS Reports Clearance Officer, Room 503 200 Independence

Avenue, SW., Washington, DC 20201. Do not return the completedform to this address.

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



4400000683 Mod 10 Page 17 of 28

ASSURANCES - NON-CONSTRUCTION PROGRAMS
0MB Approval No. 4040-0007
Expiration Date: 06130/2014

NOTE: Certain of these assurances may not be applicable to your project or program. If you have questions, please contact the
awarding agency. Further, certain Federal awarding agencies may require applicants to certify to additional assurances. If such
is the case, you will be notified.

As the duly authorized representative of the applicant, I certify that the applicant:

Has the legal authority to apply for Federal assistance
and the institutional, managerial and financial capability
(including funds sufficient to pay the non-Federal share
of project cost) to ensure proper planning, management
and completion of the project described in this
application.

2. Will give the awarding agency, the Comptroller General
of the United States and, if appropriate, the State,
through any authorized representative, access to and
the right to examine all records, books, papers, or
documents related to the award; and will establish a
proper accounting system in accordance with generally
accepted accounting standards or agency directives.

3. Will establish safeguards to prohibit employees from
using their positions for a purpose that constitutes or
presents the appearance of personal or organizational
conflict of interest, or personal gain.

4. Will initiate and complete the work within the applicable
time frame after receipt of approval of the awarding
agency.

5. Will comply with the Intergovernmental Personnel Act of
1970 (42 U.S.C. §4728-4763) relating to prescribed
standards for merit systems for programs funded under
one of the 19 statutes or regulations specified in
Appendix A of OPM’s Standards for a Merit System of
Personnel Administration (5 C.F.R. 900, Subpart F).

6. Will comply with all Federal statutes relating to
nondiscrimination. These include but are not limited to:
(a) Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (P.L. 88-352)
which prohibits discrimination on the basis of race, color
or national origin; (b) Title IX of the Education
Amendments of 1972, as amended (20 U.S.C. §1681-
1683, and 1685-1686), which prohibits discrimination on
the basis of sex; (c) Section 504 of the Rehabilitation

Previous Edition Usable

Act of 1973, as amended (29 U.S.C. §794), which
prohibits discrimination on the basis of handicaps; (d)
the Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended (42
U.S.C. §6101-6107), which prohibits discrimination
on the basis of age; (e) the Drug Abuse Office and
Treatment Act of 1972 (P.L. 92-255), as amended,
relating to nondiscrimination on the basis of drug
abuse; (f) the Comprehensive Alcohol Abuse and
Alcoholism Prevention, Treatment and Rehabilitation
Act of 1970 (P.L. 91-616), as amended, relating to
nondiscrimination on the basis of alcohol abuse or
alcoholism; (g) §523 and 527 of the Public Health
Service Act of 1912 (42 U.S.C. §290 dd-3 and 290 ee
3), as amended, relating to confidentiality of alcohol
and drug abuse patient records; (h) Trtle VIII of the
Civil Rights Act of 1968(42 U.S.C. §3601 etseq.), as
amended, relating to nondiscrimination in the sale,
rental or financing of housing; (i) any other
nondiscrimination provisions in the specific statute(s)
under which application for Federal assistance is being
made; and, (j) the requirements of any other
nondiscrimination statute(s) which may apply to the
application.

7. Will comply, or has already complied, with the
requirements of Titles II and Ill of the Uniform
Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition
Policies Act of 1970 (P.L. 91-646) which provide for
fair and equitable treatment of persons displaced or
whose property is acquired as a result of Federal or
federally-assisted programs. These requirements apply
to all interests in real property acquired for project
purposes regardless of Federal participation in
purchases.

8. Will comply, as applicable, with provisions of the
Hatch Act (5 U.S.C. §1501-1508 and 7324-7328)
which limit the political activities of employees whose
principal employment activities are funded in whole or
in part with Federal funds.

Public reporting burden for this collection of information is estimated to average 15 minutes per response, including time for reviewing
instructions, searching existing data sources, gathering and maintaining the data needed, and completing and reviewing the collection of
information. Send comments regarding the burden estimate or any other aspect of this collection of information, including suggestions for
reducing this burden, to the Office of Management and Budget, Paperwork Reduction Project (0348-0040), Washington, DC 20503.

PLEASE DO NOT RETURN YOUR COMPLETED FORM TO THE OFFICE OF MANAGEMENT AND BUDGET.
SEND IT TO THE ADDRESS PROVIDED BY THE SPONSORING AGENCY.

Authorized for Local Reproduction
Standard Form 424B (Rev. 7-97)

Prescribed by 0MB Circular A-102

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



4400000683 Mod 10 Page 18 of 28

9. Will comply, as applicable, with the provisions of the Davis-
Bacon Act (40 U.S.C. §276a to 276a-7), the Copeland Act
(40 U.S.C. §276c and 18 u.s.c. §874), and the contract
Work Hours and Safety Standards Act (40 U.S.C. §327-
333), regarding labor standards for federally-assisted
construction subagreements.

10. Will comply, if applicable, with flood insurance purchase
requirements of Section 102(a) of the Flood Disaster
Protection Act of 1973 (P.L. 93-234) which requires
recipients in a special flood hazard area to participate in the
program and to purchase flood insurance if the total cost of
insurable construction and acquisition is $10,000 or more.

11. Will comply with environmental standards which may be
prescribed pursuant to the following: (a) institution of
environmental quality control measures under the National
Environmental Policy Act of 1969 (P.L. 91-190) and
Executive Order (EO) 11514; (b) notification of violating
facilities pursuant to EO 11738; (c) protection of wetlands
pursuant to EO 11990; (d) evaluation of flood hazards in
floodplains in accordance with EQ 11988; (e) assurance of
project consistency with the approved State management
program developed under the Coastal Zone Management
Act of 1972 (16 U.S.C. §1451 et seq.); (f) conformity of
Federal actions to State (Clean Air) Implementation Plans
under Section 176(c) of the Clean Air Act of 1955, as
amended (42 U.S.C. §7401 et seq.); (g) protection of
underground sources of drinking water under the Safe
Drinking Water Act of 1974, as amended (P.L. 93-523);
and, (h) protection of endangered species under the
Endangered Species Act of 1973, as amended (P.L. 93-
205).

12, Will comply with the Wild and Scenic Rivers Act of
1968 (16 U.S.C. §1271 et seq.) related to protecting
components or potential components of the national
wild and scenic rivers system.

13. Will assist the awarding agency in assuring compliance
with Section 106 of the National Historic Preservation
Act of 1966, as amended (16 U.S.C. §470), EO 11593
(identification and protection of historic properties), and
the Archaeological and Historic Preservation Act of
1974(16 U.S.C. §469a-1 et seq.).

14. Will comply with P.L. 93-348 regarding the protection of
human subjects involved in research, development, and
related activities supported by this award of assistance.

15. Will comply with the Laboratory Animal Welfare Act of
1966 (P.L. 89-544, as amended, 7 U.S.C. §2131 et
seq.) pertaining to the care, handling, and treatment of
warm blooded animals held for research, teaching, or
other activities supported by this award of assistance.

16. Will comply with the Lead-Based Paint Poisoning
Prevention Act (42 U.S.C. §4801 et seq.) which
prohibits the use of lead-based paint in construction or
rehabilitation of residence structures.

17. Will cause to be performed the required financial and
compliance audits in accordance with the Single Audit
Act Amendments of 1996 and 0MB Circular No. A-133,
“Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit
Organizations.”

18. Will comply with all applicable requirements of all other
Federal laws, executive orders, regulations, and policies
governing this program.

4-,

Standard Form 424B (Rev. 7.97) Back

SIGNATURE OF AUTHORIZED CERTIFYING OFFICIAL TITLE

APPLICANT ORGANIZATION DATE SUBMITTED

‘AM ‘“
‘e

January 14,2013

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING I Administration for Chikt adraniHate iI 1 of 2

U .S. Department of Health & Human Services

ADMINISTRATION FOR

CHILDREN 8?FAMILIES Search

HOME ABOUT HELP FOR YOU & YOUR FAMiLY PROGRAMS INITIATiVES & PRIORITIES GRANTS DATA & REPORTS NEWS & EVENTS

ACF Hon CERTiFICATION REGARDING LOaBYING

CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING
Was this page helpful?

Certification for Contracts, Grants, Loans, and Cooperative Agreements

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:
YES L NO

(1) No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the
undersigned, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of an
agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a
Member of Congress in connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, the making of any
Federal grant, the making of any Federal loan, the entering into of any cooperative agreement,
and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any Federal contract,
grant, loan, or cooperative agreement

(2) If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any
person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in
connection with this Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement, the undersigned
shall complete and submil Standard Form-LLL, Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying,” in
accordance with its instructions.

(3) The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award
documents for all subawärds at all tiers (including subcontracts, subgrants, and contracts under
grants, loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all subrecipients shall certify and disclose
accordingly. This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when this transaction was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite
for making or entering into this transaction imposed by section 1352, title 31, U.S. Code. Any
person who fails to file the required certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than
$10,000 and not more than $100,000 for each such failure.

Statement for Loan Guarantees and Loan Insurance

The undersigned states, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

If any funds have been paid or Will be paid to any person for influencing or attempting to
influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee
of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this commitment
providing for the United States to insure or guarantee a loan, the undersigned shall complete
and submit Standard Form-LLL, “Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying,” in accordance with its
instructions. Submission of this statement is a prerequisite for making or entering into this
transaction imposed by section 1352, title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the
required statement shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than
$100,000 for each such failure.

Signature

Title
Cii1 Pw.ci.kIc6qL c’4Z_

HPA i-/E1IC*c /f1ii?’

hii-ii. IIllrtvilT liii rIfvIi.tifir.fift,1 Qrlin fr_i 1 /1A1’)fll’

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



4400000683 Mod 10 Page 20 of 28

1. Type of Federal Action:

a. contract
b. grant
c. cooperative agreement
d. loan
e. loan guarantee
f. loan insurance

4. Name and Address of Reporting Entity:
Q Prime ØSubawardee

Tier

_______

if known:
/r’si icd(

‘C° 1a’rJc // C,h’e_)

7 7ff7

Congressional District, if known: 4c

6. Federal Department!Agency:

Adin,hi
-IT) i iiES

8. Federal Action Number, if known:

&< eô9,

Approved by 0M8

0348-0046

3. Report Type:

a. initial filing
b. material change

For Material Change Only:

year

_________

quarter

_________

date of last report

______________

5. If Reporting Entity in No. 4 is a Subawardee, Enter Name
and Address of Prime:

“75’av/ 9CIJ77-

/CD /V1

Congressional District, if known:
7. Federal Program NamelDescription:

.Er htnc-iv âg c/i /1f’r
4’er (d Ia-’c

CFDA Number, if applicable: 9.3 5&t7

9. Award Amount, if known:

$
b. Individuals Performing Services (including address if

different from No. lOa)
(last name, first name, Ml):

--.

Date:
,..&,;,- --,--:.>

DISCLOSURE OF LOBBYING ACTIVITIES

Complete this form to disclose lobbying activities pursuant to 31 U.S.C. 1352
(See reverse for public burden disclosure.)
2. Status of Federal Action:

a. bid/offer/application
b. initial award
c. post-award

10. a. Name and Address of Lobbying Registrant

( if individual, last name, first name, Ml):

,iDi /fU)

Information
requested through this form is authorized by title 31 U.S.C. section

1352. This disclosure of lobbying activities is a material representation of fact
upon which reliance was ptaced by the tier above when this transaction was roads
or entered into. This disclosure is required pursuant to 31 U.S.C. 1352. This
information will be available for public inspection. Any person who fails to file the
required disclosure shall be subject to a civil penalty of not tess than $10,000 and
not more than $100,000 for each such faiture.

Signati6e: ‘

Print Name: - Aji4 JPJ

Title: 44’g7c-

____________________

Telephone No.: “9

_________

Federal Use - .

Authorized for Local Reproduction

,

,. ,.‘ . - . .. . Standard Form LLL (Rev. 797)
-.

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



4400000683 Mod 10 Page 21 of 28

INSTRUCTIONS FOR COMPLETION OF SF-LLL, DISCLOSURE OF LOBBYING ACTIVITIES
This disclosure form shall be completed by the reporting entity, whether subawardeeor prime Federal recipient, at the initiation or receipt of a covered Federalaction, or a material change to a previous filing, pursuant to title 31 USC. section 1352. The filing of a form is required for each paymentor agreementto make
paymentto any lobbying entity for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employeeof any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of
Congress, or an employeeof a Memberof Congress in connection with a covered Federal action. Completeall items that apply for both the initial filing and material
change report. Refer to the implementing guidance published by the Office of Management and Budget for additional information.

1. Identify the type of covered Federal action for which lobbying activity is and/or has been secured to influence the outcome of a covered Federal action.

2. Identify the status of the covered Federal action.

3. Identify the appropriate classification of this report, If this is a followup report caused by a material change to the information previously reported, enter
the year and quarter in which the change occurred. Enter the date of the last previously submitted report by this reporting entity for this covered Federal
action.

4. Enter the full name, address, city, State and zip code of the reportingentity. Include Congressional District, if known. Check the appropriateclassification
of the reporting entity that designates if it is, or expects to be, a prime or subaward recipient. Identify the tier of the subawardee, e.g., the first subawardee
of the prime is the 1st tier. Subawards include but are not limited to subcontracts, subgrants and contract awards under grants.

5. If the organization filing the report in item 4 checks “Subawardee,” then enter the full name, address, city, State and zip code of the prime Federal
recipient. Include Congressional District, if known.

6. Enter the name of the Federal agency making the award or loan commitment. Include at least one organizationallevel below agency name, if known. For
example, Department of Transportation, United States Coast Guard.

7. Enter the Federal program name or description for the covered Federal action (item 1). If known, enter the full Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance
(CFDA) number for grants, cooperative agreements, loans, and loan commitments.

8. Enter the most appropriate Federal identifying number availablefor the Federal action identified in item 1 (e.g., Request for Proposal (RFP) number;
Invitation for Bid (IFS) number; grant announcement number; the contract, grant, or loan award number; the application/proposal control number
assigned by the Federal agency). Include prefixes, e.g., “RFP-DE-90-001.

9. For a covered Federal action where there has been an award or loan commitment by the Federal agency, enter the Federal amount of the award/loan
commitment for the prime entity identified in item 4 or 5.

10. (a) Enter the full name, address, city, State and zip code of the lobbying registrant under the Lobbying Disclosure Act of 1995 engaged by the reporting
entity identified in item 4 to influence the covered Federal action.

(b) Enter the full names of the individual(s) performing services, and include full address if different from 10 (a). Enter Last Name, First Name, and
Middle Initial (Ml).

11. The certifying official shall sign and date the form, print hislher name, title, and telephone number.

According to the Paperwork Reduction Act, as amended, no persons are required to respond to a collection of information unless it displays a valid 0MB Control
Number. The valid 0MB control number for this information collection is 0MB No. 0348-0046. Public reporting burden for this collection of information is
estimated to average 10 minutes per response, including time for reviewing instructions, searching existing data sources, gathering and maintaining the data
needed, and completing and reviewing the collection of information. Send comments regarding the burden estimate or any other aspect of this collection of
information, including suggestions for reducing this burden, to the Office of Managementand Budget, Paperwork Reduction Project (0348-0046), Washington,
DC 20503.

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION AND &2aPcg 1 of 2

U.S. Department of Health & Human Services

ADMINISTRATION FOR

CHILDREN FAMILIES Search

HOME ABOUT HELP FOR YOU & YOUR FAMILY PROGRAMS INITIATIVES & PRIORITIES GRANTS DATA & REPORTS NEWS & EVENTS

ACF Home CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MAUERS ILOV,SR TIER)

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT,
SUSPENSION AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY Was this page helpful?

MATTERS (LOWER TIER)

_______ _______

CertifIcation Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion-- L YES LNO
Lower Tier Covered Transactions

Instructions for Certification

1. By signing and submitting this proposal, the prospective lower tier participant is providing
the certification set out below.

2. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was
placed when this transaction was entered into. If it is later determined that the prospective
lower tier participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other
remedies available to the Feder Government the department or agency with which this
transaction originated may pursue available remedies, including suspension and/or
debarment.

3. The prospective lower tier participant shall provide immediate written notice to the person to
which this proposal is submitted if at any time the prospective lower tier participant learns
that its certification was erroneous when submitted or had become erroneous by reason of
changed circumstances.

4. The terms covered transaction, debarred, suspended, ineligible, lower tier covered
transaction, participant, person, primary covered transaction, principal, proposal, and
voluntarily excluded, as used in this clause, have the meaning set out in the Definitions and
Coverage sections of rules implementing Executive Order 12549, You may contact the
person to which this proposal is submitted for assistance in obtaining a copy of those
regulations.

5. The prospective lower tier participant agrees by submitting this proposal that, [[Page
33043)] should the proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly
enter into any lower tier covered transaction with a person who is proposed for debarment
under 48 CFR part 9, subpart 9.4, debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily
excluded from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by the
department or agency with which this transaction originated.

6. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will
include this clause titled “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and
Voluntary Exclusion-Lower Tier Covered Transaction,” without modification, in all lower tier
covered transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

7. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective
participant in a lower tier covered transaction that it is not proposed for debarment under 48
CFR part 9, subpart 9.4, debarred, suspended, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from
covered transactions, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may
decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each
participant may, but is not required to, check the List of Parties Excluded from Federal
Procurement and Nonprocurement Programs.

8. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system
of records in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The
knowledge and information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally
possessed by a prudent person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

9. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 5 of these instructions, ifs participant
in a covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a

hj-trfhs,urxi f11’o crr7IcrnfQIf rs+l... (‘ 1 11 A Kñ1’

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION ANI ( if1Qge 2ige 2 of 2

person who is proposed for debarment under 48 CFR part 9, subpart 9.4, suspended,
debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in addition
to other remedies available to the Federal Government, the department or agency with
whici-i this transaction originated may pursue available remedies, including suspension

-and/ordebarment . --.---- . J

Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility an Voluntary Exclusion--Lower Tier
Covered Transactions U.S. Department of Health

and Human Services

370 VErdant Promenade, SW
I The prospective lower tier participant certifies, by submission of this proposal, that neither it Washington DC 20447

nor its principals is presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared
ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any Federal
department or agency

2 Where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in
this certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal

Home About Help for You & Your Initiatives & Priorities Acceosbrhiy HHS 9ev
Family No FEAR Act Repsitfraud‘Mist We Do

Grants Pnvacy Polity iNS Cosiomer Serviss
Vision, Mission & Voices Programs FOiA Pian

Funding Opportunities Discisimem ileaiihcare 9ev
Leadership By Topic

How to Appiy for a Grant Downiod Acrobat Letsmove gev
Offices By Office Reader® Kids gov

Forms Duwnieta Ward VieweriJSA gao
Budget By Region

Terroit and Conditions 2003® Gravis gao

Jobs & Contracts LiSAJobs gay

Data & ReportsStrategic Piafl

News & Events

l-cf*re. I/-isornrnr ‘rt(’f liliv rlrrrcenefc /r rfo&r rei-i _rp,c,rtrrl re 1 cmmc rem 1 / 1 .4 1°) Al 2

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQU MTI ge 24age 1 of 3

U.S. Department of Health & Human Services

ADMINISTRATION FOR

CHILDREN FAMILIES Search

HOME ABOUT HELP FOR YOU & YOUR FAMILY PROGRAMS INITIATIVES & PRIORITIES GRANTS DATA & REPORTS NEWS & EVENTS

ACF Home o CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG.FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE
WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS Was this page helpful?

This certification is required by the regulations implementing the Drug-Free Workplace Act of r
1988:45 CFR Part 76, Subpart, F. Sections 76.630(c) and (d)(2) and 76.645(aXl) and (b) YES I NO
provide that a Federal agency may designate a central receipt point for STATE-WIDE AND
STATE AGENCY-WIDE certifications, and for notification of criminal drug convictions. For the
Department of Health and Human Services, the central pint is: Division of Grants Management
and Oversight, Office of Management and Acquisition, Department of Health and Human
Services, Room 517-D, 200 Independence Avenue, SW Washington, DC 20201.

Certification Regarding Drug-Free Workplace Requirements (Instructions for
Certification)

1. By signing and/or submitting this application or grant agreement, the grantee is providing the
certification set out below.

2, The certification set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is
placed when the agency awards the grant. If it is later determined that the grantee knowingly
rendered a false certification, or otherwise violates the requirements of the Drug-Free Workplace
Act, the agency, in addition to any other remedies available to the Federal Government, may
take action authorized under the Drug-Free Workplace Act.

3. For grantees other than individuals, Alternate I applies.

4. For grantees who are individuals, Alternate II applies.

5. Workplaces under grants, for grantees other than individuals, need not be identified on the
certification. If known, they may be identified in the grant application. If the grantee does not
identify the workplaces at the time of application, or upon award, if there is no application, the
grantee must keep the identity of the workplace(s) on file in its office and make the information
available for Federal inspection. Failure to identify all known workplaces constitutes a violation of
the grantees drug-free workplace requirements.

6. Workplace identifications must include the actual address of buildings (or parts of buildings) or
other sites where work under the grant takes place. Categorical descriptions may be used (e.g.,
all vehicles of a mass transit authority or State highway department while in operation, State
employees in each local unemployment office, performers in concert halls or radio studios).

7. If the workplace identified to the agency changes during the performance of the grant, the
grantee shall inform the agency of the change(s), if it previously identified the workplaces in
question (see paragraph five).

8. Definitions of terms in the Nonprocurement Suspension and Debarment common rule and
Drug-Free Workplace common rule apply to this certification. Grantees’ attention is called, in
particular, to the following definitions from these rules:

Controlled substance means a controlled substance in Schedules I through V of the Controlled
Substances Act (21 U.S.C. 812) and as further defined by regulation (21 CFR 1308.11 through

cii i:- .c.

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQU4 hge2Ji 2 of 3

1308.15);

Conviction means a finding of guilt (including a plea of nob contendere) or imposition of
sentence, or both, by any judicial body charged with the responsibility to determine violations of
the Federal or State cfiminal drug statutes;.-.. -. ii1P’

Criminal drug statute means a Federal or non-Federal criminal statute involving the manufacture,
distribution, dispensing, use, or possession of any controlled substance;

Employee means the employee of a grantee directly engaged in the performance of work under
a grant, including: (i) All direct charge employees; (i) All indirect charge employees unless their
impact or involvement is insignificant to the performance of the grant; and, (if) Temporary
personnel and consultants who are directly engaged in the performance of work under the grant
and who are on the grantee’s payroll. This definition does not include workers not on the payroll
of the grantee (e.g. volunteers, even if used to meet a matching requirement; consultants or
independent contractors not on the grantee’s payroll; or employees of subrecipients or
subcontractors in covered workplaces).

Certification Regarding Drug-Free Workplace Requirements

Alternate I. (Grantees Other Than Individuals)

The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:

(a) Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,
dispensing, possession, or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee’s
workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of
such prohibition;

(b) Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about --

1. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;

2. The grantee’s policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;

3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and

4. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations occurring in
the workplace;

(c) Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the
grant be given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);

(ci) Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition
of employment under the grant, the employee will --

1. Abide by the terms of the statement; and

2. Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug
statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such conviction;

(a) Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
paragraph (d)(2) from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to every
grant officer or other designee on whose grant activity the convicted employee was
working, unless the Federal agency has designated a central point for the receipt of such
notices. Notice shall include the identification number(s) of each affected grant;

( Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
paragraph (d)(2), with respect to any employee who is so convicted--

1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including
termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or

U.S. Department of Health
and Human Services
370 L’Enfant Promenade, SW.
Washin0n. D.C. 20447

Acceosibdity HHS.gnv

No FEAR Act Reynri Fraud
Prmvacy Policy HHS Cusiomner Service
FOiA Plan

Disclaimers Healihcare.gov
Download Acrobat LeisMovo.gnv
ReaderrS Kids.gov

Download Vrd VreweruSA.gov

2003® Grants.gov

USMobs,gvv

htfn - //‘isrmsrnsr rs’f 1-1, 1/1

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQU MJNO Oge 2& 3 of 3

2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health, law
enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

(g) Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug4ree workplace through
implementation of paragraphs (a), (b), (c), (d), (e) and (f).

The grantee may insert in the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of work done
in connection with the specific grant:

Place of Performance (Street address, city, county, state, zip code)

be ‘1,QLL&1(wc
7-K:- -7’737

Check if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

Alternate II. (Grantees Who Are Individuals)

(a) The grantee certifies that, as a condition of the grant, he or she will not engage in the
unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensing, possession, or use of a controlled
substance in conducting any activity with the grant;

(b) If convicted of a criminal drug offense resulting from a violation occurring during the
conduct of any grant activity, he or she will report the conviction, in writing, within 10
calendar days of the conviction, to every grant officer or other designee, unless the
Federal agency designates a central point for the receipt of such notices. When notice is
made to such a central point, it shall include the identification number(s) of each affected
grant.

[55 FR 21690, 21702, May 25, 1990]

Home About Help for You & Your InItiatives & Priorities
Family

Wtiat We Do
Grants

Vision. Mission 8, Values Programs
Funding Opporturshes

Leadership By Topic
How to Apply for a Grant

Offices By Office
Forms

Budget By Region
Terms and Conditions

Jobs & COntracts

Data & ReportsStrategic Plan

News & Events

l-r4-*r. JIrrisrra7 .f hlic c virln-rcrnf-c /rr*cit’t i_i cr€.r-l ii r_,irii 1 11 A I’)A I I

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SM ge 27I& 1 of 1

U.S. Department of Health & Human Services

ADMINISTRATION FOR

CHILDREN 2FAM1LIES Search

HOME ABOUT HELP FOR YOU & YOUR FAMILY PROGRAMS INITIATIVES & PRIORITiES GRANTS DATA & REPORTS NEWS & EVENTS

ACF Home CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL
TOBACCO SMOKE Was this page helpful?

The Pro-Children Act of 2001, 42 U.S.C. 7181 through 7184, imposes restrictions on smoking in
facilities where Federally-funded children’s services are provided. HHS grants are subject to [9 YES i] NO
these requirements Only if they meet the Act’s specified coverage. The Act specifies that
smoking is prohibited in any indoor facility (owned, leased, or contracted for) used for the routine
or regular provision of kindergarten, elementary, or secondary education or library services to
children under the age of 18. in addition, smoking is prohibited in any indoor facility or portion of
a facility (owned, leased, or contracted for) used for the routine or regular provision of federally
funded health care, day care, or early childhood development, including Head Start services to
children under the age of 18. The statutory prohibition also applies if such facilities are
constructed, operated, or maintained with Federal funds. The statute does not apply to
children’s services provided in private residences, facitties funded Solely by Medicare or
MedicaId funds portions of facilities used for inpatient drug or alcohol treatment or facilities
where WiG coupons are redeemed Failure to comply with the provisions of the law may result
in the imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to $1 000 per violation and/or the Imposition of
an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity

Home About Help for You & Your Initiatives & Priorities

tribal We Do Family
Grants

U S Department of HealthVision, Mission & Vaiues Programs . .. .

Funding iDpporiundres and Human Services
Leadership By Topic 370 L’Enlani Promenade, SW.How to Apply for a c3rani

Washington, DC 20447Offices By 01500
Forms

Budget By Region
Terms and Condhiions Accessibildy HHS.gov

No FEAR Act Report FraudJobs & Contracts

Data & Reports PQiiCIj HHS Cusioncer Service
Strategic Plan FOIA Plan

Disclaimers Healihcere.goc
News & Events

Downioad Acrabai L0toMove.gsv

Reader’S Kids,gsv

Download Word ViewerctSA.gov

20055 Granis,5ov

usAiobs.9sv

l’r*4r. //vzrrv’vor u’f liii c’ c,rsr/cn r.fc /(uoT+vc,’ fi r’un...ra.rvmrA r n_us, r-w’rn,’mus.’.+rsl _+r-h,, -‘,.uu_o,, ,Irus 1 / 1 A I”)ft 1 ‘

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



CERTIFICATION REGARDING MA ThM.CE OF EFFORT I Adiji cubfQu ge 2cg 1 of 1

U.S. Department of Health & Human Services

ADMINISTRATION FOR

CHILDREN 2FAMILIES Search

HOME ABOUT HELP FOR YOU & YOUR FAMILY PROGRAMS INITiATIVES & PRIORiTiES GRANTS DATA & REPORTS NEWS & EVENTS

ACE Horns CERTIFICA11ON REGARDING MAINTENANCE OF EFFORT

CERTIFICATION REGARDING MAINTENANCE OF
EFFORT Was this page helpful?

In accordance with the applicable program statute(s) and regulation(s), the undersigned certifies I I
that financial assistance provided by the Adminisation for Children and Families, for the I YES NO Zspecified activities to be performed under the11s5T’,i I. ec’izj
Program by !irtizz/ 1-141 y,t .Applicant Organizatin), will be in
addition to, and not in substitution for, comparabIactivities previously carried on without
Federal assistance.

—— ignatuoAitthorlrtifying Official

Ch /e -?z--’ ‘Cr

Tide

L 2 24-
Date

Home About Help for You & Your Initiatives & Priorities
FamilyWhal Vie Do

Grants
Vision, Mission & Values Programs U.S. Department of Health

Funding Opportunitos and Human Services
Leadership By Topic 370 Lenfant Promenade, SW.

How to Apply fore Crash
Washington, D.C 20447

Offices By Office
Forms

Budget By Regron Accessibility HHS.gsnTerms any Conditions
No FEAR Act Report FraudJobs & Contracts
Prinacy Policy INS Customer ServiceData & Reports

Strategic Plan FOIA Plan

D,sclarmers Heatltmcare.gsvNews & Events
Download Acrobat LetnMsve.gsv
ReaderS t<idsgov
Download Word WoworusAgon

20035 Grant.gov

lJSAjsbs guy

1-ittrs- /Ixsrnsre.sr cit-f 1ihc ani/cnrciito/rtife-citn_rpacirna_ticinttsncin_nf_pffrsrf

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



4(7

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request

Meeting Date: September 30, 2014
Prepared BylPhone Number: David Walch 46663; Marvin Brice 49765
ElectedlAppointed OfficiallDept. Head: Cyd Grimes
Commissioners Court Sponsor: Judge Biscoe

Agenda Language: Consider and Take Appropriate Action on
Request to Renew Certain Health and Human Services and Veterans
Services Social Service Contracts which Expire September 30, 2014.

Travis County Health and Human Services and Veteran Services
(TCHHSVS) Department has requested the Purchasing Office place on the
Court’s Agenda the following list of Contracts and Interlocal Agreements
which will expire September 30, 2014. TCHHSVS is currently working with
either the vendor, a third party (Austin Travis County Integral Care (ATCIC)
or The City of Austin) or one of the various County departments involved in
the contracting process; and as such they were not ready for presentation
to the Court at the time of this agenda preparation. These services need to
be continuously provided while the contract drafts are being reviewed and
renewed. Once the contracts are finalized, and funding secured, those
contracts which require Court approval will be presented for the Judge’s
signature. However, in order to prevent contract expiration, the following list
is being presented for approval.

1. Encompass Medical Management, Inc.
Contract Number: 4400000583
Contact Period: 9/30/14—9/29/15
Contract Amount: $45,000

This contract is funded through the Parenting in Recovery (PIR) grant and provides
database management and program evaluation for the PIR project. TCHHSVS is
waiting for the approval of a no-cost extension request that will fund the 9/30/14 —

9/29/15 grant year. The grantor has indicated that it will be late September or early
October before a decision is made. While TCHHSVS fully expects to receive approval,
it will not execute this contract if the grant funds are not awarded.

AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE: All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a
pdf to aqendacco.travis.tx.us by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. for the next week’s meeting.

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



r

2. ATCIC SAMSO
Contract Number:4400000372
Contract Period: 10/1/14—9/30/15
Contract Amount: $1,277,720

Travis County, the City of Austin and ATCIC have a three-way interlocal agreement for
the provision of substance abuse treatment services. Under this agreement, ATCIC
manages a network of providers providing comprehensive clinical assessment,
intervention services, residential treatment, day treatment, detoxification, and outpatient
and continuing care services. Clients are linked or referred to case management and
other support services a part of the treatment process.

There is $881,799 in the FTI 5 TCHHSVS budget for this contract. The City of Austin is
expected to contribute $310,921 but has not yet confirmed this amount. The Parenting
in Recovery (PIR) grant will contribute $134,599 if the TCHHSVS request for a no-cost
extension of the grant is approved. While TCHHSVS expects to receive approval of the
no-cost extension request for the PIR funds, this money will be taken out of the contract
if the extension is not approved.

3. ATCIC System of Care
Contract Number: 4400000374
Contract Period: 10/1/14— 9/30/15
Contract Amount: $707,352

TCHHSVS uses a contract with ATCIC to fund a variety of programs, known as the
System of Care, for children and their families experiencing mental and behavioral
challenges. ATCIC acts as the managed services organization, overseeing the services
provided by a network of vendors.

The FYI 5 contract has money from the following sources:
$675,000 in General Fund money;
$32,352 from the Milburn Trust

4. ATCIC Main
Contract Number: 4400000375
Contract Period: 10/1/14—9/30/15
Contract Amount: $1,453,014

Under this Interlocal, ATCIC is required to serve as the leas assessment, planning, and
evaluation functions relative to mental health, intellectual/developmental disabilities, and
substance abuse services in support of the Community Action Network process.

ATCIC also is responsible for the provision of certain mental health and
intellectual/developmental disability services, either as a direct provider or through
subcontracts with other providers, for the priority populations defined by the Texas
Department of State Health Services. The priority populations include adult diagnoses
of schizophrenia, bi-polar disorder or clinically severe depression and children with

AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE: All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a
pdf to agendaco.travis.tx.us by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. for the next week’s meeting.

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



severe and persistent mental illness, including those with current or previous
involvement in the criminal justice system.

5. ATCIC Child Therapist
Contract Number: 44000001018
Contract Period: 10/1/1 4—9/3011 5
Contract Amount: $78,214

Also funded through the TCC grant, this contract funds 100% of a Child Therapist
position at ATCIC. The therapist works with children whose parents are involved with
the Travis County Family Drug Treatment Court. The grant funds for this contract are in
place.

6. City/County, Public Health Interlocal Agreement
Contract Number: 44000001726
Contract Period: 10/1/14—9/30/15
Contract Amount: $3,122,526

Contact provides thirteen different health programs for Austin and Travis County
residents. Services include: Community Health Improvement Planning, Chronic
Disease Prevention and Control, Communicable Disease Prevention, Environmental
Health Services, Epidemiology and Surveillance, Health Authority, Immunizations, Injury
Prevention, Office of Vital Records and more.

7. City/County Animal Services Interlocal Agreement
Contract Number: 44000001169
Contract Period: 10/1/14—9/30/15
Contract Amount: $1,115,472

Contract provides animal control services including rabies and dispatch to the
unincorporated areas of Travis County. Also provides prevention services, shelter
services and spay and neuter clinics.

REQUESTED ACTION:

APPRQVE(L1 DISAPPROVE(

________________

9- 30-/i
Samuel T. Biscoe, County Judge Date

AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE: All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a
pdf to aqenda(co.travistx.us by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. for the next week’s meeting.

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



TRAVIS COUNTY HEALTH and HUMAN SERVICES
and VETERANS SERVICE
502 E. Highland Mall Blvd.

P. 0. Box 1748
Austin, Texas 78767

Sherri E. Fleming
County Executive

for TCHHSVS
(512) 854-4100

Fax (512) 279-1608

DATE: September 15, 2014

TO: Cyd Grimes, Travis County Purchasiig Agent, CPM, CPPO

FROM:

County Executive for Travis County Health and Human Services
and Veterans Service

SUBJECT: Contract renewals

Proposed Motion:
Consider and take appropriate action to approve start dates for certain TCHHSVS
contract renewals that have been drafted but are still in the process of being reviewed
either by the vendor, a third party (ATCIC or the City of Austin) or one of the various
county departments involved in the contracting process and will not be completed in
time to be posted on the 9/30/14 Commissioners Court agenda. Final approval of the
contracts will be based on the submitting of final documents to the Commissioners
Court upon completion and execution by other parties.

Summary and Staff Recommendations:

j) Encompass Medical Management. Inc.
Contract Number 4400000683
Contract Period: 9/30/14—9/29/15
Contract Amount: $45000

This contract is funded through the Parenting in Recovery (PIR) grant and provides
database management and program evaluation for the PIR project. TCHHSVS is

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



2

4) ATCIC Main
Contract Number: 4400000375
Contract Period: 10/1/14 — 9/30/15
Contract Amount: $1,453,014

Under this Interlocal, ATCIC is required to serve as the lead in assessment, planning,
and evaluation functions relative to mental health, intellectual/developmental disabilities,
and substance abuse services in support of the Community Action Network process.

waiting for the approval of a no-cost extension request that will fund the 9/30/14 —

9/29/15 grant year. The grantor has indicated that it will be late September or early
October before a decision is made. While TCHHSVS fully expects to receive approval, it
will not execute this contract if the grant funds are not awarded

) ATCIC SAMSO
Contract Number 4400000372
Contract Period: 10/1/14—9/30/15
Contract Amount: $1,277,720

Travis County, the City of Austin and Austin Travis County Integral Care (ATCIC) have
a three-way interlocal agreement for the provision of substance abuse treatment
services. Under the agreement, ATCIC manages a network which provides
comprehensive clinical assessment, intervention services, residential treatment, day
treatment, detoxification, and outpatient and continuing care services. Clients are linked
or referred to case management and other support services as part of the treatment
process.

There is $881,799 in the FY’15 TCHHSVS budget for this contract. The City of Austin is
expected to contribute $310,921 but has not yet confirmed this amount. The Parenting
in Recovery (PIR) grant will contribute $134,599 if the TCHHSVS request for a no-cost
extension of the grant is approved. While TCHHSVS expects to receive approval of the
no-cost extension request for the PIR funds, this money Will be taken out of the contract
if the extension is not approved.

j ATCIC System of Care
Contract Number: 4400000374
Contract Period: 10/1/14 — 9/30/15
Contract Amount: $707,352

TCHHSVS uses a contract with ATCIC to fund a variety of programs, known as the
System of Care, for children and their families experiencing mental and behavioral
challenges. ATCIC acts as the managed services organization, overseeing the services
provided by a network of vendors.

The FY’15 contract has money from the following sources:
$675,000 in General Fund money;
$32,352 from the Milbum Trust.

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



3

ATCIC also is responsible for the provision of certain mental health and
intellectual/developmental disability services, either as a direct provider or through
subcontracts with other providers, for the priority populations defined by the Texas
Department of State Health Services. The priority populations include adult diagnoses
of schizophrenia, bi-polar disorder or clinically severe depression and children with
severe and persistent mental illness, including those with current or previous
involvement in the criminal justice system.

) ATCIC Child Therapist
Contract Number: 4400001018
Contract Period: 10/1/14—9/30/15
Contract Amount: $78,214

Also funded through the TCC grant, this contract funds 100% of a Child Therapist
position at ATCIC. The therapist works with children whose parents are involved with
the Travis County Family Drug Treatment Court. The grant funds for this contract are in
place.

) City/County. Public Health Interlocal Agreement
Contract Number: 4400001726
Contract Period: 10)1/14 — 9/30/15
Contract Amount: $3,122,526.

Contract provides thirteen different health related programs for Austin and Travis
County residents. Services include: Community Health Improvement Planning, Chronic
Disease Prevention and Control, Communicable Disease Prevention, Environmental
Health Services, Epidemiology and Surveillance, Health Authority, Immunizations, Injury
Prevention, Office of Vital Records and more.

fl City/County, Animal Services Interlocal Agreement
Contract Number: 4400001169
Contract Period: 10/1/14 — 9/30/15
Contract Amount: $1,115,472

Contract provides animal control services including rabies and dispatch to the
unincorporated areas of Travis County. Also provides prevention services, shelter
services and spay and neuter clinics.

TCHHSVS staff recommends approving these renewals.

Budgetary and Fiscal Impact:
This information is included with each contract listed above.

Issues and Opportunities:
Once drafted by the Travis County Attomels Office, these contracts are reviewed by
TCHHSVS, the vendor, the City of Austin in the case of ATCIC SAMSO, the Travis

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



4

County Auditor’s Office and the Travis County Purchasing Office. The review process
can take several weeks or even months depending on the complexity of the contract
and response time of other parties.

The services provided by these contracts need to be continued while the drafts are
reviewed. Those contracts funded solely by PIR grant money will not be executed if the
no-cost extension for the grant is not approved. Those contract partially funded by PIR
money will have that funding removed from the contract if the no-cost extension is not
approved.

Background:
TCHHSVS is working with all parties concerned to get these contracts reviewed and
executed as soon as possible.

Cc: Nicki Riley, Travis County Auditor
Janice Cohoon, Financial Analyst, Travis County Auditor’s Office
Mary Etta Gerhardt, Assistant County Attorney, Travis County Attorney’s
Office
Leroy Nellis, Acting County Executive. Planning and Budget Office
Aerin Pfaffenberger, Analyst, Planning and Budget Office
David Waich, Purchasing Agent Assistant, Travis County Purchasing Office

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to agenda@co.travis.tx.us by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. for the next week's meeting. 
 

 
 
Meeting Date: November 18th, 2014 
Prepared By/Phone Number: Rachel Fishback, 512-854-9853 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Cyd Grimes 
Commissioners Court Sponsor: Judge Biscoe 

Agenda Language:  Approve contract award for Commissioned 
Security Guard Services, RFP # 1404-009-RF, to the highest ranked 
proposer, VETS Securing America, Inc. 
 
 Purchasing Recommendation and Comments:  Purchasing 

recommends approval of requested action. This procurement action 
meets the compliance requirements as outlined by the statutes. 
 
The contract will provide Commissioned Security Guard Services at 
multiple facilities across Travis County. The departments requiring 
security services are Domestic Relations, Adult Probation, Adult Mental 
Health, Counseling and Education, Juvenile Probation, and Facilities 
Management.  
 
Travis County solicited for a licensed private security firm to assist in 
creating and maintaining a friendly, safe, and secure environment for 
visitors, employees, and contractors at several Travis County facilities. 
Many of the clients who are visiting County facilities will have been 
accused or convicted of a criminal act. Some may have a history of drug 
or alcohol abuse or be suffering from mental health issues. For these 
reasons officers must be well trained and capable of effectively 
managing aggressive behavior through the use of humane and 
compassionate methods. The commissioned security officers shall 
screen clients and visitors, operate security equipment, provide foot 
patrol of property to deter and prevent criminal activity, identify and 
resolve safety hazards, observe, identify and assist with resolution of 
security incidents, de-escalate conflicts, monitor CCTV systems, as well 
as perform a variety of other security related services outlined in the 
contract.  

RFP No. 1404-009-RF was issued August 4th, 2014 and closed on 
August 25th, 2014.  A total of seven (7) proposals were received.  Three 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Item 30Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to agenda@co.travis.tx.us by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. for the next week's meeting. 
 

(3) of these proposals were not responsive. The evaluation committee 
consisted of one representative from each department involved in this 
solicitation and one individual from PBO. The evaluation committee 
reviewed each proposal according to the RFP requirements. After the 
evaluation process, the evaluation committee and the Facilities 
Management Department, Adult Probation Department, Juvenile 
Probation Department, Counseling and Education Department, and 
Domestic Relations Department recommend contract award to VETS 
Securing America, Inc.   

VETS Securing America, Inc. is the current vendor for the Travis County 
contract for Non-Commissioned Security Guard Services which started 
on October 1, 2014. 

 

 Contract-Related Information: 

Award Amount: $376,816.92, with estimated requirements based on 
needs   

Contract Type: Annual, Unilateral 
Contract Period: December 14th, 2014 through December 13th, 2015  

 Solicitation-Related Information: 

Solicitations Sent:       48  Responses Received:              7  
HUB Information:        NA  % HUB Subcontractor:            NA  

 
 Funding Information: 

  SAP Shopping Cart #: 
  Funding Account(s):  funds reservation number to be provided by 

FMD 
  Comments: 

 
 

 
 
 

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Vets Securing America 86.57 of 100 87% 87

Smith Protective 82.71 of 100 83% 83

Tex 1 Security,Inc 75.00 of 100 75% 75

Arber Inc 73.43 of 100 73% 73

RFP #1404-009-RF      Evaluation Summary
Commissioned Security Guard Services

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



 

 
 

Travis County Counseling & Education Services 
P.O. Box 1748, Austin, TX  78767 (512) 854-9540; Fax 854-9146 

Caryl Clarke Colburn, Director 

 
 

 

 

 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 
 
DATE:  October 15, 2014 
 
TO:      Cyd Grimes, C.P.M. Purchasing Agent 

Rachel Fishback, Purchasing Agent Assistant III 
 
FROM:  Caryl Colburn, CES Director 
 
RE:  RFP#1404-009-RF On-Site Commissioned Security Guard Services  
 
CC:  Teresa Goff, CES Program Manager 
 
CES has reviewed and evaluated the applications for RFP#1404-009-RF On-Site 
Commissioned Security Guard Services and we recommend that Vets Securing America be 
awarded the contract.   
 
CES has selected Vets Securing America because they require their guards to complete 12-
hours of in-service training per year which exceeds the minimal application requirements.  They 
exceeded in the required number of years of work experience and provided relative work 
experience which is a valuable asset to our agency.  Plus, CES has had a previous working 
relationship with Vets Securing America which they demonstrated to be competent and 
professional.     
 
CES will need commissioned security guard services at the following locations: 
 

 5501 Airport Boulevard., Suite 102 – Saturdays from 7:30am to 5pm 
 1010 Lavaca 2nd Floor – Monday through Friday from 7:30am to 5pm with an hour lunch. 

 
 
If you need further information, please contact Teresa Goff at 854-4133.  Thanks. 
 
 
 
 

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Central Unit
4l I w. l3'l'Street.

Suite 400
Austin. TX 78701

5 I 2-854-4600
5 l2-854-4606 Fax

North Unit
I 0409 Burnet Rd

Austin, TX 78758
5t2-854-9775

5 l2-854-4533 Fax

South Unit
401 I McKinney Falls Pkwy

Suite 1300
Austin, TX 18144

512-8s4-CSCD (2123)
512-854-4612 Fax

SMART
3404 S FM 973

Del Valle, TX
186t7

5t2-854-3150
512-241-5567 Fax

AnuIr PnOgNTION DOPINTMENT
of'Travis Counly

Mental Health Unit
4920 lH 35 Norlh

Suite I l0
Austin. TX 78751

512-854-1800
512-854-4612 Fax

Mailing Address: PO Box 2245 Austin. Texas 78168-2245
www.co.travis.tx.us/Adu ltProbation
Voice Response System: 512-495-6563 or l-800-451-3887

Charles R. Robinson. Director
Rosie Rarnon-Dur6n. Assistant Director

MntwoneNnuM

TO:

FROM:

DATE:

Cyd Grimes, Purchasing Agent

Robert Klepac, Director of Administrative Services

October 10,2014

SUBJECT: Commissioned Security Guard Services

The team evaluating the RFP for Security Guard Services selected VETS Securing America for this
contract award. The Adult Probation Deparlment concurs with this selection and recommends this
vendor fbr award. This vendor proposed a good product at a very competitive cost.

Copy: Greg Jackson
Rachel Irishback

Travis County Adult Probation - Building Bridges, Not Walls

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to agenda@co.travis.tx.us by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. for the next week's meeting. 
 

 
 
Meeting Date: Tuesday, November 18, 2014 
Prepared By/Phone Number: C.W. Bruner, 854-9760 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Cyd Grimes 
Commissioners Court Sponsor: Judge Biscoe 
 
 
Approve contract award for Travis County Employee Assistance 
Program, RFP No. 1407-009-CW, to the highest ranked Proposer, Deer 
Oaks EAP Services, LLC. 
 

 Purchasing Recommendation and Comments:  Purchasing 
recommends approval of requested action. This procurement action 
meets the compliance requirements as outlined by the statutes. 

The contract provides the Employee Assistance Program (EAP) for 
Travis County employees / retirees and the members of their household. 

RFP No. 1407-009-CW was issued September 15th, 2014 and closed on 
October 6th, 2014.  A total of thirty-seven (37) vendors were solicited and 
five (5) proposals were received.  Based on all the scoring of all the 
evaluation factors, as detailed in the RFP, Deer Oaks EAP Services, 
LLC (Deer Oaks) scored the highest of all proposers. 

Deer Oaks’ proposal offered the County the lowest rates and an 
expanded range of services. Deer Oaks is headquartered in San 
Antonio, Texas and has offered EAP and Work/Life services to 
employers for 22 years. They have a strong background and experience 
in offering services to similar employer groups as evidenced by 95% of 
their book of business being comprised of public employers including a 
number of other counties and municipalities. 

The evaluation committee carefully reviewed, analyzed, interviewed and 
scored several proposals from EAP vendors.  The Deer Oaks proposal 
provided the best value for Travis County.  The per employee per month 
(PEPM) fee is $1.05 which is a 7% reduction from the current rate of 
$1.13. Based on the expanded services and reduced PEPM fee, the 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Item 31Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to agenda@co.travis.tx.us by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. for the next week's meeting. 
 

committee is recommending award of the contract to Deer Oaks EAP 
Services, LLC. to begin December 1, 2014. 

As part of the proposal, Deer Oaks has provided an implementation plan 
for transitioning from the current provider, Alliance Workforce Partners, 
and will work closely with HRMD staff to provide employees with 
information and materials regarding the change in service. Deer Oaks 
will be able to assist participants currently utilizing services to ensure 
minimal impact. 

 

 Contract-Related Information: 

 

Award Amount:  N/A (Requirements Contracts, As needed) 
Contract Type:  Annual, Unilateral 
Contract Period: December 1, 2014 through November 30, 2015 

 Solicitation-Related Information: 

 

Solicitations Sent: 37 Responses Received: 5 
HUB Information: N/A % HUB Subcontractor: N/A 

 
 Funding Information: N/A 

 

  SAP Shopping Cart / Funds Reservation #: N/A 
  Comments: Shopping carts are to be processed monthly based on 

current eligible members at the contracted rates. 
 

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



 

HRMD 

Human Resources Management 
Department 

700 Lavaca Street, Suite 420 P.O. Box 1748 Austin, Texas 78767 (512) 854-9165 / FAX(512) 854-6677 • • • 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
November 6, 2014  

MEMORANDUM 
 
 
 

To:  C.W. Bruner, Purchasing Department  
 
From:   John Rabb, Benefit Manger 
   Shannon Steele, Benefit Administrator 
 
Subject: Recommendation for Award, RFP # 1311-003-CW, Fully 

Insured Stop Loss Insurance 
 
The current contract for the Employee Assistance Program (EAP) is set to expire 
on November 30, 2014. We would like to request the Purchasing Department 
recommend the awarding of the contract to Deer Oaks EAP Services LLC for an 
effective date of December 1, 2014. 
  
Deer Oaks’ proposal offered the County the lowest rates and an expanded range 
of services. Deer Oaks is headquartered in San Antonio, Texas and has offered 
EAP and Work/Life services to employers for 22 years. They have a strong 
background and experience in offering services to similar employer groups as 
evidenced by 95% of their book of business being comprised of public employers 
including a number of other counties and municipalities. 
 
The evaluation committee carefully reviewed, analyzed, interviewed and scored 
several proposals from EAP vendors. After narrowing down the vendors and 
receiving the best and final offers, the committee felt like Deer Oaks’ proposal 
provided the County with the best value for the services provided. The per 
employee per month (pepm) fee is $1.05 which is a 7% reduction from the 
current rate of $1.13. Based on the expanded services and reduced pepm fee, 
the committee is recommending award of the contract to Deer Oaks EAP 
Services LLC to begin December 1, 2014.  
 
As part of the proposal, Deer Oaks has provided an implementation plan for 
transitioning from the current provider, Alliance Workforce Partners, and will work 
closely with HRMD staff to provide employees with information and materials 
regarding the change in service. Deer Oaks will be able to assist participants 
currently utilizing services to ensure minimal impact.  
 
The funding source for this contract is 111 003 0001 513020 (Emp Asstc 
Programs) 

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



The proposal from Deer Oaks includes the following Employee Assistance 
services and programs: 
 

 Program evaluation and performance tracking to include clinical case 
management, quarterly utilization reports and an online patient satisfaction 
survey 

 Aggressive program promotion and proactive education including monthly 
employee and supervisor newsletters, brochures, wallet cards, topical 
flyers, orientation DVDs, and posters 

 Up to 75 hours of on-site seminars. These hours may be used at the 
County’s discretion for Employee EAP Orientations; Health Promotion & 
Educational Seminars; Health & Wellness Series 

 Seminars; Department of Transportation Reasonable Suspicion Seminars; 
Drug & Alcohol Policy & Education Seminars ; Supervisory Orientations & 
Seminars; Pre and Post-Incident Management Trainings; On-site 
Management/Organizational Consultation 

 On-site Mediation/Conflict Resolution Services 
 Attendance at Annual Health Fairs and Open Enrollment Activities 
 Dedicated Account Management Team 
 Confidentiality and HIPAA compliance 

 
 

The proposal also included the additional Work/Life Services: 
 

 Custom Stress Management and Workforce Engagement Initiatives 
 Complete Work/Life services including legal/financial services, child/ elder 

care/daily living resources; referral listing provided within 12 hours for 
standard cases and within six (6) hours for urgent cases 

 Free Online Identity Monitoring & Recovery Program 
 Free Online Interactive Will Preparation 
 Take the High Road Cab Reimbursement Program 
 Unlimited telephonic management/organizational development 

consultations 
 Unlimited online access to the Deer Oaks work/life website 
 Online Learning Center: an interactive feature with articles, personal 

plans, assessments, audio advice, and quick tips on a wide range of 
individual effectiveness, physical, and emotional wellbeing issues 

 Online Savings Center: a discount shopping program offering employees 
up to 25% discounts on name-brand goods and services 

 Online Skillbuilders: E-learning courses with certificates of completion 
following each session 

 Access to Free Monthly Topical Webinars via the Deer Oaks website 
 Continued access to the EAP for all employees and their families for up to 

six (6) months postemployment 
 
 
 

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



 

Travis County Purchasing Office 

RFP Evaluation Matrix Summary, RFP # 1407-009-CW, Travis County EAP 

 

RFP # 1407-009-CW 

 Travis County Employee Assistance Program 

  Deer Oaks EAP Services, LLC 89.0 

Alliance Work Partners 82.4 

Humana 75.4 

Interface EAP 64.8 

Ceridian HCM Inc. 54.0 

   

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Draft

 
 

Deer Oaks / Travis County Contract 
 

CONTRACT FOR EMPLOYEE ASSISTANCE PROGRAM  
BETWEEN TRAVIS COUNTY  

AND  
DEER OAKS EAP SERVICES LLC. 

 
This Contract is entered into by the following parties: 

 
Travis County ("County"), and 
 
Deer Oaks EAP Services LLC., a limited liability corporation registered in the State of Texas ("Contractor" 
or “Deer Oaks"). 

 
 

RECITALS 
 
 County advertised its need for employee assistance services and distributed RFP # 1407-009-CW for these 
services. Contractor has responded to that request for proposals. 
 
 

AGREEMENT 
 
 The parties agree to the terms and conditions stated in this contract. 
 
 

PART I 
 
 
1.0 NUMBER OF COUNSELING SESSIONS AND HOURS OF TRAINING:  During the first year of 

this Contract, Contractor shall provide the number of Counseling Sessions needed by a Covered Person to 
resolve the issue presented up to five (5) sessions Counseling Sessions for each separate issue and up to 
seventy five (75) hours of training and the Per Employee Per Month (PEPM) fees shall be the amount 
stated in Attachment B for that number of Counseling Sessions and hours of training. 
 

2.0 RATE GUARANTEE:  Contractor shall not increase any rate stated in Attachment B.  Both the PEPM 
rates and the hourly and per unit of service rates shall not change from December 1, 2014 through 
November 30, 2020 inclusive. The Services listed as included without additional charge under the PEPM 
in Attachment B shall not change from December 1, 2014 through November 30, 2020 inclusive. 

 
3.0 PERFORMANCE GUARANTEES:  Contractor guarantees the following aspects of performance at 

the level stated and if these levels are not achieved, Contractor shall reduce the PEPM fees for the 
following quarter by the following percent of PEPM fees at risk: 
 
3.1 Account Management: Utilization Reports will be uploaded to the employer portal within 30 

days after the end of the quarter and year and 1% of the PEPM for the following Quarter is at 
risk. 
 

3.2 Member Satisfaction: Patient Satisfaction Survey Results will rate overall experience 
satisfactory or better in at least 90% of responses to surveys and 1% of the PEPM for the 
following Quarter is at risk. 

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Draft

       PAGE 2 of 118 
 

Deer Oaks / Travis County Contract 
 

 
3.3 Member Satisfaction: Employee and Supervisor Trainings will be well received, with Training 

Survey results averaging 90% or greater “Very Satisfied” and 1% of the PEPM for the following 
Quarter is at risk. 
 

3.4 Scope of Services: All items outlined in the Scope of Services will be adhered to and1% of the 
PEPM for the following Quarter is at risk. 

 
4.0 COMPLIANCE WITH DESCRIPTIONS IN DESCRIPTON OF SERVICES IN QUESTIONAIRE: 

 
4.1 Contractor shall maintain the procedures for credentialing, the level of credentials and the level 

of experience and diversity related to its counselors and providers as described in the 
Description of Services Questionnaire. 
 

4.2 Contractor shall provide the types of counseling in terms of both subject matter and methods of 
providing services (face-to-face, telephonic, and web video) described in the Description of 
Services Questionnaire. 

 
4.3 Contractor shall maintain the standard of confidentiality described in the Description of Services 

Questionnaire. 
 

5.0 ACCESS TO EMPLOYER PORTAL:  Contractor shall provide County access to the employer portal 
to uploaded utilization reports.  Standard utilization reports are provided each quarter and annually and 
include information requested by County without infringing on member confidentiality.  Ad hoc 
utilization reports are also provided upon request. 

 
 

PART II – SPECIFIC REQUIREMENTS 
 
 
1.0 DEFINITIONS.  In Part II and all proposals, the following definitions apply: 

 
1.1 “Authorized Representative” means a Travis County supervisor, manager, or Human Resources 

staff. 
 

1.2 “Counseling Session” means a scheduled face-to-face conference of not less than 50 minutes 
between a Participant and a qualified counselor for the purpose of discussing and identifying 
areas of concern and problem solving and may include intake, assessment, diagnosis, evaluation, 
counseling, treatment, referral, if indicated, follow-up and on-going review of the Participant’s 
need for the EAP Services, but does not usually include telephone conferences except in case of 
emergency or request by the Covered Person.  Telephonic Counseling Sessions and online 
Counseling Sessions through eSessionCONNECT may take place if there is a structured format 
with the counselor and Covered Person pre-scheduling the sessions and call-in times.  These are 
appointments and differ from telephonic assessment which determines the need for an 
appointment. 

 
1.3  “Covered Person” means: 
 

1.3.1 Employees (part-time and full-time) and  
 

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Draft

       PAGE 3 of 118 
 

Deer Oaks / Travis County Contract 
 

1.3.2 Family members of employees, and any person residing in the same dwelling unit as the 
employee. 
 

1.3.3 Former employees (part-time and full-time) who are receiving counseling services at the 
time of separation from employment but only until the earliest of  

 
1.3.3.1 completion of the number of counseling sessions authorized under the 

Contract, 
 

1.3.3.2 referral to another resource by an Counselor or 
 

1.3.3.3 6 months after separation from employment. 
 
1.3.4 Retirees 

 
1.3.5 Family members of retirees, and any person residing in the same dwelling unit as the 

retiree. 
 

1.4 “Day” means calendar day. 
 
1.5 “EAP Services” means the employee assistance program services described in this Part II and 

described in further detail Attachment A in Contractor’s Proposal, and Exhibit 1 to Attachment A, 
Revised Questionnaire. 
 

1.6 “Mandatory Referral” means the requirement imposed by an Authorized Representative as a 
condition of employment that a Covered Person participates in Counseling Sessions and 
successfully completes the course of treatment recommended by a counselor. 

 
1.7 “Participant” means any Covered Person who requests assistance from Contractor. 

 
2.0 IMPLEMENTATION OF EAP PROGRAM:  County and Contractor shall implement this Contract 

based on the time table and implementation plan proposed by Contractor and negotiated with County 
and attached to this Contract in Attachment A, pages 43 through 45 in Contractor’s Proposal. 
 

3.0 TYPES OF EAP SERVICES: 
 
3.1 Contractor shall provide at least the following types of EAP Services as they are more 

specifically described in this contract and Attachment A: 
 

3.1.1 Helpline assistance, 
 

3.1.2 Short-term Counseling Sessions,  
 

3.1.3 Substance abuse services, 
 

3.1.4 Mandatory referral,  
 

3.1.5 Critical incident support, 
 

3.1.6 Information and education services, and 

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Draft

       PAGE 4 of 118 
 

Deer Oaks / Travis County Contract 
 

 
3.1.7 Administrative and reporting services. 

 
4.0 “HELPLINE” ASSISTANCE: 
 

4.1 Contractor must maintain a 24 hours per day /7 days per week /365 days of the year toll-free 
telephone assistance helpline for Covered Persons as a means of discussing confidential or 
sensitive workplace or personal issues. 
 

4.2 Contractor shall provide access to a Spanish speaking bilingual counselor on the helpline at all 
times.  The use of a translation line is also acceptable. 
 

4.3 Contractor shall provide appropriate telephone services for the hearing impaired. 
 

4.4 Qualified, licensed counselors shall be available at all times via the Helpline.  The Helpline is 
answered “live” by Work/Life Consultants during normal business hours with counselors 
available to provide clinical assessments and in-the-moment support services. 
 

4.5 In cases determined by the counselor to be an emergency, Contractor shall ensure that the 
helpline counselor arranges a face-to-face appointment for the Participant within two (2) hours if 
clinically appropriate. In these situations the case manager will follow the escalation procedure as 
warranted. This may include involvement of emergency services, ER or hospitalization to preserve 
the employee’s safety. Subsequent appointments are available within 24 hours following the 
employee being stabilized. 

 
4.6 If a Participant contacts the helpline to make an appointment, Contractor shall give the 

Participant the name of a local network counselor and allow the Participant to make the 
appointment with the counselor unless the Participant requests assistance from the helpline 
counselor in making the appointment. 

 
4.7 Contractor shall not use any answering or paging services for the helpline. 

 
5.0 COUNSELING SERVICES: 
 

5.1 Contractor shall provide Counseling Sessions in places and manner that provide confidentiality 
regarding the use of the EAP Services, physical safety and security, and easy accessibility for 
Participants needing accommodation under the Americans with Disabilities Act.  Contractor 
shall provide Counseling Sessions for Participants at a local office.  Contractor shall not provide 
Counseling Sessions in the home of a Participant. 
 

5.2 Contractor shall only use qualified, licensed counselors to conduct Counseling Sessions.  If a 
Participant requests a specific counselor, Contractor shall honor the request, if possible. 

 
5.3 Contractor shall provide comprehensive short-term Counseling Sessions for a broad range of 

personal problems, including but not limited to: 
 
5.3.1 Stress 

 
5.3.2 Psychological or emotional problems 

 

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Draft

       PAGE 5 of 118 
 

Deer Oaks / Travis County Contract 
 

5.3.3 Crisis intervention 
 

5.3.4 Marital and/or family problems 
 

5.3.5 Child and/or adolescent problems 
 

5.3.6 Substance abuse 
 

5.3.7 Management of anger/conflict/violence 
 

5.3.8 Other as determined by County or counselor 
 
5.4 Contractor shall refer the Participant to another appropriate resource for assistance if Contractor 

determines additional assistance is required after Contractor has conducted the number of 
Counseling Sessions authorized by the Contract.  To the extent practicable, Contractor shall 
ensure that the counselor coordinates with a Participant’s healthcare provider or other applicable 
insurance provider when making a referral. 
 

6.0 SUBSTANCE ABUSE SERVICES: 
 

6.1 Contractor shall provide substance abuse services that comply with drug testing regulations of 
the Department of Transportation (DOT) (49 CFR part 40) for Covered Persons who as a result 
of their position are required to submit to regular drug and alcohol testing under the Travis 
County Drug and Alcohol Policy.  These substance abuse services must qualify as services 
provided by a Substance Abuse Professional (SAP) under the federal regulations in 49 CFR Part 
40. 

 
6.2 For Mandatory Referrals as a result of a positive drug/alcohol test, Contractor shall provide the 

services of a SAP. 
 

7.0 MANDATORY REFERRAL: 
 
7.1 Contractor shall provide Counseling Sessions for Covered Persons who are the subject of a 

Mandatory Referral. 
 

7.2 Contractor shall evaluate all Covered Persons who are subject to Mandatory Referrals on a 
timely basis based on the presenting issue(s). 

 
8.0 CRITICAL INCIDENTS:  Contractor shall respond to all critical incident requests as described and 

proposed by Contractor. 
 

9.0 INFORMATION AND EDUCATION SERVICES: 
 

9.1 Contractor shall provide high quality communication about the benefits available from 
Contractor by conducting meetings and by providing materials in a simplified, easy-to-
understand manner in English, Spanish and other languages as needed. 

 
9.2 County has the right to approve all information provided to Covered Persons such as 

informational materials, educational materials, training and orientation outlines, and any other 
printed materials prior to their distribution or presentation. 

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Draft

       PAGE 6 of 118 
 

Deer Oaks / Travis County Contract 
 

 
9.3 Contractor shall offer face to face training programs and consultation related to at least the 

following topics: 
 

9.3.1 common personal and workplace issues, 
 

9.3.2 intervention during crisis situations, and 
 

9.3.3 recognition and documentation of symptoms as indicators of the possible use of drugs 
and/or alcohol 

 
10.0 ADMINISTRATIVE AND REPORTING SERVICES: 
 

10.1 Contractor shall prepare and provide the Project Manager with quarterly and annual reports, in 
electronic format, that include at least the following information related to EAP utilization by 
service area, outcomes of EAP Services where applicable and estimated costs: 
 
10.1.1 Number of counseling contacts per Participant by type and duration 
 

10.1.1.1 Average number of Counseling Sessions per Participant 
 

10.1.1.2 Number of Counseling Sessions per Participant (ex: 1 session, 2 sessions,  
etc.) 

 
10.1.2 Participant satisfaction survey results 

 
10.1.3 Statistical information related to utilization by type of service in the form of: 

10.1.3.1 Gender of Participant 
 

10.1.3.2 Race of Participant 
 

10.1.3.3 Age of Participant 
 

10.1.3.4 Categories that identify primary and secondary problems 
 

10.1.3.5 Type of Participant such as employee, spouse, child, member of  
household, parent, retiree, other, or not disclosed. 

 
10.1.3.6 Case Status such as new, ongoing, active, closed, disposition, or if closed. 

 
10.1.3.7 If referred to Contractor, who referred Participant. 

 
10.1.3.8 If self-referred to Contractor, how Participant learned about the program. 
 

10.1.4 Number of training hours provided by type and location 
 

  

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Draft

       PAGE 7 of 118 
 

Deer Oaks / Travis County Contract 
 

 
PART III - SPECIAL PROVISIONS 

 
 
1.0 TERM OF CONTRACT: The Contract shall be for a one (1) year period commencing December 1, 

2014 12:00 A.M. Central Standard Time. 
 
2.0 OPTION TO EXTEND:  County may unilaterally extend this Contract for (i) five (5) additional one 

(1) year periods and (ii) three (3) additional one (1) month periods (individually, an “Option to Extend” 
and collectively, the “Options to Extend”).  When County exercises its option to extend this Contract, 
County also has the option to select whether the number of Counseling Sessions included in the Per 
Employee Per Month fee for that option year will be five (5), seven (7) or ten (10) during that option 
year. In addition, County has the option to select whether the number of hours of training included in the 
Per Employee Per Month fees for that option year will be fifty (50) hours or seventy-five (75) hours. 
The modification exercising the option to extend must include the number of Counseling Sessions and 
hours of training on which the fees for that year will be determined.  If a number of sessions or a number 
of hours of training is not stated in any modification exercising the option to extend this Contract, the 
missing number for that option year shall be the same as the number for that item during the preceding year.  
All other provisions of this Contract, except for term and price, shall remain unchanged and in full force.  
County may exercise an Option to Extend no sooner than ninety (90) days prior to expiration of the then 
current term.  The total term of this Contract, including the Options to Extend, shall not exceed seventy-
five (75) months.  County may exercise all or a portion of the Option to Extend in any combination it 
deems necessary. 
 

3.0 ADMINISTRATION OF CONTRACT: This Contract is administered by the benefits function for the 
County within the County Human Resources Management's Department.  John Rabb is the Benefits 
Manager, telephone (512) 854-2742.  Debbie L. Maynor is the County HRMD Director, telephone (512) 
854-9165. 

 
4.0 FEES FOR EAP SERVICES, ATTACHMENT B 

 
If there are no fees listed in Attachment B for a particular Service, Contractor shall 
not charge County any fee for that service. 

 
5.0 CONTRACT ADMINISTRATOR: 

 
5.1 The Purchasing Agent is the chief procurement officer and acts as the overall contracts 

administrator. 
 

5.2 The Project Manager has been designated as County’s primary representative on the Contract 
and acts on behalf of the County, and has the authority to interpret in writing policies and make 
decisions about Contractor performance.  The Project Manager may designate representatives to 
transmit instructions and receive information. The Project Manager oversees day to day work 
and reviews Contractor’s performance of EAP Services under this Contract on behalf of the 
County.  Whenever Contractor is required to obtain the approval of County or report to County, 
Contractor shall seek approval from and shall deliver the report to the Project Manager, or any 
other person that the parties may from time to time direct in writing.   The Project Manager 
establishes requirements, approves and coordinates schedules, users, and equipment.  
 

  

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Draft

       PAGE 8 of 118 
 

Deer Oaks / Travis County Contract 
 

6.0 MINIMUM COVERAGE FOR INSURANCE: 
 
6.1 Minimum Coverage: 

 
Minimum insurance coverage may be written as combined single limits or structured using 
primary and excess or umbrella coverage that follows the form of the primary policy. Contractor 
acknowledges and shall maintain the following standard minimum insurance coverage applicable 
to Contractor and any subcontractor performing work related to EAP Services all in compliance 
with Part IV, sections 5.4 and 5.5: 
 
6.1.1 Workers’ compensation and employers’ liability insurance that meets the following 

requirements: 
 

6.1.1.1 Coverage that is consistent with statutory benefits outlined in the Texas Workers’ 
Compensation Act, 
 

6.1.1.2 Employers’ liability limits of: 
 

$500,000 bodily injury each accident, 
$500,000 bodily injury by disease, and 
$500,000 policy limit. 

 
6.1.1.3 Policies that are subject to the laws of the State of Texas and include the 

following endorsements in favor of Travis County: 
 
Waiver of Subrogation (Form 420304), and  
Thirty (30) day Notice of Cancellation (Form 420601). 
 

6.1.2 Commercial general liability insurance that meets the following requirements: 
 
6.1.2.1 Minimum limits for coverage: 

 
$500,000 per occurrence for coverage A for Bodily Injury and Property Damage,  
$500,000 per occurrence for coverage B Personal Injury and Advertisement, and  
$1,000,000 policy aggregate. 
 

6.1.2.2 Policy that is subject to the laws of the State of Texas and contains the following 
coverage or is endorsed in favor of Travis County as follows: 
 
Blanket contractual liability for this Contract, 
Independent Contractor Coverage, 
Waiver of Subrogation (Form CG 2404), 
Thirty (30) day Notice of Cancellation (Form CG 0205), and 
Travis County named as additional insured (Form CG 2010). 
 

6.1.3 Business automobile liability insurance that meets the following requirements: 
 
6.1.3.1 If any form of transportation for county personnel or clients is provided, 

minimum coverage for all owned, non-owned, and hired vehicles with a 
combined single limit of $300,000 per occurrence. 

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Draft

       PAGE 9 of 118 
 

Deer Oaks / Travis County Contract 
 

 
6.1.3.2 Policy that is subject to the laws of the State of Texas and include the following 

endorsements in favor of Travis County: 
 

Waiver of Subrogation (Form TE 2046A), 
Thirty (30) day Notice of Cancellation (Form TE 0202A), and 
Travis County named as additional insured (Form TE 9901B). 

 
6.1.3.3 Alternative Insurance Requirement. If no transportation services of any type are 

provided, and use of motor vehicles is strictly limited to travel to and from work 
or work sites, evidence of Personal Auto Policy coverage with limits of $100,000 
/ $300,000 / $50,000 may be provided in lieu of Business Automobile Liability 
Insurance in sections 7.1.3.1 and 7.1.3.2. 
 

6.1.3.4 Any Policy under section 7.1.3.3 must be subject to the laws of the State of Texas 
and include the following endorsements in favor of Travis County: 

 
Waiver of Subrogation (Form TE 2046A), and 
Travis County named as additional insured (Form TE 9901B). 

 
6.1.4 Professional liability / E & O insurance that meets the following requirements: 

 
6.1.4.1 Minimum limit for coverage for malpractice, negligent acts, errors, or omissions 

and sexual harassment: 
 
6.1.4.1.1 $1,000,000 per claim, and 

 
6.1.4.1.2 $3,000,000 aggregate. 

 
6.1.4.2 Policy that is subject to the laws of the State of Texas and include the following 

endorsements in favor of Travis County: 
 
6.1.4.2.1 Waiver of Subrogation (if including in Commercial General 

insurance, Form CG 2404 or its equivalent, and 
 

6.1.4.2.2 Thirty (30) day Notice of Cancellation (if including in Commercial 
General Insurance, Form CG 2404 or its equivalent. 

 
6.1.4.3 If coverage is written on a claims made basis, the retroactive date must be prior to 

the earlier of the date this Contract is signed or effective and include a three (3) 
year extended reporting period from the date this Contract ends.  The Certificate 
of Insurance must state whether the coverage is claims made and contain both the 
retroactive date of coverage and the extended reporting date. 
 

6.1.4.4 Any subcontractor who is not covered under Contractor’s professional liability 
insurance shall provide Contractor with current certificates of insurance annually 
on the renewal date of their insurance policy. 

 
6.2 Contractor must mail the Certificate of Insurance, and updates, submitted in compliance with 

Part IV section 5.5.6 to the following address: 

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Draft

       PAGE 10 of 118 
 

Deer Oaks / Travis County Contract 
 

 
Cyd Grimes 
Travis County Purchasing Agent 
RFP # 1407-009-CW 
P.O. Box 1748 
Austin, Texas 78767 

 
 

PART IV - GENERAL PROVISIONS 
 
 
1.0 GENERAL DEFINITIONS: 

 
1.1 "Auditor" means the Travis County Auditor or her designee. 

 
1.2 "Commissioners Court" means Travis County Commissioners Court. 

 
1.4 "County" means Travis County, Texas, a political subdivision of the State of Texas. 

 
1.5 “Day” means calendar day. 
 
1.6 “Project Manager” means: 

 
Travis County Human Resources Management Department 
Attn: John Rabb 
700 Lavaca Street, Suite 420 
Austin, Texas 78701 

 
1.6 "Purchasing Agent" means the Travis County Purchasing Agent. 
 
1.8 “Working Day” means Monday through Friday except for days that County has designed as 

holidays. 
 

2.0 CONTRACTOR RESPONSIBILITIES: 
 
2.1 Timeliness of EAP Services:  Contractor shall perform the EAP Services in a timely manner. 

 
2.2 Cooperation and Coordination:  Contractor shall cooperate and coordinate with County staff and 

other entities as reasonable and necessary and as required by the Project Manager. 
 
2.3 Personnel Used:  Contractor expressly acknowledges that, in entering into this Contract, County 

has relied on the representations of Contractor about the persons who will be performing the 
EAP Services and their qualifications. Contractor shall ensure that all work done is done by the 
employees or members of Contractor or members of Contractor’s network that are presented as 
performing the EAP Services in Contractor’s proposal. Contractor shall not use any other person 
to provide EAP Services unless, before providing EAP Services, the Purchasing Agent approves 
the person at the request of Project Manager. 

 
2.4 Professional Qualifications:  At all times during Contract, Contractor shall maintain in good 

standing its professional license and accreditations applicable to EAP Services. Contractor shall 

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Draft

       PAGE 11 of 118 
 

Deer Oaks / Travis County Contract 
 

perform all acts reasonably necessary to maintain and improve its professional competence and 
training.  Contractor shall Notify County within two (2) Work Days if any adverse action related to 
its professional license and accreditations or those of any employee or member of Contractor or 
member of Contractor’s network occurs. 

 
2.5 Right to Contractual Material:  All work products created or produced by Contractor as a result 

of EAP Services, including programming, reports, charts, schedules, or other appended 
documentation to any responses, inquiries, correspondence, and related material are the property 
of the County at the time of creation. Any intellectual property rights granted to the County 
survive the termination of this Contract and endure for the useful life of the contractual material 
and other intellectual property rights provided. 

 
2.6 Rights to Contractor’s Work Products:  Upon full payment, Contractor assigns to County any 

and all rights, title and interest, including, without limitation, copyrights, trade secrets and 
proprietary rights to the work products developed or prepared specifically for County under this 
Contract.  The work products exclude all third party works and products whether or not included 
or embedded in Contractor’s work products.  Contractor shall give County reasonable assistance, 
at County's expense, to perfect this assignment of these rights, title and interest.  However, if the 
work products include intellectual property owned or developed by Contractor before and 
independent from, its obligations under this Contract, Contractor retains all rights to that 
previous and independent product. In addition, Contractor retains the right to use its knowledge, 
experience, and know-how, including processes, ideas, concepts and techniques developed in the 
course of performing the EAP Services. 

 
2.7 Standard of Care:  Despite anything to the contrary in this Contract, Contractor shall perform all 

EAP Services using at least the standard of care that a reasonably prudent person in that 
profession in Travis County, Texas would use in similar circumstances. This Contract shall not 
be construed to relieve Contractor of this duty. 

 
2.8 Ethical Standards:  Contractor shall perform the EAP Services and exercise all discretionary 

powers in a manner consistent with applicable standards of professional conduct and ethics and 
Contractor’s best professional judgment. 

 
2.9 Civil Rights/ADA Compliance:  In relation to performing the EAP Services, Contractor shall not 

discriminate against any applicant, employee, Covered Person or other person or in the selection 
and retention of counselors, subcontractors, including procurements of materials, on the basis of 
race, color, religion, sex, age, national origin or disability and provide all accommodations for 
disability required by the Americans with Disabilities Act. Contractor shall not participate either 
directly or indirectly in the discrimination prohibited by section 21.5 of the Regulations, 
including employment practices.  Contractor shall provide all services and goods required under 
this Contract in a manner that would comply with the federal laws prohibiting discrimination if 
Contractor were required to comply with these laws.  In addition, Contractor shall comply with 
the requirements relative to nondiscrimination in Federally-Assisted programs including Title VI 
of the 1964 Civil Rights Act (42 USC Section 2000d, et. seq.), the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, 29 
U.S.C. § 794 (2006), and the Americans With Disabilities Act of 1990, as amended, and 49 CFR 
Part 21, both as explained in Federal Transit Administration (FTA) Circular 4702.1A, as they 
may be amended (“the Regulations”) which are incorporated by reference and made a part of this 
Contract.  If Contractor does not comply with the nondiscrimination provisions of this section, 
County shall impose the sanctions that County determines to be appropriate, including 
withholding payments to Contractor under this Contract until Contractor complies, or cancelling, 

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Draft

       PAGE 12 of 118 
 

Deer Oaks / Travis County Contract 
 

terminating or suspending the Contract, in whole or in part. 
 
2.10 Records: 
 

2.10.1 Maintenance and Retention:  Contractor shall create and maintain  all necessary and 
appropriate information and documentation (including accounting records) related to the 
EAP Services for at least three (3) years after providing the EAP Services, or until any 
litigation concerning any Services has been satisfactorily resolved, whichever occurs 
later. 
 

2.10.2 Access:  At reasonable times and on reasonable notice, Contractor shall make available to 
County or its duly authorized representatives any information and documentation in 
Contractor’s possession or control, which directly pertains to EAP Services for audits, 
examinations, excerpts, and transcriptions for as long as Contractor has access to the 
information and documentation. 

 
2.10.3 Duplication of information and documentation:  Contractor shall provide copies of 

information and documentation to County upon written request to Contractor at a cost 
based on the rates applicable to copies provided pursuant to the Texas Public Information 
Act. 

 
2.11 Return of County Equipment and Access Keys:  At the end of this Contract, Contractor shall 

return property of any kind, including all keys, access cards and other means of access to county 
owned and leased buildings and other property that have been provided to it or its staff.  
Contractor shall not permit its employees to take or retain any County property or any property 
of County employees. 
 

2.12 Legal Compliance:  Contractor shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, rules, 
regulations, and ordinances applicable to the performance of all EAP Services. 

 
2.13 Conflict of Interest Questionnaire.  If required, Contractor shall complete, file and update a 

Conflict of Interest Questionnaire in compliance with Chapter 176 of the Texas Local 
Government Code. Contractor acknowledges that the law requires the County to provide access 
to this questionnaire on the official Travis County website. 

 
2.14 Certification Regarding Debarment.  Contractor shall complete and update a Certification 

Regarding Debarment on the form in Attachment C whenever there is a change in status. 
 

2.15 HIPAA Business Associate Agreement.  Contractor shall execute and deliver to County the 
Business Associate Agreement in the form in Attachment E simultaneously with the execution of 
this Contract. 

 
3.0 CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATIONS, WARRANTIES AND ACKNOWLEDGMENTS: 

 
3.1 Limit of Authority of County Representatives:  Contractor acknowledges that no officer, agent, 

employee, or representative of County has any authority to change this Contract, to approve 
assignment of any part of it, or to waive any provision of it unless expressly granted that specific 
authority by Commissioners Court. 
 

3.2 Truth of Proposal:  Contractor warrants that all of the information provided in its proposal is true 

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Draft

       PAGE 13 of 118 
 

Deer Oaks / Travis County Contract 
 

and correct and that Contractor will use its best efforts to provide quality service to County. 
 
3.3 Compliance with Licensure Requirements:  Contractor warrants that Contractor is current in 

payment and in good standing under all licensure requirements applicable to its business and the 
EAP Services to be provided under this Contract pursuant to all federal and state statutes, rules 
and regulations. 

 
3.4 Copyrights, Patents, and Licenses:  Contractor represents that all applicable copyrights, patents, 

licenses, and other proprietary or intellectual property rights which may exist on materials used 
in this Contract have been adhered to, and warrants that the County is not liable for any 
infringement of those rights. 

 
3.5 Payment of Property Taxes:  Contractor warrants that Contractor is not currently delinquent in 

payment of property taxes to the Travis County Tax Assessor–Collector. 
 

3.6 Independent Contractor:  Contractor acknowledges that Contractor is an independent contractor, 
operating solely in that capacity, and assumes all of the rights, obligations and liabilities 
applicable to it as an independent contractor.  Contractor acknowledges that neither it nor its 
employees are an employee of County, and Contractor and its employees do not gain any rights 
against County pursuant to the County personnel policies and procedures. 

 
3.7 No Agency Relationship:  Contractor acknowledges that it does not have the authority to enter 

into any contract in the name of County or otherwise bind County in any way without the 
express written consent of County.   County does not have the authority to enter into any contract 
in the name of Contractor or otherwise bind Contractor in any way without the express written 
consent of Contractor. 

 
3.8 Understanding of Requirements:  Contractor represents that it has thoroughly examined the 

technical requirements, performance parameters, instructions and all other Contract documents. 
Contractor has made all investigations necessary to be thoroughly informed regarding technical 
requirements, performance parameters for delivery of material, equipment and/or services as 
required by this Contract. 

 
3.9 Financial Status:  Contractor certifies that it is a duly qualified, capable, and otherwise bondable 

business entity, that it is not in receivership or contemplates same, and has not filed for 
bankruptcy. It further certifies that the company, corporation or partnership is not currently 
delinquent with respect to payment of property taxes within County. 

 
3.10 Commissions:  Contractor warrants that no persons or selling agency has been retained to solicit 

this Contract upon an understanding for a commission, percentage, brokerage, or contingent fee 
income, supplemental income, excepting bona fide employees or bona fide established 
commercial selling agencies maintained by Contractor to secure business. If Contractor violates 
this warranty, Contractor is subject to termination of this Contract without recourse or 
compensating County for the full amount of such commission, percentage, brokerage, or 
contingent fee at County’s discretion. 

 
3.11 Gratuities:  Contractor warrants that Contractor and anyone acting on behalf of Contractor has 

not offered or given any gratuities of any kind including entertainment, or gifts to any County 
official or employee with a view toward securing favorable treatment with respect of this 
Contract. 

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Draft

       PAGE 14 of 118 
 

Deer Oaks / Travis County Contract 
 

 
3.12 Lobbying with Federal Funds:  Contractor warrants that Contractor has not paid and will not pay, 

and no one else has paid or will pay on behalf of Contractor, any federally appropriated funds  to 
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a 
member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a member of 
Congress in connection with awarding of any federal contract, the making of any federal grant, 
the making of any federal loan, the entering into of any cooperative agreement, or the extension, 
continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any federal contract, grant, loan, or 
cooperative agreement. 

 
4.0 COMPENSATION AND PAYMENT: 

 
4.1 Taxpayer Identification Number:  Contractor shall provide County with an Internal Revenue 

Form W-9 Request for Taxpayer Identification Number and Certification that is completed in 
compliance with the Internal Revenue Code, its rules and regulations before any Contract funds 
are payable. 
 

4.2 Fees and Invoicing:  In consideration of the satisfactory performance of the EAP Services by 
Contractor and Contractor’s compliance with this Contract, County shall pay Contractor in 
accordance with the Fee Rates and Payment Schedule in Attachment B based on invoices 
prepared by County for PEPM Fess and by Contractor for services not included in the PEPM 
Fees and payable based on hourly fees or unit of service fees in compliance with Attachment B.  
County is not liable for any advance payments. 

 
4.3 Acceptance of EAP Services:  County is not responsible for the cost of any EAP Services until 

County has accepted the EAP Services.  County shall accept EAP Services when County 
determines, in its sole discretion,  that the EAP Services have been performed and completed in a 
good and timely manner to County’s satisfaction and at a standard acceptable in Contractor’s 
profession.  County shall not unreasonably withhold acceptance. 

 
4.4 Delayed Payment to Contractor Due to Outstanding Debt: 
 

4.4.1 In section 4.4, “Debt” includes delinquent taxes, fines, fees owing to the state or the 
County, and indebtedness arising from written agreements with Texas or County for 
which a notice with evidence has been filed with the County Auditor or Travis County 
Treasurer. 
 

4.4.2 Section 154.045 of the Texas Local Government Code authorizes County not to draw a 
check on any County fund in favor of Contractor, or its agent or assignee until the Debt is 
paid after the Travis County Treasurer notifies Contractor in writing that the Debt is 
outstanding. 

 
4.4.3 If the Treasurer’s notice states that any amount owed by the County to Contractor may be 

applied to reduce the outstanding Debt, County may apply any amount County owes 
Contractor to the outstanding balance of the Debt. 

 
4.5 Timely Payment:  County pays Contractor within thirty (30) Days after County accepts the EAP 

Services and County receives a complete and accurate invoice, whichever is later.  County pays 
interest on overdue payments in compliance with Chapter 2251 of the Texas Government Code. 
 

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Draft

       PAGE 15 of 118 
 

Deer Oaks / Travis County Contract 
 

4.6 Unauthorized Invoicing:  County is not liable for any of the following: 
 

4.6.1 costs incurred or performances rendered by Contractor before or after the Contract term, 
 

4.6.2 expenses not billed to County within the applicable time limits in this Contract, or 
 

4.6.3 any costs for activities not included as EAP Services. 
 
4.7 Return of Overpayment:  Contractor is liable to County if and when County determines that a 

payment has resulted in overpayment. Contractor shall repay the overpayment to County within 
thirty (30) Days after County requests a repayment. If Contractor does not repay the 
overpayment within thirty (30) Days, County may offset the amount of any overpayment against 
the next amount payable to Contractor under this or any other contract. 
 

5.0 RISK ALLOCATION: 
 
5.1 Definition of Claim:  In section 5.0, “Third Party Claim” means any negligence, cause of action, 

suit, proceeding before any administrative agency, loss, damages, or liability of any kind, 
including all expenses of litigation, court costs and attorney’s fees. 
 

5.2 Indemnification: 
 

5.2.1 Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless the County, its officers, 
agents, and employees, from all Third Party Claims for injury to or death of 
any person, for any act or omission by Contractor, or for damage to any 
property, arising out of or in connection with the EAP Services. 
 

5.2.2 Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless the County, its officers, 
agents, and employees from all Third Party Claims for damages to any 
person or property arising in connection with any alleged or actual 
infringement of existing patents, licenses, copyrights or other intellectual 
property rights applicable to materials used in and work products arising 
from this Contract. 

 
5.3 Claims Notification:  If Contractor receives notice or becomes aware of any Third Party Claim 

against Contractor or County, without regard to who brought it, Contractor shall give County 
Notice within three (3) Working Days after Contractor becomes aware of the Claim or threat of 
Claim. Unless otherwise directed, Contractor shall furnish County copies of all pertinent papers 
received by Contractor regarding the Claim. Contractor’s Notice shall include: 
 
5.3.1 a written description of the Third Party Claim; 

 
5.3.2 the name and address of whoever made or threatened to make the Third Party Claim; 

 
5.3.3 the basis of the Third Party Claim; 

 
5.3.4 the court or administrative tribunal, if any, where the Third Party Claim was instituted; 

and 

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Draft

       PAGE 16 of 118 
 

Deer Oaks / Travis County Contract 
 

 
5.3.5 the name of any other persons against whom this Third Party Claim is being made or 

threatened. 
 
5.4 Requirement for Insurance:  Contractor shall have and maintain at least the minimum types of 

insurance listed in Part III section 7 throughout the term of this Contract.  Contractor’s insurance 
must be sufficient to cover the needs of Contractor pursuant to applicable generally accepted 
business standards related to the risks associated with providing the EAP Services, but not less 
than the minimum coverage limits listed in Part III section 7. Depending on EAP Services 
provided by Contractor, supplemental insurance requirements or alternate insurance options may 
apply in addition to those listed in Part III.  If County authorizes Contractor to subcontract EAP 
Services under this Contract, Contractor shall either maintain insurance that covers all 
subcontractors and complies with this subsection and 5.5 and Part III section 7 throughout the 
term of the Contract or ensure that all subcontractors have and maintain insurance for the work 
related to the EAP Services that is performed by them and that their insurance complies with 
sections 5.4 and 5.5 and Part III section 7 while performing work related to the EAP Services. 
 

5.5 General Insurance Requirements:  Contractor shall comply with the following requirements 
related to insurance: 
 
5.5.1 Contractor shall obtain insurance written by companies licensed in Texas that have an 

A.M. Best rating of B+ VIII or higher.  If Contractor wants to use surplus carriers, these 
carriers are subject to County approval. 
 

5.5.2 Insurance that names Travis County as an additional insured is primary for all claims 
under it. 

 
5.5.3 Insurance coverage specified in this Contract is not intended and will not be interpreted to 

limit the responsibility or liability of Contractor. 
 

5.5.4 Before Contractor begins EAP Services, Contractor shall have at least the required 
insurance in force.  Contractor shall not allow any insurance to be cancelled or lapse and 
shall not permit the minimum limits of coverage to erode or otherwise be reduced during 
this Contract. Contractor is responsible for all premiums, deductibles, and self-insured 
retention. 

 
5.5.5 Contractor shall submit a Certificate of Insurance written on the state-approved form and 

signed by the writing agent or the carrier to the Purchasing Agent within ten (10) 
Working Days after the earlier of execution of the Contract by both parties, or the 
effective date of the Contract. The Certificates of Insurance must include the Travis 
County contract number, all deductibles and self-insured retention, and the following 
endorsements, if applicable: 

 
5.5.5.1 an endorsement that names Travis County as additional insured where County’s 

interest may lie, 
 

5.5.5.2 an endorsement which makes the insurance primary for all claims, 
 

5.5.5.3 a Waiver of Subrogation endorsement 
 

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Draft

       PAGE 17 of 118 
 

Deer Oaks / Travis County Contract 
 

5.5.5.4 a Thirty (30) Day Notice of Cancellation endorsement 
 

5.5.6 Contractor shall provide replacement Certificates of Insurance to the Purchasing Agent 
within ten (10) days of the each renewal of insurance during the term of this Contract in 
compliance with Part III, section 7.2. 
 

5.5.7 On its request, County is entitled to receive certified copies of policies and endorsements 
at no additional expense to County. 

 
5.5.8 Contractor acknowledges that County has the right to review insurance requirements 

during any term of the Contract and to require that Contractor make reasonable 
adjustments when the EAP Services have changed or expanded. 

 
6.0 CHANGES TO CONTRACTOR’S RIGHTS AND OBLIGATIONS: 

 
6.1 Assignment:  The parties may not assign any rights or duties in this Contract without the prior 

written approval of the other party. Contractor may submit a written request for an assignment to 
the Purchasing Agent with a copy to Project Manager.  The Purchasing Agent shall submit 
requests to the Commissioners Court for appropriate action.  If Contractor fails to obtain 
approval, County may delay payment or exercise other legal or equitable rights.  If Contractor 
assigns this Contract in compliance with this section, all aspects of this Contract are binding 
upon and inure to the benefit of its successors in interest and assigns.  If County assigns this 
Contract in compliance with this section, all aspects of this Contract are binding upon and inure 
to the benefit of its successors in interest and assigns. 
 

6.2 Subcontracting:  Except as otherwise specifically provided in this Contract, Contractor may not 
subcontract with any other person to perform any of the EAP Services or other obligations under 
this Contract.  If County authorizes subcontracting, Contractor shall include the provisions of 
sections 2.9 Civil Rights\ADA Compliance and 2.10 Records in every subcontract under this 
Contract, including procurements of materials, unless exempt by the Regulations, or directives 
issued pursuant to them. 

 
6.3 General:  Unless specifically provided otherwise in this Contract, any change to this Contract 

must be in writing and signed by each party. 
 
6.4 Requests for Changes:  Contractor shall submit requests for changes to this Contract to the 

Purchasing Agent with a copy to the Project Manager. 
 
6.5 Purchasing Agent Authority:  The Purchasing Agent has certain limited authority to approve 

changes subject to Chapter 262 of the Texas Local Government Code and County policy 
approved by the Commissioners Court.  Within that authority, the Purchasing Agent may 
approve certain requests to change this Contract.  At any time, the Purchasing Agent may submit 
any request to the Commissioners Court for approval, regardless of the authority of the 
Purchasing Agent to approve the change. 

 
6.6 Change of Name:  If Contractor’s actions require County to recognize a change of Contractor’s 

name, Contractor must notify the Purchasing Agent immediately.  County does not recognize 
any change in its Contractor’s obligations until Purchasing Agent approves the change. 

 
7.0 DISPUTE RESOLUTION: 

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Draft

       PAGE 18 of 118 
 

Deer Oaks / Travis County Contract 
 

 
7.1 Procedure. 

 
7.1.1 In this section 7.1, “Correspondence” means any notice, document, letter, email, or other 

tangible transfer of information related to an issue and “Dispute Manager” means the 
Purchasing Agent or other representative authorized by Commissioners Court. 
 

7.1.2 Notice of Dispute: 
 

If Contractor and the Project Manager have been unable to resolve any issue related to 
this Contract, Contractor may submit a Notice of the dispute to the Dispute Manager.  
The Notice should contain specific details about the issues and Contractor’s preferred 
resolution of the dispute, including mediation, if desired. Contractor may include any 
other relevant information. 

 
7.1.3 Flow of Information: 

 
After the Dispute Manager receives Contractor’s Notice, the Dispute Manager represents 
the County in the administration of the dispute. After this Notice, any additional 
Correspondence is not effective unless it is directed to or sent by the Dispute Manager.  If 
Contractor disagrees with any Correspondence issued by the Dispute Manager, 
Contractor shall submit a written response detailing its reasons for disagreement with the 
Correspondence to the Dispute Resolver and the Project Manager within ten (10) Days 
after receipt of the Correspondence. 

 
7.1.4 Proposed Resolution: 

 
Within thirty (30) Days after the Dispute Manager receives Contractor’s response, the 
Dispute Manager must send a final written proposal for resolution of the dispute to 
Contractor. 

 
7.1.5 Appeal: 

 
If the final written proposal does not resolve the dispute to Contractor’s satisfaction, 
Contractor may submit a written appeal to the Commissioners Court through the Dispute 
Manager within ten (10) Days after receipt of the unsatisfactory proposal. The Dispute 
Manager forwards a copy of the appeal to the Project Manager for it to be placed on the 
Commissioners Court agenda. The Commissioners Court hears the appeal.   Contractor 
may make a presentation at that hearing. 

 
7.2 Mediation:  When mediation is acceptable to both parties, the parties may use a mutually 

acceptable mediator, or a mediator appointed by a court of competent jurisdiction. Mediation is 
conducted in compliance with Chapter 154 of the Texas Civil Practice and Remedies Code. 
Unless both parties are satisfied with the mediated resolution, the mediation is not a final and 
binding resolution of the dispute.  All communications within the scope of the mediation must 
remain confidential in compliance with section 154.073 of the Texas Civil Practice and 
Remedies Code, unless both parties agree in writing to waive confidentiality. 
 

7.3 Suspension:  After Notice to Contractor, County may suspend this Contract in whole or in part 
and withhold further payments to Contractor until County and Contractor resolve the issues 

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Draft

       PAGE 19 of 118 
 

Deer Oaks / Travis County Contract 
 

causing the suspension. Contractor shall not incur additional obligations of Contract funds after 
receipt of a Notice of suspension until Contractor receives a Notice from County that the issues 
supporting suspension are resolved to County’s satisfaction. 

 
7.4 Non-Waiver of Default:  County expressly reserves all its rights under this Contract.  Any action 

that County takes to exercise any right or remedy shall not be interpreted as a waiver of any other 
rights or remedies or preclude the exercise of any other right or remedy under this Contract or 
under any law.  A payment, act, or omission by County shall not impair or prejudice any of its 
rights or remedies. 

 
8.0 TERMINATION: 

 
8.1 Termination for Convenience:  County may terminate this Contract at any time by giving 

Contractor notice of termination at least sixty (60) Days before the effective date of the termination. 
If County terminates this Contract, County is not liable for any loss of profits anticipated by 
Contractor. Contractor may terminate this Contract on the anniversary of the Contract with a by 
giving the County notice of termination at least one hundred and eighty (180) Days before the 
effective date of the termination. 
 

8.2 Termination for Default:  Either party may terminate this Contract for the failure of the other 
party to perform any material provision of this Contract by delivering Notice of termination for 
default. A party may not terminate for default if the party was a contributing cause of the failure 
to perform. The Contract terminates immediately when the defaulting party receives that Notice. 
If County terminates this Contract, County is not liable for any loss of profits anticipated by 
Contractor. 

 
8.3 Funding Out:  Despite anything to the contrary in this Contract, if the Commissioners Court fails 

to provide funding for this Contract during the budget planning and adoption process for the next 
County fiscal year, County may terminate this Contract after giving Contractor twenty (20) 
Days’ Notice that this Contract is terminated due to the failure to fund it. 

 
9.0 FORFEITURE OF CONTRACT BENEFITS: 

 
9.1 In this section 9.3, 9.4, and the Ethics Affidavit, “Is doing business” and “has done business” 

mean: 
9.1.1 paying or receiving in any calendar year any money or valuable thing with a value of 

more than $250 in the aggregate in exchange for personal services or for the purchase of 
any property or property interest, either real or personal, either legal or equitable; or 
 

9.1.2 loaning or receiving a loan of money or goods, or otherwise creating or having in 
existence any legal obligation or debt with a value of more than $250 in the aggregate in 
a calendar year; 

 
9.1.3 but do not include: 

 
9.1.3.1 any retail transaction for goods or services sold to a Key Contracting Person at a 

posted, published, or marked price available to the public, 
 

9.1.3.2 any financial services product sold to a Key Contracting Person for personal, 
family, or household purposes in accordance with pricing guidelines applicable to 

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Draft

       PAGE 20 of 118 
 

Deer Oaks / Travis County Contract 
 

similarly situated individuals with similar risks as determined by Contractor in the 
ordinary course of its business; and 

 
9.1.3.3 if Contractor is a national or multinational corporation, any transaction for a 

financial service or insurance coverage made on behalf of Contractor by its agent, 
employee, or other representative who does not know and is not in a position that 
he or she should have known about the Contract. 

 
9.2 In section 9.3, 9.4, and the Ethics Affidavit, “Key Contracting Person” means any person or 

business listed in Exhibit 1 to the Ethics Affidavit attached to this Contract as Contract 
Attachment D. 
 

9.3 Contractor shall forfeit all benefits of this Contract and County shall retain all performance by 
Contractor and recover all considerations, or the value of all consideration, paid to Contractor 
pursuant to this Contract if Contractor 

 
9.3.1 was doing business with a Key Contracting Person when this Contract was executed, 

 
9.3.2 had done business with a Key Contracting Person during the year immediately before 

execution of this Contract, 
 

9.3.3 or does business with any Key Contracting Person at any time after execution of this 
Contract and before full performance of it. 

 
9.4 Contractor shall give County notice if Contractor does business with any Key Contracting Person 

at any time after execution of this Contract and before full performance of it within twenty (20) 
Days Contractor begins doing business. 
 

10.0 NOTICE: 
 
10.1 Written Notice:  All notices between the parties and related to this Contract shall be given to the 

other party in writing.  If a notice is delivered in person to the address in this section10.0 for the 
party to whom the notice is given, that notice is deemed to have been given immediately.  If a 
notice is placed in the United States mail, postage prepaid, by registered or certified mail with 
return receipt requested, addressed to the address in this section 10.0 for the party to whom the 
notice is given, that notice is deemed to have been given on the third Working Day following 
mailing. 
 

10.2 County Address:  The address of County for all purposes and notices under this Contract is: 
 

Purchasing Agent: 
Cyd Grimes, C.P.M. (or her successor) 
Travis County Purchasing Agent 
P.O. Box 1748 
Austin, Texas 78767 
 
With copies to (registered or certified mail, not required): 
 
Project Manager: 
Human Resources Management Department 

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Draft

       PAGE 21 of 118 
 

Deer Oaks / Travis County Contract 
 

John Rabb, Benefits Manager 
P.O. Box 1748 
Austin, Texas 78767 
 

10.3 Contractor Address:  The address of Contractor for all purposes and notices under this Contract 
is the address stated on the award of contract. 
 

10.4 Change of Address:  Each party may change its address for notice by giving Notice of the new 
address.  County and Contractor shall give Notice to each other of any change in its address, 
including a change in the person to whom attention is directed, within fifteen (15) Days of the 
change. 

 
11.0 GENERAL PROVISIONS: 

 
11.1 Time is of the Essence:  Timing of performance of the EAP Services and of delivery of all 

deliverables is of the essence. If delivery or completion dates cannot be met, Contractor must 
inform the Project Manager immediately. Providing this information does not change the 
delivery or completion dates unless this Contract is amended. 
 

11.2 Retained Right of Management:  Nothing in this Contract is intended to or may operate as a bar 
to County’s continuing right to oversee the performance delegated in this Contract in order to 
protect its interests in these matters. This paragraph shall not reduce the compensation received 
by Contractor under this Contract. 

 
11.3 Non-Exclusivity:  As a part of this Contract, the parties understand that Contractor may provide 

services outside this Contract as it sees fit at those times when Contractor is not obligated to 
County and there is no conflict with County interests.  The parties also understand that County is 
free to have more than one contractor providing the type of services included in this Contract. 

 
11.4 Execution of Other Documents:  All parties shall promptly and duly execute and deliver to the 

other further documents and assurances and take actions that a party may reasonably request to 
more fully carry out the intent and purpose of this Contract. 

 
11.5 Force Majeure:  “Force Majeure” means any cause generally recognized under Texas law as 

constituting impossible conditions. Neither party is financially liable to the other party for delays 
or failures in Contract performance caused by Force Majeure. These delays or failures to perform 
extend the period of performance for a period of time equal to the subsistence of the impossible 
conditions.  If Force Majeure conditions exist, the party affected by them shall give the other 
party Notice within five (5) Working Days after the conditions begin.  If timely Notice is 
impractical due to the Force Majeure conditions, then the party must provide Notice in as timely 
a manner as practicable.  If Notice is not provided timely, the party experiencing Force Majeure 
waives it as a defense. 
 

11.6 Entire Agreement:  This Contract which is composed of Parts II, III, and IV and the Attachments 
listed in this subsection contains the entire agreement between County and Contractor related to 
the subject matter of this Contract.  If County and Contractor made any prior agreements, 
promises, negotiations, or representations that County and Contractor have not expressly stated in 
this Contract, those prior agreements, promises, negotiations, or representations are of null and 
void. The attachments listed in this subsection are hereby made a part of this Contract and 
constitute promised performances by Contractor throughout this Contract: 

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Draft

       PAGE 22 of 118 
 

Deer Oaks / Travis County Contract 
 

 
11.6.1 Attachment A Additional Descriptions of EAP Services, Reports (In the parts of the 

Proposal, references to 5, 7 or 10 sessions for counseling shall be interpreted as five (5) 
sessions during the first year of this Contract and as the number of sessions stated in the 
modification exercising the option to extend the contract in each subsequent year and 
references to 50 hours of training shall be interpreted as 75 hours of training during the first 
year of this Contract and as either 50 or 75 hours whichever is stated in the modification 
exercising the option to extend this Contract in each subsequent year.) 

 
11.6.1.1 Exhibit 1 to Attachment A, Portions of Contractor’s Proposal 

 
11.6.1.2 Exhibit 2 to Attachment A, Description of Services Questionnaire  
 

11.6.2 Attachment B Fee Rates and Invoicing Requirements 
 

11.6.2.1 Exhibit 1 to Attachment B, Fee Schedule and Included Services 
 

11.6.3 Attachment C Certification regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary 
Exclusion for Covered Contracts 

 
11.6.4 Attachment D Ethics Affidavit 

 
11.6.5 Attachment E Business Associate Agreement 

 
11.7 Order of Priority of Contract Attachments and Parts:  If there is a conflict between the parts or 

the attachments or both, the conflict is resolved as follows: 
 

11.7.1 Attachment E overrides Attachments A, B, C, D, and all Parts 
 

11.7.2 Attachment A overrides Attachments B, C, D, and all Parts. 
 

11.7.3 Attachment B overrides Attachment C, D, and all Parts. 
 

11.7.4 Part II overrides Parts III and IV. 
 

11.7.5 Part III overrides Part IV. 
 
11.8 Law and Venue:  This Contract is governed by the laws of the State of Texas and all obligations 

under this Contract are performable in Travis County, Texas. 
 

11.9 Binding Contract:  Despite any other provision in this Contract, this Contract is binding upon 
County and Contractor and their respective successors, executors, administrators, and assigns. 

 
11.10 Survival of Provisions:  Conditions and covenants of this Contract which by their terms are 

performable after the termination of this Contract shall survive such termination and remain fully 
performable. 

 
11.11 Interpretational Guidelines: 
 

11.11.1Sovereign Immunity and Affirmative Defenses:  This Contract shall not be interpreted to 

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Draft

       PAGE 23 of 118 
 

Deer Oaks / Travis County Contract 
 

include anything that is effective as a waiver of sovereign immunity or any affirmative 
defenses available to County. 
 

11.11.2Severability:  If any portion of this Contract is ruled invalid by a court of competent 
jurisdiction, the remainder of the Contract shall remain valid and binding. 

 
11.11.3Computation of Time:  In computing a time period under this Contract, exclude the first 

Day and include the last Day. If the last Day does not occur on a Working Day, the 
period is extended until the next Working Day after the last Day. Commissioners Court 
usually designates the following as holidays: 

 
New Year’s Day (January 1st or Monday after if it falls on a weekend) 
Martin Luther King, Jr. Day (3rd Monday in January) 
President's Day (3rd Monday in February) 
Memorial Day (4th Monday in May)  
Independence Day (July 4th or Monday after if it falls on a weekend)  
Labor Day (1st Monday in September) 
Veteran’s Day (November 11th or Monday after, if it falls on a weekend) 
Thanksgiving Day (4th Thursday AND Friday in November) 
Christmas Season (December 25th AND either day before or day after whichever 
allows a four day weekend, if possible) 
 

11.11.4Number and Gender:  Unless the context clearly requires otherwise, words of any gender 
are construed to include the other two genders and words in singular and plural are 
construed to include the other. 
 

11.11.5Headings:  The headings and titles throughout this Contract are included only to make it 
easier to locate the subject matter covered by that section or subsection and are not to be 
used in construing this Contract. 

 
11.12 Exemption from County Purchasing Act:  Pursuant to Section 262.024 of the Texas Local 

Government Code, the Commissioners Court hereby orders this Contract exempt from the 
requirements established by Section 262.023 of the Texas Local Government Code because it is 
a contract for the purchase of personal or professional services. 
 

11.13 Duplicate Originals:  This Contract will be executed in duplicate originals and be effective when 
executed by both parties. 

 
  

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Draft

       PAGE 24 of 118 
 

Deer Oaks / Travis County Contract 
 

DEER OAKS EAP SERVICES LLC  
 
 
By:           
 
Printed Name:        
Its Duly Authorized Agent 
 
Date:           
 
TRAVIS COUNTY: 
 
 
By:           
Samuel T. Biscoe, Travis County Judge 
 
Date:           
 
Approved As To Form: 
 
 
         
Barbara Wilson, Travis County Attorney 
 
Date:           
 
Availability Of Funds Confirmed: 
 
 
         
Nicki Riley, CPA, Travis County Auditor 
 
Date:           
 
Compliance With Law And Policy Confirmed And Approved: 
 
 
         
Cyd V. Grimes, CPM, CPPO, Travis County Purchasing Agent 
 
Date:           
  

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Draft

       PAGE 25 of 118 
 

Deer Oaks / Travis County Contract 
 

ATTACHMENT A 
 

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICES SCHEDULE FOR REPORTING 
 

1.0 This Attachment includes Exhibit 1. Portions of Contractor’s Proposal and Exhibit 2.  Description of 
Services as previously stated in Questionnaire and column three of BAFO Attachment A. 
 

2.0 Contractor shall perform the EAP Services as described in this Contract and these Exhibits upon request 
by any Covered Person.  Contractor shall perform the training services upon request by the Project 
Manager.  Contractor shall provide County with its Utilization Report within 30 days after the end of 
each quarter, which is no later than March 30, June 30, September 30 and December 30 of each year. 
 

3.0 Upon reasonable prior request of the Project Director, Contractor shall prepare written reports for regularly 
scheduled meetings of the Benefits Committee on the status, progress, and general nature of the work 
performed to date pursuant to this Contract. 

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Draft

Exhibit 1 to Attachment A, Portions of Contractor's Proposal

Page 26Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Draft

Page 27Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Draft

Page 28Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Draft

Page 29Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Draft

Page 30Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Draft

Page 31Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Draft

Page 32Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Draft

Page 33Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Draft

Page 34Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Draft

Page 35Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Draft

Page 36Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Draft

Page 37Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Draft

Page 38Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Draft

Page 39Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Draft

Page 40Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Draft

Page 41Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Draft

Page 42Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Draft

Page 43Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Draft

Page 44Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Draft

Page 45Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Draft

Page 46Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Draft

Page 47Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Draft

Page 48Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Draft

Page 49Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Draft

Page 50Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Draft

Page 51Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Draft

Page 52Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Draft

Page 53Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Draft

Page 54Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Draft

Page 55Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Draft

Page 56Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Draft

Page 57Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Draft

Page 58Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Draft

Page 59Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Draft

Page 60Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Draft

Page 61Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Draft

Page 62Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Draft

Page 63Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Draft

Page 64Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Draft

Page 65Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Draft

Page 66Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Draft

Page 67Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Draft

Page 68Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Draft

Page 69Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Draft

Page 70Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Draft

Page 71Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Draft

Page 72Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Draft

Page 73Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Draft

Page 74Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Draft

Page 75Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Draft

Page 76Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Draft

Page 77Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Draft

Page 78Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Draft

Page 79Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Draft

Page 80Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Draft

Page 81Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Draft

Page 82Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Draft

Page 83Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Draft

Page 84Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Draft

Page 85Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Draft

Page 86Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Draft

Page 87Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Draft

Page 88Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Draft

Page 89Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Draft

Page 90Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Draft

Page 91Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Draft

Deer Oaks / Travis County Contract   PAGE 92 of 118 
 

Exhibit 2 to Attachment A, 
Description of Services Questionnaire 

 
Helpline Proposer response 

2-3 

How many staff are available to handle helpline phone 
calls? Are staff employed by you or subcontracted? 

The number of staff available to handle helpline calls varies 
throughout the day and is dependent on the average call 

volume for that day/time. Staff are subcontracted through 
Workplace Options, a leader in the EAP and Work/Life 

industry. 

2-4 

What are the credentials of your associates who staff the 
phones and authorize referrals? 

Deer Oaks has both clinical and work/life personnel who 
staff the 24-hour Helpline.  Below are the general 

qualifications for our Work/Life Personnel and Telephonic 
Counselors/Case Managers:  

 
Work/Life Consultants 

Answer the Helpline during normal business hours; provide 
Work/Life Consultation and Referral Lists 

 
Our Work/Life Consultants are content experts in various 

areas of the Work/Life spectrum (e.g., child care, adult/elder 
care, daily living) and are also cross trained in all Work/Life 

areas. We hire individuals with a rich combination of 
education and experience who display a unique mix of 
academic and practical knowledge. Following are the 

educational and experience requirements of our work-life 
consultants: 

 
• Elder Care: A master’s degree in counseling, social work, 

or a related field, plus three to five years of direct 
experience within elder care systems/facilities. 

 
• Child Care: A bachelor’s degree in early childhood 

education, elementary education, or a related field, plus at 
least three years of direct care experience. 

 
• Daily Living: A bachelor’s degree and one to two years of 

related experience. 

  

  

Our extensive in-house training includes 224 hours of 
classroom training, 90 days of training with the team, and 
conducting research with close monitoring. After trainees 
pass the training period, they are required to undergo 20 

additional hours of training annually.Telephonic Counselor 
QualificationsProvide telephonic assessments, counseling 

and crisis intervention during normal business hours; 
answer the Helpline after-hours; handle requests for 

mandatory referrals and management consultationsOur 
clinical call center counselors, at a minimum, have a 

recognized master’s degree in counseling.  

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Draft

Deer Oaks / Travis County Contract   PAGE 93 of 118 
 

2-5 

Please describe the ongoing training received by the 
helpline counselors. 

Additionally, telephonic counselors must have 450 hours of 
face-to-face counseling experience under clinical 

supervision over a period of three years (full- or part-time) 
and must complete induction training including assessment 

skills training, risk assessment and crisis response, and 
outcome management. However, the majority of our 

telephone counselors have significantly more experience, 
gained over a period of many years of professional clinical 

practice.  
 

Our training program is delivered primarily by internal 
clinical staff, but also includes specific training from our 

account management team and recognized experts in 
specific fields on subjects including the history of EAPs, 
serving the corporate customer, risk assessment, handling 

suicidal clients on the telephone, substance abuse 
assessment, crisis intervention/trauma response, handling 

management referrals, flagged cases for high risk (including 
third-party disclosure), and unique client skills training. A 

training plan is developed for all counselors in order to 
ensure widespread competencies.  

2-6 

Provide a detailed list of all the referral opportunities that 
will be accessible to participants through the helpline. 
(i.e. financial advisors, legal assistance, etc…) 

Counselors provide referrals as clinically needed to the 
employer group’s health plan, community resources, legal 

resources and attorneys, child/elder care resources, and 
financial counselors/planners.  Deer Oaks maintains a 
referral network of community resources to facilitate 

referrals outside of the EAP and coordinates with other 
health and wellness vendors when needed.    

Counseling Sessions and Services Proposer response 
Please confirm if you provide counseling sessions to assist 

participants with the following:    

3-1 Stress Confirmed 

3-2 Psychological or emotional problems Confirmed 

3-3 Crisis intervention Confirmed 
3-4 Financial counseling Confirmed 

3-5 Marital and/or family problems Confirmed 

3-6 Child and/or adolescent problems Confirmed 
3-7 Substance abuse Confirmed 

3-8 Eating disorders Confirmed 

3-9 Management of anger/conflict/violence Confirmed 
3-10 Elder Care Confirmed 

3-11 

Others (please list): 

Any other issues which may be affecting the participant's 
functioning. Deer Oaks offers individual and group short-

term, face-to-face counseling sessions for a variety of issues 
such as occupational, grief, family, stress, and chemical 

dependency.  In-person, telephonic and online modalities 
are available.        

3-12 
Are counseling sessions and services provided by in 
house staff or contractor? Counseling sessions are provided by network counselors 

3-14 
Are counseling services available on-site at your facility? 
If so, please list locations. 

Counseling services are available on-site at network 
provider facilities.  

  Network for counseling services:   

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Draft

Deer Oaks / Travis County Contract   PAGE 94 of 118 
 

3-18 Number of counselors located in Travis County? 172 

3-21 

Describe your process for ensuring diversity within your 
network of providers. 

Deer Oaks does not discriminate in any of these areas as 
part of its hiring practices. 

3-23 

How do you ensure network providers provide an office 
which provide confidentiality, physical safety and 
security, and easy accessibility for those needing 
accommodation under ADA? If so, please describe your 
process. 

Deer Oaks requires provider facilities to meet ADA 
standards. All Deer Oaks network providers must adhere to 
Deer Oaks' confidentiality standards as well as follow all 

local, state, and federal laws. 

Substance Abuse Program Proposer response 

4-2 

What information and reports from your substance abuse 
program are provided to the customer? 

Deer Oaks makes recommendations concerning education, 
treatment, follow-up testing, and aftercare. In support of the 

County’s Drug-free Workplace Program, Deer Oaks will 
coordinate a referral to a DOT Substance Abuse 

Professional (SAP). 

Critical Incidents Proposer response 

5-1 

Please describe how you handle critical incidents which 
affect employees in the workplace. 

EAP Specialists are available within 24-48 hours of the 
critical incident or trauma to provide group and individual 

critical incident stress debriefing with recommendations for 
follow-up treatment.  

5-2 

What types of critical incidents have your responded to 
and handled within the last 3 years? 

Deer Oaks has responded to a wide range of critical 
incidents including, but not limited to: employee deaths, 
suicide, hostage situations, workplace accidents, natural 

disasters, school shootings, etc. 

5-3 

How quickly do you respond to critical incident requests 
from a customer? 

Deer Oaks is typically on-site within 24-48 hours of 
notification of the incident. However, we have responded 

within shorter time frames when requested. 

5-4 
What is the availability of your critical incident response 
team (24/7/365)? 24/7/365 

Training Programs and Consultations Proposer response 

6-2 
Is the training provided by sub-contractors or employees? 

Trainings are provided by Subcontractors. All of Deer 
Oaks’ seminars are developed by Doctoral-level clinicians 

and conducted by subject matter experts.  

6-4 
Please provide demographic profile of trainers. Deer Oaks makes every effort to utilize trainers with diverse 

backgrounds. Deer Oaks is an equal-opportunity employer. 

6-5 

What languages can the helpline staff communicate in? 

Many of Deer Oaks' helpline staff are bi-lingual and multi-
lingual. Additionally, Helpline staff have the use of a 

telephonic translation system which can translate over 150 
of the most common languages. 

Participant and Client Satisfaction Proposer response 

8-5 
Will you customize the participant survey for the County 
if requested? Yes 

Reporting & Web Site Proposer response 

9-1 
Please list all standard reports provided to client. Deer Oaks provides Quarterly and Annual Calendar Year 

Reports to analyze trends in utilization of the EAP benefit.  

9-2 
How often are the reports provided? Quarterly and Annually as a standard. Ad-hoc reports can be 

provided at no cost. 

9-4 
Do you have an employer/administrator portal or web 
site? Yes 

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Draft

Deer Oaks / Travis County Contract   PAGE 95 of 118 
 

9-5 

If so, what services/features are available through the 
site? 

Specialized online EAP services available at 
www.deeroaks.com, including topical libraries, health and 

wellness articles & presentations, child/elder care resources, 
legal and financial tools, and skillbuilder courses  

9-6 
Do employers have the ability to run reports through an 
employer web site/portal? 

Reports can be delivered through an employer 
website/portal 

9-7 Do employers have the ability to run ad hoc reports? Yes, at no cost 

9-8 
Are there any fees associated with running reports? If so, 
please list additional fees. No. 

9-12 
Is the web site/app available in any other languages? Yes, the website can be read in English or Spanish. The App 

may be available in Spanish at some point in the future. 

9-13 
Can the web site be branded specifically for Travis 
County? Yes. 

Implementation and Other Services Proposer response 

10-3 

Do you have experience placing EAP counselors on-site? 
If so, please describe program and program experience. 

Yes, Deer Oaks regularly places on-site for CISD services. 
Deer Oaks has experience sending CISD counselors on-site 

to multiple worksites simultaneously, such as for Texas 
Department of Health and Human Services. 

10-4 

Please describe any other services and programs you offer 
which you think may be of interest to the County. Be sure 
to include any fees or premiums for listed services and 
programs. 

Deer Oaks offers the County the widest scope of services in 
the industry including Identity Theft Monitoring, Concierge, 

state-of-the-art website, and more. These services are 
included at no additional cost. 

 

  

Work Life Programs Quantity of Service provided and limitations or 
exclusions. 

Legal:   

Consultations with an attorney. How long? How many 
per year? 

Yes.  Covered Issues: Family Law, Criminal, Bankruptcy, 
Adoption, Elder Care/Wills/ Trusts/Estate Planning, 
Consumer IssuesCoverage available in all 50 states 

Financial:   

Financial Counseling consultations. How long? How 
many per year? 

Unlimited telephonic (no limit to the length of the session) 
consultation with a financial counselor qualified to advise 
on a range of financial issues such as bankruptcy 
prevention, debt reduction and financial planning 

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Draft

Deer Oaks / Travis County Contract   PAGE 96 of 118 
 

Referrals and assistance finding day care/elder care.  

Yes.  
-Work/Life Consultants consult with members regarding 
their Work/Life needs, streamline searches, and provide a 
list of up to three (3) referrals per request within 12 hours 
for standard work/life cases and within six hours for urgent 
cases  
-Searchable database of Childcare/Eldercare Resources 
-Tools for Balancing Work and Family 
-Extensive online and community resources covering a 
variety of Work/Life issues including, but not limited to 
child care, elder parent care, adoption, education, and daily 
support services. 

Webinars available to participants and supervisors on 
work/life topics. 

Yes. Up to 50 or 75 hours. Plus, access  
to free monthly topical webinars via the Deer Oaks website. 

Retiree Assistance Programs or Resources. 
Yes. The Retiree Assistance Program provides full EAP 
program services for retirees and their family. 

Option to add this service for additional PEPM fee 

Tobacco cessation program.  

Deer Oaks also offers in-depth, multi-week Health & 
Wellness Seminars including a Tobacco Cessation series. 
 
Each session includes an introduction, rules of the road, 
individual attention, information, discussion and 
assignments. 
 
Additionally, Deer Oaks also has an online Tobacco 
Cessation training available on its website.  

 

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Draft

       PAGE 97 of 118 
 

Deer Oaks / Travis County Contract 
 

ATTACHMENT B 

FEE RATES, PAYMENT SCHEDULE AND INVOICING REQUIREMENTS 
 

1.0 FEE RATES:  The fees payable under this Contract are subject to Part III, section 4. 
 

2.0 FEE EXHIBIT:  This Attachment includes Exhibit 1 Fee Schedule and Included Services which states 
the per employee per month fee and fees for all other services.  These fees are payable by County related 
to EAP Services.  This Attachment also includes the criteria for calculating costs during this Contract. 
 

3.0 CONTRACTOR INVOICING REQUIREMENTS: 
 
3.1 Other Applicable Requirements.  Invoicing shall be performed in compliance with Part III, 

section 4 and Part IV sections 4.2 and 4.5 in addition to this Attachment B. 
 

3.2 Content of Invoices for Other Services not included in PEPM rates.  Contractor  shall include at 
least the following information in invoices for Services not included in PEPM rates: 

 
3.2.1 Name, address, and telephone number of Contractor, 

 
3.2.2 County contract number, 

 
3.2.3 Types of Services provided,   

 
3.2.4 Period when Services were provided 

 
3.2.5 Fees rates for each Service provided 

 
3.2.6 Number of applicable units of service (i.e., hours, SAP programs), 

 
3.2.7 Amount due for each type of service provided, 

 
3.2.8 Total amount due, and 

 
3.2.9 Any additional information relevant to payment for those services 

 
3.3 Submission of Invoices for Other Services.  Contractor shall submit these invoices to County at 

the following address: 
 

Travis County Human Resources Management Department 
Attn: John Rabb 
P.O. Box 1748 
Austin, Texas 78767 

 
4.0 CONTRACTOR INVOICING REQUIREMENTS: 

 
4.1 Other Applicable Requirements.  Invoicing shall be performed in compliance with Part III, 

section 4 and Part IV sections 4.2 and 4.5 in addition to this Attachment B. 
 

4.2 Invoicing and Calculation of PEPM Fee.  In this section 4.0, “Employee” means a regular 

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Draft

       PAGE 98 of 118 
 

Deer Oaks / Travis County Contract 
 

employee who is employed on or before the first Day of the month and excluding Employees 
with effective dates of employment occurring after the first Day of the month.  County shall 
calculate the monthly PEPM Fee by multiplying the number of Employees by the PEPM Fee 
amount in Exhibit 1 to this Attachment B.  County shall provide Contractor with a statement of 
amounts due when County pays Contractor.  The Due Date for payment is the first Day of the 
next full calendar month.  If Contractor does not agree with County’s opinion about the number 
of Employees, County and Contractor shall resolve the issue as described under Section 7 – 
Dispute Resolution. 
 

4.3 Contents of Administrative Fee Invoices.  With its monthly payment of administrative fees, 
County shall provide Contractor with a statement that indicates the following: 

 
4.3.1 Name, address, and telephone number of Contractor, 

 
4.3.2 County contract number, 

 
4.3.3 The quantity of each type of Service performed, i.e. the number of Employees during the 

prior month as reflected in the County payroll system.  
 

4.3.4 The PEPM rate applicable to the current contract or option year based on the number of 
Counseling Sessions and hours of training stated in the contract for this year and the 
modification to exercise the options to extend the Contract and the rates as stated in 
Exhibit 1 to this Attachment B, 
 

4.3.5 Total amount due, and 
 

4.3.6 Any additional payment information required by the Contract. 
 

5.0 PAYMENT SCHEDULE: 
 

5.1 Due Dates.  County shall pay invoices other than those for PEPM fees no later than thirty (30) 
days after receipt of the Services or receipt of the invoice, whichever is later.  County has no 
obligation to pay for Services not included in PEPM until after receipt of a detailed bill.  
However, for all payments due under this Contract for Services not included in the PEPM, the 
payment is due based on date Services are satisfactorily performed or the date a correct invoice is 
submitted and determined in compliance with Texas Government Code Chapter 2251. 
 

5.2 Payment.  County shall make payments for PEPM fees in compliance with Part IV, section 4.5.  
County shall make payments for reimbursement of Services not included in the PEPM fees in 
compliance with Part IV, section 4.5. All payments under this Contract are subject to Part III, 
section 4. 
 

5.3 Annual Reconciliation.  For each Contract Period, Contractor reconciles the total amounts 
County paid with the total amounts County owed.  Contractor provides County with a copy of 
the reconciliation with explanations as needed. If the reconciliation indicates that Contractor 
owes County money, Contractor shall pay County within thirty (30) Days after the reconciliation 
is complete. If the reconciliation indicates that County owes Contractor money, Contractor 
invoices County for the amount due.  If County agrees the amount is due, County pays 
Contractor within thirty (30) Days after receiving notification of the amounts that County owes 
Contractor.  For payments made after this thirty (30) Day period, County pays Contractor interest 

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Draft

       PAGE 99 of 118 
 

Deer Oaks / Travis County Contract 
 

on these amounts at the interest rate determined in compliance with Texas Government Code 
Chapter 2251. 
 

5.4 Terminal Reconciliation.   If the Contract is terminated, Contractor reconciles the total amounts 
County paid since the most recent previous reconciliation with the total amounts County owed 
since the most recent previous reconciliation.  Contractor provides County with a copy of the 
reconciliation with explanations as needed. Contractor pays County the amount owed with thirty 
(30) Days after Contractor performs a final reconciliation if C owes County money.  If the final 
reconciliation indicates that County owes Contractor money and County agrees the money is 
owed, County pays Contractor within thirty (30) Days after receiving notification of the amount 
owed. 

 
  

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Draft

Deer Oaks / Travis County Contract       PAGE 100 of 118 
 

Exhibit 1 to Attachment B, 
Fee Schedule and Included Services 

  
Services Per Employee Per Month Fee Additional Details 
      
Short Term Counseling Sessions + 50 hours of on-site training     
Up to 5 counseling sessions, in person, telephonic or web video $1.00 PEPM This rate is guaranteed for six (6) years. 
Up to 7 counseling sessions, in person, telephonic or web video $1.38 PEPM This rate is guaranteed for six (6) years. 
Up to 10 counseling sessions, in person, telephonic or web video $1.94 PEPM This rate is guaranteed for six (6) years. 
  
Short Term Counseling Sessions + 75 hours of on-site training 
Up to 5 counseling sessions, in person, telephonic or web video $1.05 PEPM This rate is guaranteed for six (6) years. 
Up to 7 counseling sessions, in person, telephonic or web video $1.43 PEPM This rate is guaranteed for six (6) years. 
Up to 10 counseling sessions, in person, telephonic or web video $1.99 PEPM This rate is guaranteed for six (6) years. 
      

Additional EAP Services included in Base PEPM: 
  Quantity of service provided and limitations or exclusions. 

Number of mediation hours included in PEPM cost. Included in PEPM Fee 

Yes. Unlimited telephonic mediation. Deer Oaks' telephonic 
mediation service offers supervisors, managers and HR unlimited 
telephonic consultations with a Deer Oaks Manager Assist Line 
Consultant to assess the circumstances surrounding an employee 
conflict and to discuss the potential need for conflict resolution 

support, on-site mediation, etc. 
 

In the Deer Oaks model, many of the individuals originally 
suggested as candidates for face-to-face mediation are referred for 

individual conflict resolution counseling through the EAP's 
mandatory referral process. Working with a counselor, these 

individuals are provided with practical conflict resolution skills 
that help them to better navigate their present situation and prepare 
them to better resolve any future conflicts. To request a telephonic 

mediation or other management service such as a mandatory 
referral, County supervisors and managers may either call the toll-

free Helpline or our dedicated Manager Assist Line, which 
connects them directly to the clinical team without going through 

our general triage. 

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Draft

Deer Oaks / Travis County Contract       PAGE 101 of 118 
 

Cost per hour for additional mediation hours above those included in 
the PEPM Cost. Included in PEPM Fee Yes. Unlimited telephonic mediation. 

Implementation hours do not count towards the number of on-site 
training hours included in contract year. 

Included in PEPM Fee. No, this 
does not  

count toward on-site training 
hours. 

Yes. Implementation hours are unlimited 
 and do not count toward on-site training hours 

Mandatory referrals included? Included in PEPM Fee Yes. Unlimited mandatory referrals. 
Additional fee(s) for follow up care for DOT SAP program. Included in PEPM Fee. Yes. 

Number of on-site critical incident responses (CIR) included in 
PEPM.   

Included in PEPM Fee. Yes. Unlimited. 

On-site attendance at two Travis County health fairs per year. Included in PEPM Fee. Yes. No limitations. 
Quarterly utilization reports. Included in PEPM Fee. Yes. Confidentiality will be maintained. 

Number of posters/brochures and flyers included in PEPM fee? Included in PEPM Fee. 

Yes. Unlimited electronic.  The County will receive a CD with 
camera-ready materials. In addition, hard copies for each 

employee will be provided during implementation and on an on-
going basis as required. 

Work Life Programs  Quantity of service provided and limitations or exclusions. 

Legal: 

Consultations with an attorney. How long? How many per year? Included in PEPM Fee. 

Yes.  
• Free thirty-minute telephonic advice consultation with an 

attorney.  
• Free thirty-minute in-person consultation with a plan attorney 

qualified to handle your issue. 
NO limit to the number of times you can use the service for 

different issues 

Will preparation/review. Included in PEPM Fee. 
Yes. 

Interactive Online Will Preparation (located online in the Legal & 
Financial Center) 

Financial: 

Financial Counseling consultations. How long? How many per year? Included in PEPM Fee. 
Yes. Free unlimited telephonic (no limit to the length of the 

session) 
consultation with a financial counselor 

Are any additional financial counseling services included beyond the 
consultations? Included in PEPM Fee. Yes. Advantage Financial Assist services in Questionnaire 

Financial Services 
Others: 

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Draft

Deer Oaks / Travis County Contract       PAGE 102 of 118 
 

Identity Theft Monitoring/Assistance. Included in PEPM Fee. 

Yes. ID Theft Prevention & Recovery 
 

• Provides victims a 30-minute consultation with an Identity 
Recovery Professional 

  Included in PEPM Fee. 

Control Your ID: Free Online Identity Monitoring (located in the 
Legal & Financial Center)• Free registration- no service level or 

payment plan required• Re-register annually and update 
information as needed 

Taxi/Sober Ride program. Included in PEPM Fee. This service is available once per year per participant with a 
maximum reimbursement of $45.00 (excludes tip). 

Referrals and assistance finding day care/elder care.  Included in PEPM Fee. 

Yes.  
-Work/Life Consultants  provide a list of up to three (3) referrals 

per request within 12 hours for standard work/life cases and within 
six hours for urgent cases 

Monthly Newsletters for Participants  Included in PEPM Fee. Yes. These are provided monthly. 
Monthly Newsletters for Supervisors/Managers  Included in PEPM Fee. Yes. These are provided monthly. 

Webinars available to participants and supervisors on work/life topics. 
Included in PEPM Fee. Yes. Up to 50 or 75 hours. Plus, access  

to free monthly topical webinars via the Deer Oaks website. 

Retiree Assistance Programs or Resources. 
Included in PEPM Fee. Yes. The Retiree Assistance Program  

provides full EAP program services for retirees and their family. 

Web site for employee discounts to goods and services. Included in PEPM Fee. Yes. Our web-based Savings Center 
Additional programs or services at additional PEPM: 
In-depth, multi-week Health & Wellness Seminars  

Live Well Standard Wellness Coaching:  including Tobacco cessation 
program.  $.46 PEPM 

In-depth, multi-week Health & Wellness Seminars including 
Tobacco Cessation program.  

Additionally, Deer Oaks has an online Tobacco Cessation training 
available on its website. 

Online Health Risk Assessments:  $.24 PEPM 
  
Optional additional programs or services at unit pricing 
Additional training hours $275/hr 

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Draft

Deer Oaks / Travis County Contract       PAGE 103 of 118 
 

In-person mediation services  

$275/hr 

Using a network of fully qualified and experienced affiliate 
mediators tailoring the approach and engagement as and when 
County members require it for two-party or group mediation 

events. 

On-Site Biometric Screenings:  
$69/employee based on 

minimum of 100 tests per site 
per shift  

Cost for DOT SAP program/referral. Cost - $500.00 per DOT/SAP 
program evaluation 

Yes. Deer Oaks will coordinate a referral to a DOT Substance 
Abuse Professional (SAP), who provides Services in 

Questionnaire 4-1 through 4-4 Substance Abuse Program 

Additional Available Services at Employee Expense 

Additional legal services beyond the included consultations 
• If representation is required, 

members receive a 25% discount 
off hourly attorney fees 

Yes. 
• Excluded Issues: Employment as it relates to employees and 

family members, one’s own business, class action lawsuits, taxes 

 

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Draft

       PAGE 104 of 118 
 

Deer Oaks / Travis County Contract 
 

STATE OF TEXAS} 
COUNTY OF TRAVIS} 
  

ETHICS AFFIDAVIT (ATTACHMENT 3) 
 
Date:          
Name of Affiant:         
Title of Affiant:         
Business Name of Proposer:        
County of Proposer:         
 
Affiant on oath swears that the following statements are true: 
 
1. Affiant is authorized by Proposer to make this affidavit for Proposer.   
 
2.  Affiant is fully aware of the facts stated in this affidavit.  
 
3. Affiant can read the English language.  
 
4. Proposer has received the list of Key Contracting Persons associated with this solicitation which is 

attached to this affidavit as Exhibit "A." 
 
5.  Affiant has personally read Exhibit "A" to this Affidavit.  
 
6. Affiant has no knowledge of any Key Contracting Person on Exhibit "A" with whom Proposer is doing 

business or has done business during the 365 day period immediately before the date of this affidavit 
whose name is not disclosed in the solicitation.  

 
                

Signature of Affiant        
 

              
Address         

 
SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN TO before me by    

 
On   , 2014.        

 
          

 
 

Notary Public, State of        
   

       
                

Typed or printed name of notary      
 

My commission expires:       
      

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Draft

       PAGE 105 of 118 
 

Deer Oaks / Travis County Contract 
 

EXHIBIT A 
LIST OF KEY CONTRACTING PERSONS 

September 15, 2014 
 
CURRENT 
      Name of Individual  Name of Business 
Position Held     Holding Office/Position   Individual is Associated       
 
  County Judge .............................................................Samuel T. Biscoe 
  County Judge (Spouse) ..............................................Donalyn Thompson-Biscoe  
  Executive Assistant  ...................................................Cheryl Brown 
  Executive Assistant ....................................................Melissa Velasquez 
  Executive Assistant ....................................................Josie Z. Zavala 
  Executive Assistant ....................................................David Salazar 
  Commissioner, Precinct 1 ..........................................Ron Davis 
  Commissioner, Precinct 1 (Spouse) ...........................Annie Davis   Seton Hospital 
  Executive Assistant ....................................................Deone Wilhite 
  Executive Assistant ....................................................Felicitas Chavez 
  Executive Assistant ....................................................Sue Spears 
  Commissioner, Precinct 2  .........................................Bruce Todd 
  Commissioner, Precinct 2 (Spouse) ...........................Elizabeth Christian  Consultant 
  Executive Assistant  ...................................................Sara Krause* 
  Executive Assistant  ...................................................Joe Hon 
  Executive Assistant  ...................................................Peter Einhorn 
  Commissioner, Precinct 3 ..........................................Gerald Daugherty* 
  Commissioner, Precinct 3 (Spouse) ...........................Charyln Daugherty  Consultant 
  Executive Assistant ....................................................Bob Moore* 
  Executive Assistant ....................................................Martin Zamzow* 
  Executive Assistant ....................................................Madison A. Gessner* 
  Commissioner, Precinct 4 ..........................................Margaret Gomez 
  Executive Assistant ....................................................Edith Moreida 
  Executive Assistant ....................................................Norma Guerra 
  County Treasurer .......................................................Dolores Ortega-Carter  
  County Auditor  .........................................................Nicki Riley 
  County Executive, Administrative .............................Vacant 
  Interim County Executive, Planning & Budget .........Leroy Nellis* 
  County Executive, Emergency Services ....................Danny Hobby 
  County Executive, Health/Human Services ...............Sherri E. Fleming 
  County Executive, TNR  ............................................Steven M. Manilla, P.E. 
  County Executive, Justice & Public Safety ................Roger Jefferies 
  Director, Facilities Management ................................Roger El Khoury, M.S., P.E. 
  Chief Information Officer ..........................................Tanya Acevedo 
  Director, Records Mgment & Communications ........Steven Broberg 
  Travis County Attorney  ............................................David Escamilla 
  First Assistant County Attorney  ................................Steve Capelle 
  Executive Assistant, County Attorney .......................James Collins 
  Director, Land Use Division ......................................Tom Nuckols 
  Attorney, Land Use Division .....................................Julie Joe 
  Attorney, Land Use Division .....................................Christopher Gilmore  
  Director, Transactions Division  ................................John Hille 
  Attorney, Transactions Division ................................Daniel Bradford 
  Attorney, Transactions Division ................................Elizabeth Winn 
  Attorney, Transactions Division ................................Mary Etta Gerhardt  
  Attorney, Transactions Division ................................Barbara Wilson 
  Attorney, Transactions Division ................................Jennifer Kraber* 
  Attorney, Transactions Division ................................Tenley Aldredge 
  Director, Health Services Division ............................Beth Devery 
  Attorney, Health Services Division ...........................Prema Gregerson 
  Purchasing Agent  ......................................................Cyd Grimes, C.P.M., CPPO 

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Draft

       PAGE 106 of 118 
 

Deer Oaks / Travis County Contract 
 

  Assistant Purchasing Agent .......................................Elaine Casas, J.D.* 
  Assistant Purchasing Agent  ......................................Marvin Brice, CPPB 
  Assistant Purchasing Agent .......................................Bonnie Floyd, CPPO, CPPB 
  Purchasing Agent Assistant IV ..................................CW Bruner, CTP, CPPB 
  Purchasing Agent Assistant IV ..................................Lee Perry  
  Purchasing Agent Assistant IV ..................................Jason Walker 
  Purchasing Agent Assistant IV ..................................Richard Villareal 
  Purchasing Agent Assistant IV ..................................Patrick Strittmatter, CPPB 
  Purchasing Agent Assistant IV ..................................Lori Clyde, CPPO, CPPB, CTPE 
  Purchasing Agent Assistant IV ..................................Scott Wilson, CPPB 
  Purchasing Agent Assistant IV ..................................Jorge Talavera, CPPO, CPPB 
  Purchasing Agent Assistant IV ..................................Loren Breland, CPPB 
  Purchasing Agent Assistant IV ..................................John E. Pena, CTPM, CPPB 
  Purchasing Agent Assistant IV ..................................Angel Gomez 
  Purchasing Agent Assistant IV ..................................Jesse Herrera, CPPB, CTPM, CTCM, CTP 
  Purchasing Agent Assistant III ..................................Vacant 
  Purchasing Agent Assistant III ..................................David Walch 
  Purchasing Agent Assistant III ..................................Michael Long, CPPB 
  Purchasing Agent Assistant III ..................................Sydney Ceder 
  Purchasing Agent Assistant III ..................................Ruena Victorino 
  Purchasing Agent Assistant III ..................................Rachel Fishback 
  Purchasing Agent Assistant II ....................................L. Wade Laursen 
  Purchasing Agent Assistant II ....................................Sam Francis 
  HUB Coordinator .......................................................Sylvia Lopez 
  HUB Specialist ..........................................................Betty Chapa 
  HUB Specialist ..........................................................Jerome Guerrero 
  Purchasing Business Analyst .....................................Scott Worthington 
  Purchasing Business Analyst .....................................Rosalinda Garcia 
  HRMD, Director ........................................................Debbie Maynor 
  HRMD, Benefits Manager .........................................John Rabb 
  HRMD, Benefits Administrator .................................Shannon Steele 
  HRMD, HR Manager II .............................................Kim Austin-Smith 
  HRMD, HR Specialist, Sr. .........................................Kristine Nilsen 
  HRMD, Risk & Safety Specialist, Sr. ........................John Brady 
  HRMD, Wellness Coordinator ...................................Josie Pena* 
 
FORMER EMPLOYEES 
 
     Name of Individual 
Position Held    Holding Office/Position    Date of Expiration  
Purchasing Agent Assistant III  ......  .............  ..............Shannon Pleasant  .............  ..............  ............. 08/22/15 
Purchasing Business Analyst ..........  .............  ..............Jennifer Francis ..  .............  ..............  ............. 11/29/14 
Executive Assistant ...........  .............  .............  ..............Barbara Smith ....  .............  ..............  ............. 01/15/15 
Attorney, Transactions Division .....  .............  ..............Jim Connolly ......  .............  ..............  ............. 02/28/15  
County Executive, Planning & Budget .........  ..............Leslie Browder ...  .............  ..............  ............. 03/31/15 
 
 *  - Identifies employees who have been in that position less than a year. 

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Draft

       PAGE 107 of 118 
 

Deer Oaks / Travis County Contract 
 

Proposer acknowledges that Proposer is doing business or has done business during the 365 day period 
immediately prior to the date on which this RFP is due with the following Key Contracting Persons and 
warrants that these are the only such Key Contracting Persons: 
 
             
 
 
             
 
 
             
 
 
             
 
 
             
 
 
If no one is listed above, Proposer warrants that Proposer is not doing business and has not done business during 
the 365 day period immediately prior to the date on which this RFP is due with any Key Contracting Person. 

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Draft

       PAGE 108 of 118 
 

Deer Oaks / Travis County Contract 
 

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, INELIGIBILITY AND 
VOLUNTARY EXCLUSION FOR COVERED CONTRACTS (ATTACHMENT 4) 

 
Federal Executive Order 12549 requires Travis County to screen each covered potential contractor to determine 
whether each has a right to obtain a contract in accordance with federal regulations on debarment, suspension, 
ineligibility, and voluntary exclusion.  Each covered contractor must also screen each of its covered 
subcontractors. 
 
In this certification “contractor” refers to both contractor and subcontractor; “contract” refers to both contract 
and subcontract. 
 
By signing and submitting this certification, the contractor/potential contractor accepts the following 
terms: 
 
1. The certification herein below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this 

contract was entered into.  If it is later determined that the potential contractor knowingly rendered an 
erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies available to the federal government or Travis County 
may pursue available remedies, including suspension and/or debarment. 

2. The potential contractor shall provide immediate written notice to the person to whom this certification is 
submitted if at any time the potential contractor learns that the certification was erroneous when submitted 
or has become erroneous by reason of changed circumstances. 

3. The words “covered contract,” “debarred,” “suspended,” “ineligible,” “participant,” “person,” “principle,” 
“proposal,” and “voluntarily excluded,” as used in this certification have meanings based upon materials in 
the Definitions and Coverage sections of federal rules implementing Executive Order 12549.   

4. The potential contractor agrees by submitting this certification that, should the proposed covered contract be 
entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any subcontract with a person who is debarred, suspended, 
declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized 
by a federal department or agency, and/or Travis County, as applicable. 

 
Do you have or do you anticipate having subcontractors under this proposed contract? 
 
 ____YES   ____NO 

 
5. The potential contractor further agrees by submitting this certification that it will include this certification 

titled "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and Voluntary Exclusion for Covered 
Contracts” without modification, in all covered subcontracts; and in solicitations for all covered 
subcontracts. 

6. A contractor may rely upon a certification of a potential subcontractor that it is not debarred, suspended, 
ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from the covered contract, unless it knows that the certification is 
erroneous.  A contractor must at a minimum, obtain certifications from its covered subcontractors upon each 
subcontract's initiation and upon each renewal. 

7. Nothing contained in all the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records in 
order to render in good faith the certification required by this certification document.  The knowledge and 
information of a contractor is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent person in 
the ordinary course of business dealings.  

8. Except for contracts authorized under paragraph4 of these terms, if a contractor in a covered contract 
knowingly enters into a covered subcontract with a person who is suspended, debarred, ineligible, or 
voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in addition to other remedies available to the 
federal government, any federal agency and/or Travis County may pursue available remedies, including 
suspension and/or debarment. 

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Draft

       PAGE 109 of 118 
 

Deer Oaks / Travis County Contract 
 

 
CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, INELIGIBILITY, AND 
VOLUNTARY EXCLUSION FOR COVERED CONTRACTS 
 
Indicate in the appropriate box which statement applies to the covered contractor/potential contractor: 

 
The contractor/potential contractor certifies, by submission of this certification, that neither it nor its 

principals is presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded 
from participation in this contract by any federal department or agency, the State of Texas, or Travis County. 

 
The contractor/potential contractor is unable to certify to one or more of the terms in this certification.  

In this instance, the contractor/potential contractor must attach an explanation for each of the above terms to 
which he is unable to make certification.  Attach the explanation(s) to this certification. 
 
Name of Contractor    Vendor I.D. or Social Security No. 
 
 
 
 
 
Signature of Authorized Representative Date Printed/Typed Name & Title of Authorized Representative 
 
  

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Draft

       PAGE 110 of 118 
 

Deer Oaks / Travis County Contract 
 

MUTUAL BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT  
BETWEEN TRAVIS COUNTY AND CONTRACTOR 

ATTACHMENT 7 
 

This Business Associate Agreement ("BAA") is executed by the following parties: 
Travis County, a political subdivision of Texas (“County”) and  
 
Deer Oaks EAP Services LLC., a limited liability corporation of Texas ("Contractor"). 
 

RECITALS 

County and Contractor are entering into a contract that involves access to information governed by HIPAA 
and HITECH. 

 
They are entering into this BAA:  

(1) to provide Contractor with satisfactory assurances, in accordance with 45 C.F.R. § 164.314(a), 
that County will appropriately safeguard any electronic protected health information that County creates, 
receives, maintains or transmits on Contractor’s behalf and  

(2) to provide County with satisfactory assurances, in accordance with 45 C.F.R. § 164.314(a), that 
Contractor will appropriately safeguard any electronic protected health information that Contractor 
creates, receives, maintains or transmits on County’s behalf.  45 CFR 164.308 (b). 

 
AGREEMENT 

NOW, THEREFORE, County and Contractor mutually agree to the following terms and conditions. 
I.  TERM. 

1.1. This BAA commences on the date on which it is signed by the last party to sign it.  This BAA continues 
in force until it is terminated by one of the parties.   

II.  COUNTY RESPONSIBILITIES AND AUTHORITY 

2.1. Directly Regulated  County acknowledges that it is directly regulated by HIPAA and HITECH and Part 
164. 

2.2. County Compliance with Part 164.  County shall comply with the applicable requirements of Part 164.  
45 CFR 164.314 (a)(2)(A).  County shall use appropriate safeguards and comply, where applicable, with Part 
164 to prevent use or disclosure of electronic protected health information other than as provided for in this 
BAA.  45 CFR 164.504 (e)(2)(ii)(B). 

2.3. Subcontractor Compliance with Part 164.  County shall ensure that any subcontractors that create, 
receive, maintain, or transmit electronic protected health information on behalf of County agree to comply with 
the applicable requirements of Part 164 by entering into a contract with the subcontractor that complies with 45 
CFR 164.314 (a)(2)(B).  If County knows of a pattern of activity or practice of a subcontractor that constitutes a 
material breach or violation of the subcontractor's obligation under that contract, County shall take reasonable 
steps to cure the breach or end the violation, as applicable, and, if such steps were unsuccessful, terminated the 
contract, if feasible.  45 CFR 164.502(e)(1)(iii). 

2.4. Notice of Breach to Contractor  County shall report to Contractor any security incident of which it 
becomes aware, including breaches of Contractor’s unsecured protected health information as required by 45 

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Draft

       PAGE 111 of 118 
 

Deer Oaks / Travis County Contract 
 

CFR § 164.410.  County shall report to Contractor any successful security incident in detail as promptly as 
possible and no later than 2 business days after County becomes aware of it. County may report to Contractor 
unsuccessful security incidents in the aggregate at least once each quarter.  County determines if there has been 
a data breach for data that initiated with County and whether data that initiated with County has been 
compromised.  45 CFR 164.314 (a)(2)(C).   

2.5. Policies and Training  County shall implement, maintain and enforce procedures and policies consistent 
with the applicable requirements of HIPAA, HITECH and Part 164.  County shall provide its employees 
working in areas treated as a covered entity with appropriate regular training in these policies and procedures 
and compliance with the applicable requirements of HIPAA, HITECH and Part 164.  County shall ensure that 
these employees comply with these procedures and policies.   

2.6. Notice of Breach.  Following the discovery of a breach of unsecured protected health information, 
County shall notify Contractor of the breach without unreasonable delay and no later than 60 calendar days after 
discovery of a breach.  This notice shall include, to the extent possible, the identity of each individual whose 
unsecured protected health information has been, or is reasonably believed by County to have been accessed, 
acquired, used, or disclosed during the breach and any other available information that Contractor is required to 
include in its notice to the individual under 45 CFR § 164.404(c).  For purposes of this paragraph, a breach shall 
be treated as discovered by County as of the first day on which that breach is known to County or, by exercising 
reasonable diligence, would have been known to County. County shall be deemed to have knowledge of a 
breach if the breach is known, or by exercising reasonable diligence would have been known, to any person, 
other than the person committing the breach, who is an employee, officer, or other agent of County. 45 CFR 
164.410. 

2.7. Permitted Uses and Disclosures  County may use protected health information provided to County by 
Contractor data for the following activities: 

2.7.1. Treatment of patients, 

2.7.2. Payment,  

2.7.3. Healthcare operations including quality assessment and improvement activities, competence or 
qualifications of health care professionals, conducting or arranging for medical review business 
planning and development, business management and general administrative activities of 
County, 

2.7.4. proper management and administration of County,  

2.7.5. Making protected health information available for amendment and incorporating any 
amendments to protected health information in accordance with Part 164, and 

2.7.6. Making the information required to provide an accounting of disclosures available in accordance 
with Part 164. 

2.8. Required Uses and Disclosures  County shall disclose protected health information and make its internal 
practices, books, and records relating to the use and disclosure of protected health information received from, or 
created or received by County available to the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services for 
purposes of determining Contractor’s or County’s compliance with Part 164.  County shall also disclose 
protected health information to Contractor when requested by an individual or the individual's designee, as 
necessary to satisfy Contractor’s obligations to provide the individual with access to inspect and obtain a copy 
of his or her protected health information in a designated record set, subject to the exclusions in § 

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Draft

       PAGE 112 of 118 
 

Deer Oaks / Travis County Contract 
 

164.524(a)(1), in the electronic format requested if it is readily producible in such form and format; or, if not, in 
a readable electronic form and format as agreed to by the covered entity and the individual in compliance with 
Part 164. 

2.9. Prohibited Uses and Disclosures  County shall not use or further disclose genetic information for 
underwriting purposes or sell protected health information or use or disclose protected health information other 
than as permitted or required by the BAA or as required by law.  For purposes of this paragraph, sale of 
protected health information means a disclosure of protected health information by County where County 
directly or indirectly receives remuneration from or on behalf of the recipient of the protected health 
information in exchange for the protected health information but does not include disclosure of protected health 
information as specifically limited in 45 CFR § 164.502(5). 

2.10. Accounting of Disclosures  Except as otherwise permitted or required by this BAA, County shall report 
to Contractor any use or disclosure of the information of which it becomes aware, including breaches of 
unsecured protected health information.  45 CFR § 164.410 and 45 CFR 164.504 (e)(2)(ii)(C). 

2.11. Return or Destruction of Data  At termination of the BAA, if feasible, County shall return or destroy all 
protected health information received from, or created or received by County on behalf of Contractor that 
County still maintains in any form and retain no copies of such information. If such return or destruction is not 
feasible, County shall extend the protections of the BAA to the information and limit further uses and 
disclosures to those purposes that make the return or destruction of the information infeasible. 

2.12. Compliance with Laws  County shall comply with all applicable laws, rules and regulations in the 
performance of this BAA.  

III.  CONTRACTOR RESPONSIBILITIES AND AUTHORITY 

3.1. Directly Regulated  Contractor acknowledges that it is directly regulated by HIPAA and HITECH and 
Part 164. 

3.2. Contractor Compliance with Part 164.  Contractor shall comply with the applicable requirements of Part 
164.  45 CFR 164.314 (a)(2)(A).  Contractor shall use appropriate safeguards and comply, where applicable, 
with Part 164 to prevent use or disclosure of electronic protected health information other than as provided for 
in this BAA.  45 CFR 164.504 (e)(2)(ii)(B). 

3.3. Subcontractor Compliance with Part 164.  Contractor shall ensure that any subcontractors that create, 
receive, maintain, or transmit electronic protected health information on behalf of Contractor agree to comply 
with the applicable requirements of Part 164 by entering into a contract with the subcontractor that complies 
with 45 CFR 164.314 (a)(2)(B).  If Contractor knows of a pattern of activity or practice of a subcontractor that 
constitutes a material breach or violation of the subcontractor's obligation under that contract, Contractor shall 
take reasonable steps to cure the breach or end the violation, as applicable, and, if such steps were unsuccessful, 
terminated the contract, if feasible.  45 CFR 164.502(e)(1)(iii). 

3.4. Notice of Breach to County  Contractor shall report to County any security incident of which it becomes 
aware, including breaches of County’s unsecured protected health information as required by 45 CFR § 
164.410.  Contractor shall report to County any successful security incident in detail as promptly as possible 
and no later than 2 business days after Contractor becomes aware of it. Contractor may report to County 
unsuccessful security incidents in the aggregate at least once each quarter.  Contractor determines if there has 
been a data breach for data that initiated with Contractor and whether data that initiated with Contractor has 
been compromised.  45 CFR 164.314 (a)(2)(C).   

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Draft

       PAGE 113 of 118 
 

Deer Oaks / Travis County Contract 
 

3.5. Policies and Training  Contractor shall implement, maintain and enforce procedures and policies 
consistent with the applicable requirements of HIPAA, HITECH and Part 164.  Contractor shall provide its 
directors, employees, and volunteers with appropriate regular training in these policies and procedures and 
compliance with the applicable requirements of HIPAA, HITECH and Part 164.  Contractor shall ensure that its 
directors, employees, volunteers and subcontractors comply with these procedures and policies.   

3.6. Notice of Breach.  Following the discovery of a breach of unsecured protected health information, 
Contractor shall notify County of the breach without unreasonable delay and no later than 60 calendar days after 
discovery of a breach.  This notice shall include, to the extent possible, the identity of each individual whose 
unsecured protected health information has been, or is reasonably believed by Contractor to have been accessed, 
acquired, used, or disclosed during the breach and any other available information that County is required to 
include in its notice to the individual under 45 CFR § 164.404(c).  For purposes of this paragraph, a breach shall 
be treated as discovered by Contractor as of the first day on which that breach is known to Contractor or, by 
exercising reasonable diligence, would have been known to Contractor. Contractor shall be deemed to have 
knowledge of a breach if the breach is known, or by exercising reasonable diligence would have been known, to 
any person, other than the person committing the breach, who is an employee, officer, or other agent of 
Contractor. 45 CFR 164.410. 

3.7. Permitted Uses and Disclosures  Contractor may use protected health information provided to 
Contractor by County data for the following activities: 

3.7.1. Treatment of patients, 

3.7.2. Payment,  

3.7.3. Healthcare operations including quality assessment and improvement activities, competence or 
qualifications of health care professionals, conducting or arranging for medical review business 
planning and development, business management and general administrative activities of 
Contractor, 

3.7.4. Proper management and administration of Contractor,  

3.7.5. Making protected health information available for amendment and incorporating any 
amendments to protected health information in accordance with Part 164, and 

3.7.6. Making the information required to provide an accounting of disclosures available in accordance 
with § 164.528. 

3.8. Required Uses and Disclosures  Contractor shall disclose protected health information and make its 
internal practices, books, and records relating to the use and disclosure of protected health information received 
from, or created or received by Contractor available to the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human 
Services for purposes of determining Contractor’s or County’s compliance with Part 164.  Contractor also shall 
disclose protected health information to County when requested by an individual or the individual's designee, as 
necessary to satisfy County’s obligations to provide the individual with access to inspect and obtain a copy of 
his or her protected health information in a designated record set, subject to the exclusions in § 164.524(a)(1), in 
the electronic format requested if it is readily producible in such form and format; or, if not, in a readable 
electronic form and format as agreed to by the covered entity and the individual in compliance with Part 164. 

3.9. Prohibited Uses and Disclosures  Contractor shall not use or further disclose genetic information for 
underwriting purposes or sell protected health information or use or disclose protected health information other 
than as permitted or required by the BAA or as required by law.  For purposes of this paragraph, sale of 

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Draft

       PAGE 114 of 118 
 

Deer Oaks / Travis County Contract 
 

protected health information means a disclosure of protected health information by Contractor where Contractor 
directly or indirectly receives remuneration from or on behalf of the recipient of the protected health 
information in exchange for the protected health information but does not include disclosure of protected health 
information as specifically limited in 45 CFR § 164.502(5). 

3.10. Accounting of Disclosures  Except as otherwise permitted or required by this BAA, Contractor shall 
report to County any use or disclosure of the information of which it becomes aware, including breaches of 
unsecured protected health information.  45 CFR § 164.410 and 45 CFR 164.504 (e)(2)(ii)(C). 

3.11. Return or Destruction of Data  At termination of the BAA, if feasible, Contractor shall return or destroy 
all protected health information received from, or created or received by Contractor on behalf of County that 
Contractor still maintains in any form and retain no copies of such information. If such return or destruction is 
not feasible, Contractor shall extend the protections of the BAA to the information and limit further uses and 
disclosures to those purposes that make the return or destruction of the information infeasible. 

3.12 Compliance with Laws  Contractor shall comply with all applicable laws, rules and regulations in the 
performance of this BAA.  

IV.  LIABILITY 

4.1. County is not liable for and Contractor assumes full risk of any claims, damages or attorney’s fees of 
every kind for injury to or death of any person and for damages to or loss of property arising in whole or in part, 
directly or indirectly, as a result of the operations, including acts and omissions, of the Contractor under this 
BAA.   

4.2. Contractor is not liable for and County assumes full risk of any claims, damages or attorney’s fees of 
every kind for injury or death of any person and for damages to or loss of property arising in whole or in part, 
directly or indirectly, as a result of the operations, including acts or omissions, of the County under this BAA.   

4.3. By entering into this BAA, County does not waive, and shall not be deemed to waive, any right, defense, 
or immunity that County may have. 

V.  LIMIT ON AGENTS 

5.1. No agent, official, employee, or representative of County has the authority to amend or assign this BAA 
or waive violations of it unless expressly granted this specific authority by the Commissioners Court. 

VI.  BREACH 

6.1. The failure of either party to comply with the terms and conditions of this BAA is a breach of this BAA. 

VII.  MEDIATION 

7.1. When mediation is acceptable to both parties in resolving a dispute arising under this BAA, the parties 
agree to use the Dispute Resolution Center of Austin, Texas as the provider of mediators for mediation as 
described in the TEX. CIV. PRAC. AND REM. CODE ANN., §154.023.  Unless both parties are satisfied with the 
result of the mediation, the mediation will not constitute a final and binding resolution of the dispute.  All 
communications within the scope of the mediation must remain confidential as described in TEX. CIV. PRAC. 
AND REM. CODE ANN.,  §154.073, unless both parties agree, in writing, to waive the confidentiality. 

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Draft

       PAGE 115 of 118 
 

Deer Oaks / Travis County Contract 
 

VIII.  TERMINATION 

8.1 County for Cause Termination.  County has the right to terminate this BAA and the BAA, in whole or in 
part, for one or more of the following reasons at any time in compliance with 7.2:  

8.1.1 Contractor fails to cease violations of this BAA or HIPAA or HITECH or Part 164,  
8.1.2 Contractor has violated its policies and procedures arising from compliance with HIPAA or 
HITECH or Part 164 or both one or more times, 
8.1.3 Contractor has failed to comply with any term or condition of this BAA, or 
8.1.4 Contractor is unable to conform to changes required by federal, state or local laws or regulations 
related to performance under this BAA. 

 
8.2 Procedure.  At least  thirty (30) days before the effective date of termination, County must notify 
Contractor in compliance with Article XIII of the decision to terminate this BAA, the existence and nature of 
the breach, the effective date of termination and, in the case of a partial termination, the portion of the BAA to 
be terminated.  Contractor may avoid termination of this BAA pursuant to 7.1.1, 7.1.2, and 7.1.3 if Contractor 
cures the breach to the satisfaction of County within thirty (30) days of receipt of notice of breach.  The time to 
cure may be extended, at the sole discretion of County, as long as the Contractor diligently continues to work 
toward completion of the cure. If the breach is not cured to the satisfaction of County prior to the effective date 
of termination or any extension of the date allowed by County in writing, the Contractor is in default and the 
participation of the Contractor is automatically terminated on that date.  
 
8.3 Contractor For Cause Termination.  Contractor may terminate this BAA, in whole or in part, at any time 
for any of the following reasons in compliance with 7.4:  

8.3.1 County fails to cease violations of this BAA or HIPAA or HITECH or Part 164,  
8.3.2 County has violated its policies and procedures arising from compliance with HIPAA or 
HITECH or Part 164 or both one or more times, 
8.3.3 County has failed to comply with any term or condition of this BAA, or 
8.3.4 County is unable to conform to changes required by federal, state or local laws or regulations 
related to performance under this BAA. 
 

8.4 Procedure.  At least  thirty (30) days before the date of termination, Contractor must notify County in 
compliance with Article XIII of the decision to terminate this BAA, the reasons for termination, the effective 
date of termination and in the case of a partial termination, the portion of the BAA to be terminated.  County 
may avoid termination of this BAA pursuant to 7.3.1 or 7.3.2 or 7.3.3 if County corrects the causes of the 
reasons for termination stated in the notice to the satisfaction of the Contractor prior to the effective date of 
termination. 

8.5 Mutual Termination.  Either party has the right to terminate this BAA, in whole or in part, when both 
parties agree, in writing, that the continuation of the activities under this BAA would not produce beneficial 
results commensurate with the further expenditure of funds and what conditions of termination will apply, 
including the effective date of termination and, in case of partial termination, the portion of the BAA to be 
terminated. 

 
 
 

IX.NON-WAIVER AND RESERVATION OF REMEDIES 

9.1. Non-Waiver.  Any act of forbearance by either party to enforce any provision of this BAA shall not be 
interpreted as a modification of this BAA or as a waiver of any breach or default of the other party which then 

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Draft

       PAGE 116 of 118 
 

Deer Oaks / Travis County Contract 
 

exists or may subsequently exist.  The failure of either party to exercise any right or privilege granted in this 
BAA shall not be interpreted as a waiver of that right or privilege.  In this BAA, County and Contractor do not 
waive any immunity or defense that would otherwise be available to them against claims arising in the exercise 
of their governmental powers and functions. 

9.2. Reservation of Rights and Remedies.  All rights of both parties under this BAA are specifically reserved.  
Any payment, act or omission by a party must not impair or prejudice any remedy or right of that party under 
this BAA.  Any right or remedy stated in this BAA must not preclude the exercise of any other right or remedy 
under this BAA, the law or at equity, nor must any action taken in the exercise of any right or remedy be 
deemed a waiver of any other rights or remedies. 

X.  ENTIRE AGREEMENT 

10.1. Agreement All Inclusive.  All oral and written agreements between the parties to this BAA relating to 
the subject matter of this BAA that were made prior to the execution of this BAA have been reduced to writing 
and are contained in this document. 

XI.  ASSIGNABILITY 

11.1. Neither party may assign any of the rights or duties created by this BAA without the prior written 
approval of the other party.  It is acknowledged by Contractor that no officer, agency, employee or 
representative of County has any authority to grant such assignment unless expressly granted that authority by 
the Commissioners Court. 

XII.  AMENDMENTS 

12.1. Amendment of BAA. Any change to the provisions of this BAA must be made in writing and signed by 
both parties: County and Contractor.  It is acknowledged by Contractor that no officer, agency, employee or 
representative of County has any authority to change the provisions of this BAA unless expressly granted that 
authority by Commissioners Court. 

12.2. Contractor Request.  Contractor must submit all requests for changes to this BAA to the County 
Purchasing Agent. The County Purchasing Agent must present the Contractor ’s requests to Commissioners 
Court for consideration. 

12.3. County Request.  County must submit all requests for changes to this BAA to the person designated for 
notice by Contractor.  That person must present County's requests to the Contractor for consideration.  

XIII.  NOTICES  

13.1. Written Notice.  All notices sent pursuant to this BAA shall be in writing and either hand delivered or 
sent by registered or certified mail, postage prepaid, return receipt requested. 

13.2. County Address.  Notice sent pursuant to this BAA may be delivered or mailed to County.  If delivered, 
notice shall be delivered at the following address: 

County Purchasing Agent 
700 Lavaca, Suite 800  
Austin, Texas  78701 

 
13.3.   If mailed, notice shall be mailed to the following address: 

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Draft

       PAGE 117 of 118 
 

Deer Oaks / Travis County Contract 
 

County Purchasing Agent 
P.O. Box 1748 
Austin, Texas  78767 

 
13.4. Contractor Addresses.  Paper Notices sent pursuant to this BAA shall be delivered or mailed to 
Contractor at the addresses shown in its contract with County for third party administration service for its health 
plan unless notice of change has been provided.   

13.5. Time of Delivery.  When notices sent are hand delivered, notice is effective upon delivery.  When 
notices are mailed by registered or certified mail, notice shall be deemed effective three days after deposit in a 
U.S. mail box or at a U.S. post office. 

13.6 Change of Address.  Contractor may change its address for notice under this contract by providing a 
notice of the change to County in compliance with this Article XIII. 

XIV.  INTERPRETATION OF CONTRACT 

14.1. Third Party Rights Not Created.  This BAA is not intended and shall not be interpreted to create any 
rights or remedies in any person or legal entity that is not a party to it and neither County nor Contractor is 
waiving any defense or immunity to which it is entitled against any person or legal entity that is not a party to it.   

14.2. Law.  This BAA is governed by the laws of the United States of America and the laws of Texas.  This 
BAA is performable in Travis County, Texas.  

14.3. Severability.  If any portion of this BAA is ruled invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, the 
remainder of it must be construed as if that portion were not included in the BAA and the remainder remains 
valid and binding.  

14.4. Definitions.   In this BAA, all words and phrases used in this BAA and defined in 45 CFR Parts 160 
through 164 inclusive have the same meaning in this BAA as they have in 45 CFR Parts 160 through 164 
inclusive.  In addition, in this BAA 

14.4.1. Business Day.  “Business Day” means Monday through Friday unless County has designated one 
of these days as a County holiday.  

14.4.2. Commissioners Court. "Commissioners Court" means the Travis County Commissioners Court.  

14.4.3. HIPAA“HIPAA” means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996. 

14.4.4. HITECH  “HITECH” means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical 
Health Act of 2009. 

14.4.5. Part 164.  “Part 164” means 45 Code of Federal Regulations, Part 164 which forms a portion of 
the regulations issued under HIPAA and HITECH.  

14.4.6. County Purchasing Agent. “County Purchasing Agent " means the Travis County Purchasing or 
her designee. 

14.5. Computation of Time.  When any period of time is stated in this BAA, the time must be computed to 
exclude the first day and include the last day of the period.  If the last day of any period falls on a Saturday, 
Sunday or a day that County has declared a holiday for its employees, these days must be omitted from the 
computation.  

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Draft

       PAGE 118 of 118 
 

Deer Oaks / Travis County Contract 
 

14.6. Number and Gender.  Words of any gender in this BAA must be construed to include any other gender 
and words in either number must be construed to include the other unless the context in the BAA clearly 
requires otherwise.  

14.7. Headings.  The headings at the beginning of the various provisions of this BAA have been included only 
to make it easier to locate the subject matter covered by that section or subsection and are not to be used in 
construing this BAA. 

 
XV.  DUPLICATE ORIGINALS  

15.1. This document is executed in duplicate originals.  

 

TRAVIS COUNTY 

 
By:         
Samuel T. Biscoe, County Judge 
Travis County, Texas 
 
Date:         
 
 
DEER OAKS EAP SERVICES, LLC. 
 
 
By:        
 
Name:        
 
Title:         
 
Date:         
 
 

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Item 32Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda neAyel!

t,t*i^Sq
Meeting Date: November 18, 2014
Prepared By/Phone Number: Beverly Evans I 854-9522

p'4F5'S"r
P

Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Rosemary Lehmberg, District
Attorney
Commissioners Court Sponsor:

AGENDA LANGUAGE:
Consider and take appropriate action on Equitable Sharing Agreement and
Certification for federal forfeiture proceeds for the District Attorney's Office.

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST AND ATTACHMENTS:
The District Attorney's Office requests approval of the attached annual
Equitable Sharing Agreement and Certification. Approval of this agreement
is a prerequisite for the District Attorney's office to receive any equitably
shared cash, property or proceeds from participation in an investigation or
prosecution that results in a federal forfeiture. The certification must be
submitted annually to the Department of Justice and the Department of
Treasury.

STAF F RECOMMEN DATIONS :

ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES:

FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING:

REQUI RED AUTHORIZATIONS :

AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE: All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a pdf to the County Judge's
office, agenda@co.travis.tx.us by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. for the next week's meeting.

Item 33Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Rosemary Lehmberg * Travis County District Attorney
P.O. Box 1748 Austin, Texas 78767 . Telephone: 512-85+9400 ' Fax: 512 -85+9695

MEMORANDUM

Travis County Judge and CommissionersTo:

From:

Date:

t',rl
Beverly Evans, District Attorney's Office P

November 7,2014

Subject: Equitable Sharing Agreement and certification

The District Attorney's Office requests approval of the attached annual Equitable Sharing

Agreement and Certification. Approval of this agreement is a prerequisite for the District

Altorney's Office to receive any equitably shared cash, property or proceeds from participation

in an investigation or prosecution that results in a federal forfeiture. This agreement and

certification has been reviewed and approved by the Auditor's office. This certification must be

submitted annually to the Department of Justice and the Department of Treasury.

Please contact me at 854-9522 if you have any questions.

cc: David Jungerman, Travis County Auditor's Office

Criminal Justice Center ' 509 West I lth Street ' Austin, Texas 78701

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



OMB Number I 123-001 1

Expires 9-30-20 1 4Equitable Sharing
Agreement and

Certification

Q Police Department Q Sheriffs Office Q Task Force (Complete Table A)

@ Prosecutor's Office Q NationalGuard Counterdrug Unit Q Other
* Ptease fill each required field. Hover mouse over any fillable field for pop-up instructions. *

Agency Name: Travis County District Attorney's Officg

NCIC/ORI/Tracking Number:

Mailing Address: P.O. Box 1748

T X 2 2 7 0 3 5 A

City: Austin

Finance Contact: First: Beverly

Preparer:

[l >ameas- Phone:512 854-9400L-J Pin3n." 6on1a.t

Independent Public Accountant:

Last FY End Date: 0913012014

Phone: 512 854-9400 E- mail: beverly.evans@traviscountytx. gov

First: Michele Last: Pearson

State: TX Zipz78767

Last: Evans

E- mail : michele.pearson@traviscountytx. gov

E-mail: fstover@atchleycpas.com

Agency Current FY Budget: $20,630,348.00

Q ttew Participant:

@ fx:stin9 Participant:

O Amended Form:

Read the Equitable Sharing Agreement and sign the Affidavit.

Comolete the Annual Certification Report, read the Equitable Sharing Agreement, and sign

the Affidavit.

Revise the Annual Certification Report, read the Equitable Sharing Agreement, and sign

the Affidavit.

of Equitable Activity Justice Funds

1

Beginning Equitable Sharing Fund Balance (must match

Ending Equitable Sharing Fund Balance from prior FY) $27,475.95

2 Federal Sharing Funds Received $6,359.75

3
Federal Sharing Funds Received from Other Law Enforcement

Agencies and Task Forces (To populate, complete Table B)

4 Other Income

5 Interest Income R..,u"a -"" 
ilfl::lB:ili:! I

6 Total Equitable Sharing Funds (total of lines 1 - 5) $0.00 $33,835.70

7 Federal Sharing Funds Spent (total of lines a - m below) $0.00 $0.00

8 Ending Balance (difference between line 7 and line 6) $0.00 $33.835.70

Annual Certification RePort
Funds'

' Justice Agencies are: FBl, DEA, ATF, USPls, USDA, DCIS, DSS, and FDA.

'Treasury Agencies are: lRS, lCE, CBP, TTB, U555, and USCG.

Page 1 of 5 October 201 2

Version 2.1

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Summary of Shared Funds Spent Justice Funds unds

a Total spent on salaries under permitted salary exceptions

b Total spent on overtime

c Total spent on informants, "buy money", and rewards

d Total spent on travel and training

e Total spent on communications and computers

f Total spent on weapons and protective gear

I Total spent on electronic surveillance equipment

h Total spent on buildings and improvements

I

Total transfers to other participating state and local law

enforcement agencies $o populate, complete Table C)

Total spent on other law enforcement expenses (To populate,

complete Table D)

k
Total Expenditures in Support of Community-Based Programs
(To populate, complete Table E) .'.
Total Windfall Transfers (To populate, complete Table F)

m
Total spent on matching grants (To populate, complete

Table G)

n Total $0.00 $0.00

o Didyouragencyreceivenon-cash assets? Q Yes @ No lfyes,completeTable H.

Please filt out the following tables, if applicable.

Table A: Members of Task Force

Table B: Equitable Sharing Funds Received from other Agencies

NCIC/ORl/Tracking Number:

Table C: Equitable Sharing Funds Transferred to Other Agencies

October 201 2

Velsion 2.1

NCIC/ORl/Tracking Number:

Page 2 of 5

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Table D: Other Law Enforcement Expenses

Table E: Expenditures in Support of Community-Based Programs

Recipient Justice Funds

Table F: Windfall Transfers

Table G: Matching Grants

Matching Grant Name Justice Funds TreasurY Funds

Table H: Other Non-Cash Assets Received

Description of Asset

Justice Q
Treasury Q

Table l: Civil Rights Cases

Paperwork Reduction Act Notice

Under the paperwork Reduction Act, a person is not required to respond to a collection of information

unless it displays a valid OMB control number. We try to create accurate and easily understood forms

that impose the least possible burden on you to complete. The estimated average time to complete this

form is 30 minutes. If you have comments regarding the accuracy of this estimate, or suggestions for

making this form simpler, please write to the Asset Forfeiture and Money Laundering Section,

1400 New York Avenue, N.W., Washington, DC 20005'

October 201 2

Version 2.1

Name of Case Type of Discrimination

! Race ! Color ,--, National
u Origin ! Gender

I Disability I ns" ! other

Page 3 of 5

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Equitable Sharing Agreement

This Federal Equitable Sharing Agreement, entered into among (1) the Federal Government, (2) the above-stated law

enforcement agency ("Agency"), and (3) the governing body, sets forth the requirements for participation in the

federal Equitable Sharing Program and the restrictions upon the use of federally forfeited cash, property, proceeds,

and any interest earned thereon, which are equitably shared with participating law enforcement agencies.

By its signatures, the Agency agrees that it will be bound by the statutes and guidelines that regulate shared assets

and the following requirements for participation in the federal Equitable Sharing Program. Receipt of the signed

Equitable Sharing Agreement and Certification (this "Document") is a prerequisite to receiving any equitably shared

cash, property, or proceeds.

t. Submission. This Document must be submitted to aca.submit@usdoj.gov within 60 days of the end of the

Agency's fiscal year. This Document must be submitted electronically with the Affidavit/Signature submitted by fax.

This will constitute submission to the Department of Justice and the Department of the Treasury.

2. Signatories. This agreement must be signed by the head of the Agency and the head of the governing body'

Examples of Agency heads include police chief, sheriff, director, commissioner, superintendent, administrator,

chairperson, secretary, city attorney, county attorney, district attorney, prosecuting attorney, state attorney,

commonwealth attorney, and attorney general. The governing body's head is the person who allocates funds or

approves the budget for the Agency. Examples of governing body heads include city manager, mayor, city council

chairperson, county executive, county council chairperson, director, secretary, administrator, commissioner, and

governor.

3. Uses. Any shared asset shall be used for law enforcement purposes in accordance with the statutes and guidelines

that govern ihe federal Equitable Sharing Program as set forth in the current edition of the Departmqnt of Justice's

Guidi to Equitabte Sharing for State and Local Law Enforcement (Justice Guide), and the Department of the Treasury's

Guide to Equitabte Sharing for Foreign Countries and Federal, Stote, and Local Law Enforcement Agencies (Treasury

Guide).

4. Transfers. Before the Agency transfers cash, property, or proceeds to other state or local law enforcement

agencies, it must first verify with the Department of Justice or the Department of the Treasury, depending on the

,our." of the funds, that the receiving agency is a current and compliant Equitable Sharing Program participant.

5. Internal Controls. The Agency agrees to account separately for federal equitable sharing funds received from the

Department of Justice and the Department of the Treasury. Funds from state and local forfeitures and other sources

must not be commingled with federal equitable sharing funds. The Agency shall establish a separate revenue

account or accounting code for state, local, Department of Justice, and Department of the Treasury forfeiture funds.

Interest income generated must be accounted for in the appropriate federal equitable sharing account.

The Agency agrees that such accounting will be subject to the standard accounting requirements and practices

employed for other public funds as supplemented by requirements set forth in the current edition of the Justice Guide

.nd tnl Treasury Guide, including the requirement in the Ju stice Guide to maintain relevant documents and records for

five years.

The misuse or misapplication of shared resources or the supplantation of existing resources with shared assets is

prohibited. Failure to comply with any provision of this agreement shall subject the recipient agency to the sanctions

stipulated in the current edition of the JustrceorTreasuryGuides, depending on the source of thefunds/property.

6. Audit Report. Audits will be conducted as provided by the Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996 and oMB

Circular A-1 33. The Department of Justice and Department of the Treasury reserve the right to conduct periodic

random audits.

October 201 2

Version 2.1

Page 4 of 5

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Affidavit - Existing Participant
Under penalty of perjury, the undersigned officials certifo that they have read and understand their obligations under
the Equitable Sharing Agreement and that the information submitted in conjunction with this Document is an accurate

accounting of funds received and spent by the Agency under the Justice and/or Treasury Guides during the reporting
period and that the recipient Agency is in compliance with the National Code of Professional Conduct for Asset Forfeiture.

The undersigned certify that the recipient Agency is in compliance with the nondiscrimination requirements of the

following laws and their Department of Justice implementing regulations: Title Vl of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C.

5 2000d etseQ),Title lX of the Education Amendments of 1972(20 U.S.C.5 1681 etseq.), Section 504 of the Rehabilitation

Act of 1973 (29 U.s.C. 5 794), and the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. S 6101 ef seq.), which prohibit

discrimination on the basis of race, color, national origin, disability, or age in any federally assisted program or activity, or

on the basis of sex in any federally assisted education program or activity. The Agency agrees that it will comply with all

federal statutes and regulations permitting federal investigators access to records and any other sources of information as

may be necessary to determine compliance with civil rights and other applicable statutes and regulations.

During the past fiscal year: (1) has any Gourt or administrative agency issued any finding,
judgment, or determination that the Agency discriminated against any person or group in

violation of any of the federat civil rights statutes listed above; or (2) has the Agency entered

into any settlement agreement with respect to any complaint filed with a court or
administrative agency alleging that the Agency discriminated against any person or group in

violation of any of the federal civil rights statutes listed above? C yeS O NO

lf you answered yes to the above question, complete Table I

Agency Head Governing Body Head

Signature:

Name: Samuel T. Biscoe

County fudget

E-mail: rosemary.lehmberg@traviscountytx.gov E-mail: sam.biscoe@traviscountytx.gov

Title:

Date:

Final lnstructions:
Step 1: Click to save for your records

Step 2: Click to save in XML format

Signature:

Name:

Title:

Date:

Subscibe to Equitable Sharing Wire:
The Equitable Sharing Wire is an electronic newsletter that
gives you important, substantive, information regarding

Equitable Sharing policies, practices, and procedures.

michele.pearson@traviscountytx.gov

Step 3:

Step 4:

Email the XML file to aca.submit@usdoj.gov
Scan & email this Affidavit to aca.affidavit@usdoj.gov
(Email subject line must include Agency NCIC/ORI Code)

o NCIC: TX227035A Agency: Travis County District Attorney's Office Phone: 512854-9400
o

State:TX Preparer: Michele Pearson E-mail: michele.pearson@traviscountytx.gov

October 201 2

Version 2.1

Rosemary Lehmberg

Page 5 of 5

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Item 34Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



 
 
Meeting Date:  November 18, 2014 
Prepared By/Phone Number:  Gina Hernandez for Anthony J. Nelson, 854-4801 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: David A. Escamilla 
Commissioners Court Sponsor:  Judge Samuel T. Biscoe 
 
AGENDA LANGUAGE:  In consultation with County Attorney, receive briefing 
from outside counsel and County Attorney, consider settlement offer and/or take 
appropriate action in Jennifer McPhail vs. Travis County, (EXECUTIVE SESSION 
UNDER GOV’T. CODE ANN. §551.071, CONSULTATION WITH 
ATTORNEY). 
 
 
BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST AND ATTACHMENTS: 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 
ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES: 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING: 
 
 
REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS: 
Steven M. Manilla County Executive  TNR  (512) 854-9429 
Charles Bergh Parks Division Director TNR (512) 854-9408 
William Paterson Risk Manager   (512)854-9650 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials should be submitted as a pdf to 
the County Judge's office, agenda@co.travis.tx.us  by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. for the next week's meeting. 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Item 37Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm

mailto:agenda@co.travis.tx.us


Item 38Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Item 39Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Item 40Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Item 41Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Item 42Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Item 43Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Item 44Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Item 45Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Item 46Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



 
 
Meeting Date: November 18, 2014 
Prepared By/Phone Number: Sara Boltin, 854-9840 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: David A. Escamilla 
Commissioners Court Sponsor: Hon. Samuel T. Biscoe 
 
AGENDA LANGUAGE: IN CONSULTATION WITH COUNTY ATTORNEY, 
RECEIVE BRIEFING AND CONSIDER AND TAKE APPROPRIATE ACTION 
REGARDING COMPENSATION FOR EMPLOYEES WORKING IN THE SATELLITE 
OFFICES OF THE TRAVIS COUNTY TAX OFFICE. (EXECUTIVE SESSION 
UNDER GOV’T. CODE ANN. §551.071, CONSULTATION WITH ATTORNEY, AND 
§551.074, PERSONNEL EXCEPTION) 
 
 
BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST AND ATTACHMENTS: 
N/A 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: 
N/A 
 
ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES: 
N/A 
 
FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING: 
N/A 
 
REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS: 
Leslie W. Dippel, County Attorney, 512-854-9841 
Sherine Thomas, County Attorney, 512-854-9431 
Bruce Elfant, Tax Office, 512-854-9005 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Item 47Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



 
 
Meeting Date: November 18, 2014 
Prepared By/Phone Number: Robert Resnick, Commissioners Court 
Specialist, 512-854-4722 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Dana DeBeauvoir, Travis County 
Clerk 

Commissioners Court Sponsor: Judge Biscoe 
 
AGENDA LANGUAGE: Approve the Commissioners Court Minutes for the 
Budget Markup Voting Sessions of September 3 & 4 and Voting Sessions 
of October 14, 21, & 28, 2014. 
 
 
BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST AND ATTACHMENTS: 
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 
 
ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES: 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING: 
 
 
REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS: 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Item C3Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



 Minutes for the  
 Travis County Commissioners Court 
 Wednesday, September 3, 2014  

 Budget Mark-Up Voting Session 

Minutes Prepared by the Travis County Clerk 
512-854-4722 ● www.co.travis.tx.us ● PO Box 149325, Austin, TX 78714-9325 

September 3, 2014 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 1 

Call to Order 

Budget Mark-Up Voting Session called to order on September 3, 2014, in the Travis County 
Administration Building, Commissioners Courtroom, 700 Lavaca Street, 1st Floor, Austin, TX, Dana 
DeBeauvoir, County Clerk, was represented by Deputy Robert Resnick. 

 

Samuel T. Biscoe County Judge Present   
Ron Davis Precinct 1, Commissioner Present   
Bruce Todd Precinct 2, Commissioner Present   
Gerald Daugherty Precinct 3, Commissioner Present   
Margaret J. Gómez Precinct 4, Commissioner Present 
 
Clerk’s Note: Please refer to the Backup for FY 2015 Markup Worksheet for a listing of the 
Reference numbers located in the Minutes.  

Recap Current Budget Status 

 
1. Recap current budget status, including  
 

a. Revenue and other available funds  
 
b. Proposed tax rate  
 
c. Changes and corrections 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Jessica Rio, Budget Director, Planning and Budget Office (PBO) 
Chris Broussard, Business Analyst, PBO 
Leroy Nellis, Interim County Executive, PBO 
Travis Gatlin, Assistant Budget Director, PBO 
Victoria Ramirez, Budget Analyst, PBO 

Clerk's Note: The Court noted additional revenue received from the County Attorney Processing 
Site Orders (CAPSO) fund of $25,000.00. 
 
RESULT: DISCUSSED 

Review Process for Viewing and Tracking Budget Mark-up Changes 

 
2. Review process for viewing and tracking budget mark-up changes 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Jessica Rio, Budget Director, Planning and Budget Office (PBO) 

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



September 3, 2014 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 2 
 

Chris Broussard, Business Analyst, PBO 
Leroy Nellis, Interim County Executive, PBO 
 
RESULT: DISCUSSED 

Approve Preliminary Budget to Establish Baseline 

 
3. Approve the preliminary budget to establish baseline for beginning budget mark-up process 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Jessica Rio, Budget Director, PBO 
Victoria Ramirez, Budget Analyst, PBO 

 
MOTION: Approve the Preliminary Budget. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
SECONDER: Ron Davis, Commissioner 
AYES: Biscoe, Davis, Todd, Daugherty, Gómez 

Approve Budget Changes List 

 
4. Approve Budget Changes List 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Jessica Rio, Budget Director, PBO 
Travis Gatlin, Assistant Budget Director, PBO 

 
MOTION: Approve the Budget Changes List. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
SECONDER: Ron Davis, Commissioner 
AYES: Biscoe, Davis, Todd, Daugherty, Gómez 

Budget Agenda Request Form 

 
5. Review requests to discuss budget items on Budget Agenda Request Form, including proposed 

step increase for POPS employees and flat dollar wage increase for classified employees 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Jessica Rio, Budget Director, PBO 
Travis Gatlin, Assistant Budget Director, PBO 

 
RESULT: DISCUSSED 

 
 Compensation - Classified/POPS (Reference #360) 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Jessica Rio, Budget Director, PBO 
Todd Osburn, Compensation Manager, Human Resources Management Department 

(HRMD) 
Debbie Maynor, Director, HRMD 

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



September 3, 2014 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 3 
 

MOTION: Approve Option 1: $750 for full-time classified employees and the FY 2015 
anniversary step for POPS (Peace Officer Pay Scale) employees. 

MOVER: Ron Davis, Commissioner 
RESULT: DIED FOR LACK OF A SECOND 
 

MOTION: Approve $1,000.00 rolled into rank and file employees' base salaries, using 
on-going funds. Employees making over $100,000.00 on an annualized 
basis, elected officials, temporary and red-lined employees are not included. 
Employees would have to be on the County payroll by April 1, 2014. 

RESULT: APPROVED [4 TO 0] 
MOVER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
SECONDER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Bruce Todd, Gerald Daugherty, Margaret J. Gómez 
NAYS: Ron Davis 
 

 Compensation - POPS Make-up Steps (Reference #362) 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Brett Spicer, Senior Deputy, Law Enforcement, Travis County Sheriff's Office (TCSO) and 

President, Travis County Sheriff Law Enforcement Association (TCSLEA) 
Travis Gatlin, Assistant Budget Director, PBO 
Alex Leo, Vice President, TCSLEA 
Sergeant James Hodge, President, Travis County Sheriff's Officers Association (TCSOA) 
Dennis Weller, Investigator, Travis County Attorney's Office 
Todd Osburn, Compensation Manager, HRMD 
Jessica Rio, Budget Director, PBO 

MOTION: Approve two POPS make-up steps; that we take $1.7M of on-going money 
from Capital Acquisition Resources (CAR) and fund the steps for 2014 and 
2015. 

RESULT: DEFEATED [2 TO 2] 
MOVER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
SECONDER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Margaret J. Gómez 
NAYS: Bruce Todd, Gerald Daugherty 
ABSTAIN: Ron Davis 

MOTION: Approve one POPS step; the funding would be approximately $1.5M. 
RESULT: APPROVED [4 TO 0] 
MOVER: Gerald Daugherty, Commissioner 
SECONDER: Bruce Todd, Commissioner 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Bruce Todd, Gerald Daugherty, Margaret J. Gómez 
NAYS: Ron Davis 

 
 Justice of the Peace, Precinct 3. Juvenile Case Manager Reclassification to Social 

Worker (Reference #51) 

MOTION: Approve the request. 
RESULT: APPROVED [4 TO 0] 
MOVER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
SECONDER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Bruce Todd, Gerald Daugherty, Margaret J. Gómez 
ABSTAIN: Ron Davis 

 

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



September 3, 2014 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 4 
 

 Transportation and Natural Resources, GIS Analyst (Reference #142) 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Jessica Rio, Budget Director, PBO 

MOTION: Approve 1 additional GIS Analyst. 
RESULT: APPROVED [4 TO 0] 
MOVER: Gerald Daugherty, Commissioner 
SECONDER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Bruce Todd, Gerald Daugherty, Margaret J. Gómez 
ABSTAIN: Ron Davis 

 
 Emergency Medical Services, Air Communication Specialist (Reference #25) 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Jessica Rio, Budget Director, PBO 

MOTION: Approve an earmark against Allocated Reserve for this request. 
RESULT: APPROVED [3 TO 1] 
MOVER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
SECONDER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Bruce Todd, Margaret J. Gómez 
NAYS: Gerald Daugherty 
ABSTAIN: Ron Davis 

 
 Medical Examiner, Deputy Medical Examiner II (Reference #66) 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Katie Gipson, Senior Budget Analyst, PBO 
Jessica Rio, Budget Director, PBO 
Danny Hobby, County Executive, Emergency Services 
Sarah Scott, Chief Administrative Officer, Medical Examiner's Office 

MOTION: Approve an earmark against Allocated Reserve for this request. 
RESULT: APPROVED [3 TO 1] 
MOVER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
SECONDER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Bruce Todd, Margaret J. Gómez 
NAYS: Gerald Daugherty 
ABSTAIN: Ron Davis 

 
 Tax Assessor-Collector, Tax Office Reorganization (Reference #119) 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Jessica Rio, Budget Director, PBO 
Aerin Pfaffenberger, Budget Analyst II, PBO 

MOTION: Approve the request recommended by PBO. 
RESULT: APPROVED [3 TO 1] 
MOVER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
SECONDER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Bruce Todd, Margaret J. Gómez 
NAYS: Gerald Daugherty 
ABSENT: Ron Davis 

 

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



September 3, 2014 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 5 
 

 Transportation and Natural Resources, Halloween Flood Buyouts (Reference #164) 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Jessica Rio, Budget Director, PBO 
Travis Gatlin, Assistant Budget Director, PBO 
Melinda Mallia, Environmental Project Manager, Transportation and Natural Resources 

(TNR) 

MOTION: Approve Option 164b. 
RESULT: APPROVED [3 TO 1] 
MOVER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
SECONDER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Bruce Todd, Margaret J. Gómez 
NAYS: Gerald Daugherty 
ABSENT: Ron Davis 

 
 Transportation and Natural Resources, Park Forestry Contracted Services (Reference 

#136) 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Jessica Rio, Budget Director, PBO 
Charles Bergh, Division Director, Parks and Natural Resources, TNR 

MOTION: Approve a $50,000.00 earmark of on-going funds against Allocated Reserve. 
RESULT: APPROVED [3 TO 1] 
MOVER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
SECONDER: Bruce Todd, Commissioner 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Bruce Todd, Margaret J. Gómez 
NAYS: Gerald Daugherty 
ABSTAIN: Ron Davis 

 
 Transportation and Natural Resources, CAMPO Modeling (Reference #NEW1) 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Jessica Rio, Budget Director, PBO 

MOTION: Approve $25,000.00 in one-time funds. 
RESULT: APPROVED [4 TO 0] 
MOVER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
SECONDER: Gerald Daugherty, Commissioner 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Bruce Todd, Gerald Daugherty, Margaret J. Gómez 
ABSTAIN: Ron Davis 

 
 Criminal Justice Planning, PIR Attorney III (Reference #15) 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Jessica Rio, Budget Director, PBO 
Roger Jefferies, County Executive, Justice and Public Safety (JPS) 

MOTION: Approve the request. 
RESULT: APPROVED [3 TO 1] 
MOVER: Bruce Todd, Commissioner 
SECONDER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Bruce Todd, Margaret J. Gómez 
NAYS: Gerald Daugherty 
ABSTAIN: Ron Davis 

 

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



September 3, 2014 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 6 
 

 External -- TCAD (Reference #357) 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Jessica Rio, Budget Director, PBO 
Travis Gatlin, Assistant Budget Director, PBO 

MOTION: Approve the request as an earmark, as recommended by PBO. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
SECONDER: Bruce Todd, Commissioner 
AYES: Biscoe, Davis, Todd, Daugherty, Gómez 

 
 Civil Courts, Associate Judge and Related Staff (Reference #1) 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Lora Livingston, Judge, 261st District Court 
Victoria Ramirez, Budget Analyst, PBO 
Jessica Rio, Budget Director, PBO 
Travis Gatlin, Assistant Budget Director, PBO 

MOTION: Approve the request for four FTEs, an Associate Judge and related staff, 
without the requested Statistician. 

RESULT: APPROVED [3 TO 0] 
MOVER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
SECONDER: Bruce Todd, Commissioner 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Bruce Todd, Gerald Daugherty 
ABSTAIN: Ron Davis, Margaret J. Gómez 

 
 Criminal Justice Planning, CARY (Reference #13) 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Jessica Rio, Budget Director, PBO 
Adrian Moore, Executive Director, Council on At-Risk Youth (CARY) 
Katie Gipson, Senior Budget Analyst, PBO 
Roger Jefferies, County Executive, JPS 

MOTION: Approve the request, in the amount of $200,000.00 in one-time funds. 
RESULT: APPROVED [2 TO 1] 
MOVER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
SECONDER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Margaret J. Gómez 
NAYS: Gerald Daugherty 
ABSTAIN: Ron Davis, Bruce Todd 

 
 Health and Human Services & Veterans Service, Burial Caseworker (Reference #39) 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Jessica Rio, Budget Director, PBO 
Sherri Fleming, County Executive, Travis County Health and Human Services & Veterans 

Service (TCHHS&VS) 
Jim Lehrman, Director, Children Services, TCHHS&VS 
Aerin Pfaffenberger, Budget Analyst II, PBO 

Clerk's Note: The Court considered Reference Items #39 and #40 in one motion. 

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



September 3, 2014 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 7 
 

MOTION: Approve the request for one Burial Caseworker and three Office Support 
Specialists, with ongoing funds coming from CAR, to be replaced with one-
time funds. 

RESULT: APPROVED [2 TO 1] 
MOVER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
SECONDER: Bruce Todd, Commissioner 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Bruce Todd 
NAYS: Gerald Daugherty 
ABSTAIN: Ron Davis, Margaret J. Gómez 

 
 Health and Human Services & Veterans Service, Office Support Specialists (Reference 

#40) 

Clerk's Note: The Court considered Reference Items #39 and #40 in one motion. Please refer to 
Reference Item #39 for the Court's action on this Item. 

 
 Health and Human Services & Veterans Service, Eligibility Caseworkers (Reference #41) 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Jessica Rio, Budget Director, PBO 
Sherri Fleming, County Executive, Travis County Health and Human Services & Veterans 

Service (TCHHS&VS) 
Jim Lehrman, Director, Children Services, TCHHS&VS 
Aerin Pfaffenberger, Budget Analyst II, PBO 

MOTION: Approve the request for one Eligibility Caseworker. 
RESULT: APPROVED [4 TO 0] 
MOVER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
SECONDER: Gerald Daugherty, Commissioner 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Bruce Todd, Gerald Daugherty, Margaret J. Gómez 
ABSTAIN: Ron Davis 

 
 Pretrial Services, Alcohol Monitoring Unit, Assistant Pretrial Officer (Reference #79) 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Jessica Rio, Budget Director, PBO 
Irma Guerrero, Division Director, Pretrial Services 

MOTION: Approve the request for an Assistant Pretrial Officer in the Alcohol Monitoring 
Unit. 

RESULT: DEFEATED [2 TO 3] 
MOVER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
SECONDER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Margaret J. Gómez 
NAYS: Ron Davis, Bruce Todd, Gerald Daugherty 

 
 Sheriff's Office, Crime Scene Specialists (Reference #89) 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Jessica Rio, Budget Director, PBO 
Frank Lofton, Captain, Law Enforcement, TCSO 

MOTION: Approve the request to fund one position. 
RESULT: APPROVED [3 TO 1] 
MOVER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
SECONDER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



September 3, 2014 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 8 
 

AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Bruce Todd, Margaret J. Gómez 
NAYS: Gerald Daugherty 
ABSTAIN: Ron Davis 

 
 Transportation and Natural Resources, West Service Center (Reference #NEW2) 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Jessica Rio, Budget Director, PBO 
Steve Manilla, County Executive, TNR 
Greg Chico, Manager, Real Estate Division, TNR 
Don Ward, Director of Road Maintenance and Fleet Services, TNR  

Clerk's Note: The Court without objection approved placing an earmark on this item. 
 
RESULT: DISCUSSED 

 
 Transportation and Natural Resources, Funding Movability of Austin (Reference #153) 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Steve Manilla, County Executive, TNR 
Carol Joseph, Assistant Director, TNR  

MOTION: Approve the request, using one-time funds. 
RESULT: DEFEATED [2 TO 3] 
MOVER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
SECONDER: Bruce Todd, Commissioner 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Bruce Todd 
NAYS: Ron Davis, Gerald Daugherty, Margaret J. Gómez 

 
 Transportation and Natural Resources, HMAC and Alternative Paving Projects 

(Reference #162) 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Jessica Rio, Budget Director, PBO 
Steve Manilla, County Executive, TNR 
Don Ward, Director of Road Maintenance and Fleet Services, TNR  

MOTION: Approve the request, using one-time funds. 
RESULT: APPROVED [4 TO 0] 
MOVER: Bruce Todd, Commissioner 
SECONDER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Bruce Todd, Gerald Daugherty, Margaret J. Gómez 
ABSTAIN: Ron Davis 

 
 External - Mobile Loaves and Fishes, Supportive Housing Pilot Program (Reference #356) 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Jessica Rio, Budget Director, PBO 
Sherri Fleming, County Executive, TCHHS&VS 
Diana Ramirez, Assistant Budget Director, PBO  

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



September 3, 2014 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 9 
 

MOTION: Approve the request for two caseworkers in Caritas, using one-time funds for 
a pilot program. 

RESULT: DEFEATED [2 TO 2] 
MOVER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
SECONDER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Margaret J. Gómez 
NAYS: Ron Davis, Gerald Daugherty 
ABSTAIN: Bruce Todd 

 
 External - Overton Group, Spanish Speaking Program (Reference #358) 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Jessica Rio, Budget Director, PBO 
Roscoe Overton, Sr., Overton Group 
Sherri Fleming, County Executive, TCHHS&VS 

MOTION: Approve the request, using one-time funds. 
RESULT: DEFEATED [2 TO 2] 
MOVER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
SECONDER: Bruce Todd, Commissioner 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Bruce Todd 
NAYS: Gerald Daugherty, Margaret J. Gómez 
ABSTAIN: Ron Davis 

 
 District Attorney, Public Integrity Unit (Reference #247) 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Jessica Rio, Budget Director, PBO 

 
RESULT: DISCUSSED 

 
 General Administration, TCAD Appraisal policy expert consultant (Reference #Added) 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Jessica Rio, Budget Director, PBO 

MOTION: Approve the request. 
RESULT: APPROVED [3 TO 0] 
MOVER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
SECONDER: Bruce Todd, Commissioner 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Bruce Todd, Gerald Daugherty 
ABSTAIN: Ron Davis, Margaret J. Gómez 

Approve Fiscal Year 2015 Proposed Tax Rate 

 
6. Approve Fiscal Year 2015 proposed tax rate  
 

a. Must be approved no later than Thursday, September 4th by noon  
 
b. Recommend approval by end of Wednesday, September 3rd 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Jessica Rio, Budget Director, PBO 
Travis Gatlin, Assistant Budget Director, PBO 

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



September 3, 2014 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 10 
 

MOTION: Approve and advertise the proposed tax rate of .4563 cents per $100.00 of 
valuation. 

RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
SECONDER: Ron Davis, Commissioner 
AYES: Biscoe, Davis, Todd, Daugherty, Gómez 

Re-budgeting of FY 2014 Capital Accounts, CAR Projects 

 
7. Approve "re-budgeting" of Fiscal Year 2014 capital accounts in Fiscal Year 2015, including 

General Fund Capital Acquisition Resources Account and related FY 2014 budget adjustments 
for rebudgeted CAR projects 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Travis Gatlin, Assistant Budget Director, PBO 
Jessica Rio, Budget Director, PBO 
Alan Miller, Senior Budget Analyst, PBO 

 
MOTION: Approve Item 7. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
SECONDER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
AYES: Biscoe, Davis, Todd, Daugherty, Gómez 

Fiscal year 2015 Earmarks on Reserves: Allocated and CAR reserves 

 
8. Approve Fiscal Year 2015 earmarks on reserves: Allocated Reserve and Capital Acquisition 

Resources Reserve 
 
RESULT: NOT NEEDED 

Adjust Unallocated Reserve and Balance Budget against Allocated Reserve 

 
9. Authorize Planning and Budget Office to adjust Unallocated Reserve and balance budget 

against Allocated Reserve based on fifth (final) revenue estimate 
 
RESULT: NOT NEEDED 

Minutes approved by the Commissioners Court 
 

 

 

____________________________________ 
Date of Approval 
 

 

 

____________________________________ 
Samuel T. Biscoe, Travis County Judge 

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



 Minutes for the  
 Travis County Commissioners Court 
 Thursday, September 4, 2014  

 Budget Mark-Up Voting Session 

Minutes Prepared by the Travis County Clerk 
512-854-4722 ● www.co.travis.tx.us ● PO Box 149325, Austin, TX 78714-9325 

September 4, 2014 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 1 

Call to Order 

Meeting called to order on September 4, 2014, in the Travis County Administration Building, 
Commissioners Courtroom, 700 Lavaca Street, 1st Floor, Austin, TX, Dana DeBeauvoir, County 
Clerk, was represented by Deputy Robert Resnick. 

 
Samuel T. Biscoe County Judge Present   
Ron Davis Precinct 1, Commissioner Present   
Bruce Todd Precinct 2, Commissioner Present   
Gerald Daugherty Precinct 3, Commissioner Present   
Margaret J. Gómez Precinct 4, Commissioner Present 
 
Clerk’s Note: Please refer to the Backup for FY 2015 Markup Worksheet for a listing of the 
Reference numbers located in the Minutes.  

Recap Current Budget Status 

 
1. Recap current budget status, including  
 

a. Revenue and other available funds  
 
b. Proposed tax rate  
 
c. Changes and corrections 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Jessica Rio, Budget Director, Planning and Budget Office (PBO) 

 
MOTION: Approve the Annualization Reserve related to anniversary step increases for 

POPS employees, to ensure that full funding is in place for annualized 
increases. 

RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
SECONDER: Bruce Todd, Commissioner 
AYES: Biscoe, Davis, Todd, Daugherty, Gómez 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Jessica Rio, Budget Director, PBO 
Leroy Nellis, Interim County Executive, PBO 

 
RESULT: DISCUSSED 

 

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



September 4, 2014 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 2 
 

Review Process for Viewing and Tracking Budget Mark-up Changes 

 
2. Review process for viewing and tracking budget mark-up changes 

 
RESULT: NOT NEEDED 

Approve Preliminary Budget to Establish Baseline 

 
3. Approve the preliminary budget to establish baseline for beginning budget mark-up process 

 
RESULT: NOT NEEDED 

Approve Budget Changes List 

 
4. Approve Budget Changes List 

 
RESULT: NOT NEEDED 

Budget Agenda Request Form 

 
5. Review requests to discuss budget items on Budget Agenda Request Form, including proposed 

step increase for POPS employees and flat dollar wage increase for classified employees 
 
 HHS - Travis County Family Drug Treatment Court (PIR Grant) (TCFDTC) (Reference #38) 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Jessica Rio, Budget Director, PBO 
Sherri Fleming, County Executive, Travis County Health and Human Services & Veterans 

Service (TCHHS&VS) 
Roger Jefferies, County Executive, Justice and Public Safety (JPS) 
Aerin-Renee Pfaffenberger, Budget Analyst II, PBO 
Leslie Hill, Managing Attorney, Office of Child Representation, Criminal Justice Planning 

(CJP) 
 
MOTION: Approve the request, using one-time funds. 
RESULT: APPROVED [3 TO 0] 
MOVER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
SECONDER: Bruce Todd, Commissioner 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Bruce Todd, Gerald Daugherty 
ABSTAIN: Ron Davis, Margaret J. Gómez 

 
 TNR Parks Land Manager (Option B) (Reference #155B) 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Jessica Rio, Budget Director, PBO 
Charles Bergh, Division Director, Parks and Natural Resources, TNR 
Leah Henderson, Budget Analyst, PBO 
Steve Manilla, County Executive, TNR 
 

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



September 4, 2014 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 3 
 

MOTION: Approve the request, using on-going funds. 
RESULT: APPROVED [3 TO 1] 
MOVER: Bruce Todd, Commissioner 
SECONDER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Bruce Todd, Margaret J. Gómez 
NAYS: Gerald Daugherty 
ABSTAIN: Ron Davis 

 
 TNR - Hamilton Pool Road Improvements (Reference #176) 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Jessica Rio, Budget Director, PBO 
Steve Manilla, County Executive, TNR 

 
MOTION: Approve the request. 
RESULT: APPROVED [4 TO 0] 
MOVER: Gerald Daugherty, Commissioner 
SECONDER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Bruce Todd, Gerald Daugherty, Margaret J. Gómez 
ABSTAIN: Ron Davis 

 
 CJP -- Workforce Development Program (New FTE) (Reference #14) 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Jessica Rio, Budget Director, PBO 
Katie Gipson, Senior Budget Analyst, PBO 

 
MOTION: Approve the request, contingent on performance measures being in place 

and being periodically monitored and evaluated. 
RESULT: APPROVED [3 TO 1] 
MOVER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
SECONDER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Bruce Todd, Margaret J. Gómez 
NAYS: Gerald Daugherty 
ABSTAIN: Ron Davis 

 
 TCSO -- Mental Health Transport Officer (Reference #91b) 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Jessica Rio, Budget Director, PBO 
Wes Priddy, Captain, Corrections, Travis County Sheriff's Office (TCSO) 
Alan Miller, Senior Budget Analyst, PBO 
Nancy Hohengarten, Judge, County Court at Law #5 

 
MOTION: Approve the request. 
RESULT: APPROVED [3 TO 1] 
MOVER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
SECONDER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Bruce Todd, Margaret J. Gómez 
NAYS: Gerald Daugherty 
ABSTAIN: Ron Davis 

 

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



September 4, 2014 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 4 
 

Approve Fiscal Year 2015 Proposed Tax Rate 

 
6. Approve Fiscal Year 2015 proposed tax rate  
 

a. Must be approved no later than Thursday, September 4th by noon  
 
b. Recommend approval by end of Wednesday, September 3

rd
 

 
RESULT: NOT NEEDED 

Re-budgeting of FY 2014 Capital Accounts, CAR Projects 

 
7. Approve "re-budgeting" of Fiscal Year 2014 capital accounts in Fiscal Year 2015, including 

General Fund Capital Acquisition Resources Account and related FY 2014 budget adjustments 
for rebudgeted CAR projects 
 
RESULT: NOT NEEDED 
 

Fiscal year 2015 Earmarks on Reserves: Allocated and CAR reserves 

 
8. Approve Fiscal Year 2015 earmarks on reserves: Allocated Reserve and Capital Acquisition 

Resources Reserve 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Jessica Rio, Budget Director, PBO 
 

MOTION: Move $640,512.00 within Capital Acquisition Resources (CAR) from on-going 
to one-time funds. 

RESULT: APPROVED [4 TO 0] 
MOVER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
SECONDER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Bruce Todd, Gerald Daugherty, Margaret J. Gómez 
ABSTAIN: Ron Davis 

MOTION: Move $149,592.00 within Allocated Reserve from on-going funds to one-time 
funds. 

RESULT: APPROVED [4 TO 0] 
MOVER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
SECONDER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Bruce Todd, Gerald Daugherty, Margaret J. Gómez 
ABSTAIN: Ron Davis 

MOTION: Add $1,797,001.00 to the Allocated Reserve. 
RESULT: APPROVED [4 TO 0] 
MOVER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
SECONDER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Bruce Todd, Gerald Daugherty, Margaret J. Gómez 
ABSTAIN: Ron Davis 

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



September 4, 2014 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 5 
 

MOTION: Approve the Allocated Reserve earmarks, in the amount of $7,676.711.00; 
and the total CAR earmarks, in the amount of $1,519,950.00. 

RESULT: APPROVED [4 TO 0] 
MOVER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
SECONDER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Bruce Todd, Gerald Daugherty, Margaret J. Gómez 
ABSTAIN: Ron Davis 

Adjust Unallocated Reserve and Balance Budget against Allocated Reserve 

 
9. Authorize Planning and Budget Office to adjust Unallocated Reserve and balance budget 

against Allocated Reserve based on fifth (final) revenue estimate 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Jessica Rio, Budget Director, PBO 

 
MOTION: Adjust the Allocated and Unallocated Reserves, as needed, based on the 5th 

and final Revenue Estimate. 
RESULT: APPROVED [4 TO 0] 
MOVER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
SECONDER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Bruce Todd, Gerald Daugherty, Margaret J. Gómez 
ABSTAIN: Ron Davis 
 

Clerk's Note: The Court discussed the posting of positions approved during the FY15 budget 
process. 

MOTION: Authorize departments to post and begin interviewing for newly-approved FY 
2015 positions before October 1, 2014, in order to fill those positions as soon 
after October 1, 2014 as possible.  

RESULT: APPROVED [4 TO 0] 
MOVER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
SECONDER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Bruce Todd, Gerald Daugherty, Margaret J. Gómez 
ABSTAIN: Ron Davis 

Clerk's Note: The Court noted that there would be two public hearings on the tax rate -- 
Tuesday, September 16, 2014, at 6:00 PM, and Friday, September 19, 2014, at 9:00 AM. There 
will also be a public hearing on the proposed Travis County FY15 Budget on Tuesday, 
September 23, 2014, at 9:00 AM. 
 

Minutes approved by the Commissioners Court 
 

 

 

____________________________________ 
Date of Approval 
 

 

 

____________________________________ 
Samuel T. Biscoe, Travis County Judge 

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



 Minutes for the  
 Travis County Commissioners Court 
 Tuesday, October 14, 2014  

 Voting Session 

Minutes Prepared by the Travis County Clerk 
512-854-4722 ● www.co.travis.tx.us ● PO Box 149325, Austin, TX 78714-9325 

October 14, 2014 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 1 

Call to Order 

Meeting called to order on October 14, 2014, in the Travis County Administration Building, 
Commissioners Courtroom, 700 Lavaca Street, 1st Floor, Austin, TX, Dana DeBeauvoir, County 
Clerk, was represented by Deputy Robert Resnick. 
 
Samuel T. Biscoe County Judge Present   
Ron Davis Precinct 1, Commissioner Absent   
Bruce Todd Precinct 2, Commissioner Present   
Gerald Daugherty Precinct 3, Commissioner Present   
Margaret J. Gómez Precinct 4, Commissioner Present 

Public Hearings 

 
1. Receive comments regarding a request for approval by Travis County of the issuance of Public 

Finance Authority of Wisconsin Revenue Bonds for the benefit of a market rate senior housing 
development in Wells Branch in Precinct Two. (Commissioner Todd) (Action Item #24) 

MOTION: Open the Public Hearing. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Gerald Daugherty, Commissioner 
SECONDER: Bruce Todd, Commissioner 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Bruce Todd, Gerald Daugherty 
ABSENT: Ron Davis, Margaret J. Gómez 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Gus Peña, Travis County resident 
 

MOTION: Close the Public Hearing. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Gerald Daugherty, Commissioner 
SECONDER: Bruce Todd, Commissioner 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Bruce Todd, Gerald Daugherty 
ABSENT: Ron Davis, Margaret J. Gómez 

 
2. Receive comments regarding a request to authorize the filing of an instrument to vacate two 

ten-foot wide public utility easements located along the common lot line of Lots 1 and 2, Block A 
of Bee Creek Hill Estates in Precinct Three. (Commissioner Daugherty) (Action Item #19) 

MOTION: Open the Public Hearing. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Gerald Daugherty, Commissioner 
SECONDER: Bruce Todd, Commissioner 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Bruce Todd, Gerald Daugherty 
ABSENT: Ron Davis, Margaret J. Gómez 

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



October 14, 2014 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 2 
 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Anna Bowlin, Program Manager, Planning and Engineering, Transportation and Natural 

Resources (TNR) 
 

MOTION: Close the Public Hearing. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Gerald Daugherty, Commissioner 
SECONDER: Bruce Todd, Commissioner 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Bruce Todd, Gerald Daugherty 
ABSENT: Ron Davis, Margaret J. Gómez 

Citizens Communication 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Carlos León, Travis County resident 
Al Wash, Promoter, Capital City Music Festival 
Gus Peña, Travis County resident 

Special Items 

 
3. Consider and take appropriate action on an order concerning outdoor burning in the 

unincorporated areas of Travis County. 

Clerk's Note: The County Judge announced that by taking no action, the prohibition against 
outdoor burning remains lifted. 
 
RESULT: NOT NEEDED 

 
4. Introduction of Lawrence Lyman and Kirsten Siegfried as two new division directors for Health & 

Human Services. 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Sherri Fleming, County Executive, Travis County Health and Human Services & Veterans 

Service (TCHHS&VS) 
Kirsten Siegfried, Director, Family Support Services Division, TCHHS&VS 
Lawrence Lyman, Director, Research and Planning Division, TCHHS&VS 

 
RESULT: DISCUSSED 

 
5. Recognize the staff of the Health and Human Services Research & Planning Division for receipt 

of the 2014 Impact Award from the Community Indicators Consortium. 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Sherri Fleming, County Executive, TCHHS&VS 
Lawrence Lyman, Director, Research and Planning Division, TCHHS&VS 

 
RESULT: DISCUSSED 

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



October 14, 2014 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 3 
 

Planning and Budget Dept. Items 

 
6. Consider and take appropriate action on budget amendments, transfers and discussion items. 

 
RESULT: NOT NEEDED 

 
7. Review and approve requests regarding grant programs, applications, contracts and related 

special budgets, and permissions to continue:   
 

a. Annual contract with Austin Travis County Integral Care to continue the Community 
Partners for Children Coordinator Program in the Juvenile Probation Department;   

 
b. Contract amendment with the Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration 

to extend the Day Enrichment Program in the Juvenile Treatment Drug Court in the 
Juvenile Probation Department; and   

 
c. Contract amendment with the Office of Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention to 

extend the Day Enrichment Program in the Juvenile Treatment Drug Court in the Juvenile 
Probation Department. 

 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
8. Consider and take appropriate action on proposed routine personnel amendments. 

 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
9. Review and approve the immediate release of reimbursement payment to United Health Care 

for claims paid for participants in the Travis County Employee Health Care Fund for payment of 
$702,414.24 for the period of September 26 to October 2, 2014. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
10. Consider and take appropriate action on the updated space program, judicial forecast and 

updated building concept based on the 2035 space needs for the new Civil and Family 
Courthouse. 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Belinda Powell, Capital Planning Coordinator, Planning and Budget Office (PBO) 
Matias Segura, Task Manager, Travis County Civil and Family Courthouse Project, URS 

Corporation 
Curt Pardee, Director of Architecture, Dallas Office, Hellmuth, Obata and Kassabaum, LP 

(HOK) 
 
MOTION: Approve Item 10. 
RESULT: APPROVED [3 TO 0] 
MOVER: Gerald Daugherty, Commissioner 
SECONDER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Bruce Todd, Gerald Daugherty 
ABSTAIN: Margaret J. Gómez 
ABSENT: Ron Davis 

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



October 14, 2014 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 4 
 

Justice and Public Safety Items 

 
11. Consider and take appropriate action on memorandum of understanding between the Texas 

A&M Engineering Extension Service and the Texas Task Force One member and the 
participating agency/employer for Travis County Star Flight staff member Joseph Lebrecque. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

Purchasing Office Items 

 
12. Approve contract award for architectural/engineering services for the development of the new 

Medical Examiner's office, RFQ No. Q1402-008-AG, to the most highly qualified firm, 
SmithGroupJJR. 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Danny Hobby, County Executive, Emergency Services 

 
MOTION: Approve Item 12. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
SECONDER: Gerald Daugherty, Commissioner 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Bruce Todd, Gerald Daugherty, Margaret J. Gómez 
ABSENT: Ron Davis 

 
13. Approve Modification No. 1 to Contract No. 4400001833, Capital Metropolitan Transportation 

Authority, employee transit passes. 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Marvin Brice, Assistant Purchasing Agent 
Adele Noel, Environmental Project Manager, TNR 

 
MOTION: Approve Item 13, up to the amount of $40,000.00, with the understanding 

that staff will provide a report when that amount is nearly spent. The Court 
will then decide how to proceed at that point. 

RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
SECONDER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Bruce Todd, Gerald Daugherty, Margaret J. Gómez 
ABSENT: Ron Davis 

 
14. Approve Modification No. 1 to Contract No. 4400001432, Chan and Partners Engineering, LLC, 

for El Rey Blvd. sidewalk design. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
15. Pursuant to Texas Local Government Code, Section 263.152(A)(1), declare certain items 

surplus property and authorize equipment to be disposed of through Dell, Inc. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



October 14, 2014 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 5 
 

16. Pursuant to Texas Local Government Code, Section 263.152(A)(1), declare certain items 
surplus property and sell at public auction 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
17. Approve contract for the repairs of the sally port doors at the Blackwell-Thurman Criminal 

Justice Center (CJC) to Greg’s Overhead Door Services, Inc. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
18. Approve contract award for janitorial services, various locations, IFB No. B1408-002-LD, to the 

low bidder, International Building Services. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

Transportation and Natural Resources Dept. Items 

 
19. Consider and take appropriate action on a request to authorize the filing of an instrument to 

vacate two ten-foot wide public utility easements located along the common lot line of Lots 1 
and 2, Block A of Bee Creek Hill Estates in Precinct Three. (Commissioner Daugherty) 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
20. Notify the Court on the satisfactory completion of construction of the private streets within 

Belvedere, Phase VII-B - a subdivision in Precinct Three. (Commissioner Daugherty) 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
21. Consider and take appropriate action on a request to approve a resolution and to enter into an 

advance funding agreement with Texas Department of Transportation for roadway safety 
improvements on Hamilton Pool Road from 0.31 mile west of SH 71 to Cueva Drive and at the 
intersection of Hamilton Pool Road and Crumley Ranch Road. 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Steve Manilla, County Executive, TNR 
Leah Henderson, Budget Analyst, PBO 

 
MOTION: Approve Item 21. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Gerald Daugherty, Commissioner 
SECONDER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Bruce Todd, Gerald Daugherty, Margaret J. Gómez 
ABSENT: Ron Davis 

Health and Human Services Dept. Items 

 
22. Consider and take appropriate action to approve Amendment No. 2, to the interlocal agreement 

between Travis County and the City of Austin to renew services in the Healthy Families 
Program. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



October 14, 2014 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 6 
 

23. Consider and take appropriate action on the following requests from Foundation Communities 
related to the operation of its tax preparation assistance program for eligible residents during 
the 2015 tax season:   

 
a. In-kind support in the form of printing brochures, fliers, forms and other promotional 

materials for the 2015 tax season; and   
 
b. In-kind support in the form of American Sign Language services (services for the deaf and 

hard of hearing) for the 2015 tax season. 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Sherri Fleming, County Executive, TCHHS&VS 

 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

Clerk's Note: Judge Biscoe noted that the "not-to-exceed" amount for this item is $23,000.00, 
and that the item is subject to approval of a license agreement. 

Other Items 

 
24. Consider and take appropriate action on the following:   
 

a. The issuance of Public Finance Authority of Wisconsin Revenue Bonds for the benefit of a 
market rate senior housing development in Wells Branch; and   

 
b. Authorize the County Judge to sign a letter indicating the Court’s approval on its behalf in 

Precinct Two. (Commissioner Todd) 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
25. Consider and take appropriate action on Travis County appointments to the Central Health 

Board of Managers. (This item may be taken into Executive Session under the 
Consultation with Attorney exception.) 

Judge Biscoe announced that Item 25 would be considered in Executive Session pursuant to 
Gov’t. Code Ann. 551.071, Consultation with Attorney. 
 
MOTION: Direct Intergovernmental Relations Office (IGR) staff to prepare appropriate 

invitations for applications to serve on the Central Health Board of Managers. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
SECONDER: Bruce Todd, Commissioner 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Bruce Todd, Gerald Daugherty, Margaret J. Gómez 
ABSENT: Ron Davis 

 
26. Consider and take appropriate action on request to approve broker/dealer applicants for 

conducting investment business with Travis County. 

MOTION: Approve Item 26. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Gerald Daugherty, Commissioner 
SECONDER: Bruce Todd, Commissioner 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Bruce Todd, Gerald Daugherty, Margaret J. Gómez 
ABSENT: Ron Davis 

 

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



October 14, 2014 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 7 
 

27. Consider and take appropriate action on request from the County Clerk to adjust the hourly pay 
levels for seasonal, temporary elections workers. 

 
MOTION: Approve Item 27. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
SECONDER: Bruce Todd, Commissioner 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Bruce Todd, Gerald Daugherty, Margaret J. Gómez 
ABSENT: Ron Davis 

 
28. Receive Fiscal Year 2015 state forfeited property account budget from the Travis County 

Sheriff’s Office in accordance with the provisions of Article 59.06(D) of the Texas Code of 
Criminal Procedure. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
29. Consider and take appropriate action regarding a lease agreement with Fiesta Mart Inc. for use 

of the Fiesta Mart, 3909 North IH-35, and Fiesta Mart, 3510 South IH-35, in Austin, Texas, as 
an early voting and polling location for the November 4, 2014 joint general and special 
elections. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

Executive Session Items 

The Commissioners Court will consider the following items in Executive Session. The 
Commissioners Court may also consider any other matter posted on the agenda if there are issues 
that require consideration in Executive Session and the Commissioners Court announces that the 
item will be considered during Executive Session. 
 
Note 1: Gov’t Code Ann 551.071, Consultation with Attorney 
Note 2: Gov’t Code Ann 551.072, Real Property 
Note 3: Gov’t Code Ann 551.074, Personnel Matters 
Note 4: Gov’t Code Ann 551.076, Security 
Note 5: Gov’t Code Ann 551.087, Economic Development Negotiations 
 
30. Receive briefing from the County Attorney regarding the Fire Code enforcement action of Travis 

County v. United FM 1431, L.P. et al., the collection of Fire Code civil penalties and take 
appropriate action.

 1 

Judge Biscoe announced that Item 30 would be considered in Executive Session pursuant to 
Gov’t. Code Ann. 551.071, Consultation with Attorney. 
 
MOTION: Accept the settlement offer of $261,600.00, as payment of Fire Code civil 

penalties, approve the settlement of the pending enforcement action and 
authorize the County Judge to sign on behalf of the Commissioners Court. 

RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
SECONDER: Bruce Todd, Commissioner 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Bruce Todd, Gerald Daugherty, Margaret J. Gómez 
ABSENT: Ron Davis 

 

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



October 14, 2014 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 8 
 

31. Receive legal briefing and take appropriate action on the Conference of Urban Counties 
TechShare Criminal Courts Project and related matters.

 1
 

Judge Biscoe announced that Item 31 would be considered in Executive Session pursuant to 
Gov’t. Code Ann. 551.071, Consultation with Attorney. 
 
RESULT: DISCUSSED Reset for: 10/21/2014 

 
32. Consider and take appropriate action regarding the potential purchase of real estate in south 

Austin.
 1 and 2

 

Judge Biscoe announced that Item 32 would be considered in Executive Session pursuant to 
Gov’t. Code Ann. 551.071, Consultation with Attorney and Gov’t. Code Ann. 551.072, Real 
Property. 
 
MOTION: Accept the negotiated price of $2.7 million, with two months lease-back at 

$25,000.00 per month. The funding source is the Allocated Reserve. 
FRIENDLY 
AMENDMENT: Authorize the signing of the prepared contract and lease agreement. 
MOVER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
RESULT: FRIENDLY AMENDMENT ACCEPTED 
 
Clerk’s Note: A Vote on the Standing Motion was taken. 
 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
SECONDER: Gerald Daugherty, Commissioner 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Bruce Todd, Gerald Daugherty, Margaret J. Gómez 
ABSENT: Ron Davis 

 
A1. Added item: Receive legal briefing regarding County authority in situations involving viral 

hemorrhagic fever, including power to confine and quarantine, and take appropriate action.
 1
 

Judge Biscoe announced that Item A1 would be considered in Executive Session pursuant to 
Gov’t. Code Ann. 551.071, Consultation with Attorney. 

Clerk's Note: The Commissioners Court noted that those citizens desiring information on this 
topic may contact the office of the Austin/Travis County Health Authority at 512-972-5010. 
 
RESULT: DISCUSSED 

 
A2. Added item: Consider and take appropriate action on a license agreement with Travis County 

Kennel Club for the use of the Travis County Exposition Center for upcoming annual dog show.
 

1 and 2
 

Judge Biscoe announced that Item A2 would be considered in Executive Session pursuant to 
 

Gov’t. Code Ann. 551.071, Consultation with Attorney and Gov’t. Code Ann. 551.072, Real 
Property. 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Tenley Aldredge, Assistant County Attorney 

 
MOTION: Direct staff to modify the proposed agreement, allowing the Kennel Club to 

use the Hinkle security firm, My Diamond H Enterprises, to provide security 
for the dog show scheduled for October 22, 2014, at the Travis County Expo 
Center; and to allow a modification to the license to include 2015. 

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



October 14, 2014 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 9 
 

RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
SECONDER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Bruce Todd, Gerald Daugherty, Margaret J. Gómez 
ABSENT: Ron Davis 

Consent Items 
 

C1. Receive bids from County Purchasing Agent. 
 
C2. Approve payment of claims and authorize County Treasurer to invest County funds. 
 
C3. Approve setting a public hearing on October 21, 2014 to receive comments regarding:   
 

a. Adoption of an order to participate in the Texas Enterprise Zone Program;   
 
b. Nominate Rackspace as an enterprise project; and   
 
c. An order to identify and summarize available local incentives. 
 
MOTION: Approve Consent Items C1–C3 and Items 7.a–c, 8, 9, 11, 14, 15, 16, 17, 18, 

19, 20, 22, 23.a–b, 24.a–b, 28, 29, and A3. 
RESULT: ADOPTED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
SECONDER: Gerald Daugherty, Commissioner 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Bruce Todd, Gerald Daugherty, Margaret J. Gómez 
ABSENT: Ron Davis 

 

Added Items 

 
A3. Approve the Commissioners Court minutes for the voting sessions of September 2, 9, 16, & 23, 

2014; and the voting session/public hearings of September 16 & 19, 2014. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

Minutes approved by the Commissioners Court 
 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Date of Approval 
 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Samuel T. Biscoe, Travis County Judge 

 

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



 Minutes for the  
 Travis County Commissioners Court 
 Tuesday, October 21, 2014  

 Voting Session 

Minutes Prepared by the Travis County Clerk 
512-854-4722 ● www.co.travis.tx.us ● PO Box 149325, Austin, TX 78714-9325 

October 21, 2014 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 1 

Call to Order 

Meeting called to order on October 21, 2014, in the Travis County Administration Building, 
Commissioners Courtroom, 700 Lavaca Street, 1st Floor, Austin, TX, Dana DeBeauvoir, County 
Clerk, was represented by Deputy Robert Resnick. 
 
Samuel T. Biscoe County Judge Present   
Ron Davis Precinct 1, Commissioner Absent   
Bruce Todd Precinct 2, Commissioner Present   
Gerald Daugherty Precinct 3, Commissioner Present   
Margaret J. Gómez Precinct 4, Commissioner Present 

 

Public Hearings 

 
1. Receive public comments regarding:   
 

a. Adoption of an order to nominate Rackspace as an enterprise project; and   
 
b. An order to identify and summarize available local incentives. 

MOTION: Open the Public Hearing. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
SECONDER: Gerald Daugherty, Commissioner 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Bruce Todd, Gerald Daugherty, Margaret J. Gómez 
ABSENT: Ron Davis 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Katie Gipson, Senior Budget Analyst, Planning and Budget Office (PBO) 
Bill Blackstone, Director of Austin Site Operations, Rackspace 
Dave Porter, Greater Austin Chamber of Commerce 
Charles Cook, Provost, Executive Vice President for Academic Affairs, Austin Community 

College 

MOTION: Close the Public Hearing. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Gerald Daugherty, Commissioner 
SECONDER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Bruce Todd, Gerald Daugherty, Margaret J. Gómez 
ABSENT: Ron Davis 

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



October 21, 2014 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 2 
 

Citizens Communication 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Carlos León, Travis County resident 
Laura Seaton, Executive Assistant, Transportation and Natural Resources (TNR) 

Special Items 

 
2. Consider and take appropriate action on an order concerning outdoor burning in the 

unincorporated areas of Travis County. 
 
RESULT: DISCUSSED 

Clerk's Note: The County Judge announced that by taking no action, the prohibition against 
outdoor burning remains lifted. 

Resolutions and Proclamations 

 
3. Approve resolution recognizing October 24, 2014 as Travis County’s 7th Annual History Day 

and celebrating 100 years of Extension Services in Travis County. 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Dolores Sandmann, Travis County Extension Director, Texas A&M AgriLife Extension 

Service 
 
MOTION: Approve the resolution in Item 7. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
SECONDER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Bruce Todd, Gerald Daugherty, Margaret J. Gómez 
ABSENT: Ron Davis 

Planning and Budget Dept. Items 

 
4. Consider and take appropriate action on budget amendments, transfers and discussion items. 

 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
5. Review and approve annual contract with the Corporation for National and Community Service 

to continue the Retired and Senior Volunteer Program in the Health and Human Services and 
Veterans Service Department. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
6. Consider and take appropriate action on the following items from Human Resources 

Management Department:   
 

a. Proposed routine personnel amendments;    
 
b. Non-routine salary adjustment request from District Clerk’s Office for a variance to the 

Travis County Code Section 10.03008, Promotion;   
 

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



October 21, 2014 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 3 
 

c. Non-routine salary adjustment request from Justice of the Peace Precinct Three Office for 
a variance to the Travis County Code Section 10.03008, Promotion;   

 
d. Non-routine salary adjustment request from Justice of the Peace Precinct Five Office for a 

variance to the Travis County Code Section 10.03002, Salary Adjustment Greater than 
10% Above Midpoint;   

 
e. Non-routine salary adjustment request from Travis County Sheriff’s Office for a variance to 

the Travis County Code Section 10.03002, Salary Adjustment Greater than 10% Above 
Midpoint; and   

 
f. Non-routine request from Constable Precinct One Office for a variance to the Travis 

County Code Section 10.0155, Employment of Special Project Employees. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
7. Review and approve the immediate release of reimbursement payment to United Health Care 

for claims paid for participants in the Travis County Employee Health Care Fund for payment of 
$1,701,688.17 for the period of October 3 to October 9, 2014. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
8. Consider and take action on an order authorizing the issuance of $15,100,000 Travis County, 

Texas State Highway System Bonds, Series 2014-A (Limited Tax), and matters pertaining 
thereto. 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Travis Gatlin, Senior Budget Analyst, PBO 
Ladd Patillo, Travis County Financial Advisor 
Glenn Opel, Bond Counsel, Bracewell and Guiliani 
John Hille, Assistant County Attorney 

 
MOTION: Approve Item 8. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Gerald Daugherty, Commissioner 
SECONDER: Bruce Todd, Commissioner 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Bruce Todd, Gerald Daugherty, Margaret J. Gómez 
ABSENT: Ron Davis 

 
9. Consider and take action on an order authorizing the issuance of Travis County, Texas Limited 

Tax Refunding Bonds (to decrease the interest rate on outstanding debt) in the aggregate 
principal amount not to exceed $82,470,000; levying a tax in payment thereof; providing for the 
award of the sale thereof in accordance with specified parameters; authorizing the execution 
and delivery of a bond purchase agreement and escrow agreement; approving the official 
statement and enacting other provisions relating thereto. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
10. Consider and take appropriate action on request from the Lone Star Rail District for waiver of 

fees to use the Travis County Exposition Center Banquet Hall on Tuesday, December 2, 2014 
for a public open house regarding the Lone Star Regional Rail Project. 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Roger El Khoury, Director, Facilities Management Department (FMD) 

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



October 21, 2014 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 4 
 

MOTION: Waive all fees for this event. 
MOVER: Bruce Todd, Commissioner  

 
Clerk’s Note: The Motion died for lack of a Second. 
 
MOTION: Approve Option C as presented by staff, which is to charge direct costs of 

$300.00. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
SECONDER: Gerald Daugherty, Commissioner 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Bruce Todd, Gerald Daugherty, Margaret J. Gómez 
ABSENT: Ron Davis 

 
11. Consider and take appropriate action to approve the second amendment to the lease 

agreement between Harry Whittington (d/b/a Travis Properties) and Travis County for space 
located at 205-209 West 9th Street in Austin, Texas. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

Purchasing Office Items 

 
12. Approve Modification No. 7 to Contract No. 4400000019, Hanrahan Pritchard Engineering, Inc., 

for engineering services for Slaughter Lane Improvement Project. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
13. Pursuant to Texas Local Government Code, Section 263.152(A)(1), declare certain items 

surplus property and sell at public auction. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

Transportation and Natural Resources Dept. Items 

 
14. Consider and take appropriate action on the following:   
 

a. Braker Valley preliminary plan [547 total lots (514 single-family residential lots and 33 
drainage, greenbelt, open space lots) – 164.05 acres – City of Austin ETJ]; and   

 
b. Phasing agreement between Williams, Ltd., Robert L. Lanford, David S. Lanford, and 

Muriel R. Lanford, Trustees of the Don L. and Muriel A. Lanford Living Trust and Travis 
County in Precinct One. (Commissioner Davis) 

 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
15. Consider and take appropriate action on the following:   
 

a. A plat for recording: Briarcreek Subdivision Section 6B final plat – 60 total lots – Briarcreek 
Loop – City of Austin ETJ; and   

 

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



October 21, 2014 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 5 
 

b. A subdivision construction agreement between Travis County and Continental Homes of 
Texas. L.P. in Precinct One. (Commissioner Davis) 

 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
16. Consider and take appropriate action on the following:   
 

a. A plat for recording: Avalon Phase 5B final plat – 23 total lots (Jakes Hill Road – City of 
Pflugerville ETJ); and   

 
b. A subdivision construction agreement between Travis County and KM Avalon, Ltd. in 

Precinct One. (Commissioner Davis) 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
17. Consider and take appropriate action on the following:   
 

a. A plat for recording: Avalon Phase 8A final plat – 84 total lots (Moorlynch Avenue – City of 
Pflugerville ETJ); and   

 
b. A subdivision construction agreement between Travis County and KM Avalon, Ltd. in 

Precinct One. (Commissioner Davis) 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
18. Notify the Court of the satisfactory completion of construction of the private streets in Spanish 

Oaks Section XI, a subdivision in Precinct Three. (Commissioner Daugherty) 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
19. Consider and take appropriate action regarding a license agreement with Circuit of the 

Americas for the use of Richard Moya Park as a bicycle staging area for cyclists who will be 
riding shuttle buses to the Formula One races on October 31 through November 2, 2014 in 
Precinct Four. (Commissioner Gómez) 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

Health and Human Services Dept. Items 

 
20. Consider and take appropriate action to approve an interlocal agreement between Travis 

County and the Austin Independent School District relating to juvenile case management 
services at Dobie and Webb Middle Schools. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

Other Items 

 
21. Revised language. Consider and take appropriate action on appointments to the Travis 

County Adult Protective Services Special Task Unit, effective immediately through December 
31, 2016:   

 
a. Reappoint Phyllis J. Wolf, MA, LPCS – mental health professional, Austin Travis County 

Integral Care; Barbara Misle – legal expert, Travis County Attorney’s Office; and Funmi 
Ogunleye, R.N. – medical; and   

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



October 21, 2014 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 6 
 

 
b. Appoint Detective Randy Hunt – Law Enforcement Representative, Austin Police 

Department; Sergeant Greg Sizemore – Law Enforcement Representative, Travis County 
Sheriff’s Office; Andy Hofmeister, – Medical, Austin-Travis County EMS; and Michelle 
(Shell) Schwartz, LCSW – Domestic Violence, SafePlace. 

Clerk's Note: Judge Biscoe noted that Sergeant Greg Sizemore’s name would be removed from 
the list of appointments. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
22. Consider and take appropriate action regarding Truancy Court Contract Amendment Thirteen 

between Austin Independent School District and Travis County Juvenile Board. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
23. Revised language. Consider and take appropriate action regarding joint election agreement for 

the November 4, 2014 joint General and Special Election with Travis County and 23 
participating entities:     

 
a. City of Austin;     m. Round Rock Independent School District;   

 
b. City of Creedmoor;    n. North Austin Municipal Utility District No. 1;   

 
c. City of Jonestown;    o. Pilot Knob Municipal Utility District No. 5;    
 
d. City of Lakeway;     p. Southeast Travis County Municipal Utility District  

       No. 3;   
e. City of Pflugerville;     

q. Southeast Travis County Municipal Utility District  
f. City of Rollingwood;     No. 4;  
  
g. Village of Point Venture;    r. Tanglewood Limited District;   

 
h. Village of Volente;    s. Wells Branch Municipal Utility District;    

      
i. Austin Community College  t. Williamson-Travis County Municipal Utility 

District;      District; 
      

j. Austin Independent School  u. Lakeside Water Control and Improvement 
District;     District No. 2a 

  
k. Del Valle Independent School  v. Barton Springs/Edwards Aquifer Conservation 

District;       District; and  
 

l. Lago Vista Independent    w. Onion Creek Metro Park 
School District;    

     
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
24. Consider and take appropriate action regarding new contract for election services to conduct 

elections for Travis County entities. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



October 21, 2014 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 7 
 

25. Consider and take appropriate action on Travis County appointments to the Central Health 
Board of Managers. 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Deece Eckstein, Intergovernmental Relations Officer, Intergovernmental Relations (IGR) 

 
MOTION: Approve staff's recommendations, as listed in the backup documentation. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
SECONDER: Bruce Todd, Commissioner 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Bruce Todd, Gerald Daugherty, Margaret J. Gómez 
ABSENT: Ron Davis 

Executive Session Items 

The Commissioners Court will consider the following items in Executive Session. The 
Commissioners Court may also consider any other matter posted on the agenda if there are issues 
that require consideration in Executive Session and the Commissioners Court announces that the 
item will be considered during Executive Session. 
 
Note 1: Gov’t Code Ann 551.071, Consultation with Attorney 
Note 2: Gov’t Code Ann 551.072, Real Property 
Note 3: Gov’t Code Ann 551.074, Personnel Matters 
Note 4: Gov’t Code Ann 551.076, Security 
Note 5: Gov’t Code Ann 551.087, Economic Development Negotiations 
 
26. Receive briefing from outside counsel and take appropriate action regarding Steven Brand v. 

Travis County; Cause No. 1:14-CV-00658-LY.
 1 

Judge Biscoe announced that Item 26 would be considered in Executive Session pursuant to 
Gov’t. Code Ann. 551.071, Consultation with Attorney. 
 
RESULT: NOT NEEDED 

 
27. Receive legal briefing and take appropriate action on the Conference of Urban Counties 

TechShare Criminal Courts Project and related matters.
 1 

Judge Biscoe announced that Item 27 would be considered in Executive Session pursuant to 
Gov’t. Code Ann. 551.071, Consultation with Attorney. 

MOTION: Authorize the County Judge to sign a meeting invitation to Dallas and Tarrant 
Counties on behalf of the Commissioners Court, and request, as set forth in 
the letter, that Commissioners Todd and Gómez attend that meeting and 
represent the Court, along with some of the internal stakeholders who have 
been working on this project. 

RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
SECONDER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Bruce Todd, Gerald Daugherty, Margaret J. Gómez 
ABSENT: Ron Davis 

 

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



October 21, 2014 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 8 
 

28. Receive briefing and authorize County Attorney to enter into a contract for expert study and 
witness for possible tax challenge.

 1 

Judge Biscoe announced that Item 28 would be considered in Executive Session pursuant to 
Gov’t. Code Ann. 551.071, Consultation with Attorney. 
 
RESULT: DISCUSSED Reset for: 10/28/2014 

Consent Items 
 
C1. Receive bids from County Purchasing Agent. 
 
C2. Approve payment of claims and authorize County Treasurer to invest County funds. 
 
C3. Approve the Commissioners Court Minutes for the Voting Sessions of September 30 and 

October 7, 2014. 
 

MOTION: Approve Consent Items C1–C3 and Agenda Items 4, 5, 6.a–f, 7, 9, 11, 12, 
13, 14.a–b, 15.a–b, 16.a–b, 17.a–b, 18, 19, 20, 21.a–b, 22, 23.a–w, 24, A1. 

RESULT: ADOPTED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
SECONDER: Gerald Daugherty, Commissioner 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Bruce Todd, Gerald Daugherty, Margaret J. Gómez 
ABSENT: Ron Davis 

Added Items 

 
A1. Ratify acceptance of the Grant Management System Award 2014-RP-BX-0047 from the U.S. 

Department of Justice to Travis County Juvenile Probation Department for demonstration 
projects to establish “zero tolerance” cultures for sexual assault in correctional facilities. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
A2. Receive briefing from County Attorney and take appropriate action regarding Glenn E. Swan v. 

Travis County (Swan; Biscoe; Texas Tort Claims Act, Personal Injury). (This item will be taken 
in Executive Session under the Consultation with Attorney exception) 

Judge Biscoe announced that Item A2 would be considered in Executive Session pursuant to 
Gov’t. Code Ann. 551.071, Consultation with Attorney. 

MOTION: Appoint Bill Paterson, Risk Manager, Human Resources Management 
Department (HRMD), to represent Travis County at the mediation set in this 
matter. 

RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
SECONDER: Bruce Todd, Commissioner 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Bruce Todd, Gerald Daugherty, Margaret J. Gómez 
ABSENT: Ron Davis 

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



October 21, 2014 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 9 
 

Minutes approved by the Commissioners Court 
 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Date of Approval 
 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Samuel T. Biscoe, Travis County Judge 

 

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



 Minutes for the  
 Travis County Commissioners Court 
 Tuesday, October 28, 2014  

 Voting Session 

Minutes Prepared by the Travis County Clerk 
512-854-4722 ● www.co.travis.tx.us ● PO Box 149325, Austin, TX 78714-9325 

October 28, 2014 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 1 

Call to Order 

Meeting called to order on October 28, 2014, in the Travis County Administration Building, 
Commissioners Courtroom, 700 Lavaca Street, 1st Floor, Austin, TX, Dana DeBeauvoir, County 
Clerk, was represented by Deputy Robert Resnick. 

 

Samuel T. Biscoe County Judge Present   
Ron Davis Precinct 1, Commissioner Absent   
Bruce Todd Precinct 2, Commissioner Present   
Gerald Daugherty Precinct 3, Commissioner Present   
Margaret J. Gómez Precinct 4, Commissioner Present 

 

Citizens Communication 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Melissa Velasquez, Executive Assistant, County Judge’s Office 
Zoila Vega, Travis County resident 
Michael Fossum, Travis County resident 
Carlos León, Travis County resident 
Todd Osburn, Compensation Manager, Human Resources Management Department 

(HRMD) 
Zenobia Joseph, Travis County resident 
Dr. John Kim, Travis County resident 
Sara Black, Travis County resident 

Special Items 

 
1. Consider and take appropriate action on an order concerning outdoor burning in the 

unincorporated areas of Travis County. 

Clerk's Note: The County Judge announced that by taking no action, the prohibition against 
outdoor burning remains lifted. 
 
RESULT: DISCUSSED Reset for: 11/4/2014 

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



October 28, 2014 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 2 
 

Health and Human Services Dept. Items 

 
2. Consider and take appropriate action on items related to the Program Year 2013 Consolidated 

Annual Performance Evaluation Report for the Community Development Block Grant provided 
by HUD:   

 
a. Request to approve November 24, 2014 through December 8, 2014 as the 15-day public 

comment period for the public to review and comment on the draft;   
 
b. Request to set a public hearing on December 2, 2014, at 9:00 a.m. in the Travis County 

Commissioners Courtroom; and   
 
c. Request for advertisements announcing the public hearing date and 15 day public 

comment period in newspapers of general circulation: Austin Chronicle, Pflugerville Pflag, 
Hill Country News, Lake Travis View, Oak Hill Gazette, Westlake Picayune, The Villager, 
and Ahora Si. 

 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
3. Consider and take appropriate action on a memorandum of understanding between Travis 

County and the Central Texas Afterschool Network for the use of office space. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
4. Consider and take appropriate action on the agreement for the Financial Support Plus 1 

Program with the City of Austin, Austin Energy for FY2015. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

Planning and Budget Dept. Items 

 
5. Consider and take appropriate action on budget amendments, transfers and discussion items. 

 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
6. Review and approve requests regarding grant programs, applications, contracts and related 

special budgets, and permissions to continue:   
 

a. Annual application to the Federal Emergency Management Agency, Emergency Food & 
Shelter Local Board Program for the Phase 32 Emergency Food and Shelter Program in 
the Health and Human Services and Veterans Service Department;   

 
b. Annual application to the Texas Indigent Defense Commission for the Indigent Defense 

Formula Grant Program in the Criminal Courts;   
 
c. Annual contract with the Office of the Governor, Criminal Justice Division for the Drug 

Diversion Court Program in the Pretrial Services Department;   
 

RESULT: ITEMS 6.a-c ADDED TO CONSENT 
 
d. Annual contract with the U.S. Department of Justice, Bureau of Justice Assistance to be 

reimbursed for expenses incurred from July 1, 2012 to June 30, 2013 under the 
Immigration and Naturalization Act of 1994 in the Travis County Sheriff’s Office;    

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



October 28, 2014 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 3 
 

 
Members of the Court heard from: 

Sara Black, Travis County resident 
Alan Miller, Senior Budget Analyst, Planning and Budget Office (PBO) 

 
MOTION: Approve Item 6.d. 
RESULT: APPROVED [3 TO 0] 
MOVER: Gerald Daugherty, Commissioner 
SECONDER: Bruce Todd, Commissioner 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Bruce Todd, Gerald Daugherty 
ABSTAIN: Margaret J. Gómez 
ABSENT: Ron Davis 

 
e. Contract amendment with the Texas Department of Housing and Community Affairs to 

transfer FY 2014 funds between two categories in the Weatherization Assistance Program 
Grant in the Health and Human Services and Veterans Service Department;    

 
f. Annual contract with the Office of the Governor, Criminal Justice Division to continue the 

Family Violence Accelerated Prosecution Program in the County Attorney’s Office; and   
 
g. New contract with the Texas Department of Agriculture to receive funds for the 

administration of direct certification for the National School Lunch and Breakfast Program 
in the Juvenile Probation Department. 

 
RESULT: ITEMS 6.e-g ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
7. Consider and take appropriate action on the following items for Human Resources Management 

Department:   
 

a. Proposed routine personnel amendments;   
 
b. Non-routine from Travis County Sheriff’s Office for a variance to Travis County Code 

Section 10.03008, Promotion; and   
 
c. Non-routine from District Clerk’s Office for a variance to Travis County Code Section 

10.03008, Promotion. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
8. Review and approve the immediate release of reimbursement payment to United Health Care 

for claims paid for participants in the Travis County Employee Health Care Fund for payment of 
$683,056.24 for the period of October 10 to October 16, 2014. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
9. Consider and take appropriate action to relocate Wellness Clinic from University Savings 

Building, 2nd floor to 700 Lavaca Building, 9th floor. 
 
RESULT: POSTPONED  Reset for: 11/4/2014 

 
10. Consider and take appropriate action regarding:   
 

a. Adoption of an order to nominate Rackspace as an enterprise project; and   
 
b. An order to identify and summarize available local incentives. 

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



October 28, 2014 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 4 
 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Katie Gipson, Senior Budget Analyst, PBO 
Deone Wilhite, Executive Assistant, County Commissioner Precinct 1 Office 

Zenobia Joseph, Travis County resident 
Bill Blackstone, Director of Austin Site Operations, Rackspace 

 
MOTION: Approve Items 10.a and b. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Gerald Daugherty, Commissioner 
SECONDER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Bruce Todd, Gerald Daugherty, Margaret J. Gómez 
ABSENT: Ron Davis 

 
11. Consider and take appropriate action on the overall concept for the new Travis County Civil and 

Family Courthouse and the 2035 Stacking Plan. 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Ken Gaede, Senior Project Manager, Facilities Management Department (FMD) 
Matias Segura, Task Manager, Travis County Civil and Family Courthouse Project, URS 

Corporation 
Curt Pardee, Director of Architecture, Dallas Office, Hellmuth, Obata and Kassabaum, LP 

(HOK) 
 
MOTION: Continue with the development of the concept as presented, for the 

refinement of budget estimates. 
RESULT: APPROVED [3 TO 0] 
MOVER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
SECONDER: Bruce Todd, Commissioner 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Bruce Todd, Gerald Daugherty 
ABSTAIN: Margaret J. Gómez 
ABSENT: Ron Davis 

 
12. Receive status update on Adult Correctional System Needs Analysis and Master Plan update. 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Mark Gilbert, Project Manager, PBO 
Laura Maiello, Vice President, Project Director, CGL RicciGreene 
Wendy Naro-Ware, Vice President, JFA Institute 
Alan Richardson, Managing Director, CGL 
Stephen Coulston, President and Managing Principal, Broaddus Planning 
Peter Baird, Planner, Broaddus Associates 

 
RESULT: DISCUSSED 

 
13. Approve submission of appropriate electronic notice to the Texas County and District 

Retirement System authorizing the 2015 Plan Year benefit contribution rate. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



October 28, 2014 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 5 
 

Purchasing Office Items 

 
14. Approve Modification No. 18 to Interlocal Agreement No. 4400000374, Austin Travis County 

Integral Care for System of Care services. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
15. Ratify contract award to advanced Trauma Solutions, Inc., for (TARGET) Program training and 

coaching services. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
16. Approve contract award for the Ned Granger Building renovation-County Attorney 3rd floor, IFB 

No. B1408-004-JT, to the low bidder, AG Construction Management. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
17. Approve twelve-month extension (Modification No. 6) to Contract No. 4400000027 (HTE 

Contract No. 08T00263OJ), Frost Insurance Agency, for excess workers compensation 
insurance. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

Transportation and Natural Resources Dept. Items 

 
18. Consider and take appropriate action on a preliminary plan:  El Pampero Preliminary Plan – 

Gregg Manor Road – two lots – City of Austin 2-mile ETJ in Precinct One. (Commissioner 
Davis) 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
19. Consider and take appropriate action on a request to use an alternative fiscal agreement for 

Commons at Rowe Lane Phase V-A in Precinct One. (Commissioner Davis) 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
20. Consider and take appropriate action on a request to use an alternative fiscal agreement for 

Commons at Rowe Lane Phase VI-A in Precinct One. (Commissioner Davis) 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
21. Consider and take appropriate action on a cash security agreement with Gehan Homes, Ltd-

Austin, for sidewalk fiscal for Commons at Rowe Lane Phase 4A for lot 24 Block FF in Precinct 
One. (Commissioner Davis) 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
22. Consider and take appropriate action on a cash security agreement with Nalle Custom Homes, 

for sidewalk fiscal for Greenshores on Lake Austin Phase 3 lot 11 Block 5 in Precinct Two. 
(Commissioner Todd) 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



October 28, 2014 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 6 
 

23. Consider and take appropriate action on a cash security agreement with Austin Enve, LLC for 
sidewalk fiscal for Lake Pointe Section 7 Lot 21 Block B in Precinct Three. (Commissioner 
Daugherty) 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
24. Consider and take appropriate action on a request for a variance to County on-site sewage 

facility (OSSF) regulations to allow two dwellings to be placed on less than two acres of land at 
545 Canyon Rim Drive in Precinct Three. (Commissioner Daugherty) 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
25. Consider and take appropriate action on the following:   
 

a. Public involvement process for the proposed Chapter 48, Rules of Travis County, Texas for 
On-Site Sewage Facilities; and   

 
b. Approve the setting of a public hearing on Tuesday, December 2, 2014 regarding the 

proposed Chapter 48, Rules of Travis County, Texas for On-Site Sewage Facilities. 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Stacey Scheffel, Program Manager, On-site Sewage Facilities, Transportation and Natural 

Resources (TNR) 
 
MOTION: Approve Items 25.a and b. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
SECONDER: Gerald Daugherty, Commissioner 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Bruce Todd, Gerald Daugherty, Margaret J. Gómez 
ABSENT: Ron Davis 

Clerk's Note: The Court noted that those desiring more information or wishing to provide 
comments on this topic may e-mail OSSF@traviscountytx.gov or call 512-854-7565. 

Other Items 

 
26. Consider and take appropriate action to approve the Capital Area Private Defender Service 

written report entitled “Plan of Operation.” 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
27. Consider and take appropriate action on follow up questions regarding proposed pilot program 

for video conferencing in Commissioners Court. 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Tanya Acevedo, Chief Information Officer, Information Technology Services (IITS) 
Daniel Bradford, Assistant County Attorney 
Nyralin Kline, Project Manager, ITS 

 
MOTION: Approve the project and implement it. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
SECONDER: Bruce Todd, Commissioner 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Bruce Todd, Gerald Daugherty, Margaret J. Gómez 
ABSENT: Ron Davis 

 

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



October 28, 2014 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 7 
 

28. Consider and take appropriate action on the District Attorney's Fiscal Year 2014 Chapter 59 
Asset Forfeiture Report. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
29. Consider and take appropriate action regarding the appointment of Central Counting Station 

personnel, Receiving Substation personnel, Presiding Judge, Alternate Presiding Judge and 
Early Voting Ballot Board members and Presiding and Alternate Election Precinct Judges for 
the November 4, 2014 joint elections for the general, state constitutional amendment, and 
various local entity elections. 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Zenobia Joseph, Travis County resident 

 
MOTION: Approve Item 29. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
SECONDER: Bruce Todd, Commissioner 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Bruce Todd, Gerald Daugherty, Margaret J. Gómez 
ABSENT: Ron Davis 

Executive Session Items 

The Commissioners Court will consider the following items in Executive Session. The 
Commissioners Court may also consider any other matter posted on the agenda if there are issues 
that require consideration in Executive Session and the Commissioners Court announces that the 
item will be considered during Executive Session. 
 
Note 1: Gov’t Code Ann 551.071, Consultation with Attorney 
Note 2: Gov’t Code Ann 551.072, Real Property 
Note 3: Gov’t Code Ann 551.074, Personnel Matters 
Note 4: Gov’t Code Ann 551.076, Security 
Note 5: Gov’t Code Ann 551.087, Economic Development Negotiations 
 
30. Receive briefing from outside counsel and take appropriate action regarding Steven Brand v. 

Travis County; Cause No. 1:14-CV-00658-LY.
 1 

Judge Biscoe announced that Item 30 would be considered in Executive Session pursuant to 
Gov’t. Code Ann. 551.071, Consultation with Attorney. 

MOTION: Authorize mediation and designate Bill Paterson, Risk Manager, HRMD, to 
represent Travis County. 

RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
SECONDER: Bruce Todd, Commissioner 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Bruce Todd, Gerald Daugherty, Margaret J. Gómez 
ABSENT: Ron Davis 

 

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



October 28, 2014 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 8 
 

31. Receive briefing and authorize County Attorney to enter into a contract for expert study and 
witness for possible tax challenge.

 1 

Judge Biscoe announced that Item 31 would be considered in Executive Session pursuant to 
Gov’t. Code Ann. 551.071, Consultation with Attorney. 
 
RESULT: DISCUSSED 

Consent Items 
 

C1. Receive bids from County Purchasing Agent. 
 
C2. Approve payment of claims and authorize County Treasurer to invest County funds. 

 

MOTION: Approve Consent Items C1–C2 and Agenda Items 2.a–c, 3, 4, 5, 6.a–c, 6.e–
g, 7.a–c, 8, 13, 14, 15, 16, 17, 18, 19, 20, 21, 22, 23, 24, 26, 28. 

RESULT: ADOPTED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
SECONDER: Gerald Daugherty, Commissioner 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Bruce Todd, Gerald Daugherty, Margaret J. Gómez 
ABSENT: Ron Davis 

Minutes approved by the Commissioners Court 
 

 

 

____________________________________ 
Date of Approval 
 

 

 

____________________________________ 
Samuel T. Biscoe, Travis County Judge 

 

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



 
 
Meeting Date:  November 18, 2014 
Prepared By/Phone Number: Melissa Velasquez, County Judge’s Office 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Samuel T. Biscoe, County Judge 
Commissioners Court Sponsor:  Samuel T. Biscoe, County Judge 
 
AGENDA LANGUAGE: 
CONSIDER AND TAKE APPROPRIATE ACTION REGARDING BOND 
RENEWAL FOR VISITING JUSTICE OF THE PEACE ELENA DIAZ. 
 
BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST AND ATTACHMENTS: 
Elena Diaz was appointed as Visiting Justice of the Peace in 2007.  Her 
bond is expiring and up for renewal.  The department indicates a need to 
renew the bond in order for Judge Diaz to continue to serve as Visiting 
Justice of the Peace.  The renewal term is January 1, 2015 and expiring 
December 31, 2018. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: 
Approve. 
 
ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES: 
n/a 
 
FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING: 
Invoice in the amount of $178.00, paid by Risk Management, HRMD 
 
REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS: 
Margie Solano, HRMD 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Item C4Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm

mailto:agenda@co.travis.tx.us


Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



AF7B21F7-CA76-4DA6-BD58-319EC7213E3801A96D01-1427-4A2F-9FB8-4C3184B72CB0178.000.00 178.00 178.000.00 1 178.001.00 178.000.00 1 1 178.001.00 178.000.00

INVOICE
Travis County Justice Of The 
Peace

5228

11/03/2014

 1 of 1

Carla White

TX598623

178.00

Invoice#58277

Customer

Date

Customer 

Service

Page

Invoice Summary

Payment Amount

Payment for:

Payment Information

Please detach and return with payment

Thank You

Dragoo Insurance Agency

PO Box 81606

Austin,  TX  78708

Effective

Travis County Justice Of The Peace

C/o Mr. William Patterson, TCAB 100

PO Box 1748

Austin, TX 78767

Customer: Travis County Justice Of The Peace

AmountDescriptionTransactionInvoice

Policy #TX598623  12/31/2014-12/31/2018

Merchants Bonding Co.
12/31/2014 Renew policy58277 178.00Surety - Renew policy

Elena Diaz, Justice of the Peace  - Renewal Bond
Please remit premium payable to: Dragoo Insurance Agency
Thank you, we appreciate your business.....

Total

Date

178.00

11/03/2014

Thank You

Dragoo Insurance Agency

PO Box 81606  

Austin, TX  78708

(512)837-5770

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Item C5Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



WS# _____

VS#  _____

TRAVIS COUNTY COMMISSIONER COURT

AGENDA REQUEST

Please consider the following item for: Voting Session ______________________________.

I. A. Request made by County Auditor's Office, telephone number 854-9125.

B. Requested text: Receive revenue and expenditure reports, and other statutorily required reports, for the month of 

September, 2014 from the County Auditor’s Office.  The reports are submitted electronically as allowed by local 

government code § 114.023 (a) and prescribed by the County Auditor.

C. Approved by: _____________________________________________________.
Signature of Commissioner or Judge.

II. A. Copies of reports emailed to Commissioners on Friday, November 07, 2014 .

B. Have the agencies affected by this request been invited to attend the work session?

Yes _____ No__ X__  Please list those contacted and their phone numbers :

__________________________________________________________________

__________________________________________________________________

__________________________________________________________________

III. PERSONNEL:

_____ A change in your department personnel. (Reclassifications, etc.)

IV. BUDGET REQUESTS:

If your request involves any of the following, please check appropriately:

_____ Additional funding for your department.

_____ Transfer of funds within your department budget.

_____ A change in your department's personnel.

The County Human Resource Management Department, and / or the Planning and Budget

Office mist be notified prior to the submission of this agenda request.

AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINES

All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted to the County Judge's Office

in writing by 5 p.m. on Tuesdays for the following week's meeting.

N:\AP\PROCEDURES\B - SAP\Gen Ledger\Close\Comm Court Monthly Reports\Monthly Financial Reports Agenda Request (2).xlsx

Item C6 SHORT ITEM BACKUPCreated 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Combined Balance Sheet
Governmental Fund Types

September 30, 2014
(Unaudited)

Proprietary
        Governmental Fund Types Fund Type

Special Debt Capital Internal
Assets: General Revenue Service Projects Service

  Pooled Cash 214,431,008$         51,690,608$             26,541$               222,001,374$      42,494,447$        
  Investments -                             1,273,891                19,305,241          -                          -                          
  Other Receivables/Other Assets 9,417,654               3,014,706                8,960                  2,324,068            3,591,605            
  Taxes Receivable 2,248,714               -                               1,097,857            -                          -                          
  Prepaid Items -                             -                               -                          -                          412,061               
  Capital Assets -                             -                               -                          -                          372,909               

Total Assets 226,097,376$         55,979,205$             20,438,599$        224,325,442$      46,871,022$        

Deferred Inflows:

  Delinquent Tax Roll 2,248,714$             -$                             1,097,857$          -$                        -$                        
Total Deferred Inflows 2,248,714               -                               1,097,857            -                          -                          

Liabilities:

  Accounts Payable 14,345,896             1,255,280                -                          9,529,988            340,832               
  Other Liabilities 33,378,706             3,925,784                1,090,473            1,052,787            11,414,844          
  Unearned Revenue 70,001                    4,644,351                -                          2,970,438            -                          

Total Liabilities 47,794,603              9,825,415                 1,090,473             13,553,213          11,755,676          

Equity:

  Fund Balance /  Retained Earnings 176,054,059           46,153,790              18,250,269          210,772,229        35,115,346          

Total Deferred Inflows, Liabilities and Fund Equity 226,097,376$         55,979,205$             20,438,599$        224,325,442$      46,871,022$        

Travis County, Texas

1 of 3 11/5/2014  7:55 AM

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



FY 2014 Budgeted Funds
Budget to Actual

September 30, 2014
(Unaudited)

Full Yr YTD *Non-Budgeted 
Budget Actual Balance YTD Actual

General Fund  
  Revenues 502,301,103$         526,381,706$           (24,080,603)$      -$                        
  Expenditures and encumbrances 552,198,302           539,025,882             13,172,420          -                          
Special Revenue    
  Revenues 39,980,454             40,804,965              (824,511)             41,165,708          
  Expenditures and encumbrances 42,942,744             39,188,424              3,754,320            42,644,510          
Debt Service    
  Revenues 80,328,941             81,434,967              (1,106,026)          1,697,314            
  Expenditures and encumbrances 81,575,833             81,387,299              188,534               1,759,182            
Capital Projects    
  Revenues 90,142,845             91,372,346              (1,229,501)          5,077,848            
  Expenditures and encumbrances 275,775,309           162,654,801             113,120,508        13,073,908          
Internal Service    
  Revenues 66,096,181             65,979,356              116,825               -                          
  Expenses 72,069,026             65,772,658              6,296,368            -                          

Cash Receipts and Disbursements Statement
For the Month of September 2014

Beginning Ending
Balance Receipts Disbursements Balance

General Fund 260,908,471$         68,296,835$             114,774,298$      214,431,008$      
Special Revenue Funds 49,819,422             11,979,739              10,108,553          51,690,608          
Debt Service Funds 6,356                      25,729,288              25,709,103          26,541                
Capital Project Funds 228,998,739           1,274,967                8,272,332            222,001,374        
Internal Service Funds 36,091,034             15,365,575              8,962,162            42,494,447          

575,824,022$         122,646,404$           167,826,448$      530,643,978$      

2 of 3 11/5/2014  7:55 AM

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



  

FROM TO

Abandoned Vehicle Fund General Fund 40,000$               
CAPSO General Fund 39,000                
Unclaimed Property Fund General Fund 48,412                
County Clerk Archival Fund General Fund 7,702                  
General Fund Balcones Canyonland-TNR 11,958,661          
General Fund Courthouse Security 2,381,164            
General Fund Dispute Resolution Ctr 81,665                
General Fund JJAEP(Juvenile Court) 195,431               
General Fund Professional Prosecutors 62,500                
General Fund Truancy Court 150,869               
Capital Project Funds Debt Service - Tax Exempt 63,197                
Self Insurance Fund General Fund 25,000                
Travis County Corporations General Fund 168,713               

Outstanding Bond Indebtedness 673,962,143$         
Interest Rate Range 0.58% to 5.875%

Note: Financial Statements include blended component units.
* Includes Grants and funds in which budgetary control is outside
  the scope of the Commissioners' Court.

Nicki Riley, CPA
Travis County Auditor

(Unaudited)

Statement of Interfund Transfers

For The Twelve Months Ended September 30, 2014

3 of 3 11/5/2014  7:55 AM

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



 

AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials should be submitted as 
a pdf to the County Judge's office, agenda@co.travis.tx.us  by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. for the next 
week's meeting. 

 

 
 
Meeting Date: November 18, 2014 
Prepared By/Phone Number: Robert Resnick, Commissioners Court 
Specialist, 512-854-4722 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Dana DeBeauvoir, Travis County 
Clerk 

Commissioners Court Sponsor: Judge Biscoe 
 
AGENDA LANGUAGE: Approve the Northwest Travis County Road 
District No. 3 (Golden Triangle) Minutes for the Voting Sessions of October 
14 & 28, 2014. 
 
 
BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST AND ATTACHMENTS: 
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 
 
ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES: 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING: 
 
 
REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 
Northwest Travis County Road District No. 3 

 

NWRD Item 2Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



  

October 14, 2014 Minutes of the Northwest Travis County Road District No. 3 (Golden Triangle) Page 1 

 

 Minutes for the Northwest Travis County 
 Road District No. 3 (Golden Triangle) 
 Tuesday, October 14, 2014  

 Voting Session 

 Minutes Prepared by the Travis County Clerk 
512-854-4722 ● www.co.travis.tx.us ● PO Box 149325, Austin, TX 78714-9325 

Meeting called to order on October 14, 2014, in the Travis County Administration Building, 
Commissioners Courtroom, 700 Lavaca Street, 1st Floor, Austin, TX. Dana DeBeauvoir, County 
Clerk, was represented by Deputy Robert Resnick. 
 
Samuel T. Biscoe County Judge Present 
Ron Davis Precinct 1, Commissioner Absent 
Bruce Todd Precinct 2, Commissioner Present  
Gerald Daugherty Precinct 3, Commissioner Present 
Margaret J. Gómez Precinct 4, Commissioner Present 

 
 
1. Approve payment of claims and authorize County Treasurer to invest Road District funds. 

 
RESULT: NOT NEEDED 

 
2. Added item: Approve the Northwest Travis County Road District No. 3 (Golden Triangle) 

minutes for the voting sessions of September 2 & 23, 2014. 
 
MOTION: Approve Item 2. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Gerald Daugherty, Commissioner 
SECONDER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Bruce Todd, Gerald Daugherty, Margaret J. Gómez 
ABSENT: Ron Davis 

Minutes approved by the Commissioners Court 
 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Date of Approval 
 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Samuel T. Biscoe, Travis County Judge 

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



  

October 28, 2014 Minutes of the Northwest Travis County Road District No. 3 (Golden Triangle) Page 1 

 Minutes for the Northwest Travis County 
 Road District No. 3 (Golden Triangle) 
 Tuesday, October 28, 2014  

 Voting Session 

 Minutes Prepared by the Travis County Clerk 
512-854-4722 ● www.co.travis.tx.us ● PO Box 149325, Austin, TX 78714-9325 

Meeting called to order on October 28, 2014, in the Travis County Administration Building, 
Commissioners Courtroom, 700 Lavaca Street, 1st Floor, Austin, TX. Dana DeBeauvoir, County 
Clerk, was represented by Deputy Robert Resnick. 
 
Samuel T. Biscoe County Judge Present 
Ron Davis Precinct 1, Commissioner Absent 
Bruce Todd Precinct 2, Commissioner Present  
Gerald Daugherty Precinct 3, Commissioner Present 
Margaret J. Gómez Precinct 4, Commissioner Present 

 
 

1. Approve payment of claims and authorize County Treasurer to invest Road District funds. 

MOTION: Authorize that any investments be made and any claims be paid. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
SECONDER: Gerald Daugherty, Commissioner 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Bruce Todd, Gerald Daugherty, Margaret J. Gómez 
ABSENT: Ron Davis 

Minutes approved by the Commissioners Court 
 

 

 

____________________________________ 
Date of Approval 
 

 

 

____________________________________ 
Samuel T. Biscoe, Travis County Judge 

 

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to the County Judge's office, agenda@.co.travis.tx.us  by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. for the next week's 
meeting. 

 

 
 
 
Meeting Date: November 18, 2014 
Prepared By/Phone Number: Robert Resnick, Commissioners Court 
Specialist, 512-854-4722 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Dana DeBeauvoir, Travis County 
Clerk 

Commissioners Court Sponsor: Judge Biscoe 
 
AGENDA LANGUAGE: Approve the Bee Cave Road District No. 1 
(Galleria) Minutes for the Voting Sessions of October 14 & 28, 2014. 
 
 
BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST AND ATTACHMENTS: 
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 
 
ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES: 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING: 
 
 
REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 
Travis County Bee Cave Road District No. 1 

BCRD Item 2Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



  

October 14, 2014 Minutes of the Travis County Bee Cave Road District No. 1 (Galleria) Page 1 

 Minutes for the Travis County  
 Bee Cave Road District No. 1 (Galleria) 
 Tuesday, October 14, 2014  

 Voting Session 

 Minutes Prepared by the Travis County Clerk 
512-854-4722 ● www.co.travis.tx.us ● PO Box 149325, Austin, TX 78714-9325 

Meeting called to order on October 14, 2014, in the Travis County Administration Building, 
Commissioners Courtroom, 700 Lavaca Street, 1st Floor, Austin, TX. Dana DeBeauvoir, County 
Clerk, was represented by Deputy Robert Resnick. 
 
Samuel T. Biscoe County Judge Present 
Ron Davis Precinct 1, Commissioner Absent 
Bruce Todd Precinct 2, Commissioner Present  
Gerald Daugherty Precinct 3, Commissioner Present 
Margaret J. Gómez Precinct 4, Commissioner Present 

 
 

1. Approve payment of claims and authorize County Treasurer to invest Road District funds. 
 
MOTION: Approve the investments in Item 1. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
SECONDER: Gerald Daugherty, Commissioner 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Bruce Todd, Gerald Daugherty, Margaret J. Gómez 
ABSENT: Ron Davis 

 
2. Added item: Approve the Bee Cave Road District No. 1 (Galleria) minutes for the voting 

sessions of September 2, 16, & 23, 2014. 
 
MOTION: Approve Item 2. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
SECONDER: Gerald Daugherty, Commissioner 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Bruce Todd, Gerald Daugherty, Margaret J. Gómez 
ABSENT: Ron Davis 

Minutes approved by the Commissioners Court 
 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Date of Approval 
 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Samuel T. Biscoe, Travis County Judge 

 

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



  

October 28, 2014 Minutes of the Travis County Bee Cave Road District No. 1 (Galleria) Page 1 

 Minutes for the Travis County  
 Bee Cave Road District No. 1 (Galleria) 
 Tuesday, October 28, 2014  

 Voting Session 

 Minutes Prepared by the Travis County Clerk 
512-854-4722 ● www.co.travis.tx.us ● PO Box 149325, Austin, TX 78714-9325 

Meeting called to order on October 28, 2014, in the Travis County Administration Building, 
Commissioners Courtroom, 700 Lavaca Street, 1st Floor, Austin, TX. Dana DeBeauvoir, County 
Clerk, was represented by Deputy Robert Resnick. 
 
Samuel T. Biscoe County Judge Present 
Ron Davis Precinct 1, Commissioner Absent 
Bruce Todd Precinct 2, Commissioner Present  
Gerald Daugherty Precinct 3, Commissioner Present 
Margaret J. Gómez Precinct 4, Commissioner Present 

 
 

1. Approve payment of claims and authorize County Treasurer to invest Road District funds. 

MOTION: Authorize that any investments be made and any claims be paid. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
SECONDER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Bruce Todd, Gerald Daugherty, Margaret J. Gómez 
ABSENT: Ron Davis 

Minutes approved by the Commissioners Court 
 

 

 

____________________________________ 
Date of Approval 
 

 

 

____________________________________ 
Samuel T. Biscoe, Travis County Judge 

 

Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



HFDC Item 1Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm



Created 11-13-14 at 4:49 pm


	Item 01
	Item 03
	Item 04
	Item 05
	Hunger and Homelessness Proclamation Agenda Request_111814
	Hunger and Homelessness Proclamation 2014 Travis County_revised

	Item 06
	Item 06
	Alzheimers Awareness
	resolution alzheimers month Nov  2014

	Item 07
	Item 07
	Caregiver Month
	resolution natl caregiver month Nov  2014

	Item 08
	Item 08
	WD 2014 Appreciation Day

	Item 09
	JPS ME candidate's Travel expenses 2014
	JPS Memo for candidate's travel

	Item 10
	Item 11
	Item 12
	Item 13
	Item 14
	Item 15
	Item 16
	Item 17
	Meeting Date:  November 18, 2014
	Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head:
	Commissioners Court Sponsor:   Judge Samuel T. Biscoe
	AGENDA LANGUAGE:
	Consider and take appropriate action on items related the Program Year 2013 Consolidated Annual Performance Evaluation Report  for the Community Development Block Grant provided by HUD:
	A. Receive a summary of the annual performance report; and
	B. Approve the draft to post for public comment.
	BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST AND ATTACHMENTS:
	STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS:
	FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING:
	REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS:
	PY13 Annual Report Summary_ENG_revised.pdf
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5
	Slide Number 6
	Slide Number 7
	Slide Number 8
	Slide Number 9
	Slide Number 10
	Slide Number 11
	Slide Number 12
	Slide Number 13
	Slide Number 14
	Slide Number 15


	Item 18
	Item 19
	Item 20
	Item 21
	Item 22
	Item 23
	Item 24
	11817 : RFQ 1406-010-AG, Juvenile Probation Dept. Needs Analysis & Master Plan Update
	ExecutiveSummaryPAM 2011
	SOQ EVALUATIONS MATRIX
	ORAL PRESENTATION MATRIX
	Recommendation Memo from JPD


	Item 25
	11852 : 4400001642, Mod #2; Weiss Lane Bridge #229 Improvements Project
	ExecutiveSummaryPAM 2011
	MOD2 COPY
	TNR MEMO FOR MOD2
	Funds Reservation 300000880


	Item 26
	11855 : Assignment of Contract No. 4400007999 HTEPS100196DW - Burkes Supervised Living Center
	ExecutiveSummaryPAM 2011
	Modification No. 4 - Assignment of Contract
	New W-9 74-2425479


	Item 27
	11953 : Surplus Vehicle Auction
	Vehicle Public Auction Agenda Request for CC 11182014 CC
	Final Vehicle Auction List 11052014


	Item 28
	11954 : 4400000892 Mod 2 Southwest Key
	PLACE CONTACTS HERE
	ExecutiveSummaryPAM 2011
	Department Memo Mod 2
	Mod 2 CC Draft


	Item 29
	11955 : Approve Ct 44--0683 Encompass Medical Mod 10
	ExecutiveSummaryPAM 2011
	44--0683 mod 10 vendor signed
	Dept Memo FY'15 Expiring contracts
	Agenda No_ 17 Sept 30_ 2014 Expiring Contracts


	Item 30
	11956 : Cont. Award RFP 1404-009-RF, Commissioned Security Guard Services
	ExecutiveSummaryPAM 2011
	tabulation summary
	FMD Award Recommedation
	JP Award Recommendation
	CES Award Recommedation
	Adult Probation Award Recommedation


	Item 31
	11957 : Contract Award, RFP # 1407-009-CW, Employee Assistance Program,  Deer Oaks EAP Services, LLC
	Contract Award for RFP 1407-009-CW to deer Oaks for EAP
	FY15_2014-11-05 EAP Contract Award Memo
	Evaluation Matrix Summary, RFP # 1407-009-CW, Travis County EAP
	FinalizedContractDeerOaksEAPServicesLLC


	Item 32
	Item 33
	Item 34
	Item 37
	Item 38
	Item 39
	Item 40
	Item 41
	Item 42
	Item 43
	Item 44
	Item 45
	Item 46
	Item 47
	Item C3
	CC 0903 & 04 Budg & 1014, 21 & 28 Ag Rq
	CC 0903 Budg
	CC 0904 Budg
	CC 1014
	CC 1021
	CC 1028

	Item C4
	Item C5
	Item C6
	Item C6
	12 AUD September FY14 Financial StatementsAAS

	NWRD Item 02
	Nw 1014 & 28 Ag Rq
	NW1014
	NW1028

	BCRD Item 02
	BC 10 14 & 28 AgRq
	BC1014
	BC1028

	HFDC Item 01



